Smarter Students & Stronger Families

Through the reorganization and transformation of City Hall, the Berke Administration has placed a new emphasis
on ensuring Chattanooga’s youth have an opportunity to succeed. The City must play a role in supporting students
through both strong partnerships with the schools and the provision of direct services. However, investing in our
Chattanooga’s youth and families pays the largest dividend when embraced by everyone - government, churches,
families, and schools.

Supporting the development of Chattanooga’s youth starts long before they walk into a Youth & Family
Development Center. Building a strong foundation through prenatal care and early learning is critical to the later
success of children in school and beyond. Community efforts should be undertaken to provide pregnant mothers
and young fathers with the critical knowledge they need to be successful parents.

The success of children in school largely depends on their families and communities. The City must help kids in a
sustained way, starting as early in their lives as possible to create a critical mass of supportive adults who
understand what it takes to help children succeed. Through community partnerships that leverage our strengths
and assets, there must be a pipeline of services for kids and families — including academic support, recreation
opportunities, and parental resources. As neighborhood anchors, the City’s Youth and Family Development
Centers should play a role in maintaining strong community partnerships that proactively disseminate
information to residents.

Total funded: $24,295,904.00
Total requested: $32,944,516.00
Total number of offers funded: 21

The following are Funded Offers for the Smarter Students & Stronger Families Result Area:
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OFFER SUMMARY

Offer Name:  Arts Education Initiatives
Lead Agency:  ArtsBuild
Collaborating City Department(s):  Youth and Family Development

Contact Name: Rodney Van Valkenburg
Smarter Students, Stronger
Primary Results Area:  Families

Offer Cost (Funding Request):  $59,500

RESULTS AREAS

1. Safer Streets — Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways.

2. Growing Economy — Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods — Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid re-housing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families — Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government — Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund — Something different — processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage?
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)

Imagine! Initiative

The long-range goal of the Imagine! Initiative is to enable all local public elementary students (grades K-5) to
experience a series of exhibits, concerts and performances presented by leading Chattanooga arts
organizations. These experiences are strategically organized to increase exposure to the arts and to enhance
student learning. ArtsBuild pays for the students’ tickets, transportation, and provides support materials to
maximize the presentation’s curriculum connections.

Students are engaged in the study of the “creative process” throughout the Imagine! Initiative. The creative
process builds students’ communication, problem-solving, and teamwork skills needed to succeed in a 21*
century workplace. Through professionally-developed educational materials and professional development,
classroom teachers guide students through the creative process, which is aligned with the Common Core
curriculum and higher-order thinking capacities needed to advance students on standardized tests.

Schools are not mandated to attend the Imagine! performances; however, EVERY elementary school within
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Chattanooga city limits VOLUNTARILY participated in the Imagine! Initiative in the 2013-2014 school year.
This year, three Imagine! presentations were offered: second grade students attended Chattanooga Ballet’s
The Nutcracker, third graders attended the Chattanooga Symphony and Opera’s Young People’s Concert and
fourth graders attended the Southern Lit Alliance’s professional theatre presentation of The Adventures of
Tom Sawyer. All presentations were held at the Tivoli Theatre.

ArtsBuild would like to add a first grade Imagine! presentation for the 2014-2015 school year. First grade
students would attend the Chattanooga Theatre Centre’s internationally-acclaimed Youth Theatre production
which will focus on bringing age-appropriate literature to life on stage. By offering experiences to first
through fourth grades, ArtsBuild would serve approximately 6,600 students living within Chattanooga city
limits.

Adding first grade would enable ArtsBuild to achieve its goal of developing a new, through-line curriculum for
the Imagine! Initiative with the theme of “exploring the creative process.” Consecutive years of arts
experiences will deepen curriculum understanding through the creative process which is aligned within the
approaches of Common Core Curriculum. The creative process includes: reflecting, assessing, creating and
revising work; all of these areas are embedded within Common Core. Studies have shown that:
¢ Students who receive arts-integrated instruction have higher attendance than those who do not.
¢ Arts education develops students’ critical thinking skills—including skills for comparing,
hypothesizing, critiquing, and exploring multiple and alternative viewpoints.

Statement of Need

This initiative began in 2009 as a result of a survey of arts experiences in our public elementary schools. We
found that 20% of all local public elementary school students had no exposure to the arts during elementary
school outside of a 40 minute music class once a week. Fifty-two percent of all elementary students had no
more than three arts experiences during their entire elementary school career. We found that the amount of
arts experiences varied widely from school to school.

This discrepancy was of great concern to ArtsBuild. Recent research and books such as the Rise of the Creative
Class by Richard Florida and Daniel Pink’s A Whole New Mind show that success in the 21* century workplace,
depends on developing a creative community. The arts must to be part of every child’s education to develop a
workforce that can work as a team, communicate well, and process and synthesize information in a coherent
manner.

ArtsBuild’s Imagine! Initiative is taking a strong stand with our belief that exposure to the arts should be by
design and should be for every elementary school student in our community.

ArtsBuild’s guiding philosophy was confirmed by a study published in September 2013 about the lasting
impact of arts field trips on students attending activities at the Walton Performing Arts Center and Crystal
Bridge Art Museum in Fayetteville, Arkansas (EducationNext, Winter 2014). Researchers Jay P. Greene, Daniel
H. Bowen and Brian Kisida surveyed more than 2,000 students and were able to establish a random control
group for the study. Their research found that students that attended arts field trips read more, were more
curious about the arts, and were more tolerant and empathetic individuals.

Local Kennedy Center Workshops
For the past 12 years ArtsBuild has partnered with HCDE and the John F. Kennedy Center’s Partners in
Education program to host a workshop series, specifically designed for K-12 teachers, which focuses on how
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to integrate the arts with literacy instruction. The series consists of two, two-day workshops, a one-day
follow-up workshop, a teacher in-service day, and a workshop for principals. ArtsBuild would like to add
workshops for other types of educators such as community center employees, after-school educators, and
local teaching artists.

We anticipate 50 community educators and teaching artists would participate in the new workshops. The
workshops will take place in October and November 2014. Matching funds are also provided through a grant
from the Tennessee Arts Commission. The current teacher workshops consist of arts integration instruction
strategies, demonstration classes with students, coaching participants in the implementation of activities, and
lesson plan facilitation. Participants include grade-level teams from our local public schools.

Workshop participants gain a better understanding of the impact high-quality art experiences have on
students. Workshop leaders explicitly identify theatre, visual arts, and language arts curriculum standards
while focusing on instruction techniques needed for arts integration to occur. The leaders also connect
activities to core curriculum.

Statement of Need

With the emphasis on Common Core Curriculum Standards in Tennessee schools, learning in, about and
through the arts has been recognized as a significant way to help students achieve high results. Common Core
stresses the need for students to look more deeply into curriculum subjects. Students must develop higher-
order thinking skills, cooperative behavior and the ability to analyze visual texts to succeed; arts education
develops these skills. The Common Core initiative emphasizes effective instructional strategies; however,
many teachers are not prepared to teach the way Common Core requires. ArtsBuild Teacher Workshops will
continue to assist teachers in implementing teaching strategies aligned with the goals of Common Core
Curriculum Standards.

ArtsBuild’s objective is for at least 85% of the participating teachers to be comfortable leading classroom
activities learned during the workshops. We provide all of the supplies and materials teachers need to begin
implementation in their classrooms. While this outcome projects a high percentage success rate, it is
consistent with past participant evaluation surveys.

By implementing the activities in the workshops, students are better able to succeed in a cooperative learning
environment and are able to increase literacy comprehension through deeper comparative analysis,
inference, and awareness of detail. As required by Common Core Curriculum Standards, students are able to
communicate knowledge and understandings of curriculum through different means such as drama and visual
art. Teachers are able to differentiate their teaching strategies and assess student learning through multiple
art forms.

Any funding requested from HCDE or Hamilton County General Government?

ArtsBuild does not request funding from Hamilton County Department of Education. However, HCDE provides
in-kind support for use of Barger Academy for the local Kennedy Center Workshops as well as administrative
and staff time at Barger Academy and the HCDE Central Office. The approximate value of the in-kind support
is $7,250 per year. Our programs would not be possible without HCDE’s in-kind support.

While Hamilton County general Government does not currently support any nonprofit programs, individual
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Commissioners have provided support from their discretionary funds. In 2013, Commissioner Larry Henry
committed $10,000 and Commissioner Marty Haynes, $2,500 to support our education programs.
Commissioner Tim Boyd committed $20,000 in 2012 and 2013 for our Community Cultural Connections grants
program.

What percentage of students served are City residents?
Of the projected 12,800 HCDE students in grades 1-4 who attend Imagine! presentations, approximately 52%
(or 6,600) attend schools within the Chattanooga city limits.

Of the 114 teachers who attended the local Kennedy Center workshops in 2013, 54% (or 61) of the
participants teach in schools within the Chattanooga city limits.

Do workshops improve TVASS scores for participants?

While we do not measure a causal relationship between the workshops and TVASS scores, the workshop
strategies presented are embedded with recognized best instructional practice. ArtsBuild believes that
supporting and building effective teacher instructional practice will have a positive result on test scores.

These best practices are shared, modelled with students, and participants are given time to practice and
identify placement within their classrooms. We measure teacher’s comfort in leading the activities in their
classroom. In 2013, 88% of participants reported that they were very confident or confident implementing
the workshop activities in their classrooms.

The workshop leaders align their sessions with six learning principles: learning is actively built, experiential,
reflective, evolving, collaborative, and embraces problem solving. The instruction strategies shared are
consistent with recognized educational approaches such as Piaget’s Constructivist Theories, Bloom’s
Taxonomy and Gardner’s Multiple Intelligences. The instructional strategies learned are researched-based,
reach diverse learners, and address 21 century workplace needs.

Are program surveys used to measure?
Teacher surveys are used to measure the impact of both the local Kennedy Center workshops and the
Imagine! Initiative.

This year's teacher workshop evaluations demonstrated that 97% of participants rated the workshops as
excellent. The value of the workshops is represented in the teachers' comments:

e "l have been teaching since 2004 and these workshops are the BEST, MOST APPLICABLE sessions |
have EVER been to."

e "Needs to be system wide —everyone involved!"

e “This is a must for educators interested in managing classroom behaviors productively and effectively
and for building dynamic and free-thinking learners."

e "l have attended many workshops on inquiry-based learning, and this is the most accessible. Everyone
who teaches common core and is responsible for teaching visual literacy should attend this
workshop!" “l can really see this changing how | teach!"

Imagine! teacher surveys demonstrated that 96% were very satisfied with the events. Fifty percent of the 2"
grade student attendees had never been to the Tivoli. Ninety-one percent of the teachers led at least two
pre-or post-activities that supported the grade-level curriculum.
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Teacher comments for the Imagine! Initiative included:

e “l am very honored that ArtsBuild provides such a powerful performance for Hamilton County second
graders to attend. Otherwise, they probably would never get to witness a first-class ballet in such a
beautiful theater.”

e “This is an amazing chance for teachers to integrate fine arts into the literacy curriculum. | wish we
had more opportunities like this, and | sincerely appreciate ArtsBuild for creating the Imagine
Initiative. | hope the program continues; it is one of the highlights of the year for second graders.”

e "This is one of the most worthwhile programs ArtsBuild provides for Hamilton County school
children.” “I know the "Language Arts" time we spent learning the history of ballet and some of the
elements of ballet benefitted my children as much as the work we did with the story. It was time well
spent.”

e “I'd like to take this as an opportunity to say thank you VERY MUCH for financing this field trip for us.
As a 90% free lunch school, we don't have many opportunities for field trips during the year. So, this
was a wonderful, fascinating trip for my kids here at Rivermont.”

Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts:
1. Increase reading proficiency for children and adults

2. More kids graduating high school, college, and career ready
3. Fewer kids dropping out of school

BUDGET REQUEST

Summary: (Please complete based on information contained in Attachment F)

Personnel Costs FTEs
Offer Name (including Benefits) Operating Costs Total Request required
Arts Education S0 (salaries covered
Initiatives by endowment) $112,000 | $59,500 1
Capital Budget Impact? Yes X No $Amount

Financial Offsets: (Please list other revenues associated with the specific program for which funding is requested)

Name Amount
Tennessee Arts Commission $10,000
Unum $25,000
ArtsBuild Operating $17,500

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1:

Elementary school students will have systematic exposure to quality arts and culture experiences provided by
area arts organizations and will utilize our City’s cultural resources.
e Continue the current 100% level of participation from all HCDE elementary schools within the
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Chattanooga city limits in the Imagine! Initiative.

Measurement 2:
The Imagine! Initiative will enhance student learning by connecting to the Common Core curriculum.
e 90% of the teachers will lead at least three pre-and/or post-curriculum activities connected to the
Imagine! Initiative.
e 90% of the teachers agree that the Imagine! Initiative or Kennedy Center Workshops were
valuable and enhanced the curriculum or their instructional strategies.

Measurement 3:
Teachers will understand and implement arts integration instructional strategies through participation in local
Kennedy Center workshops.
e 85% of teachers participating in the Kennedy Center workshops state that they are comfortable
to lead the activities learned during the workshops in their classroom.
o 80% of the participants, surveyed three months after the workshop, indicated that they have
implemented activities in their classrooms.

Return on Investment:

How do citizens benefit?

ArtsBuild’s education programs help to develop a creative, innovative workforce. Arts education in schools
and in the community engage young people and make our community attractive to those interested in
moving to Chattanooga as a dynamic place to live, learn, work and play.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?

ArtsBuild has been a past recipient of state and national grants for our arts education efforts. There is a new,
significant grant opportunity for arts education through the National Endowment for the Arts. Our
partnership with the City, particularly as Chattanooga’s officially designated local arts agency, will greatly
assist us as we approach the NEA and other national sources for funding.

How does this activity decrease costs over time for the City?
Young people who are engaged in the arts are more likely to stay in school and are less likely to commit
crimes. The more youth are engaged in positive activities, overall expenses for the City will decrease.

How can this program become sustainable without City funding?

The arts education programs are not designed to generate any earned income through ticket sales or fees.
ArtsBuild is a fundraising organization in addition to providing programs benefitting our community. We
believe that the City’s support will assist us with fully implementing our education programs, and this will
greatly enhance our efforts to increase additional financial support for these programs.
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Fiscal Year ends June 30

Agency Name:

ARTS

CITY OF CHATTANOOGA

FY 2015 Agency Funding Financial Form

Does not include Endowment Earnings,

Gifts-in-Kind
Incr (Decr) % Change
CASH Budget Project CASH | Request vs. FY 14 | Request vs FY 14
Actual FY 2011 Actual FY 2012 Actual FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 Budaet Budaet
REVENUES:
Contributions
ivi Private $ 601.178 | & 657.251 | $ 544.131 | $ 632.000 | $ 632.000 | $ - 0.0%
Corporate/Oraanizations $ 293.955 | 225.866 | $ 294.887 | $ 228.000 | $ 228.000 | $ - 0.0%
Fees/Grants from Governmental Aaencies
Federal - N.E.A. $ 40.000 | $ 250.000
State- Tennessee Arts C $ 187.435 | § 88.910 | $ 90.93! 93.035 | $ 98.065 | $ 5.030 5.4%
Hamilton Countv Government $ 150.000 $0 S -
Countv Districts $2.500 $52.50! 30.000 | $ 30.000 | $ -
Citv of Cl $ 201.200 | $ 176.472 | $ 226.47. 275.000 | $ 359.500 | $ 84.500 30.7%
Public Art Chattanooaa $ -000
Foundations (includina arants) 235.850 | $ 480.750 | $ 231.750 307.250 298.501 (8.750) -2.8'
Holmbera Institute Tuition 200 9.000 9.00! - .0
Hamilton Countv Fair Income 104.657 | $ 137.600 | $ 125.264 135.000 135.00 - .0
Ei to Operatina & Cultural Partners 834.540 | ¢ 782.840 | $ 632.409 665.895 641.87! (24.025) .6
Other 110.850 | $ 31.178 | $ 43.155 57.000 50.00( (7.000) -12.3
TOTAL REVENUES $ 2,765,865 [ $ 2,833,367 [ $ 2,245,503 | $ 2,432,180 | $ 2,481,935 | $ 49,755 2.0%
OPERATIONS EXPENSE:
Personnel
Salaries 325.165 329.496 321.324 339.792 339.792 - .0
Pavroll Taxes. etc. 755 25.824 25.28! 804 26.804 - .0
Pension/Retirement 423 20.466 16.141 .288 18.288 - .0
|Emblovee Health, Life and Dental benefits .141 26,969 35,57 .609 44,940 3.331 .0
Total 370,343 375,786 398,33 426,493 429,824 3,331 .8
Fund-Raisi
Total Fund-Raisina-Dx 1t Expenses $ 52.135 | & 54.990 | $ 96.490 | & 75.000 | $ 75.000 | $ - 0.0%
Board/C Events 2.546.04 1.657.37 -990 -000 2.00! -
Conferences/Trainina -689.80 31. 165 200 2201 -
Dues.Subscr..Fees.Pubs. -725.00 .870. 229 4.000 4.00 -
Audit /Pr i Fees 14.095.26 13.167. 13.906 19.400 19.401 -
Insurance .529.20 436. 267 .640 10.001 4.360
I & Rebairs .076.46 .677. 223 .600 .20 1.600
i -Computer $ 4.342 .146. 131 -500 .80 300
Copier/Printer Expense added 2013 — added 2013 — ,340 ,600 .60 -
Buildina Security 61. 03.0. 850 0. .50 2.600
Utilities-Electric and Gas 5.170.. 4.890.8 4.173 4.500 .00 2.500
Office/Data Supplies/Printina 7.144. 5.111.7 9.418 7.500 8.50! 1.000
Postaae 27.4 41.8. 269 -800 2.00! 200
Rent- Office 35.997.4 36.950.7 35.133 36.300 - (36.300) K
Other Rent/Leases added 2013 — added 2013 — ,965 4,696 4,750 4 .
T ISP/Comm ions 5.863.33 3.735.5 465 950 5.600 1.650 41.8
Local Travel/Entertainment 2.467.54 1.378.6 -080 -300 2.300 - .0
Board Discretionarv Fund 9.405.0! -
Supplies-Kitchen and Bathroom 468.17 824.4¢ 991 | $ 1.000 1.000 | & - 0.0%
Mbrship / Miscellaneous 4,412.61 740.35 1,090 | $ 2,550 2,500 [ $ (50) -2.0%
New Location;
Net Occunancy - Dover Building E. 11th Street $ 38.693
Total ative 103,216 96,468.31 101,685 | $ 111,436 | § 128,043 | $ 16,607 14.9%
PROGRAMS AND PROJECTS:
Cultural Partner Allocation: 1.457.768 1.020.438 970.891 875.000 46.000
Cultural Partner Share of Endowment Draw for Operating 239.541 224.450 221.38 235.998 49.587
Art Education 175.495 4.402 79.30: 78.000 39.500
Proiect Grants- Includes HC Fair 134.224 227.262 185.85 160.503 15.000 | $ 54.497 34.0%
Other i Grants:
SPARK $ 108.768
Main Terrain $ 232.350 | $ 244.710
Dover Buildina Facade 80.000
ARTSPACE 63.750
MARKETING CHATTANOOGA/ARTS COMMUNITY. 62.500
TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE TO PARTNERS 35.000
COMMUNITY CULTURAL CONNECTIONS 67.500
POPS ON THE RIVER 70.000
SPECIAL INITIATIVES $ 275.000
CULTURAL PLAN 67.527
CAPACITY BUILDING- WOLFBROWN 50.217
Other 128,074 | $ 26,970 | $ 76,920 | $ 31,000 | $ 124,000
Total Proaram. Proiect & Grants 2.252.846 | $ 1.815.872 | § 1.887.831 | $ 1.759.251 | § 1.849.087
Other Debre GIK. etc $ 46.563 | $ 26.086 | $ 56.212 [ ¢ 60.000
TOTAL EXPENSE: TOTAL OPERATION $ 2,825,10. $ 2,369,202 | $ 2,540,549 | $ 2,432,180 | $ 2,481,954
REVENUE OVER/ (UNDER) OPERATIONS $ (59.238) $ 464,165 | $ (295.046)| $ - $ a9l s - N/A
Notes:
Total Fiscal Year Endowment Earninas $2.236.232.00 ($69.169) $1.539.149
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OFFER SUMMARY

Offer Name:  Baby College

Department
Offer Number: 7 Offer Rank: 2
Lead
Department:  Youth & Family Development Collaboration: 'y N _X
Administrator:  Lurone Jennings, Sr.
Offer Cost:  $580,725 Primary Results Area: Smarter Students, Stronger Families

RESULTS AREA

1. Safer Streets — Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways.

2. Growing Economy — Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods — Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid rehousing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families — Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government — Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund — Something different — processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage?
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)

The Department of Youth & Family Development has five important areas of focus that impact the daily lives of families
and students the most: education, career development, leadership training, social services, and recreation. While the City’s
Youth & Family Development Centers have been charged with providing opportunities for learning as well as recreation,
and have incorporated literacy programs using the Lexia internet based curriculum software into their facilities, a great
need still exists for learning opportunities for young families to build a strong foundation for the future.

Research has shown that children from low-income families had a cumulative vocabulary by age 3 that was less than half
the vocabulary of a same-age child from families of middle and higher income. Research has also shown that children’s
brains grow more in the first three years of life than at any other time. Thus, it is imperative that language and vocabulary
are addressed as early as possible in a child’'s development and this should begin with inception.

Youth & Family Development will implement the Baby College program for young parents in acceptable YFD Community
Centers and other facilities where community centers are not available.

Youth & Family Development 1
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The Baby College curriculum will aid parents and parents-to-be or caregivers in ensuring that parents expecting or raising a
child between the ages of 0 and 3 will have the information and support necessary to bring up happy and healthy children
who enter school ready to learn. Parents will increase the frequency with which they read to their children, connect with
community resources such as health services and Head Start, and improve their understanding of their role as parents.
The goal of the Baby College program will be not only to share information and resources with the participants but to
change the participants’ view of themselves as both parents and teachers, encouraging them to accept the idea that their
child’s education and intellectual development begin at inception and that they, as parents, have a crucial role to play in
that development. The curriculum will be designed to foster discussion between participants and will focus on sharing
information in the context of fostering positive parent-child relationships. Curriculum will included: Brain Development;
Health Care; Safety; Discipline; Education; Career Development

Identify Which Desired Outcomes from Request for Offer(s) that this Offer Impacts:

1. More pregnant women accessing prenatal care
2. More parental involvement
3. Increase reading proficiency for children and adults

BUDGET REQUEST

Summary: (Please complete based on Dept. Operating Detail and Dept. Personnel Detail Forms)

Personnel Cost % of FTEs
Department (including Benefits) Operations Request offer required
Youth & Family
Development 380,725.00 200,000.00 | $580,725.00 100% 3
0%
Total S 380,725.00 | S 200,000.00 | $580,725.00 100% 3

*Amounts MUST agree with collaborating Department totals for this offer

Capital Budget Impact? Yes x No $Amount
*Please prepare and attach Capital Budget Request Form

Financial Offsets: (Please list any Revenue e.g. golf course revenue, Grants, Private/Corporate Contributions, Etc.)
Name Amount

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1: Increase Graduation Rate
FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target
n/a n/a n/a 100%
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Measurement 2: Weekly Attendance

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target
n/a n/a n/a 100%

Measurement 3: Reading Improvement for parents through Lexia
FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target
n/a n/a n/a 100%

Return on Investment:
How do citizens benefit?

Citizens will benefit from this program through the resulting number of children who enter school ready to
learn. The strengthened families that will result from participation in the Baby College program will translate
to healthier, happier children, smarter students, higher achievement, reduced crime, and ultimately a
reduced burden on taxpayers due to a reduced reliance on government support and a reduction in
incarceration.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? no

How does this decrease costs over time? Costs are reduced through parents being educated and informed of
the developmental process of their child which increases the academic performance of their children which will
increase high school graduation numbers; reduce the number of dropouts which in turn reduces delinquency
and crime. We are developing well educated citizens that become a viable part of our community and
workforce.

Youth & Family Development 3
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OFFER SUMMARY

Offer Name: preserving African American Culture/Bessie Smith Cultural Center

Lead Agency:

Department of Youth & Family DeveloErﬁEntl Office of Multi-Cultural
Collaborating City Department(s):  Affairs

Contact Name: Rose M. Martin, President, Bessie Smith Cultural Center
Primary Results Area:  smarter Students
Offer Cost (Funding Request): 85,000

RESULTS AREAS

1. Safer Streets — Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways. -

2. Growing Economy — Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods — Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid re-housing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families — Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government — Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund — Something different — processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS

The Bessie Smith Cultural Center (BSCC) aims to positively impact the priority of SMARTER STUDENTS &
STRONGER FAMILIES while expanding cultural awareness by providing critical learing and enrichment
opportunities including exhibitions, programs and events that explore the diverse contributions, history and
culture of African Americans to students, families, residents and visitors in Chattanooga. The BSCC will push
boundaries outside of the center to support this effort through launching “The Bessie Academy” (BA), a new
innovative program designed to meet community priorities for youth and families. The BA will consist of four
cultural and cross-curricular activities through partnerships with the Chattanooga Parks & Recreation Centers,
OMA, The University of Tennessee at Chattanooga and other partners. The programs are designed to engage
and deepen participant’s connection with the arts, history and culture as an education resource and mechanism
to generate enthusiasm for learning.
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The programs and activities will be provided onsite and externally utilizing the following:

Educators, professional artists, BSCC staff and targeted volunteers
Internal and external cultural services in conjunction with organizations, schools and visitors
Utilize Youth and Family Development Centers as neighborhood hubs for provision of services

High quality rotating exhibitions, academies, research resource, lectures, films, workshops,
performances, etc.

Founded in 1983, the Bessie Smith Cultural Center, recognized as a regional cultural institution, recently
celebrated its 30t Anniversary in February 2014. The mission is to become the premier center for promoting
cultural, educational and artistic excellence, fostering research of African American heritage; and providing a
venue that allows the community to celebrate through education, arts, and entertainment. The organization is
well recognized as demographically representative of African Americans and other people of color in
Chattanooga, TN. According to 2012 U. S. census data, the Black or African American population in
Chattanooga, TN was 35% compared to 16.7% in the State of Tennessee; The Hispanic or Latino population in
Chattanooga was 5.5% and 4.6% in the state.

The BSCC has considered the above data and incorporated social, environmental and economic considerations
in programmatic offerings with an aim of improving efficiency and delivery of programs while utilizing creativity to
enrich, educate and entertain. The BSCC will continue to serve a diverse rainbow coalition of students and
constituents through its programs. As the only organization in Chattanooga with the primary mission of
preserving African American culture, the BSCC is uniquely positioned to address the critical need in our
community. According to U.S. census data, provided by Parks and Recreation, 80% of participants are African
American, 13% are Caucasian, and 2% other.

The Bessie Smith Cultural Center is ready to provide the following important services:

¢ Provide culturally relevant education lessons and activities for African American students

e Present and utilize African American culture as a culturally significant and respected resource to improve
student's self-esteem and lesson the negative self image

e Offer cultural specific programs that engage participation of parents and youth

According to the School of Education at John Hopkins University, culturally relevant education lessons and
activities for African American students are essential to improving school performance and graduation rates.
Research indicates students and communities whose culture is respected are empowered fo learn because the
negative self-image that accompanies the rejection of their experience is eliminated. Lee, Lomotey, and Shujaa
(1993) also point out that education for African Americans in an environment which denigrates their culture is
self-defeating. The organization is also placing an emphasis on an underserved demographic of African
American and low performing youth due to the identified barriers and need within our city.

Various socio-economic factors contribute to the educational disparity in Chattanooga.
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| According to 2012 U.S. Census data, 23.5% of Chattanooga residents were below the poverty rate; 16.5% of
households with children 18 years or less had no husband present; 5.9% of the population 25 years and over
have less than a 9% grade education and 11% of the population attend school, 9t through 12t grade but have no
diploma. Additionally, there was a large demographic of grandparents responsible for raising their grandchildren.

The majority of the under-performing students attend Title 1 Schools that are majority African American or people
of color. The BSCC will provide cultural activities and programs that utilize the student’s culture and what they
already know to improve participation and learning. The BSCC further aims to utilize and build on community
and cultural practices; reinforce community ties and promote services to families that will improve the quality of
life in our community.

The BSCC seeks funds for the following innovative and educational programs:

The Bessie Academy (with Chattanooga Parks & Recreation Centers) The Bessie Academy will consist of four
cultural and cross-curricular activities and programs designed to engage and deepen participants' connection
with the arts, history and culture while cultivating excitement and enthusiasm for learning.

The Bessie Academy will feature the following innovative workshops:

e It's the Remix (ITR) — ITR are hands-on visual art workshops that encourage the participants to rethink
recycling. |TR will provide interactive and engaging activities that go beyond "reduce, reuse, and
recycle” by examining repurposed art. Participants will create artwork from recycled or repurposed
(remixed) materials. The workshop will also focus on a range of traditional mediums and techniques,
team-work, critical thinking, fine motor skills development, and self-evaluation. The (2014-2015) theme
for ITR will be “Life is a Cabaret”. Students will work with visual artist Rondell Crier to “remix” cabaret
tables using found objects and other mediums. Working in teams, each team will pick an African
American musician from the Harlem Renaissance era (including Bessie Smith) as subject of their work.
The teams will research (exposing them to African American history & accomplishments) the selected
artist and create a piece of artwork based on their findings. Students will showcase their creations
through an exhibition at the Bessie Smith Cultural Center. ITR will be held twice weekly for twelve weeks
at two recreation centers.

ITR will be held twice a week and take place at two recreation centers for twelve weeks.

Desired outcome - Increase students' knowledge of research, presentation and art techniques by at least
20%. Increase participants team work skills and sense of community responsibility. ITR will incorporate
research-based curriculum and strategies that have proven successful in improving academic and
behavior outcomes.

o The Bessie Beats Academy- The Bessie Beats Academy (BBA) will expose students to the creative art
and culture of DJing. BBA will give participants a comprehensive knowledge of music history, culture and
theory across genres while also providing hands-on instruction in DJ production, spinning and
composition. Students will be exposed to professional DJs not only as instructors but also as guest
speakers at the classes. Students will then apply this newly acquired knowledge along with critical
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thinking, media literacy and technical DJ skills to produce an original DJ set composition at the
conclusion of the academy. The BBA will be held twice a week and take place at two recreation centers
for twelve weeks. We will be using the same equipment at both locations.

The BBA addresses the following common core standards (Music history standard 6.0) (Music general
standard 2.0 and 4.0)

Desired outcome - Increase participants' reading skills by at least 10% compared to the start of the
program. BBA will incorporate research-based curriculum and strategies that have proven successful in
improving academic and behavior outcomes.

e Dropping Science — African American men and women have invented a host of unique devices, processes,
and manufacturing methods that have enhanced this nation's standard of living and productivity. From the
golf tee to the traffic signal, African Americans have contributed greatly to advancements in the United States
and the World. These accomplishments will be showcased through an African American Inventors exhibition
at the Bessie Smith Cultural Center. The BSCC will educate and develop the next generation of creative
inventors through Camp Invention at Eureka Academy and the Eureka Young Inventors Competition.
(Eureka was a company in Chattanooga TN that produced a version of the straightening comb patented by
an African American Chattanooga businessman.) Young inventors will also be inspired through the Black
Inventor Lunch and Learn.

e Dropping Science includes two science based creativity initiatives.

The Eureka Young Inventors Competition will be held at the BSCC and is open to area middle and high
school students. Students participating in the competition can enter an idea for a new product or improvement for
an existing product or procedure. Students will be judged by area science and technology teachers along with
the featured speaker for the Black Inventor Lunch and Learn celebration, which will be an African American
inventor.

Camp Invention (Cl) Cl is a nationally recognized program created by the National Inventors Hall of Fame
focused on creativity, innovation, real-world problem solving and the spirit of invention. Geared towards children
entering grades one through six, Cl uses essential STEAM (Science, Technology, Engineering, Art, and Math)
concepts through creative hands on activities. Cl strives to enhance each child’s ability to learn through
teamwork and subject immersion while providing exciting challenges and cultivating a new appreciation for
discovery. CI will utilize local licensed elementary and middle school teachers to teach the classes. Cl is a one
week program that will be offered at “the Bessie” free to students who receive free or reduced lunch and for a
modest fee for students who do not. Some of the Common Core Standards that are addressed in CI (CCSS.ELA-
Literacy.RST.6-8.3, 6-8.9)

Black Inventor Lunch and Learn (BILL) will be an annual luncheon held at the Bessie Smith Cultural Center
celebrating Black ingenuity. This program, presented with the OMCA (Office of Multi-Cultural Affairs) will feature
a black inventor as keynote speaker. We hope to feature Lonnie Johnson, (most known for inventing the Super
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Soaker) who also holds over 80 patents with over 20 more pending. Desired outcomes for dropping science —
Increase participants’ awareness of STEAM career opportunities by 25%. Increase participants' confidence and
interest in pursuing a STEAM degree by 5%.

FY15 Exhibitions

e Black Inventions & Inventors — Bll is a multimedia presentation which pays tribute to the world's
unsung heroes, the Black inventor and scientist. The exhibit showcases black inventors and their
respective inventions in the fields of science, aerospace, communication, health care, agriculture,
transportation and engineering.

o IndiVisible: African Native lives in the Americas - From the National Museum of the American Indian
and the National Museum of African American History and Culture comes an important and enlightening
exhibition about the intersection of American Indian and African American people and cultures.
IndiVisible: African-Native American Lives in the Americas explores historical and contemporary stories
of peoples and communities whose shared histories are woven into the fabric of American identity but
whose presence has long been invisible to many in the United States.

e (1)ne Drop - People of African descent reflect a multiplicity of skin tones and phenotypic characteristics.
Often times, however, when met by people who self-identify as ‘Black,’ but do not fit into a prototypical
model of ‘Blackness,’ many of us not only question their identity, but challenge their Blackness, and thus
our potential relationship to them. A multi-platform project, inclusive of a full-color portrait essay book
and traveling exhibition & lecture, (1)ne Drop literally explores the ‘other” faces of Blackness — those
who may not immediately be recognized, accepted, or embraced as ‘Black’ in this visually racialized
society.

e A Cast of Blues - A celebration of Mississippi's rich musical heritage, A Cast of Blues features 15 resin-
cast masks of blues legends created by artist Sharon McConnell-Dickerson. “A life cast is like a 3D
photograph to someone who is blind,” says McConnell-Dickerson, who is visually impaired herself. “It
captures the flesh, muscle, bone, hair, and subtle expressions of emotion. | wanted to discover the faces
behind the music | love, so | went to Mississippi to map out the visages of the real Delta blues men and
women." In addition, the exhibition includes 15 color photographs of blues artists and the colorful juke
joints in which they played. The images are selected from acclaimed photographer Ken Murphy's
ground-breaking book, Mississippi: State of Blues. Murphy, a longtime resident of Bay St. Louis, MS,
captures the essence of the blues through highly detailed, panoramic color pictures. The compilation of
casts and photos create a compelling portrait of the men and women who defined—and continue to
shape—the tradition of Mississippi blues.

Goals:

1: to actively support & foster arts awareness & arts education through strategically created & implemented
programs.

2: o increase the quality of life for our participants & community by being a proactive member of the creative
community in the Greater Chattanooga area.
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3: to encourage & celebrate life-long learning and creativity through our programs including exhibits, workshops,
performances & lectures.

Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts:

In support of the City's priority through SMARTER STUDENTS & STRONGER FAMILIES, The BSCC in
partnership with The Department of Youth and Family Development (DYFD) and the OMA aims to positively
impact the following:

o Fewer kids dropping out of school (5% decrease in program participants)
e Increase reading proficiency for children and adults (10% increase of participants)

e More kids graduating from high school, college and career ready (Must coordinate and obtain data from
DYFD data not available to project outcome)

BUDGET REQUEST

Summary:
CITY OF CHATTANOOGA OFFER
BUDGET SUMMARY
Incr
(Decr
)
Requ
est
VS,
FY 14
Request FY Budg
Account Category 2015 et
REVENUES
Contributions 15500.00
Fees/Grants from Governmental Agencies
Federal
State 5,000.00
City of Chattanooga 85,000.00
Other Cities (Please list)
(Allied Arts, Night to Remember, Foundation
Foundations (including grants) 46,460.00 Foundation)
Gross Proceeds Special Events 177,000.00 (Presenting Events)
Membership Dues 20,000.00
Fee for Services 3,000.00 (Tuition / Fees)
Other Program Income / 30th. BSCC Anniversary for
FY14 60,000.00 Fundraiser scheduled FY15
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City of Chattanooga

Sales to Public 18,000.00
Miscellaneous 1,000.00
Rentals 114,500.00
Admissions 11,000.00
Interest Income 300.00
Income from Previous Year
$
TOTAL REVENUES 556,760.00
OPERATIONS
Personnel Expenses
Salaries 168822
Fringe Benefits
Payroll Taxes, etc. 14000
Other (unemployment, life insurance, Worker comp) 7000
$
Total Personnel Expenses 189,822.00
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration
Professional Fee & Contract service 40000
Utilities
Travel/Transportation 7500
Materials & Supplies 4000
Telephone, Fax, ISP 3000
Postage and Shipping 2000
Occupancy/Building/Utilities 18000
Equipment Rental and Maintenance (including
contracts) 18000
Outside Printing, Art Work, etc. 1500
Organization Dues (other than above) 500
Awards and Grants 2000
Fund Raising/Self-Support Activities 178295
Miscellaneous 17065
Strategic Planning/ Programs 75078
S
Operating Expenses Total 366,938.00
S
TOTAL OPERATIONS 556,760.00

(parking lot, Gift shop, Exhibit Inc)

Advertising, credit card fees, board & meeting

Education & Program Expenses and Strategic

; expenses, lit

planning
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Personnel Costs FTEs
Offer Name (including Benefits) Operating Costs Total Request required
Preserving African
American Culture/Bessie
Smith Cultural Center $194,972 $30,786.00 | $85,000.00 1573
Capital Budget Impact? Yes XNo $Amount

Financial Offsets: (Please list other revenues associated with the specific program for which funding is requested)

Name Amount - Estimates only as awards are done afterwards.
ArtsBuild $30,000
Tennessee Arts Commission 14,000
South Arts 3,000
Lyndhurst Foundation 10,000
Benwood Foundation 50,000
Suntrust Foundation 10,000
Mid American Arts Alliance 5,000
Night to Remember 5,000
Targeted Hamilton County Commissioners 10,000
uTc TBD
Corporate Sponsors, Donors, Donations TBD
Program Revenue/Fees $3000.00
Admission Exhibits $7722.00

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1:

e The BSCC programs will Provide culturally relevant education lessons and activities for African American
students

Historical Comparison Data?

The Bessie Smith Cultural Center is a non-profit organization and has been in existence for 30 years
housed in the current location since 1996. The organization promotes diversity through its board and
staff. The BSCC has four full-time staff members, two part-time staff members and utilizes external
contracted services for other agency needs to reduce cost. The BSCC has been the primary resource for
ensuring African American heritage is celebrated and preserved in the City and was established for that
purpose. BSCC has offered onsite and external programs over the years. This newly created academy
offers innovative activities for youth and serves a specific demographic in partnership with the recreation
centers which have students at those locations. This is a user-friendly way to meet community needs.
The BSCC will also have designated activities onsite at the Cultural Center. Desired Outcome- Increase
student’s knowledge of research, presentation and art techniques by 15%. Increase participants team
work skills and sense of responsibility while incorporating research-based curriculum and strategies that
have proven successful in improving academic behavior outcomes. Youth participants in recreation
centers (40)
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Measurement 2:

In FY13, BSCC engaged 2,292 youth in topic and cultural specific activities with lesson plans that are
measurable, ages 5 through 12. There was a 12% improvement in overall reading skills; however these
activities were directly linked to the Museum Schools program.

The Bessie Smith Cultural Center will utilize culturally specific programs to increase participant's reading
skills by at least 10% compared to the start of the program. BBA will incorporate culturally specific
research-based curriculum and strategies to obtain desired outcomes. The students are from in a
different environment. Youth participants (300 within recreation centers)

Measurement 3:

The Bessie Smith Cultural Center will provide high quality multi-cultural interventions through exhibitions,
programs, and performances at the BSCC. The BSCC will serve families, individuals, college students, high
school, elementary and Pre-K students. Over the past two years the majority participation has increased for
BSCC programs. This likely resulted from increased efforts to promote cultural diversity and utilizing arts and
culture to bridge relationships. The BSCC will actively market and have outreach activities to create supportive
adults who understand what it takes to help children succeed and engage parents who may not otherwise
participate or visit the center due to financial barriers. BSCC will expand its marketing and offering of free
programs to reach this demographic. The BSCC aims to increase underserved family participation by 15% and
other family participation by 5%.

Historical Comparison Data?
Last year (FY13) the BSCC served 43,295 citizens

Return on Investment:

How do citizens benefit? Innovative exhibits and programming on African American Heritage and Culture will
serve to improve the quality and quantity of educational programs related to Chattanooga's culture, growth, and
economic development. It is important that African American heritage, history and culture have a place to be
celebrated, promoted and kept alive for generations to come. Materials and resources offered by the BSCC
provide a greater depth of knowledge about African and African American heritage not only to those
descendants, but to all lifelong learners interested in Chattanooga and the world's ethnic and social background.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? Eamed income through programs, rentals and events
continue to be stable with modest increases and will be used to continue to support the exhibits, programs and
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activities of the center.

How does this activity decrease costs over time for the City? All components of the proposed project have been
designed to provide lasting community resources that will continue to evolve. The introduction of nationally
recognized traveling exhibits and development of new educational and cultural programs and materials wil
provide resources for visitors and school children and serve the center for several years. All traveling trunks and
lesson plans will be designed using Common Core Standards, so that they will have longevity of use in the local
school system, with which the BSCC has a long-standing relationship. Investment in preventive educational
resources will provide a substantial savings to the City on incarceration and other criminal elements. These
investments will also help to promote productive taxpaying citizens.

How can this program become sustainable without City funding? Sustainability is key to all aspects of the
Center--both short term and long term. Financially, trends continue to be favorable, and, while overall giving
amounts were down, the number of people contributing continued to increase slightly. Other areas of progress
include a stable membership base and more robust increases in program revenues. Activities will be supported
through these revenue streams as well as through increases in philanthropic and planned giving. We recognize
that attendance fluctuates from year to year and plan accordingly with our financial projections, exhibits,
programs and other areas.

10
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CITY OF CHATTANGOGA
FY 2015 Agency Funding Financial Form
Iner {Decr} Request | % Change Reduest
Account Category Actual FY 2011 | Actual FY 2012 | Actual FY 2013 | Budget FY 2014 | ReguestFY 2015 | vs FY14Budget | usFY 14 Budpet
REVENUES
Contributions 14,635.00 15407 18053 15500.00 15500.00
Indivlduals/Private H - N/A
Corporate/Organizatlons/Churches S - N{A
Fees/(Grants from Governmental Agencies
Faderal $ : N/A
State 10,000.00 35,281.68 © 000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00] § N 0.0%
Hamilton County 64,000.00 ] - WA
City of Chattanooga . 54,000.00 54,000.00| = 54,000.00 54,000.00 25,000.00| $ 31,000 574%
Other Cities {Please list} 5 - N/A
United Way
Faundatlans [including grants) 46,126.00 52,972.00 57,758.00 46,450.00 46,460,001 8 - 0,0% | (allied Arts, Night ta Remember, Foundation Support, TN_Arts Comm,, Community, Foundation}
Gross Proceeds Speclal Events 73,B72.78 175,140.00 173,743.00 177,000.00 177,000.00| $ - 0.0% | {Presenting Events]
Gther UWs/Fedearations 3 - N/A
CFC/Dasignations received thru UWGC 5 - N/A
UWGE Program Allocation $ - N/A
UWGC Special Funding $ - NSA
Mernbership Dues 10,865.00 14,675.00 12,710.00 20,000,00 20,000.00} $ - 0.0%
Program [pcome 3 - B/A
Governmental Insurance S - N/A
Private Insurance 5 - N7A
Contracted Services S - N/A
Fee for Sepvices 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,400.00 3,000.00 3,000.00| $ - 0.0% | (Tuition / Fees) ’
Qther Program Income / 30th. BSCC Anniversary for FY1d 50,000.00 £0,000.00 0,00 60,000.00 60,000.00| 5 - 0.0% A .\
sales to Pul 15,452.78 21,392.23 16,138.00 15,000.00 18,000.001 § - 0.0% | {parking lot, Gift shop, Exhibit Inc}
investment inceme 3 - N/A [
Miscellaneous 3,505.02 357,76 10,656.00 1,000.00 1,000.00| § - 0.0%
Rentals B5,398,50 104,244,530 105,571.00 114,500.00 114,500.09| $ - 0.0%
Admissions 3,166,328 9,072.84 7,72000 15,000.00 10,000.00| 5 - 0.9%
Interest lncome 1,843.51 412,85 621.00 300,00 300.00{ § - 0.0% | i
Income from Previous Year 31,988.17 f
§ 473,454.74 | § 545962.86 | 3 464,976.00 § %24,760.00 | § 555760.00 | § 31,000 NAA i
TOTAL REVENUES
OPERATIONS
Paersonnel Expenses
Salaries 151022.51 162088.04 170118 168822 168322 & - 0.0%
Frings Benafits s - NIA
Emplayee Health 10615.2 5460.55 [ [i os - N/A
Pension/Ratirement Q 1] 3 - N/A
Payroll Taxes, etc. 14242.18 14737.66 22226 14000 14000| & - 0.0%
Other funamplaoyment, life insurance, Worker comp] 16312.08 19839.85 17031 7000 7000| § - 0.0%
Total Personne! Expenses $ 102,791.94 | & 203,176.10 | 5 209,376.00 | § 18982200 | §  189,822.00 | 5 - 0.0% i
7 §
OPERATING EXPENSES
tration
nal Fee & Contract service 70664.54 4741632 51818 50013 50013 8 - 0.0%
) - N/A
Other 5 - N/A
Rent 10 $ - N/A
Travei/Transportation 5984.68 2053.88 8136 7500 75001 § - 0.0%
Insurance {not employes health) 5 - N/
Materials & Supplies 3165.02 £215.02 2402 5000 50004 § - N/A
Telephona, Fax, ISP 6442.95 31126 4538 3500 3500{ $ - N/A '
Postage and Shipping 748.93 87446 606 2000 2000 $ - 0.0%
Occupancy/Bullding/Utllities 20840.3 1785157 5370 18500 185001 § - 0.0%
Equipment Rental and Maintenance {including contracts) 15514.47 0 18828 20000 200001 5 - 0.0%
Outside Printing, Art Work, ete, 2038.7 1085.92 575 2000 20001 § - - 0.0%




Agency Name: Bessie Smith Cultural Center
Confarences, Conventions, etc. 2356.78 Q 3 - 0.0%
Special Assistance to Indlviduals $ - 0.0%
Mational Dues/Supnort Payments s - N/A
Org ion Dues (other than abovel | &3 313.08 228 1000 10001 § - N/A
Awards and Grants 1360 1630 1650 2500 25001 § - N/A
Fund Raising/5elf-5upport Activities 85443.23 187570.15 130728 182825 182925 & - 0.0%

“_gmmnmmm:mo_._m 19052.08 794363 9295 17585 17585| & - 0.0%

EStrateglc Planning/ Programs 30417.72 49704.55 60325 22415 780781 § 55,663 30.4%|(Ofr. Prog/Ed./Exhibits)
Depreclation ! $ - 0.0% [
Ccapital Expense 33827.25 5 - 0.0%

N s - N/A

Cperating Expanses Total $ 273,10355 | § 359,318.46 | 3 29400000 | § 33493800 | $  380,601.00 | § 55,663 N/A

TOTAL OPERATIONS S 46589548 | & 56244436 | § 503,378.00 1§ 52478000 | § 580,423.00 | 3 55,663 16.6%
!

REVENUE QVER/ (UNDER] OPERATICNS B 7,559.25 | & [16481.60)! § (38.400.00)( 8 - 5 {24,663.00}| § {24,663} N/A




City of Chattanooga
FY15 Offers

OFFER SUMMARY

Increasing Academic Achievement for 100-120 At-Risk Youth through
Offer Name:  After-school and Summer Programs

Lead Agency:  United Methodist Neighborhood Centers, Inc. (DBA The Bethlehem Center)

Collaborating City Department(s):  Youth & Family Development

Contact Name: Ted Bullock

Primary Results Area:  Smarter Students, Stronger Families
Offer Cost (Funding Request):  $30,000

RESULTS AREAS

1. Safer Streets — Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate pathways.

2. Growing Economy — Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development, business
recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods — Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy residential
markets, and rapid re-housing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families — Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government — Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund — Something different — processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage?
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)

As identified through the RFO and the priorities outlined by Mayor Berke, his team, and the City Council, providing services
that ensure our community’s students have every opportunity to succeed in school is critical. According to national research,
students with quality education and high levels of literacy have much better odds at surviving and excelling in inner-city
communities. Education and literacy are correlated with competitive employment and increases in economic success
[http://www.bls.gov/emp/ep chart 001.htm], as well as reduced crime, incarceration, and gang involvement. Although education
is important for success in life, students who come from economically depressed neighborhoods are at great risk of falling
behind [Hemphill, L. and Tivnan, T. (2008). The Importance of Early Vocabulary for Literacy Achievement in High-Poverty Schools. Journal of
Education for Students Placed at Risk, 13 (4), 426-451]. For these students, additional intentional investment is critical, both after
school and during the summer months when students are at risk of losing knowledge and skills gained over the school year
[Cooper, H., Nye, B., Charlton, K., Lindsay, J., & Greathouse, S. (1996). The effects of summer vacation on achievement test scores: A
narrative and meta-analytic review. Review of Education Research, 66(3), 227-268].

Given this need, the Bethlehem Center will deliver services to 100-120 students grades one through eight that will increase
their reading proficiency, decrease absenteeism, and ensure their academic success through an intensive focus on reading and
math. With a strong foundation in their early years, students are more likely to stay in school and graduate high school college
and career ready.

United Methodist Neighborhood Centers, Inc. (The Bethlehem Center) 1
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The Bethlehem Center has an extensive track record of serving youth since its inception in the 1920s and has had a major
impact on tens of thousands of lives during this time. The Beth serves approximately 85 to 100 children annually through its
after-school and summer programs. Our hope is to gradually increase staff capacity to serve incrementally greater numbers of
children in the future without diluting the quality of our programs.

Students in our After-School Program and the Read to Lead Summer Learning Academy attend some of the most struggling
schools in our community, including Calvin Donaldson Elementary, East Lake Elementary, East Side Elementary, Brown
Academy, Clifton Hills Elementary, Battle Elementary, Orchard Knob Middle, and East Lake Academy. 98% of our students
come from economically disadvantaged homes and must overcome social, as well as academic, challenges. As the tables
below from the Lexia proficiency test (given at the start of the academic year) show, students enrolling in our programs are
significantly behind. In fact, 70% begin the program far below grade level and 90% of elementary students are designated
high risk (see attached report).

Lexia Start Level by Grade for The Bethlehem Center Students, 2013-2014 Academic Year

ELEMENTARY GRADES
Grade Level Students Grade Level of Material (% Working On)

P K 1 2 3 4 5
Grade 1 12 42% 25% 33% - - - -
Grade 2 5 - 60% 20% 20% - - -
Grade 3 9 - 11% 56% 22% 11% -
Grade 4 11 18% 0% 9% 9% 18% 45% -
Grade 5 13 8% 8% 31% 23% 0% 8% 23%

Lexia Start Level by Grade for The Bethlehem Center Students, 2013-2014 Academic Year

MIDDLE GRADES
Grade Level Students Grade Level of Material (% Working On)
Basic Elementary Intermediate
Grade 6 12 42% 17% 42%
Grade 7 7 43% 29% 29%

To address these deficiencies, the After-School Program runs from 3:00-6:30 PM Monday-Thursday during the school year
while the Read to Lead Summer Learning Academy provides an intensive six week program, running from 8:00 AM-3:00 PM
Monday-Friday during June and July.

Through the After-School Program and the Read to Lead Summer Learning Academy, we will accomplish our objectives of
ensuring academic success through the following activities:

e Creation of an Individualized Education Plan for Each Student. Each student is given a test in reading and
math at the beginning of the program to assess current learning levels. Based on the results of the tests, the
program director and HCDE certified teachers responsible for implementing the program create an individualized plan
for each child, setting goals as well as a plan for achieving them by the end of the program. Major costs include the
funding of three certified teachers, the tests, and a program manager.

United Methodist Neighborhood Centers, Inc. (The Bethlehem Center) 2
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e Lexia Reading Program:. Our Lexia reading program is a scientifically-based, peer-reviewed, proven tool that
increases literacy proficiency in elementary and middle school students [see
http://www.lexialearning.com/effectiveness/research]. Lexia is an internet-based reading program that assesses skills,
teaches students through engaging and interactive games, determines lesson plans for teachers according to student
weakness, provides daily practice for indicated areas of need, and measures each student’s time on tasks. All of our
students access their personalized reading program on laptop computers every day and we track each student’s
individual literacy levels weekly throughout the school year and summer. Major costs include computer maintenance,
licensing fees, and teacher oversight.

e  FASTT Math: Our FASTT Math program uses research-validated methods to provide systematic instruction and
continuous practice to help students automatically recall and understand math facts
[http://www.scholastic.com/administrator/math/pdf/FM White Paper.pdf]. Also a computer-based program, FASTT Math
uses adaptive technology to offer each student a customized learning experience based on their individual needs. All
of our student access their personalized math program on laptop computers every day and we track each student’s
individual math levels weekly throughout the school year and summer. Major costs include computer maintenance,
licensing fees, and teacher oversight.

e  Homework Support & Tutoring. To complement the computer-based learning through Lexia and FASTT Math, we
provide homework assistance during the school year and individualized tutoring year-round to our students every day
of our programs. Three to four Hamilton County Department of Education certified teachers oversee this component
(three for the After-School Program and four for the Summer Academy). Teachers work individually with students to
ensure their Individualized Education Plan goals are met and any needed additional assistance given. We also utilize
volunteer and program assistant help. In fact, during each day of our academic programs, 10-15 community
volunteers assist our children - acting as classroom aids, helping kids with homework, tutoring, or reading with
students. Volunteers are so vital to our work that we recently hired a volunteer coordinator to recruit and train
volunteers to work with the youth in our programs. Major costs include stipends for the teachers, program assistants,
volunteer coordinator, classroom supplies, and relevant space for activities.

e  Enrichment Activities. In addition to academic supports, we provide enrichment activities aimed at developing
healthy, creative minds and bodies. These activities, such as recreation, photography classes, arts and crafts, ballet,
music, life-skill training, gardening, and field trips serve many purposes both inside and outside the classroom, from
helping students see things from new perspectives to community engagement. Although our programs’ primary aim
is developing the mind, we believe it is important to develop the whole person, as well. Many of the enrichment
opportunities offered are in partnership with organizations such as Christ United Methodist Church, Art 120, Teen
Challenge, the Tennessee Aquarium, Fair Share, and the Chattanooga Police Department. Volunteers also provide
great help with these enrichment activities. Our volunteer leaders are excited to share their expertise and are
passionate about building relationships with the students in meaningful ways. In designing enrichment programming,
we strive for variety and choice in activities that encourage student creativity and self-expression. Students are
required to complete all homework and skill study before they participate in enrichment activities. Major costs include
supplies, program oversight, volunteer coordination, transportation costs for student field trips, and stipends for
music and swim teachers.

Throughout the programs, we also collaborate with Hamilton County Department of Education schools and the students’
families to ensure individualized goals are met. With the permission of parents, the schools regularly release report cards to us
for review. Additionally, our staff frequently meets with principals and teachers to ensure our students stay on track and our
efforts complement those of traditional classrooms. We believe we must all work together to make sure every child is given his
or her best chance to succeed.

Although our current metrics only track youth for the time they are in our programs, we are collaborating with the City’s
Department of Youth and Family Development to research tracking methods and find ways to better follow our students’
progress past the 8" grade.

United Methodist Neighborhood Centers, Inc. (The Bethlehem Center) 3
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Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts:
1. Increase reading proficiency for children and adults

2. More kids graduating high school college and career ready
3. Decrease chronic absenteeism

BUDGET REQUEST

Summary: (Please complete based on information contained in Attachment F)

Personnel Costs FTEs
Offer Name (including Benefits) Operating Costs Total Request required
Increasing Academic $306,000 $199,000 $30,000 8
Achievement for 100-
120 at-risk youth
through
After-school and
Summer Programs
Capital Budget Impact? Yes X No $Amount

Financial Offsets: (Please list other revenues associated with the specific program for which funding is requested)

Name Amount
Fee for Service $15,000
Foundation Grants $150,000
Private (Individuals)/Corporate Financial Contributions $265,000
Sales to Public (Thrift Store) $35,000
Volunteer Labor (in-kind) $10,000

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1:

70% of participating youth will be at or above grade level in reading. At least 85% of youth will see an increase in proficiency
from the beginning to the end the program. Progress will be measured by Lexia’s reporting systems.

See attached reports for historical data.

Measurement 2:

80% of participating youth will be at or above a C average in math. At least 60% of these will see an increase in skill level
over the course of the program. Progress will be measured through FASTT Math’s reporting systems as well as
performance on weekly assignments.

Measurement 3:

90% of participating youth will have an average of 95% daily school attendance. Progress will be measured through
reports from schools as well as attendance in the After-School Program.

United Methodist Neighborhood Centers, Inc. (The Bethlehem Center) 4
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Return on Investment:

This Offer helps the City build a pipeline of social services for kids and families and ensures youth in South Chattanooga have
every opportunity to succeed, a key budget strategy described in the RFO. The success of this Offer is realized through
measurable changes in student learning in math and reading for at-risk youth from struggling schools. In particular, the Offer:

e Will ensure 70% of participating youth will be at or above grade level in reading and that at least 85% will see an
increase in proficiency from the beginning to the end the program. As a result, there will be an increase in children
and adults proficient in reading in our community.

e  Will ensure 80% of participating youth will be at or above a C average in math and that at least 60% of these will
see an increase in skill level over the course of the program. As a result, students will be better equipped to graduate
high school career-ready.

e  Will ensure 90% of participating youth will have an average of 95% daily school attendance. As a result, there will be
a decrease in chronic absenteeism among students.

Academic performance will be measured by charting the reading and math improvements of each student in the program. The
Lexia Literacy Program and FASTT Math both track results for each student, and results are assessed weekly by the education
director. The main objective is to ensure that each child is performing at least equal to his or her grade level and/or individual
potential. This evaluation process enables program staff to pinpoint specific areas in which the student is having difficultly and
coordinate tutorial assistance targeted at specific weaknesses. We also use student and parent meetings and surveys, report
cards, and progress reports from students’ schools to ensure students are on track. Successful progress is rewarded with overt
public recognition and incentive awards.

As stated above, success in school translates to many other positive life outcomes, including better employment, health, and
economic conditions as well as less crime, teen-pregnancy, incarceration, and gang involvement. According to the Och
Center's 2013 State of Chattanooga Region Report: Education, it costs roughly $25,000 per year to incarcerate a prisoner in
Tennessee compared to $9,300 spent annually to educate a student. It concludes, “the returns on the education investment
include higher future earnings (thus, higher tax receipts), less antisocial behavior and stronger communities”
[http://www.ochscenter.org/documents/SOCRR2013 Education.pdf]. By ensuring our community’s youth have the best
possible chance at success in school, the City and the citizens as a whole benefit over the long-run.

Because this Offer is run within a nonprofit, it leverages other financial and human resources from the private sector to help
achieve the City’s RFO aims. Whereas in similar programs run by the City the entire budget must be funded by public dollars,
this Offer decreases costs for the City by pairing its resources alongside the charitable donations of both time and money from
individuals, corporations, and private foundations, allowing even more to be accomplished with less investment by the public
sector. However, the public sector dollars are important for helping the Bethlehem Center achieve its goals in the coming year
while we plan for future sustainability. We are currently looking at ways to increase our donor-base, to capitalize on volunteer
labor, to increase our thrift store’s revenue stream, and examining how to better utilize business models to fund our
programs.

United Methodist Neighborhood Centers, Inc. (The Bethlehem Center) 5
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School Progress Report

Lexia

School: The Bethlehem Center
Date: August 30, 2013-April 4, 2014
Current Status Performance Predictors Progress
Grades PreK - 5
Sep 1, 2013 (0 students)
n/a
3% ® On Target Nov 1, 2013 (47 students)
|:+4:| (Bﬂ-ll:lﬂo.-ro} | ] 2% | 19% | 79%
—— 2% Some Risk
(31-79%) Jan 1, 2014 (46 students)
B High Risk 1 I 5% | 15% | 80%
0%, (1-30%)
Mar 1, 2014 (52 students)
I I 4% | 17% | 79%
51 students
Show: On Target Some Risk ® High Risk Meeting Usage
Kindergarten / n/a | n/a 0% 0% 0% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100%
1st Grade _/"'_"_ nfa | n/a | 60% | 69% | 69% | 90% | 92% | 91% | 92%
2nd Grade f n/a | n/a | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100%
3rd Grade r n/a | nfa | 71% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100%
4th Grade _/‘"=—"'V n/a n/fa | 64% | 73% | 62% | 62% | 85% | 57% | 93%
5th Grade J/‘\H—” n/a n/a | 66% | 86% | 60% | 70% | 71% | 71% | 77%
All Grades _/““‘“’ nfa | nfa | 64% | 79% | 71% | 80% | 87% | 79% | 91%

Note: The monthly percentage is calculated on the first day of the month and reflects the previous month's performance and usage.

Current Status

11%:

Lexia Skill Set
Grades 6 and Above

B Intermediate

Progress

Sep 1, 2013 (0 students)
n/a

Nov 1, 2013 (12 students)

479, B Elementary I 50% | 25% | 25%
Baci
(+4) AsIE Jan 1, 2014 (16 students)
I 56% | 31% | 13%
47 % Mar 1, 2014 (16 students)
I 38% | 38% | 24%
19 students
Show: ¢ Intermediate Elementary Basic Meeting Usage
6th Grade T 50% n/a | 50% | 50% | 70% | 70% | 54% | 40% | 50%
7th Grade N —— 50% n/a 40% | 50% 33% | 33% | 29% 33% 29%




exia Reading

Lexia Reading® Research Report: September 2012-May 2013

Student Software Usage and Gains: Grades 1 - 3
Data compiled and analyzed by The Educational Research & Design Team (research@Iexialearning.com)

Program Description

Lexia Reading provides an explicit, systematic, personalized learning experience and delivers norm-
referenced performance data and analysis without interrupting the flow of instruction to administer a
test. Aligned to the Common Core State Standards, this research-proven, technology-based system
accelerates reading skills development, predicts students’ end-of-year performance and provides
teachers with data-driven action plans, lessons, and skill builders to help differentiate instruction.

Lexia Reading provides individualized learning that is both student-driven and teacher-directed.

Student-Driven Teacher-Directed
e Independent, adaptive learning on e Differentiated instructional materials for
foundational reading skills all students based on their performance in
e  Explicit, systematic instruction that the software
scaffolds students as they struggle and e Individualized, data-driven action plans
advances them to higher levels as they that focus teacher time on the greatest
demonstrate proficiency needs

e Easy to use reports prescribe the
instructional intensity needed to help
students reach their end-of-year goal

Sample Selection and Description

The sample of students in this report consisted of 39 first-third graders from the Bethlehem Center in
Tennessee. These students used Lexia Reading for at least 30 days since the start of the school year and
spent at least 10 minutes a week on the software. Students who used Lexia Reading last year continued
working in the program where they left off the previous spring. For new students, Lexia Reading’s Auto
Placement tool determined an appropriate starting level in the program consistent with each student’s
performance. For example, a 2™ grader could place in Primary Reading Level 3 (second grade skills) or
Primary Reading Level 1 (kindergarten skills).

Analysis 1: SKill Mastery by Usage

In Lexia Reading, students advance through the program by completing Lexia activities (i.e. skills) such as
initial/final consonants discrimination, silent-e word construction, and sight word recognition. Skills are
organized in the program by grade level of the material and mastery of skills is required to advance
through the program. Bethlehem students, with varying levels of intensity on Lexia Reading, showed
differences in their progress. Figure 1 below compares the amount of material mastered by all 1°*— 3™
grade students from three usage categories.

©2013 Lexia Learning Systems, Inc 1
www.lexialearning.com
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Bethlehem Center, Grades 1-3, May 2013

Figure 1. Comparing Students’ Progress in Lexia Reading by Intensity of Software Use (N=39)
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Analysis 2: Progress in Grade Level SKills for At-Risk Students

This analysis examines student progress in Lexia Reading so far this school year. In Table 1, there are
two rows for each grade that compare the percentage of students working at each grade level in Lexia
from their initial placement (Start Level) to their status in May (May Level). The bold green line indicates
the end-of-year benchmark for each grade. At the start, 28% of these students were working on skills at
or above their grade level. By May, the percentage of students working on skills at or above their grade
level increased to 49%. Notably, 18% of students were working on skills above grade level.

Table 1. Percentage of 1% — 3" graders working on the following grade level skills (N=39)

K 1% 2™ 3™ Above 3"
First Grade Start Level 53% 42% 5% - -
(19 students) May Level 21% 63% 11% 0% 5%
Second Grade Start Level 55% 36% 9% - -
(11 students) May Level 9% 73% 0% 9% 9%
Third Grade Start Level 22% 44% 22% 0% 11%
(9 students) May Level 22% 22% 33% 0% 22%

Note: Totals may not add up to 100% due to rounding.

Analysis 3: Differentiated, Data-driven Instruction

Lexia Learning’s Assessment Without Testing® online tool (myLexia.com) provides teachers with detailed
student data so they can analyze student performance and match instruction to each student’s needs.
Reporting features support teachers’ ability to differentiate instruction by identifying and grouping
students who have similar skill gaps. As of May 2013, 10 staff members in the Bethlehem Center logged
in at least once. Notably, one staff member logged in 130 times. Staff members also viewed over 725
reports and downloaded over 425 Lexia Lessons and Skill Builders.



Attachment F: Budget Format

Agency Name:

United Methodist Neighborhood Centers, Inc. (The Bethlehem Center)

CITY OF CHATTANOOGA

FY 2015 Agency Funding Financial Form

Incr (Decr) Request

% Change Request

Account Category Actual FY 2011 | Actual FY 2012 | Actual FY 2013 | Budget FY 2014 | Request FY 2015 | vs. FY 14 Budget vs FY 14 Budget
REVENUES
Contributions
Individuals/Private S 96,464 | S 90,500 | $ 93,157 | $ 73,192 | $ 85,000 | $ 11,808 16.1%
Corporate/Organizations/Churches S 136,544 | S 175,948 | $ 156,517 | S 190,000 | $ 180,000 | $ (10,000) -5.3%
Fees/Grants from Governmental Agencies
Federal S - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - N/A
State $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - N/A
Hamilton County S - S - $ - S - S - $ - N/A
City of Chattanooga S - S 12,500 | S 25,000 | $ 30,000 | $ 30,000 | $ - 0.0%
Other Cities (Please list) S - S - S - S - S - S - N/A
United Way
Foundations (including grants) S 224,259 277,560.00( S 192,564 | $ 140,000 | $ 150,000 | $ 10,000 7.1%
Gross Proceeds Special Events S 3,586 | S - S - S - S - S - N/A
Other UWs/Federations S 42,254 | $ 37,433 | $ 30,585 | $ - S - S - N/A
CFC/Designations received thru UWGC S - S - S - $ - $ - S - N/A
UWGC Program Allocation S - S - S - $ - $ - $ - N/A
UWGC Special Funding S - S - $ - $ - $ - $ - N/A
Membership Dues S - S - S - S - $ - $ - N/A
Program Income S - S - S - S - S - $ - N/A
Governmental Insurance S - S - $ - S - S - $ - N/A
Private Insurance S - S - S - S - S - $ - N/A
Contracted Services S - S - $ - S - S - S - N/A
Fee for Services S 7,573 | S 6,268 | S 4,108 | $ 13,500 | $ 15,000 | S 1,500 11.1%
Other Program Income S - S - $ - S - S - $ - N/A
Sales to Public S 56,353 | $ 73,348 | $ 29,906 | $ 32,500 | $ 35,000 | $ 2,500 7.7%
Investment Income S 1,630 | $ 676 | $ 854 | S 1,500 | $ 1,500 | $ - 0.0%
Miscellaneous S 3,163 | S 3,536 | S 8,230 | S 8,500 | S 8,500 | S - 0.0%
Other Revenues (Please list separately any major item) S - S - S - S - N/A
Transfers in from other internal budgets S - S - $ - $ - N/A
Income from Previous Year $ - N/A
TOTAL REVENUES S 571,826 | S 677,769 | S 540,920 | S 489,192 | $ 505,000 | $ 15,808 3.2%
OPERATIONS
Personnel Expenses
Salaries S 233,175 | S 274,103 | S 254,395 | S 275,000 | S 280,000 | S 5,000 1.8%




Attachment F: Budget Format

Agency Name:

United Methodist Neighborhood Centers, Inc. (The Bethlehem Center)

Fringe Benefits S - S - S - S - S - N/A
Employee Health S 3,389 [ S 3,187 | S 7,660 [ S 6,000 | S 6,000 | S - 0.0%
Pension/Retirement S - S - S - S - N/A
Payroll Taxes, etc. S 18,745 | S 23,680 | S 26,036 | S 20,000 | $ 20,000 | $ - 0.0%
Other (unemployment, life insurance, etc) S 1,385 | $ 1,578 | $ 5,017 | S - S - N/A
Total Personnel Expenses S 256,694 | S 302,548 | S 293,107 | S 301,000 | S 306,000 | S 5,000 1.7%
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration
Professional Fee & Contract service S 68,517 | $ 44,391 | $ 60,920 | $ 22,900 | $ 27,000 | $ 4,100 17.9%
Utilities S 32,000 | $ 47,183 | $ 45,081 S - N/A
Other S - S 1,167 S - N/A
Rent S - S 20,303 | $ 20,896 | $ 7,000 | S 7,000 | S - 0.0%
Travel/Transportation S 14,292 | $ 15,285 | S 14,757 | $ 13,000 | $ 15,000 | S 2,000 15.4%
Insurance (not employee health) S 13,338 | S 12,364 | S 13,505 | S 12,400 | S 13,000 | S 600 4.8%
Materials & Supplies S 59,699 | $ 64,140 | S 36,225 | $ 43,292 | $ 45,000 | $ 1,708 3.9%
Telephone, Fax, ISP S 5,470 | S 4,084 | S 2,799 [ S 4,500 | $ 4,500 | S - 0.0%
Postage and Shipping S 2,110 | S 1,512 | $ 1,802 | S 2,000 | S 2,000 [ S - 0.0%
Occupancy/Building/Utilities S 28,876 | $ 913 | S - S 50,000 | $ 50,000 | $ - 0.0%
Equipment Rental and Maintenance (including contracts) S - S - S - S - S - S - N/A
Outside Printing, Art Work, etc. S 1,965 | S 2,686 | S 1,260 | $§ 2,000 | S 2,000 | $ - 0.0%
Conferences, Conventions, etc. S 12,338 | $ 9,482 | S 8,279 | S 1,600 | $ 1,500 | $ (100) -6.3%
Special Assistance to Individuals S - S - S - S - S - S - N/A
National Dues/Support Payments S 5876 | S 4,728 | S 5,397 [ S 4,000 | $ 4,000 | $ - 0.0%
Organization Dues (other than above) S - S - S - S - S - S - N/A
Awards and Grants S 25,052 | $ 29,109 | S 27,970 | $ 11,000 | S 12,000 | S 1,000 9.1%
Fund Raising/Self-Support Activities S 8,623 | S 7,187 | $ 6,208 | S 9,500 | S 10,000 | S 500 5.3%
Miscellaneous S 6,101 | S 2,632 (S 1,158 [ $ 500 | S 1,000 | $ 500 100.0%
Equipment Purchases (incl. capital expenses) S 7,895 [ S - S - S - N/A
Depreciation S 2,927 | S 60,108 | $ - S - N/A
Other Expenses (Please list separately any major item) S - S 19,904 | S 8,464 | S 4,500 | $ 5,000 [ S 500 11.1%
S - N/A
Operating Expenses Total S 295,079 | S 347,178 | S 254,721 | S 188,192 | $ 199,000 | $ 10,808 5.7%
TOTAL OPERATIONS S 551,773 | S 649,726 | S 547,828 | S 489,192 | $ 505,000 | $ 15,808 3.2%
REVENUE OVER/ (UNDER) OPERATIONS 3 20,053 | $ 28,043 | $ (6,908)| 5 BB IE - N/A
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OFFER SUMMARY

Offer Name:  Early Childhood Education to At-Risk Children in Six Locations

Lead Agency: Chambliss Center for Children

Collaborating City Department(s):  Youth and Family Development (Head Start and Early Head Start)

Contact Name:  sherry Hutsell

) Smarter Children and
Primary Results Area:  stronger Families

Offer Cost (Funding Request):  $356,000

RESULTS AREAS

1. Safer Streets — Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways.

2. Growing Economy — Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods — Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid re-housing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families — Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government — Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund — Something different — processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage?
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)

Chambliss Center for Children will provide quality early childhood education services to at-risk children from six weeks of
age to twelve years of age in six different Chattanooga neighborhoods. Yearly, we expect to serve approximately 850
children or approximately 500 on any given day. These locations will provide affordable, easily accessible, quality early
childhood education services to children at or below the poverty level. These children will all receive services from a Three
Star program that works very closely with the United Way in relation to assessments and teacher training. All of the
programs use the same curriculum and assessment instruments. Unless a developmental delay is identified, 100% of our
four year olds enter Kindergarten with the skills needed to be successful in school and later in life. In a survey, 100% of
our parents said this service was essential for them to be able to work or continue their education.

The main campus in Brainerd is a 24-7-365 program that provides services to second and third shift as well as weekend
workers. Annually, these programs give 850 at-risk Chattanooga children access to a quality early education program that
will ensure that each child is receiving the instruction and care they need to maximize their learning potential. We will
continue to work with the United Way to make sure every child is receiving free books each month from the Imagination
Library. We will continue to work with and provide space to Chattanooga Head Start/Early Head Start to make sure that
more children and their families receive their comprehensive services.

Research from the Perry Preschool Study and several other national studies shows that at-risk children who receive quality

Agency Name 1
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early childhood education services are more likely to be successful in school and participate in post secondary education.
They are less likely to drop out of school, to be involved with the juvenile court or become a teenage parent. National
economist James Heckman states that every $1 invested in quality early childhood education services to at-risk children
yields a $17 return to the community over the life of that child. We are asking the City of Chattanooga for $356,000 to help
us serve 850 children. That is an annual investment of $419 per child or only $2.74 per day. If Dr. Heckman is correct,
then the City of Chattanooga will realize a return of $7,123 over the lifetime of one child or $6,052,000 over the lifetimes of
all 850 children. In addition to the benefits to these children, we are also offering a tremendous help to the parents who
entrust their children into our care. More than 400 parents are allowed an opportunity to hold down a job, to financially
support their families, to get a little extra help in times of emergency or of great need, or to continue to reach their
educational goals. This ultimately leads to stronger families, more successful children, and a healthier economy.

We understand that it takes everyone working together to build strong children and families. Our six agency collaboration
has received national recognition as an early childhood education financial management model. The quality of our services
is validated by those who choose to partner with us: United Way, Chattanooga Head Start/Early Head Start, Hamilton
County Department of Education, HBO Documentary Films, and Vanderbilt University’s Peabody Center. Chambliss Center
for Children has been serving the Chattanooga community for 141 years. Our youngest collaboration partner has been
serving the children and families of the community for over 46 years. We are the largest early childhood education agency
in the Chattanooga community, and we consistently strive to provide quality early education to as many at-risk children as
possible with the resources available to us.

Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts:
1.More children graduating from high school, college and career ready

2.Fewer children dropping out of school
3.Increase reading proficiency for children

BUDGET REQUEST

Summary: (Please complete baseded on information contained in Attachment F)

Personnel Costs FTEs
Offer Name (including Benefits) Operating Costs Total Request required
ECE to At-Risk Children $3,166,300 $1,345,300 | $356,000 105
Capital Budget Impact? Yes XNo $Amount

Financial Offsets: (Please list other revenues associated with the specific program for which funding is requested)

Name Amount
Parent Fees $550,000
Fundraising $550,000
Thrift Store $190,000
USDA $267,500
Endowment $180,000
United Way $281,000

PERFORMANCE DATA

Agency Name 2
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Measurement 1:

To assess all children using Ages & Stages Questionnaires, Ready to Read Assessments, GOLD Assessments, or ELLCO
tests to determine literacy skill level and Kindergarten readiness. Our goal is to continue having 100% of our typically
developing children (excludes children with identified delays) to be Kindergarten ready.

Historical Comparison Data?

100% of typically developing children are Kindergarten ready

Measurement 2:

To allow parents to work or attend school in order to support their families financially, emotionally, and educationally. Our
goal is that 95% of our parents will be able to work or attend school while their children are with us.

Historical Comparison Data?

400 parents have utilized our services in order to hold down employment or reach their educational goals

Measurement 3:

To identify children as having a developmental delays/disabilities and refer them to the appropriate
resource or put the correct intervention in place. Our goal is to screen 100% of our 2-5 year old
children for delays with the help of the Speech & Hearing Center and the Lions Club (vision). We
typically identify a small number of children (less than 1%) who need additional services. We provide
the information to the parents who can then follow through with the treatment.

Historical Comparison Data?

100% of children screened and less than 1% were referred for additional help beyond the scope of our program
concerning a developmental delay or disability

PLEASE NOTE: Because of the longevity of the agency and this specific program, we do not have goals that are very
different (if, at all) from our current data. This is only a reflection of the fact that our program has been in existence since
1969, and we have had a lot of time and help in make improvements. While we know that we are not perfect, we think
we do an outstanding job of preparing our children for Kindergarten, assessing them for delays, and in making our
services affordable so that poor families can access quality care. But, this level of service cannot continue without help
from our local government.

Return on Investment:

How do citizens benefit? Having more children succeed in school will provide many benefits to City residents.
Children who perform better in school are less likely to drop out and contribute to the crime rate, are less
likely to become pregnant, and are more likely to graduate and move on to post-secondary education and
obtain better jobs. This not only helps our streets be safer, but it helps our economy as more people enter
the workforce and are able to pay taxes. It also helps every child to grow into a productive member of our
community.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? This program is a community effort, receiving financial
support from individuals, foundations, businesses, and government entities. It takes all these components
working in tandem to provide a much needed service to low-income members of our community.

Agency Name 3
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How does this activity decrease costs over time for the City? As mentioned earlier, Economist Dr. Heckman
states that an investment in early childhood education of at-risk children will produce a $17 return. This is
because quality early childhood education reduces costs such as incarceration, healthcare for the uninsured,
unemployment, welfare, and gang prevention efforts.

How can this program become sustainable without City funding? Because we are providing a high quality
service to low-income families, we will always need to subsidize the cost. There is no way that our client
population could pay for the service we provide while also providing food and shelter for their family. Thus,
we know we will always need to produce revenue and receive additional financial support to meet the
operational shortfalls of this much needed program.

Agency Name 4



Attachment F: Budget Format

CITY OF CHATTANOOGA
FY 2015 Agency Funding Financial Form
Our Budget FY 2014
Jan-Dec  and
Our Actual FY Our Actual FY Our Actual FY | Request City FY | Incr (Decr) Request | % Change Request vs
Account Category 2011 Jan-Dec 2012 Jan-Dec 2013 Jan-Dec 2015* vs. FY14 Bud FY14 Bud
REVENUES
Contributions
Individuals/Private 355,477 295,102 312,449 275,000 (37,449) -12.0%
Corporate/Organizations/Churches 355,477 295,102 312,448 275,000 (37,448) -12.0%
Fees/Grants from Governmental Agencies
Federal 326,025 370,007 327,566 338,500 10,934 3.3%
State 1,202,015 1,229,450 1,401,149 1,400,000 (1,149) -0.1%
Hamilton County 100,807 0 N/A
City of Chattanooga 137,500 311,250 347,500 356,000 8,500 2.4%|**
Other Cities (Please list) 0 N/A
United Way
Foundations (including grants) 0 N/A
Gross Proceeds Special Events 0 N/A
Other UWSs/Federations 0 N/A
CFC/Designations received thru UNGC 0 N/A
UWGC Program Allocation 161,595 178,023 178,022 178,000 (22) 0.0%
UWGC Special Funding 97,347 93,781 108,684 103,000 (5,684) -5.2%
Membership Dues 0 N/A
Program Income 508,831 521,043 503,302 550,000 46,698 9.3%
Governmental Insurance 0 N/A
Private Insurance 0 N/A
Contracted Services 129,000 129,000 128,000 117,000 (11,000) -8.6%
Fee for Services 0 N/A
Other Program Income 231,303 289,734 339,186 373,500 34,314 10.1%
Sales to Public 0 N/A
Investment Income 180,000 337,000 180,000 180,000 0 0.0%
Miscellaneous 2,938 33,821 5,460 2,000 (3,460) -63.4%
Other Revenues (Please list separately any major item) 186,000 193,000 183,700 190,000 6,300 3.4%
Transfers in from other internal budgets 52,040 133,505 3,500 (3,500) -100.0%
Investment Draws to cover budget shortfall 173,600 173,600 N/A
Income from Previous Year 0 N/A




TOTAL REVENUES 4,026,356 4,409,818 4,330,966 4,511,600 180,634 4.2%
OPERATIONS
Personnel Expenses
Salaries 2,340,644 2,513,570 2,593,074 2,608,000 14,926 0.6%
Fringe Benefits 0 N/A
Employee Health 146,251 141,448 162,992 188,300 25,308 15.5%
Pension/Retirement 124,473 112,651 118,203 120,000 1,797 1.5%
Payroll Taxes, etc. 175,892 184,463 189,237 190,000 763 0.4%
Other (unemployment, life insurance, etc) 60,982 58,691 51,426 60,000 8,574 16.7%
Total Personnel Expenses 2,848,242 3,010,822 3,114,932 3,166,300 51,368 1.6%
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration
Services
Professional Fee & Contract service 316,601 392,399 397,557 410,100 12,543 3.2%
Utilities 0 N/A
Other
Rent
Travel/Transportation 0 N/A
Local 31,008 27,920 25,535 25,000
Out of Town 13,289 18,614 20,000 20,000
Insurance (not employee health) 41,909 37,962 44,451 45,000 549 1.2%
Materials & Supplies 326,055 329,861 344,000 352,200 8,200 2.4%
Telephone, Fax, ISP 30,192 26,994 26,677 27,000 323 1.2%
Postage and Shipping 6,945 7,463 8,400 7,500 (900) -10.7%
Occupancy/Building/Utilities 262,799 292,903 294,543 291,000 (3,543) -1.2%
Equipment Rental and Maintenance (including contracts) 25,947 25,080 43,329 30,000 (13,329) -30.8%
Outside Printing, Art Work, etc. 2,372 12,310 17,834 12,000 (5,834) -32.7%
Conferences, Conventions, etc. 22,442 27,296 27,964 27,500 (464) -1.7%
Special Assistance to Individuals 0 0 N/A
National Dues/Support Payments 0 0 N/A
Organization Dues (other than above) 0 0 N/A
Awards and Grants 0 0 N/A
Fund Raising/Self-Support Activities 19,792 19,057 25,301 26,500 1,199 4.7%
Miscellaneous 4,646 5,805 4,660 4,500 (160) -3.4%
Equipment Purchases (incl. capital expenses) 74,117 140,632 37,718 (37,718) -100.0%
Depreciation 0 N/A
Other Expenses (Please list separately any major item) 0 N/A
Collaboration Expense - Shared Services 34,700 52,750 37,000 (15,750) -29.9%




Repay Outstanding Line of Credit 30,000 30,000 N/A
Operating Expenses Total 1,178,114 1,398,996 1,370,719 1,345,300 (25,419) -1.9%
TOTAL OPERATIONS 4,026,356 4,409,818 4,485,651 4,511,600 25,949 0.6%
REVENUE OVER/ (UNDER) OPERATIONS 0 0 0 0 N/A

* Because our budget is for Jan-Dec 2014, this is the budget that includes the current request to the City for $352,712 for their FY 2015

** Because our FY is Jan-Dec, the City lines items include actual amounts received, not our requested amount. These actuals represent half of one City FY and half of the following City FY.




v Fortwood

a service of the Helen Ross MceNabb Center

Fortwood, a service provider of Helen Ross McNabb Center
Response to City of Chattanooga FY15 Funding Request
Mitchell Home: $52,000 requested

1. Is there a way to focus your efforts on homeless veterans?

Fortwood participates in the Chattanooga Regional Homeless Coalition for inter-agency
cooperation and service provision. Any veterans that meet our criteria are eligible for our
services; however. attention is not focused primarily on homeless veterans.

2. What percentage of your clients are in permanent housing within two months of
seeking your help? After a year?

Housing at Mitchell Home is permanent for our clients in residence. Clients work with
their therapists to create goal plans which may or may not include goals to exit into independent
living: however. this is not the case for all clients at Mitchell Home. Clients may also be
discharged to hospitalization or other higher levels of care if needed.

3. What other metrics do you consider important and how have you performed when
judged on the basis of these?

Additional metrics to track for Mitchell Home services include number of clients that
require further hospitalization or removal to a different level of care, and measuring increased
independent living skills. Helen Ross McNabb Center offers a thorough Quality
Assurance/Quality Improvement process to measure outcome results for each of its programs; as
Fortwood programming recently merged into the HRMC system. we do not have comparison
data to provide at this time, but will gladly provide this data to the City of Chattanooga once it
has been collected.

4. Why is there such an aggressive increase in your funding request this year?

Fortwood has unfortunately lost the ability to receive Section 8 housing vouchers for
resident clients at Mitchell Home. This cut will significantly decrease the available funding
needed to offset the costs of housing for our residents and required an increase in our funding
request.

6049 Shallowford Road Chattanooga, Tennessee 37421 423.2606.6751 F:423-763-4650 www.mcnabbcenter.org

A premier provider of behavioral health care in East Tennessee




*Fortwood

a service of the Helen Ross McNabb Center

Fortwood, a service provider of Helen Ross McNabb Center
Response to City of Chattanooga FY15 Funding Request

Children & Youth Integrated Services Treatment: $38,000 requested
1. How do you generate referrals?

Referrals are generated from local schools and school districts, pediatricians, other
community organizations like Big Brothers Big Sisters, juvenile court, and Tennessee
Department of Children’s Services. Other mental health and substance abuse programs that do
not duplicate Fortwood’s services also send referrals to Fortwood Children & Youth IST
Services.

2. How can you partner with YFD to target children who need your services?

We will happily partner with the City of Chattanooga Youth & Family Development as a
source of referrals to Fortwood’s services.

3. How can you align your goals with the efforts the City has embraced in the
Chattanooga Violence Reduction Initiative?

Fortwood offers a free, monthly anger management group for children and adolescents to
assist in controlling acts of aggression and improving positive self-esteem in our clients. We also
provide family therapy and case management, as needed, to reduce family violence, improve
healthy lines of communication among family members, and improve coping skills for anger,
loss, or other emotional/behavioral condition.

6049 Shallowford Road Chattanooga, Tennessee 37421 423.266.6751 F:423-763-4650 www.mcnabbcenter.org

A premier provide "behavior are in E y ssee United 72N
1 er provider of behavioral health care in East Tennessee War
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OFFER SUMMARY

Offer Name:  project BASIC

Lead Agency:  Fortwood, a service provider of Helen Ross McNabb Center, Inc.

Urban L hattan Police D nt, Youth Vill Recreation
centers, Department of Children’s Services; program partners with
Hamilton County School Calvin Donal n Elemen School in

Collaborating City Department(s): chattanooga

Contact Name:  Gayle Lodato

Smarter Students, Stronger
Primary Results Area: Families

Offer Cost (Funding Request): 15,000

RESULTS AREAS

Safer Streets — Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways.

2. Growing Economy — Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods — Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid re-housing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families — Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government — Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund — Something different — processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS

Description: (What is the 5ek{rice/program? How will it be provfdet;'.; What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage?
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)

As an in-school, early intervention service, Project BASIC provides mental and behavioral health screening and treatment to

approximately 250 children grades K-3 at Calvin Donaldson Elementary School. Our program works closely with teachers,
parents, and school officials to efficiently coordinate services to address mental and behavioral health needs. By funding
Project BASIC, the City will support its Smarter Students, Stronger Families result area so that Chattanooga’s students have
a greater chance at school achievement and receive the particular treatment that they require.
« Students will receive mental health education, early identification, intervention, teacher consultation, and school
climate enhancement.
e Students will be linked with primary mental health service providers, have access to advocates, crisis intervention,
and case management.
Project BASIC program services identify problematic issues in children in order to prevent negative outcomes later in life.
Nearly all of the children served have been exposed to trauma, chaotic home environments, and unstable community life;
some children served through Project BASIC have been diagnosed with PTSD. Studies conducted in 2009 indicated that
only 50% of young people with serious mental health challenges ages 18-25 were employed, compared to 66% of their
peers without mental illness; in addition, only 53% of young adults with serious mental health challenges were enrolled in
post-secondary education, compared to 67% of otherwise healthy young adults (SAMHSA, Data on Children’s Mental Health
and Trauma). This disparity highlights the critical importance of diagnosing and treating mental illness early on to avoid

Agency Name 1
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setbacks and further stressors in the child’s future. By providing this valuable service to Chattanooga’s students, we make a
difference early in the lives of these children to encourage their success in the future.

Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer lmpécts:ﬂ

1. More kids graduating high school college and career ready
e By identifying, diagnosing, and treating mental and behavioral health issues early on, students will
have a greater rate of educational success

2. Fewer kids dropping out of school
e By identifying, diagnosing, and treating mental and behavioral health issues early on, students will
have a greater rate of educational success

3. More parental involvement

* By working closely with parents and caregivers during the screening and treatment process, parents will be more
involved and engaged in their children’s school achievement and mental/behavioral health.

BUDGET REQUEST

Summary: (Please complete based on information contained in Attachment F)

Personnel Costs FTEs
Offer Name (including Benefits) Operating Costs Total Request required
Project BASIC $44,200 $56,090 | $15,000 1
Capital Budget Impact? Yes XNo $Amount

Financial Offsets: (Please list other revenues associated with the specff::c ,t_arbg::&m for which funding is requested)
Name Amount
Tennessee Department of Education $40,016

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1: -
90% of clients are seen within 2 school days.

Historical Comparison Data? HRMC operates a thorough Quality Assurance/Quality Improvement process to measure
outcome results for each of its programs; as Fortwood programming recently merged into the HRMC system, we do not
have comparison data to provide at this time. We began data collection for this measure on January 1, 2014 and will
have data available at the end of the first quarter of the year. We are happy to provide this data to the City of
Chattanooga once it has been collected.

Measurement 2:
90% of participants will increase coping skills as evidenced by decrease in discipline reports.

Historical Comparison Data? HRMC operates a thorough Quality Assurance/Quality Improvement process to measure

Agency Name 2
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outcome results for each of its programs; as Fortwood programming recently merged into the HRMC system, we do not
have comparison data to provide at this time. We began data collection for this measure on January 1, 2014 and will
have data available at the end of the first quarter of the year. We are happy to provide this data to the City of
Chattanooga once it has been collected.

Measurement 3:
Project BASIC will provide 3 mental health curriculum presentations per quarter.

Historical Comparison Data? HRMC operates a thorough Quality Assurance/Quality Improvement process to measure
outcome results for each of its programs; as Fortwood programming recently merged into the HRMC system, we do not
have comparison data to provide at this time. We began data collection for this measure on January 1, 2014 and will
have data available at the end of the first quarter of the year. We are happy to provide this data to the City of
Chattanooga once it has been collected.

Return on Investment:

Providing comprehensive screening, education, and treatment for mental and behavioral illnesses in children
is vital to the well-being of the Chattanooga community. Without this service, both educators and parents will
encounter further strains and stressors that may prevent them from efficiently and effectively engaging their
students and children who go undiagnosed or untreated for mental and behavioral issues. By removing this
burden and providing diagnosis, treatment, crisis intervention, and referrals to community resources, Project
BASIC will empower students to function normally, learn at an appropriate rate, and prepare for a productive
adult life.

e Project BASIC funding from the City of Chattanooga is leveraged with funding from the Tennessee
Department of Education. Currently the program is offered at Calvin Donaldson Elementary School
through its grant from the Department of Education; the program is thus limited in its ability to
expand unless additional state or local funds are acquired.

¢ By engaging in a critical community partnership with the school system, Project BASIC will aim to
remove the costly and inefficient use of resources placed upon teachers by children with
undiagnosed mental or behavioral health disorders. Should children go without treatment early in
their school careers, they become more at-risk for truancy and juvenile delinquency later on in life.
By providing early intervention and treatment through Project BASIC, many of the community costs
to the law enforcement and court system due to juvenile delinquency and truancy can be averted.

e The program has an existing partnership with Calvin Donaldson Elementary School, and receives
funds from the Tennessee Department of Education; however, funding from the City of Chattanooga
will demonstrate the importance that such a service holds for the community. Our agency constantly
seeks out new grants and funding opportunities to address unmet needs related to early childhood
intervention and treatment for mental and behavioral illness.

Agency Name 3




Feedback on offers submitted to Smarter Students, Stronger Families follows. Resubmit your offers by
sending updated Attachment A (offer template) and Attachment F (budget related to offer) in one PDF
file to nonprofitrequest@chattanooga.gov by 4:30 pm on April 4, 2014.

CFGC—

Scholarship Program
Describe in your offer what a last dollar scholarship is and why it is important. Research for last

dollar scholarships?

Part of Attachment A is missing. After the description, there should be a section on desired
outcomes. How does this offer align with desired outcomes from RFO’s and Results Maps?
Are City appropriated dollars used for scholarships for City residents only?

What % of scholarships are used to attend four-year universities vs. community colleges?
How many scholarships would be provided with $160,000? What is the average amount of each
scholarship award?

Is there a way to provide preference for students who are participating in our educational
programs at our YFD centers?

Measurements 1 and 2 need to be replaced.

Possible measure: % of scholarship recipients returning to college after first year. Goal?
Possible measure: % of minority scholarship recipients. Goal?

Measure 3 —is the goal to graduate at least 62% in 5.5 years?



City of Chattanooga

Offer Name: Together We Can Scholarship Program

Lead Agency: The Community Foundation of Greater Chattanooga, Inc.

) i Youth and Family Development (Gary Rudolph) and the Office of
Collaborating City Department(s): Multicultural Affairs (James McKissic)

Contact Name: Rebecca Smith, Director of Scholarships

Smarter Students, Stronger
Primary Results Area:  Families

Offer Cost (Funding Request): $160,000

1. Safer Streets — Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways.

2. Growing Economy — Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods — Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid re-housing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families — Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government — Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund — Something different — processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage?
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)

Together We Can (TWC) is a need-based renewable college scholarship which specifically targets eligible
graduating high school seniors from Hamilton County Public schools residing within the Chattanooga city
limits. Any student who meets the criteria of the Program is eligible to apply for TWC during his senior year of
high school. The requirements for the TWC scholarship are: 1) applicants must have a cumulative grade point
average (GPA) of at least a 2.5 or above 2) be a graduating senior from a Hamilton County public school, 3) be
a resident of the City of Chattanooga and 4) family’s income from all sources is $35,000 or less. After the pool
of eligible students is determined, actual selection is made solely on the basis of financial need using the
Federal methodology which determines the amount that each family can afford to contribute to the students’
college expenses. The majority of our students have a $0 estimated family contribution (EFC)*.

The TWC scholarships can be used at any regionally accredited, non-proprietary, technical, community or four
year college/university. The TWC award is renewable throughout their undergraduate studies, and the award

The Community Foundation of Greater Chattanooga, Inc. 1
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varies depending on their eligibility for the TN Educational Lottery Scholarship (TELS) ~ and if they remain in-
state or out of state for college. For instance, the award is $1,000 ($500 per semester) if student is TELS
eligible remaining in-state, $1,500 ($750 per semester) if student attends a 2-year college, or $3,000 ($1,500
per semester) if student attends a school out of state or if student remains in-state, but is not TELS eligible).
The average scholarship is approximately $1,680, so the $160,000 requested from the City will help fund
and/or continue to fund 95 students.

All (100%) of our recipients are city of Chattanooga residents with a vast majority either eligible for or
received free/ reduced lunch in high school and first generation college students. Approximately, 90% of our
recipients are at various four-year colleges/universities and 10% are at two-year colleges.

Our recipients come into our Program with a litany of challenges (i.e. less often prepared academically,
financial obligations and barriers, and lack of family support) that could easily derail them from the college
path; and though we know the Together We Can Scholarship Program cannot provide everything a student
needs to be successful in college, it IS more than just a check. The Foundation’s Scholarship Director monitors
the progression of each recipient semester by semester and has an “open door” policy where students have
1:1 access to her anytime during the year. In addition, with this scholarship being renewable it significantly
decreases some of the worry students/families have about funding school beyond their first year.

The primary goal of the TWC Program is to provide Chattanooga’s most financially challenged students the
opportunity to not only attend, but graduate from college. With annual increases in college tuition and fees, a
mediocre economy, high unemployment rates and limited Federal and State grant programs; it is vital that
our students, especially our poorer students are offered the chance to attend and complete college.

*Expected Family Contribution (EFC) is a number that is used to determine a student’s eligibility for Federal student aid (Pell Grant,
Work Study, Supplemental Education Opportunity Grant and Loans). This number is a result from the financial information the student
provides on his/her Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA).

TN Educational Lottery Scholarship (TELS) Program™

1)  HOPE (3.0 {weighted) cumulative GPA OR at least a 21 ACT score) $4,000 4 yr. college/university ~ $2,000 2yr. college/university
e  Aspire (Need-based supplement of HOPE: Student meets criteria of HOPE plus parent(s)’s AGl is $36,000 or less)-$1,500
. General Assembly Merit Scholarship or GAMS (Merit based supplement of HOPE- 3.75 (weighted) cumulative GPA and at least a 29

ACT) $1,000

2)  HOPE Access (cumulative (weighted) 2.75 and 18, 19, 20 ACT and Parent(s)’'s AGI is $36,000 or less) $2,750 4yr college/university  $1,750
2yr. college/university

3)  Wilder-Naifeh Technical Skills Grant (this grant is for students not seeking a degree. TWC recipients aren't eligible for this Program)

Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts:

1. Increase college attainment for our City’s most high need, financially challenged high school seniors
by not only getting more into college, but more to graduate.

2. Increase the students’ understanding about the importance of furthering ones education as the
pathway to breaking the cycle of poverty

The Community Foundation of Greater Chattanooga, Inc. )




Summary: (Please complete based on information contained in Attachment F)

~ OfferName | [(including Benefits) | OperatingCosts | Total Request | required
Together We Can $35,918 $296,918 $160,000 1

Capital Budget Impact? X No

Financial Offsets: (Please list other revenues associated with the specific program for which funding is requested)

Name Amount

None

‘Measurement 1:
Our First year retention rate for the TWC Class of 2012 is 71%. Goal for TWC Class of 2013 is 75%

Measurement 2:
TWC graduation rate is at 62% in 5.5 years (Class of 2008) Goal for the TWC Class of 2009 is 68%

Return on Investment:

How do citizens benefit? The potential impact of having more college graduates in a community leads to
powerful socio-economical ripple effect i.e. changes in employment and income levels, community
demographics, public education system, demands for stronger/quality public services, an increase in housing
and retail and so much more. Education changes and improves our community as a whole.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? Yes, TWC is a “last dollar” scholarship for students. A
“last dollar” scholarship is a need-based "gap-filling" award. It is awarded when a family's expected family
contribution (EFC)* and financial aid package total are less than the cost of attendance (tuition/fees,
room/board, books/supplies, transportation and personal); resulting in unmet financial need.

Our recipients receive their primary funding from the Federal Programs (i.e. Pell, Work-Study, Supplemental
Educational Opportunity Grant and loans) and State Programs (TN Student Asst. Award and TN Lottery

The Community Foundation of Greater Chattanooga, Inc. 3
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Scholarship Programs). Throughout their college career, recipients are encouraged to seek other funding

outside of the already received funding (i.e. talk with Advisors, Dept. Heads, various organizations, Internships
Coordinator and etc.).

How does this activity decrease costs over time for the City? The more education attained the more

probability for the reduction of crime, arrest and incarceration. Education can help decrease the cycle of
poverty.

How can this program become sustainable without City funding? Yes, but without continued support from
the City, we will not be able to add additional students which could lead to the cycle of poverty continuing.

The Community Foundation of Greater Chattanooga, Inc. 4
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709 S. Greenwood Avenue
Chattanooga, TN 37404
Tel: 423 624-4757

Fax: 423 698-4345
www.girlsincofchatt.org

Girls Inc.®
of Chattanooga

girls
inc.

April 4, 2014
Dear Mayor Berke,

Girls Inc. is pleased to submit a proposal to the City of Chattanooga for the expansion of our
afterschool literacy program, the Bookworm Club, and the creation of an Urban Debate League
(UDL). We are requesting $149,434 in funding from the City to provide these programs at a total
of seven Youth and Family Development Centers in order to provide academic enrichment to more
girls throughout Chattanooga. The Bookworm Club teaches literacy skills to in-need children from
underserved and low-income communities, while the creation of a UDL would give girls the
opportunity to sharpen their reading, research, communication, and critical-thinking skills as well
as teach them to advocate for themselves and others.

The mission of Girls Inc. is to inspire and equip all girls to be strong, smart, and bold*™ -- healthy,
educated, and independent -- on their journey to self-discovery. Girls Inc. offers in-school, after
school, and school break programming for girls ages 6-18 that is age-appropriate, research-based,
and outcome-focused. Girls Inc. provides girls with tools to improve academically, make smarter
choices, build self- confidence, and stay focused on higher education, careers, and a successful
future. Since we were established in 1961, we have served more than 25,000 girls throughout
Hamilton County. We are proud that since we began tracking in 2007, 100% of girls who
complete our high school afterschool programs in their senior year go on to college.

Girls Inc.’s programs are successful and far-reaching because of our many partnerships with
schools throughout Hamilton County, including Clifton Hills, Hardy, Woodmore, and East Ridge
Elementary Schools for girls ages 6-11 as well as East Lake Academy of Fine Arts, Chattanooga
Girls Leadership Academy, Brainerd High School, Orchard Knob Middle, and Girls Preparatory
Schools for girls ages 12-18. Additionally, we have partnerships with the Highland Park
Neighborhood Association, and Harrison and Brainerd United Methodist Churches, whose
facilities allow us to provide afterschool programming for our girls. We also engage volunteers
from several colleges and corporations throughout Chattanooga, including the University of
Tennessee at Chattanooga, Chattanooga State Community College, Unum, and BlueCross
BlueShield of Tennessee. Through these partnerships, we are able to provide girls with community
support and a critical mass of supportive adults who understand what it takes to help children
succeed. Girls Inc. understands that community partnerships are essential to success, and we
would be thrilled at the opportunity to include YFD Centers in our already-expanding programs.

Result area for which funding is requested: Smarter Students & Stronger Families
Amount of money requested: $149,434
Contact: Phil Trammell. Tel: (423) 624-4757. E-mail: ptrammell@aqirlsincofchatt.org

Sincerely,

MW’

Bea Lurie
President & CEO

Inspiring all girls
to be strong,
<mart and holdSM
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OFFER SUMMARY

Offer Name:  Bookworm Club and Urban Debate League Expansion with YFD Centers

Lead Agency:  Girls Inc. of Chattanooga

Collaborating City Department(s):  youth and Family Development

Phil Trammell
Contact Name:

Smarter Students and
Primary Results Area:  Stronger Families

Offer Cost (Funding Request):  $149,434

RESULTS AREAS

1. Safer Streets — Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways.

2. Growing Economy — Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods — Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid re-housing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families — Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government — Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund — Something different — processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage?
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)

Girls Inc., in collaboration with the City of Chattanooga’s Department of Youth and Family Development, is
requesting $149,434 for the expansion of our afterschool literacy program, the Bookworm Club, and the
creation of an Urban Debate League (UDL). These programs will take place in a total of seven Youth and
Family Development Centers.

Bookworm Club Expansion to YFD Centers: For the past two years, Girls Inc. has been improving students’
literacy skills in some of our city’s lowest-performing schools and producing dramatic and consistent
improvements in the areas of desired outcomes the City seeks. The program directly increases the reading
proficiency of children and aims to increase parental involvement in girls’ education. Girls Inc. knows that
reading at grade level by third grade is critical to continued success in school, leading to decreased dropout
rates, increased graduation rates and ultimately, acceptance to college.

The Bookworm Club is currently delivered to elementary-age girls at Clifton Hills, East Ridge, and Woodmore
Elementary Schools. Girls Inc. has been providing this program for two years, and results from pre- and post-
testing have demonstrated significant success. In the 2012-2013 school year, there was a 3.87%b increase in
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recognition of ABCs; a 19.6% increase in recognition of names of numbers; an 11.63% increase in
recognition of names of days of the week; and a 28.6% increase in recognition of the names of the months of
the year. Additionally, girls read faster by 2 minutes and 28 seconds. The average time for the pre-test was 4
minutes and 18 seconds. The average time for the post-test was 1 minute and 50 seconds. There was a 19.4%
increase in the number of correct word recognition from the pre-test to the post-test. These results show
increased reading proficiency across several measureable areas, and we have also seen a noticeable increase in
girls’ eagerness to read as evidenced by anecdotal staff and teacher observations. These statistics show that
Bookworm Club makes a difference in increasing reading proficiency with the added benefits of girls
becoming more engaged in school, attending regularly, and setting goals to pursue higher education.

In order to bring this program to more girls throughout Chattanooga, Girls Inc. seeks funding from the City of
Chattanooga to expand the Bookworm Club to the Carver and Shepherd Youth and Family Development
Centers. Girls Inc. will incorporate the Lexia Reading Program available at these centers as part of this
expansion—Ieveraging the City’s financial resources. We plan to reach 48 more girls with City funding in
addition to our current number of girls served, 84, for a total of 132 girls served in the 2014-2015 school year.
Bookworm Club will meet Mondays and Wednesdays at the Carver Center, and Tuesdays and Thursdays at the
Shepherd Center. Each site will receive six hours of programming a week.

In addition to providing afterschool programming and literacy education for girls ages 6-11, Girls Inc. also
provides programming for middle school girls and teens, ensuring that we reach the continuum of critical age
groups and equip them with the educational and life skills they need to succeed.

Urban Debate League: In collaboration with the City of Chattanooga’s Youth and Family Development,
Girls Inc. will implement the nationally-recognized Urban Debate League (UDL) at five YFD Centers:
Brainerd, John A. Patten, Hixson, Tyner, and South Chattanooga. The creation of a UDL would give high
school girls the opportunity to sharpen their reading, research, communication, and critical thinking skills.
Members of the UDL would meet once a week at each center for three hours. Each center would serve twelve
girls, fielding six debate teams with five urban debate league tournaments per year and a summer Debate
Institute in the summer of 2015.

The addition of an Urban Debate League to Chattanooga meets several of the desired outcomes articulated by
the City for Smarter Students, Stronger Families. Based upon a study by Briana Mezuk et al conducted in 2009,
UDL will increase graduation rates, prepare more students to enter and successfully complete college, and
improve literacy for our children. Researchers used data from 1997-2007 Chicago Public School and the
Consortium on Chicago School Research. They examined UDL students and comparable non-UDL
participating students to account for institutional-level differences. Debaters in general were 19% more
likely to graduate from high school and were less likely to drop out of school. The results were strongest
for black students, with their graduation rate increasing by 70 percent. The researchers were able to
conclude that the skills taught through the medium of academic debate would be useful to help close the black -
white achievement gap.

Using the same data, Anderson and Mezuk looked at the ability of debate to influence “at-risk” students (2012).
Their research found that debaters were far more likely to score higher on the English and Science sections of
the ACT for all risk groups. They also found an association between debate intensity and gains on ACT and
graduation rates. From this data, one can conclude that debate has the ability to positively affect all academic
aspects of the urban students’ educational experience.

On an individual level, debate has the ability to increase student self-efficacy and empowerment. According to
research by Warner and Bruschke, debate promotes long-term learning by giving students the chance to engage
with a subject rather than simply memorize it (2000). Urban Debate Leagues challenge students to engage with
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others in a dialectic process, a form of argumentation in which two or more people discuss differing viewpoints
about a subject in order to come a conclusion that is guided by reasoned arguments. Rather than merely accept
statements as true or show bias toward already-established opinions, debaters are called to question the very
foundations of the world around them, thus gaining the ability to make well-reasoned and informed judgments.
A key component of UDLs is policy debate, in which teams of two advocate for and against a resolution that
typically calls for policy change by the United States Federal Government. Policy debates’ switch side process
and cross-examination periods demonstrate true dialectical thinking, which in turn promotes core critical
thinking skills.

The impact of an urban debate league would be felt not only by individual students and schools, but also by the
community. Georgia Hall conducted an extensive qualitative analysis of New York City Urban Debate League
(NYUDL) participants and coaches to examine the effect of policy debate on political engagement in youth.
Hall and her researches used the ten point framework established by the Stanford Center on Adolescence that
outlines youth capacities and qualities that indicate civic engagement in order to increase the legitimacy of the
findings. Across the board, UDL participation increased students’ interest and involvement with
democracy and civic participation. The researchers found that debate not only educates students about the
political process, but also makes it applicable to students’ lives and communities, increasing the sense that
students can “own the issues” and affect their communities (Hall 2006).

With funds provided by the City of Chattanooga, Girls Inc. will establish a partnership with the National
Association of Urban Debate Leagues. This partnership will allow girls to both compete and build bonds with
girls from a similar population throughout the nation. In alignment with the City of Chattanooga, Girls Inc.
believes that funding a Urban Debate League would provide students with key building blocks for success they
may have missed in school and help further develop emerging skills. Encouraging girls to value education will
help them become excited about school, attend regularly, and result in fewer kids dropping out.

As a potential investor in Girls Inc. programs, you may ask, why girls only?

A publication by the United Way states that while society’s expectations affect both boys and girls, studies
show that girls are more disadvantaged by them. Research conducted by Harris Interactive found that 56% of
girls — 78% of high school girls — said that, in school, boys think they have a right to discuss a girl’s body in
public; and 65% of all girls said girls are expected to spend a lot of their time on housework and taking care of
younger children. Harris Interactive also found that students and adults say that girls are more likely to express
what they really feel, be listened to, be leaders, and try new things when they are in groups with girls only.
Additionally, girls who participated in girls-only groups were more likely to say they read books, play sports,
like school, and plan to go to college than girls who did not participate in such groups. Of the girls surveyed,
those who believe that boys and girls have the same abilities and strengths (82%) are more likely to plan to go
to college than are girls who believe they are very different from boys (68%).

Girls Inc. programming addresses these and other areas of gender inequity by providing gender-specific and
age-appropriate curricula specifically designed for the ways girls learn. Programs are delivered in a safe,
affirming environment that fosters empowerment. Girls Inc. girls flourish and develop into the confident,
compassionate, community-minded and empowered young women we expect them to be. Girls Inc. has a track
record of sustainable and successful programming. In fact, since we began tracking in 2007, 100% of girls
who complete our high school afterschool programs go on to college.

Girls Inc. seeks funding from the City of Chattanooga for the expansion of our afterschool literacy program, the
Bookworm Club, and the creation of an Urban Debate League (UDL). These programs will take place in a total
of seven Youth and Family Development Centers, giving more girls throughout Hamilton County the
opportunity for academic success and personal achievement.
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Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts:

1. More girls graduating high school
2. Decreasing chronic absenteeism
3. Fewer girls dropping out of school

BUDGET REQUEST

Summary: (Please complete based on information contained in Attachment F)

Personnel Costs FTEs
Offer Name (including Benefits) Operating Costs Total Request required
Bookworm Club and
Urban Debate League
Expansion with YFD
Centers $86,812 $62,622 | $149,434 2.5
Capital Budget Impact? X Yes No $9,075 Amount

Financial Offsets: (Please list other revenues associated with the specific program for which funding is requested)
Name Amount

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1:
Bookworm Club: 80% of students will demonstrate growth in reading scores as determined by the Lexia
reading program available at Carver and Shepherd YFD Centers.

Urban Debate League: Girls participating in UDL will graduate at a higher rate than the general high school
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student population in Chattanooga.
Historical Comparison Data?

Bookworm Club: Because this is an expansion of our current Bookworm Club program, we will use
information from previous Bookworm Club programs as a baseline. This information will be determined by the
Lexia reading program, progress and report cards, and evaluations and surveys completed by participants,
parents, teachers, and staff.

Urban Debate League: Initial year baseline to be established based upon national research and girls
participating in the program. Girls Inc. will also administer the ETS Proficiency Profile, an assessment tool that
measures four core skill areas: critical thinking, reading, writing, and mathematics. The ETS Proficiency
Profile will determine if participation in UDL helps improve these other critical areas.

Measurement 2:
Bookworm Club: Girls participating in Bookworm Club will have a higher attendance rate in school compared
to the general student population.*

Urban Debate League: Girls participating in UDL will have a higher attendance rate in school compared to
the general student population.*

*Information dependent upon our ability to obtain report cards from participants.

Historical Comparison Data?

Bookworm Club: Because this is an expansion of our current Bookworm Club program, we will use
information from previous Bookworm Club programs as a baseline. This information will be determined by the
Lexia reading program, progress and report cards, and evaluations and surveys completed by participants,
parents, teachers, and staff.

Urban Debate League: Initial year baseline to be established based upon national research and girls
participating in the program. Girls Inc. will also administer the ETS Proficiency Profile, an assessment tool that
measures four core skill areas: critical thinking, reading, writing, and mathematics. The ETS Proficiency
Profile will determine if participation in UDL helps improve these other critical areas.

Measurement 3:
Urban Debate League: Girls participating in UDL will have decreased school dropout rates compared to
students who do not participate in the program.

Historical Comparison Data?

Urban Debate League: Initial year baseline to be established based upon national research and girls
participating in the program. Girls Inc. will also administer the ETS Proficiency Profile, an assessment tool that
measures four core skill areas: critical thinking, reading, writing, and mathematics. The ETS Proficiency
Profile will determine if participation in UDL helps improve these other critical areas.

Return on Investment:
Bookworm Club:

How do citizens benefit? More Chattanooga students will receive targeted literacy education to help in-need
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students be better positioned for academic success.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? Yes. Girls Inc.’s proposed partnership with YFD utilizes
the City’s investment in Lexia. By using these already-available resources, Girls Inc. maximizes results for less
money.

How does this activity decrease costs over time for the City? The benefits to the City are costs avoided with
trying to create and implement a similar program. Additionally, increasing reading proficiency in girls keeps
them engaged in education which eventually helps contribute to improved workforce talent in Chattanooga.
Teaching students to read at an early age offsets the cost of adults who are dependent upon social services due
to low literacy levels. By giving girls this opportunity, we give them to chance to participate as equals in
society as adults.

How can this program become sustainable without City funding? The program currently receives funding from
corporate, foundation, and individual partners and would likely continue to do so. City funding is needed to
increase the reach of the program. Lack of future City funds might only result in fewer students benefiting.

Urban Debate League:

How do citizens benefit? Adults and children will benefit from the increased amount of educational activities
provided at the centers, from the creation of an “academic” sports league, and from more children being
prepared for college and careers.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? Yes. Girls Inc.’s proposed partnership with YFD
leverages other financial resources through use of YFD Centers. By using these alreadyOavailable resources,
Girls Inc. maximizes results for less money.

How does this activity decrease costs over time for the City? The benefits to the City are costs avoided with
trying to create and implement a similar program. Additionally, increasing public speaking and critical thinking
skills in girls keeps them engaged in education which will eventually lead to better-equipped workforce talent
in Chattanooga. Teaching students to engage effectively with their community at an early age offsets the cost of
adults who are dependent upon social services. By giving girls this opportunity, we give them the chance to
participate as equals in society as adults.

How can this program become sustainable without City funding? Girls Inc. will immediately begin applying
for funding from organizations and individuals who find the mission and impact of an Urban Debate League
appealing. Since Urban Debate Leagues exist in many large metropolitan areas, there are known funders who
will be approached nationally while we develop interest locally in sustaining and expanding this program to
even more YFDCs.
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Girls Inc., in partnership with the City of Chattanooga’s Department of Youth and Family Development, is
requesting $149,434 for the implementation of our award-winning Bookworm Club at two YFD Centers and the
creation of an Urban Debate League (UDL) to be delivered at five Youth and Family Development Centers.
Bookworm would serve up to 48 girls at the Shepherd and Carver Centers and the Urban Debate League would
serve 60 teen girls at the Brainerd, John A. Patten, Hixson, Tyner, and South Chattanooga Centers. Bookworm
Club is a research-based, outcome-focused program that improves elementary reading and literacy skills. In fact,
the Bookworm Club was recently awarded by the United Way as their 2013 Impact Program of the Year. The
Urban Debate League is a nationally recognized program that has been shown to increase high school graduation
rates and positively affect the civic engagement of participants. Girls Inc., with our proven track record of
producing meaningful and life changing results, is uniquely qualified to deliver this programming.

URBAN DEBATE LEAGUE:

The addition of an Urban Debate League to Chattanooga meets several of the desired outcomes articulated by the
City for Smarter Students, Stronger Families. It will increase graduation rates, prepare more students to enter and
successfully complete college, and improve literacy for our children.

Research detailed in our offer shows that on an individual level, debate has the ability to increase student self-
efficacy and empowerment and that it promotes the learning cycle by giving students the chance to engage with a
subject rather than simply memorize it. Urban Debate Leagues challenge students to engage with others in a
dialectic process, a form of argumentation in which two or more people discuss differing viewpoints
about a subject in order to reach a conclusion that is guided by reasoned arguments. Rather than merely
accept statements as true or show bias toward already-established opinions, debaters are called to
question the very foundations of the world around them, thus gaining the ability to make well-reasoned
and informed judgments.

The impact of an urban debate league would be felt not only by the individual students and schools, but also by
the community. Georgia Hall conducted an extensive qualitative analysis of New York City Urban Debate League
(NYUDL) participants and coaches to examine the effect of policy debate on political engagement in youth.

The researchers found that debate not only educates the students about the political process, but also makes it
applicable to the students’ lives and communities, increasing the sense that the students can “own the issues” and
affect their communities. Members of the Girls Inc. UDL would meet one day per week for three hours at each of
the five YFD centers. Each center would serve twelve girls, fielding six debate teams, serving a total of 60 teens.
A successful partnership would include five urban debate league tournaments per year and a summer Debate
Institute in the summer of 2015.

BOOKWORM CLUB:

Girls Inc. of Chattanooga proposes to expand our afterschool literacy program, the Bookworm Club, to two
Youth and Family Development Centers, Shepherd and Carver. The Bookworm Club teaches literacy skills
to in-need children from underserved and low-income communities. We have seen significant quantitative
and qualitative results with this program over the past two years, and we believe this progress can be
expanded through a partnership with YFD in 2014-2015. Successfully doing so will support a community
need of increased reading proficiency in children—a direct connection to the City of Chattanooga’s desired
outcomes.

Bookworm Club will meet twice a week at each YFD center, three hours per day, for a total of six hours per
week. During this time, girls will practice basic reading skills and participate in intensive, hands-on lessons
designed to improve verbal and written communication skills, reading comprehension, and handwriting.

Girls in the Bookworm Club actively engage in literacy activities including read alouds, storytelling, games,



public speaking, individual reading, writing, and creative arts. By using a variety of engaging activities, girls
begin to understand the importance of reading as a life skill and across all academic subjects. The age-
appropriate lessons include activities such as Strange Sentences, in which girls learn how to construct a
complete sentence and learn the parts of speech; Funny Phonics, where girls practice phonic noises,
recognize a phonetic sound from a visual cue, and create their own visuals related to a specific phonetic
sound; Scrabble Mix Up, where girls practice spelling with Scrabble game pieces and unscramble letters to
find new words; and many more educational and fun activities that keep girls engaged. These hands-on
activities will enhance the Lexia program currently being used at the YFDs, further improving both
quantitative and qualitative results.

Since most of the girls do not have books at home, we help their families apply for library cards for their
daughters so they can read together at home and visit the library together. We also take the girls on field trips
to the library where the library staff provides engaging programming for them. In alignment with the City’s
goal to give parents the critical knowledge to be successful parents, we work closely with parents to update
them on their child’s progress and to provide them with guidance on how to support the improvement of their
daughter’s literacy skills. Using the Lexia Reading Program will also incorporate an element of technology
use to the program, ensuring that girls from low-income communities have a better chance of keeping up
with their peers and succeeding in an increasingly technology-rich world.

The Bookworm Club has both measurable goals, which are detailed in our offer, and qualitative goals which
include an increased desire amongst participants to read, choosing to read in their spare time and viewing
themselves as readers. While these qualitative goals are more difficult to quantitatively measure, we know
they are essential for the emotional, cognitive and behavioral development of students. The Bookworm Club
program would incorporate the Lexia Reading Program being used by the YFD centers to enrich literacy
programming and increase the City’s return on investment. We propose to reach 48 more girls with City
funding in addition to the 84 girls we now serve, for a total of 132 girls who will be provided literacy
programming by Girls Inc. during the 2014-2015 school year.

In alignment with the City of Chattanooga, Girls Inc. believes that educating children as early in life as
possible is crucial to helping children succeed in school. Encouraging girls to value education at a young age
will help them become excited about school, attend regularly, and result in fewer children dropping out of
school. In fact, since we began tracking in 2007, 100% of girls who complete our high school afterschool
programs go on to college.

Girls Inc. will provide a detailed accounting of how and for what purpose municipal funds were spent prior
to the close of the City of Chattanooga’s fiscal budget year and at the close of each succeeding fiscal budget
year until all municipal funds have been spent. Girls Inc. will also provide a list of the accomplishments
scheduled by use of the municipal funding.

Girls Inc. will provide the City of Chattanooga with copies of annual audits or reviews for each year that we
spend funds appropriated by the City of Chattanooga.

Sincerely,

Mb«v—( -

Bea Lurie
President & CEO



Attachment F: Budget Format

Agency Name:

Girls Inc. of Chattanooga - Bookworm Club and Urban Debate League

CITY OF CHATTANOOGA
FY 2015 Agency Funding Financial Form

Account Category

Actual FY 2011

Actual FY 2012

Actual FY 2013

Budget FY 2014

Request FY 2015

Incr (Decr) Request
vs. FY 14 Budget

% Change Request
vs FY 14 Budget

REVENUES

(Not Applicable)

(Not Applicable)

(Not Applicable)

(Not Applicable)

Contributions

Individuals/Private N/A
Corporate/Organizations/Churches N/A
Fees/Grants from Governmental Agencics
Federal N/A
State N/A
Hamilton County N/A
City of Chattanooga S 149,434 | $ 149,434 N/A
Other Cities (Please list) N/A
United Way
Foundations (including grants) N/A
Gross Proceeds Special Events N/A
Other UWs/Federations N/A
CFC/Designations received thru UWGC N/A
UWGC Program Allocation N/A
UWGC Special Funding N/A
Membership Dues N/A
Program Income N/A
Governmental Insurance N/A
Private Insurance N/A
Contracted Services N/A
Fee for Services N/A
Other Program Income N/A
Sales to Public N/A
Investment Income N/A
Miscellaneous N/A
Other Revenues - Girls Inc. national (Kellog Grant) S - N/A
Transfers in from other internal budgets N/A
Income from Previous Year N/A
TOTAL REVENUES S - S - S 149,434 | S 149,434 N/A
OPERATIONS (Not Applicable) (Not Applicable) (Not Applicable) (Not Applicable)
Personnel Expenses
Salaries S 75,045 | S 75,045 N/A
Fringe Benefits N/A
Employee Health S 3,407 | $ 3,407 N/A
Pension/Retirement S 1,501 | S 1,501 N/A
Payroll Taxes, etc. S 5741 | S 5,741 N/A
Other (unemployment, life insurance, etc) S 1,118 | S 1,118 N/A
Total Personnel Expenses S - S - S 86,812 | S 86,812 N/A




Attachment F: Budget Format

Agency Name:

Girls Inc. of Chattanooga - Bookworm Club and Urban Debate League

CITY OF CHATTANOOGA
FY 2015 Agency Funding Financial Form

Account Category

Actual FY 2011

Actual FY 2012

Actual FY 2013

Budget FY 2014

Request FY 2015

Incr (Decr) Request
vs. FY 14 Budget

% Change Request
vs FY 14 Budget

OPERATING EXPENSES

Administration

Professional Fee & Contract service N/A
Utilitics N/A
Other N/A
Rent N/A
Travel/Transportation S 8,000 | $ 8,000 N/A
Insurance (not employee health) S 3,435 | $ 3,435 N/A
Materials & Supplies S 14,534 | S 14,534 N/A
Telephone, Fax, ISP S 2,260 | S 2,260 N/A
Postage and Shipping N/A
Occupancy/Building/Utilities S 3,627 | S 3,627 N/A
Equipment Rental and Maintenance (including contracts) S 793 | S 793 N/A
Outside Printing, Art Work, etc. S 3,966 | S 3,966 N/A
Conferences, Conventions, etc. S 3,024 | S 3,024 N/A
Special Assistance to Individuals N/A
National Dues/Support Payments S 1,441 | S 1,441 N/A
Organization Dues (other than above) N/A
Awards and Grants N/A
Fund Raising/Self-Support Activities S 2,000 | S 2,000 N/A
Miscellaneous S 439 | S 439 N/A
Equipment Purchases (incl. capital expenses) S 9,075 | S 9,075 N/A
Depreciation S 6,212 | S 6,212 N/A
Other Expenses - Support Staff S 3,816 | S 3,816 N/A

N/A
Operating Expenses Total S - S - S 62,622 | S 62,622 N/A

N/A
TOTAL OPERATIONS S - S - S 149,434 | S 149,434 N/A
REVENUE OVER/ (UNDER) OPERATIONS S - S - S - S - N/A
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OFFER SUMMARY

Offer Name: Chattanooga Zoo: Community Engagement Initiative

Lead Agency: Chattanooga Zoo
] ] Department of Youth and Family Development; Therapeutic Recreation;
Collaborating City Department(s):  Multicultural Affairs; Mayor’s Office

Contact Name:  pardenelle Long

Smarter Students, Stronger
Primary Results Area:  Families

Offer Cost (Funding Request):  $36,150

RESULTS AREAS

1. Safer Streets — Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways.

2. Growing Economy — Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods — Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid re-housing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families — Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government — Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund — Something different — processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage?
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)

The Chattanooga Zoo is committed to engaging and inspiring our community, and strives to include
all citizens of our community regardless of race, age, or ability. With the creation of the new
Community Engagement Initiative, the Zoo is developing opportunities for a more comprehensive and
focused effort to reach a broader and more diverse audience. Each piece of the Community
Engagement Initiative is centered on a cornerstone of inclusion for all people. The established
programs associated with this initiative are:
e The Senior Safari Outreach program; focused on bringing the wild to our community’s senior
population
« Dreamnight; a series of nights throughout the year focusing on opening the zoo after hours to
special needs children and their families to provide a unique opportunity to engage at the zoo
without other distractions
o Camp Zoo-A-Bility; for children with special needs to attend a summer camp where they
receive more personalized care and attention
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o GoFest!; festival for disability awareness as well resources awareness for people with a
disability.
One new program planned for 2014 is the Latino Family Festival day, to celebrate this growing
population in our community.

The Program

Senior Safari Outreach
The Zoo has continued offering senior programs for over two decades. Currently, the zoo visits 16
senior health and retirement centers each month taking animals, biofacts, and enthusiastic educators to
have up-close and personal animal encounters with individuals who cannot visit the Zoo for a variety
of reasons.

One of the goals of the Chattanooga Zoo Community Engagement Initiative is to expand this
program, and to provide the program to any interested Chattanooga senior facilities or groups. There
is a need to provide more programs, as evidenced by the number of programs the zoo has had to turn
down because of limited resources. The zoo would like to provide these programs at no cost to the
seniors, so that lack of funding does not prohibit each and every senior in Chattanooga from equal
access to these outreach programs offered by the Chattanooga Zoo.

Though there are no specific outcomes in the BFO documents including senior citizens, the zoo feels
that this population is important to educate and mold into smarter students and members of our
community. According to Chattanooga.com (chattanooga.com/demographics.aspx), 15.2% of the
Chattanooga population is 65 years or older. The zoo feels like this is an important underserved
audience which can be educated and enjoy these animal programs.

Dreamnight
The Chattanooga Zoo’s Dreamnight events have continued serve the area’s special needs population
for over 10 years. Dreamnight is a time when the zoo is opened to the special needs community of
Chattanooga at no charge to enjoy the zoo without the normal crowd of the day. There are three (3)
Dreamnights hosted throughout the year. During the first event in June, the zoo is open after hours
for special needs children and adults as well as their families. This event is 100% free for these
guests, and includes pizza for dinner, games, face painting, goodie bags, and of course balloons!

The second Dreamnight is a special night during our Boo in the Zoo event where these same families
can participate in the Boo in the Zoo activities without the normal large crowds that come for the Boo
in the Zoo nights. Participants are again provided dinner, games, and entertainment. The final
Dreamnight is hosted during our Holiday Lights event so families can enjoy the lights at the zoo,
again, at no charge. Unum is a corporate sponsor for the zoo’s summer Dreamnight, providing both
funds and volunteers for this event.

Additionally, the zoo hosts 5-6 dances/events for the City of Chattanooga’s Therapeutic Recreation
department to provide a venue for special needs children to attend these events.

Camp Zoo-A-Bility
Annually, the Zoo hosts Camp Zoo-A-Bility for the City of Chattanooga’s Therapeutic Recreation
department. This camp is specifically designed to provide games, activities, learning opportunities and
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engaging interactions to children with special needs. The zoo provides the facilities for this camp, as
well as staff to manage snacks, materials, and games. The camp is operationally managed and staffed
by the Therapeutic Recreation department.

Additionally, the zoo works with other partners such as the Chattanooga Room at the Inn, and Big
Brothers Big Sisters to provide 10 scholarships to local youth to attend zoo camp.

GoFest!
Since 2008 the Chattanooga Zoo has partnered with the City of Chattanooga Mayor’s Office to host
GoFest!, a festival promoting the awareness of disabilities for Chattanooga residents. During this
event, the zoo is opened to all patrons at no charge, and guests can visit numerous booths, vendors, or
tables to learn about disabilities, and community resources for those with disabilities.

Future Expansion
This year, the zoo’s Community Engagement Initiative will also include a Latino Family Festival,
geared at engaging and celebrating Chattanooga’s Latino population. This event will include
providing guests with Spanish language maps, translators to speak with non-English speaking guests
about the Chattanooga Zoo, its animals, and conservation. Local Latino businesses and organizations
will have the opportunity to participate in the event by setting up booths to educate guests on their
services. There has been a noticeable increase in the number of Latino visitors to the zoo, and the
Chattanooga community in the last few years, and providing a more welcoming and inclusive visit is
one of the goals of the Community Engagement Initiative.

Program Outcomes
Outcomes related to the initiative described above include;

o healthier seniors, special needs citizens, and all underserved populations touched by the zoo’s
engagement initiative

o increased awareness of program offered by the Chattanooga Zoo for the community at little, or
no cost

« increased diversity of audiences served by Chattanooga Zoo

We will reach these outcomes by:
« Strengthening and increasing the breadth and reach of both senior and special needs
programming provided to Chattanooga citizens by increasing the number of programs and
activities available from Chattanooga Zoo

« Creating a strategic plan that addresses both senior and special needs audiences. The plan will
include goals for the increase in numbers of participants educated and programs performed as
well as the creation of partners and outcomes to determine if programs make a difference in
behaviors or overall health as determined by caregivers.

o Develop a partnership with Youth and Family Development department to provide visits to
City senior centers that augments and enhances their current programming and uses their
resources to disseminate information about available programs from the zoo.

Research Data

Why are these programs important for Chattanooga? According to the Center for Disease Control
(CDC) pets can decrease your Blood pressure Cholesterol levels Triglyceride levels, and feelings of
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loneliness.

Providing access to the zoo for these underserved populations can not only lead to greater engagement
in the zoo and in Chattanooga by these populations, but there is also research which proves that
programs centered around animal interaction can lead to better health and wellbeing. In general, the
CDC reports that pets can increase your opportunities for exercise and outdoor activities as well as
opportunities for socialization. According to Dr. Andrew Weil, world-renowned leader and pioneer in
the field of integrative medicine, “One of the most fundamental advantages of animal assisted therapy
over other therapeutic modalities is that it provides the patient a much-needed opportunity to give
affection as well as receive it. It is this reciprocity - rare among medical therapies - that makes AAT
[Animal Assisted Therapy] a unique, and valuable route to healing."

According to an article on Parenthood.com, How Animals Help Children with Special Needs, “Kids
and animals are natural companions. For children with disabilities, that companionship can also
include invaluable physical and emotional therapy. Whether it’s strengthening muscles through
horseback riding, feeling motivated to improve while swimming with dolphins or gaining confidence
with the help and companionship of a service dog, kids with disabilities can benefit from many
different kinds of animals.”

City of Chattanooga Support

The City of Chattanooga should support the Community Engagement Initiative of the Chattanooga
Zoo because of the impact these programs have on Chattanooga as a community. The programs
described above all offer unique and innovative ways to engage underserved populations of the
Chattanooga community to facilitate learning opportunities that help create smarter students,
stronger families, and build stronger neighborhoods as well as continuing to grow the local
economy. By providing funding for this initiative, it allows the Chattanooga Zoo to continue offering
these programs and build upon the base of inclusion that has been started, to engage underserved
populations.

Funding in the amount of $36,150 from the City of Chattanooga for these programs will be used for
the following purposes:
« Senior Safari Program: Underwrite 60 senior programs- $2,400
« Dreamnight: Provide funding for the zoo’s Dreamnight Boo and Dreamnight Holiday Lights
for dinner and entertainment costs in the amount $15,500
o Camp Zoo-A-Bility: Underwrite facility costs in the amount of $15,750
o Latino Family Festival: Provide funding for entertainment, supplies, facility costs, and
assessment costs- $2,500

Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts:

1. Healthier and smarter seniors, special needs citizens, and other underserved groups.
2. Increased programs for undeserved groups.
3. Building stronger families in these underserved groups.
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BUDGET REQUEST

Summary: (Please complete based on information contained in Attachment F)

Personnel Costs FTEs
Offer Name (including Benefits) Operating Costs Total Request required
Chattanooga Zoo:
Community
Engagement Initiative $11,790 $55,565 $36,150 N/A
Capital Budget Impact? Yes X No $Amount

Financial Offsets: (Please list other revenues associated with the specific program for which funding is requested)
Name Amount
Unum $6,000

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1:

An increase in the number of individuals utilizing the programs for underserved populations at the zoo. Greater
involvement leads to greater engagement through participation in these programs. A participant satisfaction survey would
also be developed and administered to each of the new and existing programs to determine effectiveness, changes needed,
level of engagement, etc.

An increase in participant satisfaction as well as participant growth would indicate higher levels of community engagement
in these programs, stimulating increased resources (through partner growth- see measurement 2) for these underserved
populations. Additionally, by creating more engaged citizens in these underserved populations the zoo can provide
increased opportunities for better overall health and wellbeing, as evidenced by the research regarding animal therapy and
interactions with those populations.

Historical Comparison Data?
Program Attendance Data

Seniors programs: 2013- 182
2012- 202
2011- 89

Dreamnight: 2013- 2,180
2012- 2,100
2011- 700

Camp Zoo-A-Bility: 2013- 57
2012- 48
2011- 58

GoFest!: 2013- 1,500
2012- 8,500
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2011- 8,000

Latino Family Festival: No data available

Measurement 2:
Identify and establish new partnerships with organizations that can provide increased resources for existing programs, and
create new programs. The measurement would be the actual increase in the number of partnerships and programs.

Historical Comparison Data?

Current Partnerships:
e Therapeutic Recreation
o LaPaz
e Big Brothers Big Sisters
e  Chattanooga Room at the Inn

Measurement 3:

Collaborate and develop programs to deliver to City funded senior centers in order to augment and enhance current
programming used at those facilities.

Historical Comparison Data?

None

Return on Investment:

How do citizens benefit? Local citizens benefit from these programs by becoming more engaged with
their communities. There is also a correlation between the initiative described above, and wellbeing through
recreation and contact with animals.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? Unum Insurance Group provides funding to assist
with the summer Dreamnight. Coca-Cola also assists by giving product donations, and lastly, Papa John’s
pizza provides their product at a discounted rate, and has also donated pizzas for the Dreamnight events.

How does this activity decrease costs over time for the City? The partnership between the City and
Friends of the Zoo has already proven to be a tremendous cost savings to the City by removing the cost of
personnel and benefits. By providing these programs through the Zoo, existing resources such as staff,
vehicles, program materials, etc. will be utilized, eliminating the need to create new positions and funding.

How can this program become sustainable without City funding? By creating programs that are more
engaging and serve larger segments of the targeted audiences, the programs will become more
attractive to outside funders such as foundations and corporations. Additionally, the zoo currently has
the facilities needed to build and maintain these programs. Efforts will be made to secure sponsorships
for the programs to reduce the need for City funding.
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Attachment F: Budget Format

Agency Name:

Chattanooga Zoo

|

CITY OF CHATTANOOGA
FY 2015 Agency Funding Financial Form
Incr (Decr) Request | % Change Request
Account Category Actual FY 2011 | Actual FY 2012 | Actual FY 2013 | Budget FY 2014 | Request FY 2015 | vs.FY 14 Budget | vsFY 14 Budget
REVENUES
Contributions
Individuals/Private S - N/A
Corporate/Organizations/Churches S 5,000 S 5,695 (S 5,695 (S 6,000 | S 305 5.4%
Fees/Grants from Governmental Agencies
Federal S - N/A
State S - N/A
Hamilton County S - N/A
City of Chattanooga S - N/A
Other Cities (Please list) S - N/A
United Way
Foundations (including grants) S - N/A
Gross Proceeds Special Events S - N/A
Other UWs/Federations S - N/A
CFC/Designations received thru UWGC S - N/A
UWGC Program Allocation S - N/A
UWGC Special Funding S - N/A
Membership Dues S - N/A
Program Income S - N/A
Governmental Insurance S - N/A
Private Insurance S - N/A
Contracted Services S - N/A
Fee for Services S - N/A
Other Program Income S - N/A
Sales to Public S - N/A
Investment Income S - N/A
Miscellaneous S - N/A
Other Revenues (Please list separately any major item) S - N/A
Transfers in from other internal budgets S - N/A
Income from Previous Year S - N/A
TOTAL REVENUES S 5,000 S 5,695 | S 5,695 | S 6,000 | S 305 5.4%
OPERATIONS
Personnel Expenses
Salaries S 10,578 S 11,190 | S 11,190 | S 11,790 | S 600 5.4%
Fringe Benefits S - N/A
Employee Health S - N/A
Pension/Retirement S - N/A
Payroll Taxes, etc. S - N/A
Other (unemployment, life insurance, etc) S - N/A
Total Personnel Expenses S 10,578 S 11,190 | § 11,190 | $ 11,790 | $ 600 5.4%
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Agency Name:

Chattanooga Zoo

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration

Professional Fee & Contract service S - N/A
Utilities S - N/A
Other S - N/A
Rent S - N/A
Travel/Transportation S 445 | S 1,010 | S 910 | S 960 | S 960 | S - 0.0%
Insurance (not employee health) S - N/A
Materials & Supplies S 721 | S 1,636 | S 1,474 | S 1,555 | S 1,555 | S (0) 0.0%
Telephone, Fax, ISP S - N/A
Postage and Shipping S - N/A
Occupancy/Building/Utilities S - N/A
Equipment Rental and Maintenance (including contracts) S - N/A
Outside Printing, Art Work, etc. S - N/A
Conferences, Conventions, etc. S - N/A
Special Assistance to Individuals S - N/A
National Dues/Support Payments S - N/A
Organization Dues (other than above) S - N/A
Awards and Grants S - N/A
Fund Raising/Self-Support Activities S - N/A
Miscellaneous S - N/A
Equipment Purchases (incl. capital expenses) S - N/A
Depreciation S - N/A
Other Expenses (Please list separately any major item) S - N/A
Dreamnight* 2011 and 2012 figures are estimates| $ 20,000 | S 25,000 | S 28,600 | S 28,600 | S 28,600 | S - 0.0%
Camp Zoo-A-Bility| S 15,950 | $§ 15,950 | S 15,950 | § 15,950 | § 15,950 | § - 0.0%
GoFest!| S 4,000 | S 4,000 | S 4,000 | S 4,000 | S 4,000 | S - 0.0%
Latino Family Festival| N/A N/A N/A N/A S 4,500 #VALUE! N/A
Operating Expenses Total S 41,116 | $ 47,596 | $ 50,934 | S 51,065 | $§ 55,565 #VALUE! N/A
TOTAL OPERATIONS S 51,694 | S 58,387 | S 62,124 | S 62,255 | S 67,355 H#VALUE! N/A
REVENUE OVER/ (UNDER) OPERATIONS S (46,694)| S (53,387)| S (56,429)| S (56,560)| S (61,355) H#VALUE! N/A
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OFFERSUMMARY

Offer Name:  Family Resource Center

Lead Agency: La Paz Chattanooga

Collaborating City Department(s): oOMA

Contact Name:  stacy Johnson

Primary Results Area:  smarter Students and Stronger Families

Offer Cost (Funding Request):  $60,000

RESULTS AREAS
1. Safer Streets — Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways.

2. Growing Economy — Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods — Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid re-housing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families — Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government — Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund — Something different — processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this
leverage? What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)

What is the service/program? According to the U.S. Census Bureau, Latinos will make up 15 percent of Chattanooga’s total
population by the year 2020. This is substantial when considering that in 1990, the number of Latinos living in Hamilton County
didn’t represent even a single percent of the total population. And it is a very young demographic, as more than 70 percent of
Latinos in Tennessee are under the age of 35. Latino growth is reflected widely across the city. For example, the number of Latino
school children enrolled in HCDE schools has more than quadrupled in the past decade alone. By and large, most Latinos in
Chattanooga are members of young families and their needs are related to the life stages within that general age bracket.

To meet the needs of this growing Latino demographic, The Office of Multicultural Affairs and La Paz Chattanooga wish to
establish the area’s first Family Resource Center (FRC) with a focus on Latino families in the City of Chattanooga. The aim of
the FRC is to increase the breadth of La Paz general client service outreach through the work of highly trained interns, volunteers
and client leaders. This will allow paid staff to focus on in-depth case management services, which require more specialized
attention. La Paz is a community-based source of information and training on domestic violence prevention, prenatal care and
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counseling, parental engagement education, and nutrition counseling.

La Paz also aims to compile the region’s most comprehensive Latino Resource Guide—print and digital editions. This guide will
be made available to clients, as well as area service providers.

La Paz is the most trusted resource for the Latino community, but the needs of this growing demographic far outweigh the
current capacity of the organization. Developing leaders - trained by staff - amongst clients, interns, volunteers and the
community will help us deliver holistic services and maximize capacity. Our goal is to train and equip professionals to work and
advocate on behalf of the Latino population. The FRC staff will become ambassadors of La Paz services, equipped with culturally
and linguistically appropriate skills, to not only work at the center, but in other Chattanooga organizations, thus expanding La
Paz’s reach addressing the needs of the area Latino population.

How will it be provided? City support of this project will allow La Paz Client Services Department at La Paz to develop the
FRC in the heart of the Highland Park Neighborhood, which is home to the City’s most densely populated Latino community.
The FRC will implement a volunteer/internship program to include orientation, training and evaluation. La Paz will establish
partnerships with local colleges and universities in the spring of 2014. La Paz staff will train and educate volunteers, interns
and client leaders throughout the program year and focus on education and detailed case management. A grand opening of the
FRC will occur in the summer and the Latino Resource Guide will be developed by the end of the program year. Housed within
the FRC will be multiple technology stations, so FRC staff and clients can access online services and resources.

What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage? The Family Resource Center is innovative in that it
addresses an immediate Chattanooga need; the education, welfare and health needs of Latino families. The project will provide
referral, support and case management services to people who need it the most for job and/or educational advancement.

What difference does this offer make and how will we know? While the Latino presence across Chattanooga has
demonstrated evident needs, La Paz Chattanooga is the only organization whose mission and services are dedicated wholly to
the Latino population. The La Paz staff is bilingual, multicultural and skilled at meeting the needs of the diverse Latino
community. We will know the success of the program by measuring the desired outcomes.

Community partners
and resource agencies

Volunteers and Interns

FRC Computer
workstations

Graphic Designer for
Resource Guide

Memoranda of Agreement from
community partners and
resource agencies

Number of volunteers and
interns trained to provide
services

Number of computer stations
and number of clients accessing

Completed resource guide;
distributed to community and
housed online

Inputs Outputs Service Quality/Efficiency Outcomes
Highland Park Facility Number of clients accessing the | Increase in satisfaction with 500 clients will access FRC
(La Paz) expanded services of the FRC services and engagement due | services during FY 2015

to expanded staffing from
volunteers and interns

Increase in knowledge of
culture competency as well as
community resources

450 clients will connect to
and use a referral agency or
program as a result of the
FRC

20 Volunteers will
complete training and
provide service

The Resource Guide will be
distributed to 500 clients

The online Resource Guide
will get at least 2000 hits
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during FY 2015

Client Consult - Health Number of client consultations | Increase in knowledge of 35 one on one client

and Wellness on health and wellness health and wellness, consultations with La Paz’s
(prenatal, nutrition, etc). resources and lifestyle habits | Community Health Worker

Client Consult - - : . 20 one on one client

D tic Viol Number of client consultations Increase in knowledge of

omestic Violence i i )

on domestic violence (safety available resources, domestic | consultations with La Paz’s
plan, preventative education, violence prevention Client Services Director
etc)

Make a compelling case for your offer. The growth of the Latino community in our area is incredible. The 1990 US Census
showed less than 1 percent of the total Hamilton County population was made up of Latinos. Estimates for the year 2020 have
that number approaching 12 percent in Hamilton County and 15 percent in the city of Chattanooga. In the last decade alone, the
Hamilton County Department of Education has seen a 400% increase in the number of enrolled Latino students. Through events
and individual services, La Paz works with 4,000 clients per year, and as the population grows our organization will be called on
to provide services and connect clients to appropriate service providers.

Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts:

More kids graduating high school college and career ready
More pregnant women accessing prenatal care

Decrease chronic absenteeism

Fewer kids dropping out of school

More parental involvement

Increase reading proficiency for children and adults

N o Utk W=

Increase access to healthy food




Joseph Decosimo and Company, PLLC  Rose E. Decosimo, CPA
Tallan Building Principal

Suite 800 - Two Union Square T: 423.756.7100
CERTIFIED FUBLIE ACCOUNTANTS Chattanooga, TN 37402 F: 423.756.0510
an independent firm associated with www.decosimo.com E: rosedecosimo@decosimo.com

MOORE STEPHENS

INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

April 4, 2014

City of Chattanooga
Chattanooga, Tennessee

Re: La Paz de Dios, Inc.

Dear Sir or Madam:

La Paz de Dios, Inc.’s most recently completed fiscal year end is December 31, 2013.
We have been engaged to perform a review of La Paz de Dios, Inc.’s December 31, 2013

financial statements and expect to issue our review report by April 18, 2014.

Sincerely,

Rose E. Decosimo, CPA

Local values. Regional firm. National recognition.
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Agency Name:

La Paz Chattanooga

CITY OF CHATTANOOGA

FY 2015 Agency - Promotoras Program Funding Financial Form

Incr (Decr) Request

% Change Request

Account Category Actual FY 2011 | Actual FY 2012 | Actual FY 2013 | Budget FY 2014 | Request FY 2015 | vs. FY 14 Budget vs FY 14 Budget
REVENUES
Contributions S - N/A
Individuals/Private - N/A
Corporate/Organizations/Churches S 18,000 | $ 18,000 N/A
Fees/Grants from Governmental Agencies
Federal S - N/A
State S - N/A
Hamilton County S - N/A
City of Chattanooga S 60,000 | $ 60,000 N/A
Other Cities (Please list) S - N/A
United Way
Foundations (including grants) S - N/A
Gross Proceeds Special Events S - N/A
Other UWs/Federations S - N/A
CFC/Designations received thru UWGC S - N/A
UWGC Program Allocation S - N/A
UWGC Special Funding S - N/A
Membership Dues S - N/A
Program Income S - N/A
Governmental Insurance S - N/A
Private Insurance S - N/A
Contracted Services S - N/A
Fee for Services S - N/A
Other Program Income - Events S - N/A
Sales to Public S - N/A
Investment Income S - N/A
Miscellaneous S - N/A
Other Revenues (Please list separately any major item) S - N/A
Foundations/Grants Local S 15,000 | $ 15,000 N/A
Transfers in from other internal budgets S - N/A
Income from Previous Year S - N/A
TOTAL REVENUES S 93,000 | $ 93,000 N/A
OPERATIONS
Personnel Expenses
Salaries S 67,500 | S 67,500 N/A




Attachment F _ Budget Format

Agency Name:

La Paz Chattanooga

Fringe Benefits S - N/A
Employee Health S - N/A
Pension/Retirement S - N/A
Payroll Taxes, etc. 7,500 | § 7,500 N/A
Other (unemployment, life insurance, etc) S - N/A
Total Personnel Expenses 75,000 | $ 75,000 N/A
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration
Professional Fee & Contract service S - N/A
Utilities 900 | $ 900 N/A
Other S - N/A
Rent 4,800 | S 4,800 N/A
Travel/Transportation S - N/A
Insurance (not employee health) S - N/A
Program Materials & Supplies 3,000 | $ 3,000 N/A
Telephone, Fax, ISP 1,000 | S 1,000 N/A
Postage and Shipping S - N/A
Occupancy/Building/Utilities S - N/A
Equipment Rental and Maintenance (including contracts) S - N/A
Outside Printing, Art Work, etc. 6,500 H#it# N/A
Conferences, Conventions, etc. S - N/A
Special Assistance to Individuals S - N/A
National Dues/Support Payments S - N/A
Organization Dues (other than above) S - N/A
Awards and Grants S - N/A
Fund Raising/Self-Support Activities/Marketing 1,500 | S 1,500 N/A
Miscellaneous S - N/A
Equipment Purchases (incl. capital expenses) S - N/A
Depreciation S - N/A
Other Expenses (Please list separately any major item) S - N/A
S - N/A
Operating Expenses Total 17,700 | $ 17,700 N/A
TOTAL OPERATIONS 92,700 | $ 92,700 N/A
REVENUE OVER/ (UNDER) OPERATIONS 300 $ 300 N/A

**La Paz FY is January - December.

2014 and 2015 FY is City FY and includes the funding request.




OFFER SUMMARY

Offer Name: | ibrary Services

Department
Offer Number: 1 Offer Rank: 1
Lead
Department:  Chattanooga Public Library Collaboration: vy x N
Administrator:  Corinne M. Hill, Director
Offer Cost:  $6,183,831.00 Primary Results Area: Smarter Students, Stronger Families

RESULTS AREA

1. Safer Streets — Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways.

2. Growing Economy — Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods — Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid rehousing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families — Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government — Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund — Something different — processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS

Description:

Chattanooga Public Library’s mission is to be the community's catalyst for lifelong learning.
The library accomplishes this mission by delivering services in four locations to 170,000 people
including 35,000 children. An overview of the services the library delivers includes but is not
limited to:

e public access to books, media, and electronic resources.

e access to public computers, the internet, and emerging technologies.

e access to spaces, both digital and physical, that act as a platform for the creation and
sharing of knowledge.

e popular public programming: children’s storytimes, codecamps and STEM learning
initiatives, author talks, community hackathons and other events.

Human Resources 1



The strategic plan adopted by the board of trustees in 2012 has allowed library administration to
assign priority levels to our varied services and their delivery mechanisms. The library’s
strategic plan clearly identifies four areas of focus: Responsive Collections, Customer Access,
Digital Initiatives, and Transformation. Moving forward in 2014, the library has also identified
target audiences for service improvement and enhancement. Parents, families, and youth are
our most steadfast and consistent users, and they have been identified as a top priority. The
ways we will reach this audience touch on each of the four points of our strategic plan. First, the
library has identified a need to build larger, stronger book collections for this population that
depends so heavily on us. Second, because 80% of the material circulating at the South
Chattanooga library was youth related, we pivoted and created a new customer access strategy
for the facility: it is now predominantly a children’s library. Third, on our 2nd floor at the
downtown location, we’ve been hosting code camps and hackathons, and our talented librarians
are developing new digital literacy curricula for the children and teens that visit every day. This
floor is currently in the process of being completely redesigned as a youth services floor catering
to 21st century learning styles. Finally, the library is undergoing an organizational transformation
that includes the addition of a new role, the Learning Strategist. The Learning Strategist is a
specialist who will design and deliver new services for youth just as quickly as they are identified.

In addition to maintaining and augmenting all of the core services we are currently providing, we
would like to offer a program called Anytime:Library. With the Anytime:Library program, we will
be able to put a library card in the hands of every child in the Hamilton County public schools.
Anytime:Library is based on a successful program being delivered by Nashville Public Library
called Limitless Libraries. http://www.limitlesslibraries.org. One integral part of Anytime:Library
is an investment in our youth nonfiction and homework-help collections. We wish to transition
away from print toward more electronic formats, which ultimately means more children will have
access to more content in more places.

We also plan to implement a parent education initiative by the Public Library Association (PLA)
and the Association for Library Service to Children (ALSC) called Every Child Ready to Read
(ECRR) which incorporates simple practices, based on research, to help parents and other
caregivers develop early literacy skills in children from birth to age

five. http://www.everychildreadytoread.orqg.

We also propose re-registration of all Chattanoogans for new library cards as part of a
rebranding of the library that reflect the energy of the transformation it has undergone in the last
two years. With a clean patron database to match our clean materials database we will be more
efficient, and we will reach more children, parents and families.

We also would like to continue training we've already begun for library staff. The public library
has been through substantial cultural change, and we need to support the folks who have
created that change at all levels across the institution. The library would like to offer key staff
growth opportunities through Sandler training on topics like customer service, executive
coaching, management and leadership training, work/life balance tailored specifically to women
and men, change management, strategic thinking, and public speaking. The Friends of the
Library have pledged to match this investment in staff development as well.

Human Resources 2
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The library’s partnership with DIT is incredibly valuable; we work together closely on many
network related initiatives. In the coming year, we propose partnering with DIT to continue the
rollout of gigabit wireless internet access in all of the library locations. Gigabit wireless access
activates our neighborhood library buildings as crucial hubs that bridge the digital divide in
Chattanooga’s information ecosystem. In addition, we wish to continue our partnership with DIT
as we stabilize and upgrade the network in our downtown facility.

The library can also partner with Youth and Family Development. Every summer, the
Chattanooga Public Library provides a diverse suite of programs and activities for our community
as part of our Summer Learning Program. Those programs focus broadly on literacy and
enrichment for youth and families. A partnership with the Youth and Family Development
department will allow the library to bring this programming to a larger, more diverse youth
audience than we would be able to reach on our own. For the Youth and Family Development
department, this partnership represents an opportunity to partner with an agency with expertise
and experience in the new programming areas they wish to address. A few of the programs the
library offers for youth and family are: Baby bounce, toddler time, preschool storytime, adventure
club, Lego club, crafts for kids, sensory storytime and more.

The library’s work has not been limited only to the activities described above. A full picture of the
significant innovations and improvements that have been implemented in the last year can only
be achieved by reading all three of our budget offers. Despite 30 years of neglect, the public
library has demonstrated and proven with countless concrete examples that change and
innovation is possible in Chattanooga. That change has largely been driven by a 14,000 square
foot space on the 4th Floor with no windows, fluorescent lighting, acoustic challenges, and all of
the delightful ambience of an abandoned factory. In our other offers, we ask for new and
continued funding for key 4th Floor positions working with digital services and open government
data, as well as RFID conversion, and other new programs. Dividing what we see as a holistic
transformation of a complex library system into three distinct offers was a challenging exercise
for us, so we would encourage analysts to consider our offers as a whole as well as individually.

Identify Which Desired Outcomes from Request for Offer(s) that this Offer Impacts::

1. More parental involvement.
2. Increase reading proficiency for children and adults.
3. More kids computer coding.

Human Resources 3




BUDGET REQUEST

Summary: (Please complete based on Dept. Operating Detail and Dept. Personnel Detail Forms)

*Amounts MUST agree with collaborating Department totals for this offer

Personnel Cost % of FTEs
Department (including Benefits) Operations Total Request offer required
Library 4,654,758.00 1,900,157.00 6,554,915.00 99% 80.5
YFD 50,000.00 50,000.00 1%
Total S 4,654,758.00 | $ 1,950,157.00 | $ 6,604,915.00 100% 80.5
Capital Budget Impact? Yes X No $Amount

Financial Offsets: (Please list any Revenue e.g. golf course revenue, Grants, Private/Corporate Contributions, Etc.)

Name Amount

Library Revenue $226,800.00
Endowment Interest 92,584.00
State General Library Services Grant 48,700.00
E-Rate reimbursement 53,000.00

Measurement 1: 10%b6 Increase in Total Circulation

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target
709,286 696,129 870,161 957,177
Measurement 2: 30% Youth Programming Increase
FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target
41,102 41,277 47,468 59,335
Measurement 3: 15%b Door Count Annual Increase
FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target
N/A 369,807 425,278 480,749

Human Resources



Return on Investment:

Six states have generated a report on economic impact of public libraries. The results of this report show
that, on average, every dollar invested in a public library results in $5.17 of economic
activity. https://www.tsl.texas.gov/roi

Human Resources
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Signal Centers — Camp Signal

The following are answers to the three questions Signal Centers was asked after our offer for Camp
Signal! was reviewed. We have also incorporated this information into the revised Attachment A.

e How many participants expected?
We anticipate 33 participants in the Camp.

e Any opportunities for camp volunteers identified through YFD centers?
Yes. Opportunities to volunteer will be available for any youth between the ages of 14-22, and
participants in the City’s Chattanooga Ambassadors Program (CAP) and the City’s summer
employment program will be targeted. Signal Centers welcomes the opportunity to serve as a
site for volunteers, internships and summer work activities. We have collaborated with the City
of Chattanooga in the past in the delivery of employment services to youth involved in the YFD
Centers. Also, the City of Chattanooga served as a worksite for the placement of several youth in
that employment program. Signal Centers continues a strong relationship and commitment with
the Leadership Program under the auspices of the Youth and Family Development Department.
We have spoken to Gary Rudolph regarding the CAP participants being offered the opportunity
to volunteer at Camp Signal!, and in ensuing weeks, staff will meet with Mr. Rudolph to cultivate
specific roles and responsibilities. We have received a letter of support from Lurone Jennings
(included with this submission). We may also post flyers about the camp at the centers.

e Any measures related to readiness skills?
Camp Signal! will provide an environment of age-appropriate play as a setting for learning.
Participants will learn while engaged in camp activities. For the campers with disabilities, the
measures used will focus on functional vocational and prevocational skills that these individuals
can do independently. This will be measured by Signal Centers’ teachers or staff upon
enroliment, and then upon exiting or completion of the Camp, by using the checklist provided by
Tennessee’s State Department of Education. It does include readiness indicators. The student
and/or family will be encouraged to take the final form to the teacher at the student’s assigned
school to use for consideration in planning for the upcoming school year.
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OFFER SUMMARY

Offer Name: Camp Signal!

Lead Agency:  sSignal Centers, Inc.

Department of Youth and Family Development, Office of Multicultural
Collaborating City Department(s):  Affairs, Head Start

Contact Name:  ponna Christian McConnico

Smarter Students, Stronger
Primary Results Area:  Families

Offer Cost (Funding Request):  $50,000

RESULTS AREAS

1. Safer Streets — Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways.

2. Growing Economy — Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods — Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid re-housing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families — Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government — Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund — Something different — processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS

—

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided ? What innovation & su?ai;mbi/ity practice does this leverage?
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)

Signal Centers desires to pilot the provision of a high quality six-week summer day camp called Camp Signal

| for preschool through school age students with disabilities. It will be an opportunity to fulfill needs of

students with disabilities and their families. Unlike many other camps for individuals with disabilities, our
camp will not specify that a child has to have a certain type of disability; all children with any
cognitive/physical disability are welcome.

While the Chattanooga area does offer day camp opportunities for children and students with disabilities, the
day camps are only one week-long and are at different locations around the area, which is not convenient for
working parents. Signal Centers has identified that many parents of children with special needs, especially
parents of school age children, are not able to work or work regular work hours in the summer because there
is little safe, educational and affordable care available for children with disabilities. Parents/caregivers that

Agency Name 1
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are not employed will be afforaed, fhrbuéﬁ this pirbpbisail,' t)}ovision of summer day_/ ca|;np implemerit%?ﬁy a
reputable children’s program.

' Additionally, the week-long camps in our area do not fill the need of the parents for community support in

assuring their children have on-going opportunities to develop lifelong hobbies and friendships outside of the
school year. The Middle Tennessee and Upper East Tennessee areas of our state offer such opportunities for
students with a variety of identified disabilities, but as of 2014, the Chattanooga and surrounding areas do

' not. One unique feature of this proposed camp program is the attendees and their families will be invited to
monthly group workshops/meetings at Signal Centers after camp ends for the summer, to keep them
connected with each other and Signal Centers.

Statistics from The United States Children’s Bureau 2012 indicate children with disabilities experience a higher |
' rate of abuse, and when children with disabilities and their families participate in services, the rate of abuse
decreases.

The Signal Centers Children’s Programs have a strong, established reputation of providing the highest ranking
' child care and early learning services for children six weeks to five years of age (with and without disabilities)

throughout all twelve months of the year. Signal Centers has a strong desire to extend services to older

' students during the summer months. We expect a total of approximately 33 campers. To pilot this day camp

' service, we propose to include the following groups of campers, Monday through Friday, 9 a.m. through 3

[ p-m.:

Children age three through five years, and we will accept up to fifteen children

Students age six through nine years, and we will accept up to six students

Students age ten to fourteen years, and we will accept up to six students

High School Students age fourteen through twenty two years of age, and we will accept up to six
students

il

Signal Centers Children’s Services operates a Before- and After-Care Program. Camp participants could avail
themselves to this service, thereby increasing potential benefit to parents/caregivers.

| Camp Signal will be staffed by four teachers, all of whom are certified in special education with experience

" and interest in working with students with a variety of what are considered to be significant and lifelong
disabilities. In addition, a total of at least eight assistants with backgrounds and interests in working with
students in this population will be needed to assure safety, dignity and engagement in activities.

Trained volunteers will supplement the staff, in order for day campers to have meaningful time and attention
from “typical peers,” or in other words, volunteers who do not have disabilities. Opportunities to volunteer
will be available for any youth between the ages of 14-22, and participants in the City’s Chattanooga
Ambassadors Program (CAP) and the City’s summer employment program will be targeted. Signal Centers
welcomes the opportunity to serve as a site for volunteers, internships and summer work activities. We have
collaborated with the City of Chattanooga in the past in the delivery of employment services to youth involved ‘
| in the YFD Centers. Also, the City of Chattanooga served as a worksite for the placement of several youth in

Agency Name 2
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that emplo&iment f)riogrami.'SignaI Centers continues a st'rong relaitibnshiip and commitment with the
Leadership Program under the auspices of the Youth and Family Development Department. We have spoken
to Gary Rudolph regarding the CAP participants being offered the opportunity to volunteer at Camp Signal!,
and in ensuing weeks, staff will meet with Mr. Rudolph to cultivate specific roles and responsibilities. We have
received a letter of support from Lurone Jennings (included with this submission). We may also post flyers
about the camp at the centers.

Some first time start-up and preparation costs will be necessary for this innovative program. Once the
inaugural camp proves successful, Signal Centers will leverage other grants, apply for scholarships and
conduct fundraising. The cost of running the camp is anticipated to decrease each year.

. Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts:

Community Support: At Signal Centers, we share this City administration’s belief that the success of our
children is vital, and that everyone in our community holds a stake in this endeavor. By providing this
educational summer camp, students will maintain educational, therapeutic and developmental gains and
avoid summer learning losses. We hope to establish a supportive community of families who share the
rewards and struggles of empowering their students with disabilities.

Signal Centers has established partnerships with the United Way of Greater Chattanooga, the Friends of
Special Children, Arts Build, READ 20, nursing and education programs at local colleges and universities, and
H*Art Gallery, just to name a very few. For this camp, we will also partner with the following City
departments: Youth and Family Development, Multicultural Affairs, and Human Services.

' Public and private school age students will be invited to participate in Camp Signal! on a regularly scheduled
basis. This will address the need typical peers have to perform community service hours and will allow for

' campers with disabilities to benefit from participating in activities while being deliberately integrated with
typical peers, a need supported by a recent statement in “Best Practices in Inclusive Education” from the New

' Hampshire Institute on Disabilities, February 2014.

BUDGET REQUEST

Summary: (Please complete based on information contained in Attachment F)

Personnel Costs FTEs
Offer Name (including Benefits) Operating Costs Total Request required

Agency Name 3
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those 6
Camp Signal! $36,800 $47,700 | $50,000 weeks

Capital Budget Impact? Yes xNo $Amount

' Financial Offsets: (Please list other revenues associated with the sbec:fic prograrﬁ for which funding is requested)ﬁ

Name Amount
United Way of Greater Chattanooga $3,000
Program attendees $26,500
Various donors $5,000

PERFORMANCE DATA

" Measurement 1: Caregivers of children with disabilities have a safe and nurturing environment for their
children in the summer.

e Number of parents/caregivers participating in summer camp

e Percentage of parents/caregivers satisfied with the program services, as indicated on a satisfaction i
survey administered on the child’s final day of camp }

e Percentage of parents who feel their child is safe, as indicated on a satisfaction survey administered
on the child’s final day of camp

Historical Comparison Data:

' Modeled after Camp Ability in Murfreesboro, Tennessee, Camp Signal will follow their successful protocol in
' scope of service and method of delivery.

' There exist countless articles and data supporting the need for safe and nurturing programs during summer

' months. In an article from January 2014 for KidsHealth.org, Dr. Steven Bachrach indicated many emotional

' challenges facing caregivers, when it comes to both locating and then trusting a summer program for their
children with special needs. http://kidshealth.org/parent/firstaid safe/outdoor/sending child camp.html#

‘Measurement 2: Camp Signal! participants will maintain or imiprove their current developmént levels in areas |
including physical activity, communication, readiness, and social/emotional well-being, according to their 1

s |
unique needs. |

e Daily attendance

Agency Name 4
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e Change in levels of development using multiple measures
e Case Studies: Observations from staff and each participant’s parent/caregiver
e Provision of high quality staffing

- Camp Signal! will provide an environment of age-appropriate play as a setting for learning. Participants will

' learn while engaged in camp activities. For the campers with disabilities, the measures used will focus on ‘
functional vocational and prevocational skills that these individuals can do independently. This will be
measured by Signal Centers’ teachers or staff upon enrollment, and then upon exiting or completion of the
Camp, by using the checklist provided by Tennessee’s State Department of Education. It does include readiness
indicators. The student and/or family will be encouraged to take the final form to the teacher at the student’s
assigned school to use for consideration in planning for the upcoming school year.

Historical Comparison Data:

Research is replete with studies on summer learning loss in typically developing children especially in math i
and reading (Boyles, P. “The Regression and Recoupment in Reading and Mathematics of Average Achieving
Students and Students with Learning Disabilities.” Dissertation, 2005). Disadvantaged children are at \
particular risk. (Cooper, et al., Monograph of the Society for Research in Child Development 65 (1), 1-118, \
2000) ‘

In an article that references the research, (Zachry, A. What Is the Effect of Summer Break on Students with

Disabilities? www.brighthubeducation.com/parents-and-special-ed/75880-effect-of-summer-break-on-

students-with-disabilities/ (please paste into search instead of address bar), researchers identified potential
| drawbacks of summer break on children with disabilities as:

Regression of academic skills

Regression of social skills

Interruption of school-based therapies (e.g. speech therapy, occupational therapy)

Deviation from routine

' Although some students are eligible for Extended School Year (ESY) through the Hamilton County Department |

\ of Education, for those that are not eligible, summer camp is an option that will allow program participants to |
continue to develop academic and social skills while having fun. All students with disabilities are welcome to

‘ attend Camp Signal!

— E = — ]

. Measurement 3: Caregivers of Camp Signai! participants have an oppbrtunity to connect with each other to

| form meaningful relationships.

e Assess caregiver feedback through survey

Agency Name 5



City of Chattanooga
FY15 Offers

e Provide an opportunity or an activity for social interaction so that families may develop supportive
relationships

Historical Comparison Data:

Research indicates that children with disabilities face a higher risk of abuse than children without disabilities.
(Does childhood disability increase risk for child abuse and neglect?, Leeb, R et al, in Journal of Mental Health

| Research in Intellectual Disabilities, 5, 1, 4-31). Caregivers who have strong connections and support of other
' caregivers can reduce instances of abuse. In addition, programs that act as a form of respite (such as summer

camps) support families with disabilities and prevent abuse by relieving the caregivers of the day-to-day

| responsibilities that can become overwhelming. (Preventing Abuse of Children with Cognitive, Intellectual and

Developmental Disabilities. The Arc. 2004).

Measurement 4: Provide meaningful and engaging opportunities for program participants to experience

' lifelong friendships and hobbies that may in some instance transfer to prevocational skills.

e Participation in recreational activities
e Teacher observations

e Parent/caregiver feedback

e  Provision of community resources

|
Historical Comparison Data: ;
|

Research has shown that by providing children with enrichment activities such as art, music, and recreational
opportunities, increases their social confidence and influences higher career aspirations (Durlak, J. A., &

' Weissberg, R.P. 2007). The Impact of Afterschool Programs that Promote Personal and Social Skills.
| Collaborative for Academic, Social and Emotional Learning.

In youth and young adults with disabilities, opportunities to build skills and socialize with peers are imperative ‘

' to discovering talents that may not be apparent in the classroom and that can later transfer as a job skill.

Additionally, summer programs can offer a chance to be included in a wide variety of activities with their non- |
disabled peers which may promote social inclusion on the job. Research regarding transition into adulthood
and the labor market highlights social skills as a major criterion for success on the job. (National Center for
Technology Innovation and Center for Implementing Technology in Education (2006) Boosting Inclusion in

After School Activities with AT and Supplemental Services. June 23, 2008.) ( Stewart D, Freeman M, Law M,
Healy H, Burke-Gaffney J, Forhan M, Young N, Guenther S. 2010. Transition to adulthood for youth with
disabilities: Evidence from the literature. In: JH Stone, M Blouin, editors. International Encyclopedia of
Rehabilitation. Please paste into search instead of address bar:
http://cirrie.buffalo.edu/encyclopedia/en/article/110/)

Agency Name 6



' Return on Investment:

City of Chattanooga
FY15 Offers

How do citizens benefit?

\
We all benefit when our children are well-educated and well-cared for and reach their full potential. There is a |

big payoff in investing in our citizens with disabilities. They and their families are a large portion of the general
population. 16.8% of citizens in Hamilton County over the age of 5 have a disability. 50% of Hamilton County
residents with a disability are at or below 200% of the national poverty line. Giving them opportunities to be
safe, to be educated, to work, and to increase their daily living skills benefits the health and economy of our
community. Individuals have reported to Signal Centers staff that they relocated to Chattanooga because of
the services available to their family member with a disability.

| Up to thirty three camper families will directly benefit by having opportunities for developing community with |
* others in similar circumstances, receiving respite, and being able to maintain their employment because of
| accessible child care. Their children will benefit by being in a safe, educational environment and avoiding

summer learning losses.

| Taxpayers end up paying for costs associated with abuse of our citizens. More importantly, abuse is horrible,

and prevention and intervention is important. Dr. Linda Johnston of the University of Tennessee Chattanooga

' tells us that the literature supports that children with disabilities are often abused. She and Dr. Amy Doolittle
' prepared a study last year related to students in traumatized situations and how educators can work with \

them in a supportive role to meet their needs.

Signal Centers is contacted many times throughout the year by school groups and other groups who want to
do meaningful community service. Camp Signal will provide six weeks’ worth of volunteer opportunities in
varied areas of interest. The camp will be in the summer, which can be a more convenient time for school-age
volunteers to come.

' Does this activity leverage other financial resources? Campers will be charged a fee.

How does this activity decrease costs over time for the City? It is projected that after the first summer of
operation, the total cost of the Camp Signal! will be less because the initial or startup costs are the most ‘

| significant. Appropriate materials, equipment and supplies needed to address the interests, strengths and ‘

needs of the campers can be reused in the future.

How can this program become sustainable without City funding? It is projected that in each summer of
operation, the total cost of the Camp Signal! will diminish because the initial or startup costs are the most

' significant. Future funding might include scholarships for those who cannot afford the cost of camp.
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Mayor Andy Berke

April 3, 2014

Honorable Mayor Andy Berke
101 East 11" Street
Chattanooga, TN 37402

RE: Support for Community Agency Support Grant
Signal Centers, Inc.

Dear Mayor Berke,

The Department of Youth and Family Development would like to give its support to Signal Centers, Inc.
The agency’s programs are in direct alignment with what our department is putting our focus on -
“Smarter Students — Stronger Families”.

We feel that this program would greatly benefit the citizens of Chattanooga as well as be a benefit to
helping Youth & Family Development achieve its goals.

Sincerely,

St iz S \ ¢
> » > ¥
- & ’@ﬂ“/k P '-447 2

P

Lurone “Coach” Jennings, Sr.
Administrator

Youth & Family Development
City of Chattanooga

501 West 12th Street ® Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402 » Office: (423) 757-5551 » Fax: (423) 757-5294



Agency Name:

Signal Centers, Inc.- Camp Signal!

%

_

CITY OF CHATTANOOGA e i '
FY 2015 Agency Funding Financial Form
Incr (Decr) Request | % Change Request
Account Category Actual FY 2011 | Actual FY 2012 | Actual FY 2013 | Budget FY 2014 | Request FY 2015 | vs. FY 14 Budget vs FY 14 Budget
REVENUES
Contributions
Individuals/Private S 5,000 | $ 5,000 N/A
Corporate/Organizations/Churches S - N/A
Fees/Grants from Governmental Agencies
Federal S - N/A
State S - N/A
Hamilton County S - N/A
City of Chattanooga S 50,000 | $ 50,000 N/A
Other Cities (Please list) S = N/A
United Way
Foundations (including grants) S - N/A
Gross Proceeds Special Events S - N/A
Other UWs/Federations S - N/A
CFC/Designations received thru UWGC S 3 N/A
UWGC Program Allocation S 3,000 | S 3,000 N/A
UWGC Special Funding S - N/A
Membership Dues S % N/A
Program Income S 26,500 | S 26,500 N/A
Governmental Insurance S & N/A
Private Insurance S - N/A
Contracted Services S g N/A
Fee for Services S - N/A
Other Program Income S - N/A
Sales to Public S - N/A
Investment Income S - N/A
Miscellaneous S - N/A
Other Revenues (Please list separately any major item) S = N/A
Transfers in from other internal budgets S = N/A
Income from Previous Year S = N/A
TOTAL REVENUES S - ]S - IS - 1S - | 84,500 | $ 84,500 N/A
OPERATIONS
Personnel Expenses
Salaries S 32,000 | $ 32,000 N/A




Agency Name: Signal Centers, Inc.- Camp Signal!

Fringe Benefits S - N/A
Employee Health S = N/A
Pension/Retirement S & N/A
Payroll Taxes, etc. 3,200 | $ 3,200 N/A
Other (unemployment, life insurance, etc) 1,600 | $ 1,600 N/A
Total Personnel Expenses S - - S - 3 36,800 | S 36,800 N/A
OPERATING EXPENSES

Administration

Professional Fee & Contract service S = N/A
Utilities S B N/A
Other S - N/A
Rent S ~ N/A
Travel/Transportation S = N/A
Insurance (not employee health) 5 = N/A
Materials & Supplies 9,525 | S 9,525 N/A
Telephone, Fax, ISP S N N/A
Postage and Shipping S - N/A
Occupancy/Building/Utilities 3,500 | S 3,500 N/A
Equipment Rental and Maintenance (including contracts) S - N/A
Outside Printing, Art Work, etc. S - N/A
Conferences, Conventions, etc. S - N/A
Special Assistance to Individuals $ - N/A
National Dues/Support Payments S - N/A
Organization Dues (other than above) S - N/A
Awards and Grants $ - N/A
Fund Raising/Self-Support Activities $ = N/A
Miscellaneous $ = N/A
Equipment Purchases (incl. capital expenses) 22,000 | $ 22,000 N/A
Depreciation S ~ N/A
Other Expenses (Please list separately any major item) S = N/A
Administration 12,675 | S 12,675 N/A
Operating Expenses Total S - - S - S 47,700 | $ 47,700 N/A
TOTAL OPERATIONS $ - - |5 - s 84,500 | $ 84,500 N/A
REVENUE OVER/ (UNDER) OPERATIONS S - - ]S - S - S - N/A




City of Chattanooga
FY15 Offers

OFFER SUMMARY

Offer Name:  Administration & Personnel-YFD Human Services

Department
Offer Number: 1 Offer Rank: 10f7
Lead Youth & Family Development-Human
Department:  services Collaboration: 'y N X
Administrator:  Lurone Jennings, Sr.
Offer Cost:  $1,824,816.00 Primary Results Area: Smarter Students, Stronger Families

RESULTS AREA

1. Safer Streets — Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways.

2. Growing Economy — Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods — Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid rehousing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families — Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government — Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund — Something different — processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What
innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage? What difference does this offer
make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer

The Department of Youth & Family Development receives and disburses federal and
state grants to service income eligible citizens in Chattanooga. Donations from United
Way programs are also distributed through the department. The Department’s
mission is to provide an excellent variety of educational, recreational, career,
development, and social service opportunities to enhance the individual’s quality of
life through exceptional programs in attractive, safe, and well-maintained facilities.

Administrative support is required by the grantors for all service aspects to deliver
required and described contracted grant services in a timely, cost effective and
efficient manner. Personnel support to adhere to contract services currently involves
five (5) staff persons that include an Administrator, Deputy Administrator, Executive

Youth & Family Development 1
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Assistant, Fiscal Analyst, Senior Accountant, and Payroll Clerk. One (1) Utility Worker
and one (1) Janitor support building maintenance.

Additional staff is required for the proposed enhanced operation of services that
would include a full time receptionist, a full time crew worker, and half of the
Administrator’s salary and benefits. Inclusion of these salaries and benefits increase
the administrative positions by 2.5 staff persons. An increase is requested in
personnel expenses to cover the staffing increase of 2.5 additional positions. The
Administrator’s salary and benefits were not included in FY14 budget. The present
Executive Assistant was transferred from another department. The salary and
benefits of the current Executive Assistant is higher than the previous Executive
Assistant’s salary. The FY14 budget did not include the increase in the Executive
Assistant’s position.

Some of the present positions in the Child Care Center that are not grant funded
receive less than minimum wage. Anincrease in personnel expenses allows those
persons not receiving minimum wage to meet labor law requirements. Increased
enrollment in the Child Care Center will necessitate employment of additional
teachers and teacher assistants to meet state student-teacher ratio requirements.

The Community Partnership programs, ReStart and |.AM.Ready, will require additional
maintenance, supplies and security. Hours of building operations will be extended
two hours to 8:00p.m. during the week. Activities will periodically be held on
weekends.

A requested increase in other line item expenses is also due to extended weekday
hours of operation and opening of facility on some weekends for community events.
Extended use of building will increase utilities, supplies and security spending. More
citizens will have access to services for longer periods of time.

The current facility is 70+ years old. There have not been any upgrades or renovations
done in the facility for the past 20 years. The new focus of YFD-Human Services
includes two computer learning labs for children and adults. The Child Care Center will
receive improvements to increase enrollment and improve learning standards for
children. Renovations and maintenance of the labs and improvements in child center
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services is included in the requested FY15 budget increase.

Each program and fund sources requires an application/operational plan or request
for funds. Requirements of the fund sources include budgets, budget revisions,
reimbursement submittals, auditing and monitoring assistance, customer surveys,
targeted points of delivery and mid- year and end of year reporting. Failure to meet
federal and state performance measurements requires the Department to submit
corrective action plans. Continued non-compliance will result in funding reduction or
elimination. Administrative staff is required to ensure all contract requirements are
maintained and grantor inquiries are answered.

Funding sources and community partnerships that filter through the Human Services
division leverage dollars and activities that strengthen individuals and families. The
services prevent crises, promote learning, provide a safe environment, improve
literacy, increase parental involvement, provide volunteer opportunities, and
promote physical activity and a healthy life style. Citizens aged from birth to Seniors
can benefit from many of the services available through the Department of Youth &
Family Development-Human Services division.

An advisory board of 15 community representatives serves as a liaison to the citizens
that have a stake in the services rendered. Each city council district has an appointee
that serves a three (3) year board term. Board members meet monthly to receive and
approve reports and information on department activity. The Advisory Board serves
as an advocate for citizens receiving services. Federal funding mandates an Advisory
Board.

Federal funding supports Head Start and Early Head Start programming. Current
funding totals $8, 354, 986.00 and services 784 children at 14 different locations.
State funding supports 1) Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) in the amount of
$686, 400.00; 2) Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) in the
amount of $1,971,835.00; 3) Foster Grandparent Program (FGP) in the amount of
$407, 860.00; 4) Child Care Program in the amount of $429,00.00; 5) Emergency Food
Assistance Program in the amount of $33, 543.00; 5) State Appropriation $22,500.00
(unrestricted).
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Donations for client support are received from Atlanta Gas & Light (AGL) in the
amount of $35,000.00; United Way Project Warm Neighbors and Project Water Help
amount depends upon public donation; Emergency Shelter and Food Program (ESFP)
in the amount of $25,000.00

A total of $11,971, 736.00 is leveraged for the citizens of Chattanooga through the
operation of the Human Services division of Youth & Family Development.

YFD-Human Services is a member of the Tennessee Association of Community Action
(TACA). TACA strives to promote the causes of Tennesseans that are poor, elderly and
disabled; to promote the interest and increase the effectiveness of member agencies
and to encourage the professional development of individual members. The
association establishes and maintains local, state, and national partnerships that help
customers of member agencies to achieve their full economic and social

potential. The promise of Community Action is to change people's lives, embody the
spirit of hope, improve communities, and make America a better place to live.

YFD-Human Services is a member of the Tennessee Conference on Social Welfare
(TCSW). TCSW works collaboratively with a variety of public and private social service
providers and advocates to support best practices and public awareness of important
state, local, and federal policies that affect the most vulnerable citizens.

In addition to historic programs administered by the Department. Expansion of
services will be offered to other agencies that have the vision of services to those
most in need. The building capacity at 501 W. 12" Street will accommodate three (3)
local non-profits to service clients and maintain offices at the location. Programming
includes the I.A.M. Ready program and ReStart through The Partnership for Families,
Children and Adults. The Neema Resettlement Outreach is a volunteer organization to
help serve the needs of refugees and immigrants.

Identify Which Desired Outcomes from Request for Offer(s) that this Offer Impacts:
This offer is for oversight of the programs in the attached supporting offers for Youth & Development-Human Services.

Offer 2 Head Start/Early Head Start

e  More parental involvement
Increase reading proficiency for children
Increase access to healthy food
Decrease chronic absenteeism
Fewer kids dropping out of school

Youth & Family Development 4
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e More kids graduating high school college and career ready
. Increase citizen satisfaction with services

Offer 3 Social Services

Increase awareness of existing employment opportunities
Increase access to healthy food

Increase access to healthy food

Increase citizen satisfaction with services

Offer 4 Foster Grandparent Program
e Decrease chronic absenteeism
e  Fewer children dropping out of school

e Increase reading proficiency for children
. Increase citizen satisfaction with services

Offer 5 Child Care

More parental involvement

Increase reading proficiency for children
Increase access to healthy food

Fewer children dropping out of school
Increase citizen satisfaction with services

Offer 6 Community Partnerships
e  More parental involvement
e Increase reading proficiency for children and adults
e Increase citizen satisfaction with services

BUDGET REQUEST

Summary: (Please complete based on Dept. Operating Detail and Dept. Personnel Detail Forms)

Personnel Cost % of FTEs
Department (including Benefits) Operations Request offer required
YFD-Human Services $754,659.00 $590,157.00 $1,824,816.00 100% 10
0%
$754,659.00 $590,157.00 $1,824,816.00 100% 10

*Amounts MUST agree with collaborating Department totals for this offer

Capital Budget Impact? Yes X No Amount
*Please prepare and attach Capital Budget Request Form

Financial Offsets: (Please list any Revenue e.g. golf course revenue, Grants, Private/Corporate Contributions, Etc.)

Name Amount

Head Start/Early Head Start $8,726,414.00
Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) $1,971,835.00
Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) $ 686,400.00
State Child Care Certificates $ 300,000.00
Child Adult Care Food Program (CACFP) $ 129,000.00

Youth & Family Development 5
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United States Department of Agriculture — Commodities $ 33,543.00
City General Relief $ 36,044.00
Atlanta Gas & Light (AGL) $  35,000.00
Emergency Shelter & Food Program (ESFP) $ 25,000.00
State Appropriation Funds $ 22,500.00
The Partnership for Families, Children and Adults $ 6,000.00

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1: Amount of Funding Dollars from Grants & Donations
FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target
$14,067,005.00 $13,853,731.00 $11,918,936.00 $12,500,000.00

Measurement 2: Decrease Number of Citizen’s Complaints

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target
Not Tracked Not Tracked Not Tracked

Return on Investment:

How do citizens benefit? Citizens receive a variety of services in one location. Families and individuals are able
to receive educational advancement, literacy and math skills, results oriented case management, advocacy,
child care, employment training, volunteer opportunities, and self-sufficiency counseling.

Administrative support ensures contracts and other funding source compliance requirements are met in
order to receive and maintain funding from grants, donations, and unrestricted funds.

Fiscally sound practices allow for payments to clients and vendors, reimbursements from grant funding
sources, maintenance of files and documentation for auditors and monitors, and management of payroll
functions for department staff.

The department serves as a point of contact for direct inter-face with citizens, community partners, the
Advisory Board and other city departments.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? Yes, administrative and personnel support leverages
$11,971,736.00 in grants and donations.

How does this decrease costs over time? The cost of the offer will not decrease over time. The benefit it
brings to recipients will be evident in increased community partnerships, compliance with government grants,
and citizens receiving services that would not otherwise be available. The offer will leverage additional grant
dollars over time.

Youth & Family Development 6



City of Chattanooga
Non-Profit Agency Funding Request

Cover Letter
Name of Organization: The Speech and Hearing Center

600 North Holtzclaw Avenue, Suite 200
Chattanooga, TN 37404

Contact Information: Connie Fernandez, President/CEO
600 North Holtzclaw Avenue, Suite 200
Chattanooga, TN 37404

423.622.6900
Agency Mission: To enhance and sustain quality of life through better communication
Result Area for
Which Funding is
Requested: Smarter Students, Stronger Families

Amount of Funding
Requested: $67.700.00



a)

b)

City of Chattanooga
Non-Profit Agency Funding Request

Executive Summary
Amount and Proposed Usage of Requested Funds

The Speech & Hearing Center is requesting $67,700.00 to fund early identification and
intervention services for children with communication disorders, regardless of their parents’
ability to afford services. While the agency serves individuals of all ages, we place strong
emphasis on children ages birth through five, as it is substantiated by the American Speech-
Language and Hearing Association (ASHA) that the critical language learning window is from
birth to approximately three years of age, when brain neuroplasticity is the greatest. We are
the only nonprofit of our kind in Chattanooga, and have provided audiological and speech
pathology services to the community for over 60 years. City funds allow us to serve
individuals who are at or below the poverty level, and those who are non- or under-insured.

The services that The Speech & Hearing Center provides ensure that children are better
prepared to enter school and perform at their highest level of functioning. Early identification
and intervention set children on a course that helps them succeed in school and beyond,
ultimately creating a purposeful existence for our patients while producing productive, stable
citizens for Chattanooga who are not a continuous strain on the tax base. Additionally, we are
the only facility in the area that can offer comprehensive care to children with hearing loss in
the following manner:

o Newborn hearing screenings at 24 hours old
Only facility with non-sedative Auditory Brainstem Response diagnostic equipment
Babies fit with hearing aids by 6 months old
Auditory Verbal Therapy* (AVT) as soon as the child is amplified
Speech-Language Pathologist certified and specialized in Aural Re/Habilitation
Parent training to maximize child’s listening and speaking skills

o In-service offerings for school systems to ensure proper classroom accommodations
*Only AVT offering within 116 mile radius

e o & o o

Program Description
The Speech & Hearing Center manages two primary programs. Each of which is outlined
below.

Audiology Program:

e Free screenings for children five years old and younger for early identification, and on-site
at preschool/childcare programs that primarily serve under-served populations (including
the City’s Department of Youth & Family Development, full list in Speech section).

e Community education and outreach program, to include free screenings for all ages at
specific community events (e.g. Minority Health Fair, GolFest).

e Manages the newborn hearing screening program at Parkridge East and collaborates

with the State Regional Task Force for Early Hearing Detection and Intervention

(EHDI)/Newborn Hearing Screening (NHS).

The primary Tenn. Medicaid provider in Chattanooga for hearing aid related services.

Only provider who offers a sliding fee scale for diagnostics to those who income-qualify.

Hearing aid purchasing assistance programs for patients who income-qualify.

Hearing aid loaner bank.

Provider in collaboration with Tennessee’s Early intervention System (TEIS).

Provider in collaboration with the Department of Disability Services (DDS) and Children

Special Services (CSS).

Provider in collaboration with Tennessee’s Vocational Rehabilitation program.

Provider in collaboration with Alexian Brother's PACE (Program for All-inclusive Care for

the Eliderly).

Provider in collaboration with Tennessee Virtual Academy, K-12 online classroom.

Identification and complete diagnostic hearing evaluations for children and adults.

Only provider of non-sedative Auditory Brainstem Response (ABR) testing for children

under five and all patients with a disability non-compatible with traditional testing.

» Hearing aid sales and service, as well as assistive listening devices, available to patients.



e Remedial services to minimize effects of hearing loss on education, employment and
social interaction.

o Services available at our center, preschools/childcare centers, nursing homes, and
primary healthcare centers based upon request and need.

Speech-Language Pathology Program:
o Free screenings for children five years old and younger for early identification, and on-site

at preschool/childcare programs that primarily serve under-served populations, including:
- City’s Department of Youth & Family Development - Pro Re Bona Day Nursery

- Girls Incorporated of Chattanooga - Volunteer Community School
- Children’'s Academy for Education & Learning - Chambliss Center for Children
- Maurice Kirby Child Care Center - Downtown YMCA Child Care
- Newton Community Service Center - Little Miss Mag ELC

e Community education and outreach program, to include free screenings for all ages at
specific community events (e.g. Minority Health Fair, Go!Fest).

e Only provider in Chattanooga who offers a sliding fee scale for diagnostic and therapy
services to patients who income-qualify.

Provider in collaboration with Tennessee's Early Intervention System (TEIS).

Provider in collaboration with the Department of Disability Services (DDS) and Children
Special Services (CSS).

Provider in collaboration with Tennessee’s Vocational Rehabilitation program.

Provider in collaboration with Alexian Brother's PACE (Program for All-inclusive Care for
the Elderly).

Provider in collaboration with Tennessee Virtual Academy, K-12 online classroom.
Provider in collaboration with Chattanooga Girls Leadership Academy charter school.
Identification, diagnosis, and therapeutic treatment of speech, language, processing,
voice, swallowing, feeding, and fluency disorders.

e Provider of Auditory Verbal Therapy (AVT) for hearing impaired children and those with
cochlear implants.

e Conducts in-services for school systems’ Inclusion Specialists, Exceptional Education
Professionals, and Educators of the Deaf and Hard of Hearing, and training sessions for
the Department of Youth & Family Development's Foster Grandparent Program.

e Behavioral feeding therapy offered (specific focus on children with Autism Spectrum
Disorder and ADD/ADHD).

e Certified dispense for the SpeechEasy® fluency enhancing device for individuals who
stutter.

e Services available at our centers, preschools/childcare facilities, public and private
schools, and hospitals/nursing homes based upon request and need.

c) Accounting of Funds Usage Statement

The Speech and Hearing Center agrees to provide a detailed accounting of how and for what
purpose municipal funds were spent. This information will be submitted prior to the close of
the City of Chattanooga'’s fiscal budget year and at the close of each succeeding fiscal
budget year, until all municipal funds have been spent, along with a list of accomplishments
scheduled by the use of this funding.

d) Audit Submission Statement

The Speech and Hearing Center agrees to provide the City of Chattanooga with copies of
current annual audits or reviews for each year that we spend funds appropriated to us by the
City of Chattanooga. Our 2012 documents have been submitted with this request and we will
submit the 2013 audit when it is completed by the end of April.

Ay A \Q-\Y

(CEO/President, The Speech and Hearh@ Center) (Date)




Attachment A: Offer

Agency Name The Speech & Hearing Center
Offer Name Audiology & Speech-Language Pathology Services

Collaborating City Departments/Agencies Department of Youth & Family Development
Total Number of Offers Submitted by Agency 1 offer

Result Area (to which result is this most related

Choose One
Safer Streets | Smarter Students, A Growing Stronger Efficient &
Stronger Families Economy Neighborhoods Innovative

Government

X

Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts:

1. Children with communication disorders will be identified before preschool
2. Children with impairments will have access to interventional services regardiess of parents’ ability

to afford services
3. Children will be better prepared to succeed in school and beyond

Offer Description:

What is the service/program?

The goal of The Speech and Hearing Center’s early identification and intervention program is to raise
awareness of hearing problems in infants and children, identify children with hearing loss, and prescribe
them the proper form of aural rehabilitation and/or hearing device so they are better prepared for
educational, employment and social opportunities, and may live life independently. Additionally, we also
identify children with possible speech/language problems and provide them the necessary intervention to
help them achieve their highest level of functioning.

We know that undetected communication disorders in children can result in delayed speech and
language acquisition, social-emotional or behavioral problems, lags in academic achievement, and
potential unemployment, or loss of wages. All of these factors increase the cost of the individual to the
community over the person’s lifetime. It makes most sense to make a relatively small investment in a child
on the front end of his/her life that will impact his/her ability to become a productive, engaged citizen, than
support an individual throughout his/her lifetime for a disability that could have been improved through
early intervention.

How will it be provided?

The Speech & Hearing Center partners with a variety of community and State agencies in order to
perform mass screenings, diagnostic follow-up, and treatment plans. These partners include:

e City's Dept. of Youth & Family Development e Little Miss Mag ELC

Pro Re Bona Day Nursery Regional Obstetrics Group

Girls Incorporated of Chattanooga Tennessee’s Early Intervention System (TEIS)
Volunteer Community School Department of Disability Services (DDS)
Children’s Academy for Education & Learning Children Special Services (CSS).
Chambliss Center for Children Tenn.Vocational Rehabilitation Program
Maurice Kirby Child Care Center Tennessee Virtual Academy

Downtown YMCA Child Care Chattanooga Girls Leadership Academy
Newton Community Service Center Regional Intervention Program (RIP)

e o o & & 6 o o
o & & & 6 & & o

Services are provided in our main clinic, as well as at satellite locations and community locations.

What innovation & sustainability practices does this leverage?

The Speech & Hearing Center endeavors to stay at the forefront of technology and best practices to be
able to serve individuals with a variety of communication disorders. We also have an extensive network of
collaborating community partners to ensure that the whole person is treated and to limit breakdowns in
service. Specialties solely provided by The Speech & Hearing Center include:



e Non-sedative Auditory Brainstem Response diagnostic equipment for testing young children and
individuals with physical and/or mental disabilities who are not candidates for traditional testing.

o Auditory Verbal Therapy (AVT) for children with cochlear implants, hearing aids, or bone-anchored
hearing aids.

e Community outreach and education.

e In-service programs for educational institutions to better serve their students.

What difference does this offer make and how will we know?

Approximately 3 in 1,000 babies are born with permanent hearing loss, making hearing loss one of the
most common birth defects in America. While 92% of all newborns are screened for hearing loss shortly
after birth, only 54% of these babies actually receive the recommended hearing evaluation; the remaining
46% are “lost to the system” (Joint Committee on Infant Hearing, 2007). This is where The Speech &
Hearing Center makes a difference not only in the individual life of the patients we serve, but in the
community at large.

Children who begin early intervention earlier have significantly better developmental outcomes than
similar children who begin intervention later. Most children with hearing loss who receive appropriate
services from trained staff are able to progress at age-appropriate rates. Nearly 40% of children identified
with hearing loss are not referred to the State’s early intervention system, and parents may not be aware
of the broad array of services and funding available to them (Center for Disease Control and Prevention,
2008).This is unfortunate because with appropriate early intervention, children with hearing loss can be
mainstreamed in regular elementary and secondary education classrooms. Recent research has
concluded that children born with a hearing loss who are identified and given appropriate intervention
before six months of age demonstrated significantly better speech and reading comprehension than
children identified after six months of age.

We know that 95% of children with hearing loss are born to hearing parents, and these parents are
increasingly opting for cochlear implants for those children who qualify for the surgery. Therefore, it is
essential that Chattanooga has resident specialists to serve these children beyond their surgical implant.
Auditory Verbal Therapy (AVT) is a very specialized sub sect of speech-language pathology, and The
Speech & Hearing Center has a certified Aural Re/Habilitation professional who is in the process of
obtaining certification for AVT, and who is currently providing AVT services under the director of a
certified mentor at the Bill Wilkerson Center (Vanderbilt University). This is the only AVT offering within
115 mile radius. Before The Speech & Hearing Center hired this clinician in January 2013, parents had to
drive their children to Nashville, Knoxville, and Atlanta to receive this form of therapy. Now, they can
receive comprehensive care in their home city of Chattanooga. This greatly increases the likelihood that
these children will actually receive the required therapy for success, as many of our patients struggle with
transportation issues.

AVT is vital for these children because hearing is a first-order event for spoken language, reading, and
learning. Being able to listen in infancy is critical for the development of both speech and language in
young children, and a strong spoken language base is essential for reading. There is a critical window for
auditory and neural development. Studies in brain development show that sensory stimulation of the
auditory centers of the brain is critically important and influences the actual organization of auditory brain
pathways. In fact, neural imaging has shown that the same brain areas are most active when a child
listens and when a child reads (Cole & Flexer, 2007). So, you can see the long-term affect this crucial
therapy will have on educational success. Even mild hearing loss can significantly interfere with the
reception of spoken language and education performance. Research indicates that children with unilateral
hearing loss (in one ear) are ten times as likely to be held back at least one grade, compared to children
with normal hearing. Additionally, children who are deaf and hard of hearing are at risk for serious reading
deficiencies, if they do not receive the appropriate intervention early in life. For typically developing
children, phonological awareness, alphabetic, and vocabulary form the foundation to read words and
passages meaningfully, so one can see how the hearing impaired child is at a disadvantage from the on-
set, with regard to literacy.

In addition to the educational and personal ramifications of non-treatment of a communication disorder,
there are significant financial implications as well. The Center for Disease Control and Prevention has
estimated that the lifetime economic cost to the public for a child with hearing loss is over $400,000,
mostly for special education services. This cost is compounded when the child is not identified early and



intervention obtained. This economic burden does not stop after childhood, as 53% of hearing impaired
families make less than $25,000 annually, compared to 35% of the general American population (Mohr et
al., 2000). If early identification and intervention shifted 10% of the children into mainstreamed settings,
the return on investment would be evidenced in significantly higher earnings in adulthood.

The long-term success of the children The Speech & Hearing Center serves depends on everyone having
equal access to treatment. By serving children on Medicaid, and providing a sliding fee scale to
accommodate families at or below the poverty level, we ensure that all children receive therapies and
devices necessary for advancement, not just those who can afford such services. The difference these
early identification and intervention services make will be evidenced in higher academic achievement,
greater societal involvement, and wider opportunities for employment in aduithood.

We utilize several methods in analyzing the effectiveness of our program. These include:

e Pre/post clinical test results
e Patient/parent surveys

e National Outcomes Measurement System (NOMS) conducted by the American Speech-Language

Hearing Association (ASHA)

Statistics and calculations regarding follow up services and referrals
Clinical records and assessment results from speech pathologists, audiologists, teachers, and early

intervention program partners
Real Ear measurements
Speech mapping

Soundfield behavioral testing

The Speech & Hearing Center cannot share personal health information, however, we maintain statistical
records so that we can constantly measure ourselves against industry benchmarks, as well as being able
to compare outcomes from year to year.

Expenditure Summary $ Description
Number of Employees Required 12 ppl | Clinical Staff, Newborn Hearing Screeners,
Management & Clerical
Personnel Costs (inc. benefits) $254,621.12 | Salaries & Benefits
Operating Costs
Cost of Goods | $90,673.38 | Hearing Devices, Diagnostic Equipment,
Standardized Speech-Language Diagnostic Materials
Rent | $30,266.92 | Occupancy/Building/Utilities
Marketing | $12,132.90 | Print, Radio, Physician Referral
Other Operating Expenses | $50,960.00 | Phone, Local Transportation, Depreciation, Bank
Fees, Professional Fees, Postage/Shipping, Equip
Rental/Maintenance, Professional Development, Org.
Dues, Insurance, Bank Fees & Bad Debt
Total Financial/Budget Request $438,654.32
Financial Offsets $ Description
Contributions $3,400.00 | Individuals, Organizations, Corporate
United Way $105,917.00 | Allocation for Priority Areas
City of Chattanooga $67,700 | Allocation for Priority Areas
Program Income $317,730.00 | Insurance Reimbursement, Fee-for-Service
Contracts, Self-pay Individuals
Sales to Public $145,000.00 | Hearing Aid Sales and Service
Volunteer Labor (hours projected) 400 hours | Speech-Language Pathology Intern
FEE ADJUSTMENTS ($201,998.00) | Indigent Care and Medicare Adjustment
Total Offsets $437,749.00
Performance Data (how will you measure your performance? How will you know if you are achieving the desired outcomes?)
2013-2014 Historical Comparison Data
Measure 1 | Early ldentification Records of annual screenings w/results and protocol for follow

up




Measure 2 | Early Intervention/Access | Clinical/medical records showing evaluation resuits for those
' who presented with possible issues

Measure 3 | Successful Developmental | Clinical/medical records with measurable, therapeutic goals
Progress analyzed at 6 month intervals and at discharge

Return on Investment

How do citizens benefit?

Please see detailed information above. Succinctly, children will have:

o Greater opportunity to reach their full potential regarding educational attainment

Greater ability to connect with the world around them through enhanced communication

Enhanced sense of self-image and confidence

Enhanced receptive and expressive language skills

Greater likelihood of completing school and advancing to higher education or entering the workforce,
rather than filing for disability

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?

Yes. The Speech & Hearing Center depends on the following revenue streams:

« United Way of Greater Chattanooga

e Private insurance reimbursement

e Hearing aid sales to self-pay individuals

e Fundraising partnerships with the Downtown Sertoma Club of Chattanooga, Kiwanis Club of
Ooltewah-Collegedale, and Delta Zeta Sorority

Grants

Fee-for-service contracts

Our Industrial Audiology department (for-profit line of business)

How does this decrease costs over time?

There is no indication that the cost of this program will decrease over time. As the school systems and
state-run early intervention programs are increasing defunded and over-burdened with the amount of
children on their case load, the need for partnering agencies to help fill in the gaps is increasingly
essential. Resources for these services are scarce, and also expensive, as services must be provided by
highly educated and licensed individuals. A lot also is dictated by what Medicaid decides to cover for
these children, and the rate at which it chooses to reimburse for services. Constant monitoring and
lobbying is essential to keep up to date with the trends of the industry and early intervention in general.



Attachment B: Comparative Financial Information

Agency Name: The Speech & Hearing Center

This section relates to agency efforts specifically funded by Chattancoga dollars to benefit Chattanooga
residents, relative to the dollars given by adjoining governmental entities.

Dollars provided to your organization | Percent of your total annual % of
in FY 2013 by the following entities: operational funding provided by Hamilton
local government County
Population*®
Chattanooga 100% 49.83%
Unincorporated Hamilton County 30.22%
Hamilton County Government's
(General funds)
Coliegedale 2.46%
East Ridge 6.24%
Lakesite 0.54%
Lookout Mountain 0.54%
Red Bank 3.46%
Ridgeside 0.12%
|_Signal Mountain 2.25%
Soddy-Daisy 3.78%
Walden 0.56%
Other (Outside Hamilton County)
Above percentages should total
100%
Percent of Services rendered to Estimate, if you do not now track
residents of: this data.
Chattanooga 51% 49.83%
Unincorporated Hamilton County 5% 30.22%
Hamilton County Government’s
(General funds)
Collegedale 5% 2.46%
East Ridge 3% 6.24%
Lakesite 0.54%
Lookout Mountain 1% 0.54%
Red Bank 3.5% 3.46%
Ridgeside 0.12%
- Signal Mountain 4% 2.25%
Soddy-Daisy 2% 3.78%
Walden 0.56%
Other (Outside Hamilton County) 30%
Above percentages should total
100%

*Population numbers are from 2010 U.S. Census.




Attachment C: Program Beneficiary Statistics
Agency Name: The Speech & Hearing Center Program: Audiology

Program Beneficiary (_:h_aracteristics FY 2013 FY 2014 (pl:r:j:g:es d)
Clients/Patients/Recipients/Other (2012 calendar) || (2013 calendar) || (2444 calendar)
1. Unduplicated Count of Program Beneficiaries 2351 3433 2600
TOTAL
Jr a) Total Continuing From Previous Fiscal Year I |r
| b) Total New for the Year l
r ¢) Total Terminated During the Year " |
[2. Age Group TOTAL || 2351 | 3433 I 2600 |
a) Infants — Under 5 B 1493 I 2387 | ]
b) Between 5and 12 Il 80 Il 130 i I
I o Between13and 17 B 59 92 I |
| d) Between 18and 29 i 56 66 ||
| e Between 30 and 64 I 264 312 I |
f) 65 and over JI 399 446 \
g) Not Known J " " |
3. Sex TOTAL | 2351 3433 2600 ||
[ 2 mae 1058 1545 ]
b) Female 1293 1888
c) Not Known
4. Ethnic Background TOTAL || 2351 | 3433 2600 I
| @ White I 1465 I 1978 I |
[ b Black I 701 I 930 I |
o _Hispanic 185 | 232 | I
d) Oriental | |
e) Other — Ethnic Minority | | |
f) Not Known | | 293 |
|| 5. % Income Level* TOTAL || 2351 | 3433 2600 |
| 2 Below9,999 | 1l * I 1
[ » 10,000-19,999 I I .
) 20,000 - 29,999 I | -
d) 30,000 and Over | 1159 | |
| e NotKnown I | 2274 | |
|| 6. Location of Residence TOTAL || 2351 3433 2600 |
a) Chattanooga l 1364 1734 I
b) Outside of Chattanooga 087 1699 I

c) Not Known

I
[

Il
I

*66% of audiology patients qualify for a subsidy program, which is based on the Federal Poverty Level

and number in household.



Attachment C: Program Beneficiary Statistics
Agency Name: The Speech & Hearing Center Program: Speech-Language Pathology

Pro_gram Ber!eficiary (_:h_aracteristics FY 2013 FY 2014 (pizj:g:esd) J
Clients/Patients/Recipients/Other (2012 calendar) || (2013 calendar) || (9444 calendar
l 1. :_l(r;sli_l;\;ilicated Count of Program Beneficiaries 2371 3169 2600 ||
d) Total Continuing From Previous Fiscal Year “ " "
e) Total New for the Year “ " |
f) Total Terminated During the Year I 71 | I l
| 2. Age Group TOTAL | 2371 | 3169 2600 I
[ h _Infants — Under 5 i 651 | 875
| ) Between5and 12 I 1407 | 1924 [
[ ) Between13and 17 B 90 116 |
k) Between 18 and 29 ! 92 66 |
| 1 Between30and64 | 49 35 | ]
|___m 65andover | 82 153 | ]
| n) Not Known I " II J
|| 3. sex TOTAL | 2371 | 3169 2600 |
d) Male 1257 1679 ]
e) Female 1114 [ 1490 ]
f) Not Known
4. Ethnic Background TOTAL || 2371 3169 | 2600 |
g9) White [ 1524 | 1928 | |
L Black | 765 l 946 | I
[ Hispanic RS I 102 I |
[ 5 Oriental [ 32 | [ I
[ 1 Other - Ethnic Minority | 23 [l | |
[ ) NotKnown I 1 | 193 | |
[ 5. % Income Level* TOTAL | 2371 [ 3169 I 2600
| m) Below9,999 l I * [ |
[ m 10,000-19,999 Il | * | '
0) 20,000 — 29,999 | | * |
[ p) 30,000 and Over | 1130
l q) Not Known : 2371 [ 2039 |
| 6. Location of Residence TOTAL || 2371 | 3169 2600
| 1 Chattanooga I 1138 | 1963 |
|  s) Outside of Chattanooga I 1233 | 1206 |
[ 9 NotKnown it 1 I

*64% of speech-language pathology patients qualify for a subsidy program, which is based on the
Federal Poverty Level and number in household.
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Attachment E: Major Sources of Funding for the Past Five Years

Agency Name: The Speech & Hearing Center

Downtown
Sertoma Club
Golf
Tournament;
Kiwanis Club of
Ooltewah-
Collegedale 5K
Fun Run;
Chattanooga
Friends Events;
World of
Wheels; Delta
Zeta Sorority

10,528

21,847

15,363

18,221

8,000

6000

Grants

Community
Foundation

5,479

Contributions

Private Donors

29,112

6,160

14.813

9,002

5,332

800

United Way

United Way of
Greater
Chattanooga

298,575

264,344

268,693

261,835

244,246

242,834

Government
Funding

Hamilton County

138,787

145,259

71,412

0

0

City of
Chattanooga

0

0

33,850

67,700

67,700

33,850

Marion County

9,400

10,000

0

8,000

0

0

Subtotal, Major
Funding
Sources

491,881

447,610

404,131

347,758

325,278

283,484

Total, All
Revenue
Sources

1,683,067

1,638,156

1,701,136

1,614,037

1,313,877

1,244,067




%09 (86°0£¥°0T) 00'9v8'SE 86'9/7'9% (9g'9evTLT) {00'¥S1'T8) {00°€68'9TT) NOILYY3dO (43ANN) /4IA0 INNIATY
%€ €- (82°78€'6S) 00'81Z'80C'T 87°009°L9CT T6'TLY'98L T 00°06S°Z8L T 00'670°5SL T SNOILVYH3dO 1v10L
%L°C 0T'SPY'1l 00'Z8S'8EY 08'9€T LTy SL'80L'0EY 00°0CE'8TS 00°T6£°CTS le3o sasuadx3 Sunesado
%1°0C- (8€°028'7) 00'008°01 8€'079'€T 89°€S0'VT 00°SZT'0T 00°069°ST 9|esay 104 SPOOD
%ELT 9v'79L'0€ 00'0T6'9€T ¥S°LST 90T 9T'129’TIT 00°TS918T 00'78£'691 d/H sesuadsig
%611 ¥$'610°€ 00'€T6'8T 9¥'€68°St 95°SPE'ST 00°807°0€ 00°658'v€ uonepaidaq
%0"EV- (v1°L€8'6) 00°00T‘8 PTLEG'LT 00°558C¢ 00'69°0¢ 00°6016T uawdinb3 13 seday J93ua)
%6'TL- (s2°6€9) 000 SL°6€9 £0°068 009952 00'969CT SNO3UE|RISIN
V/N 000 sa1ARdY poddns-jjas/3ulsiey puny
V/N 000 SIUBID pUB SpieMY
%9'C A& 00'9€8°¢€ 9/°€59°¢ ST190°L 00°££59 00'69t'S (anoge ueyy Jay30) sanq uopeziuesio
V/N 000 siuawAed poddng/sang |euoneN
V/N 000 S|ENPIAIPU 01 ADURISISSY [B103dS
%9°SE 16°801T 00°00%'V 60'167°C 86'STT’E 00'8/8°T 00°6€C'Y *333 ‘SUOCIFUSAUD)) ‘S90UBI4U0D
% 6C (12°826'9) 00°0TT'IE TL'8E08E L8 IVL'ET 00°70€‘8T 00°STY'ee "239 HUOM BV ‘Buliulid 9pISIn0
Vv/N 000 (s30843U02 BulpNpRUL)
V/N 000 sanRN/Sulppng/Aouednadg
%L'ST- {oz'192) 00°008'S 07’1959 05'SE8'Y 00°€/8'S 00'66%9 Suiddiys pue s8eisod
%¥0T- (8S'¥IV'T) 00'66£9 85°€18'8 98 TYI'EC 00°012'9¢ 00'185°S¢ dS ‘xed ‘auoudsjal
%6'S rEE0P'T 00°000'6€ 99'9659¢ 92°786°0 00°S29'€C 0079€S°/T saljddns 13 sjeli21e
%LET 00'TET'E 00°0€8'6T 00'669°9T 00'88T'ET 00'8SL'LT 00'88T'LT {(y3jeay aahojdwa J0u) 2dURINSU|
%067 €L°86L'S 00°008'ST LT¥00°0T 91’0811 00°790'€T 00°59€'8 UMmoJ JO IO
%9°C Tr'6LE 00°0S.L'8 65°0LE8 L8'6V8'VT 00°85091 00°S659T jeso]
V/N 000 uopeyodsuel ) /joael)
%91 0S'SCTT 00'8€6'99 05'718°S9 TT'188'TL 00°0S669 00°STE'89 sy
€6'889'T 00'9LECT L0°£89°0T LY'169°S 000 {se24 yueg) J8y10
%01 (T€'vs8'7) 00°0£9°0T TEVTSET 18'88S'€T 00°8€6'7T 00°TH0'ST sanInn
%5'95- {6£°568TT) 00°0v6'8T 6L°SE80E YTvv0'1T 00°8/8'€S 00°260°CY 3JIAI9S 10B3UOD) 13 B34 |RUOISSDJ0Id
: SROIAIRS
uojeASIUIWPY
S3ISNIAdX3 ONILVHIdO
%C°S- (8v"£28°0L) 00'9€9'69/ 8¥'€9v'0v8 LT¥9L'SSET 00°0£2'V97'T 0085971 sasuadx3 [puuosiad [el0L
00°00€'VT 00°00€VT 000 (219 “@ouednsui ay) ‘uawAhojdwaun) JaYI0
%5°S- (v e€e'y) 00'6VS LY v£°788'1S 60'7SS'8L 00°125'69 00°€76'89 235 ‘soxe [|0IAed
%L1 TTSEYT 00'9€T'ET 8/°00L°0C ¥6'LTE'GET 00°LE8°LLCT 00°€vL'LTT JusWRIBY/UoISUad
png STA4 png STA4 SA (v10Z 44 [0} (€107 24 |©2) (T107 24 |03} (o10Z 4A |€3) {6002 4A |23} AJoSa3e) JUN0ddY
sn3sanbay aBuey) %| 1sanbay (1220) Ul | GTOZAL 359ND3Y | HTOTZAL IS9NDAY | ETOZA4 [ENIDY | ZTOZAL [ENDY | TTOZAd [enddy

w.o4 [piupuil4 buipundg AHuaby STOZA

VOOONVLLVHD 40 ALID

1 1 ]

| JeWIO]396pNg ‘4 JUSWIYIERY




sA 3sanbay a8uey) %

1sanbay (192q) Jou|

STOZA4 3sonbay

HTOZA4 358nbay

E€T0TA4 |ENPY

CI0ZAd |enpY

%9°L1- (zezee'v) 00'vTLV9 7€'9€0'68 €ETLEBET 00'97T'0¢ET 00°ZEE’0TT y3jesH sohojdw3
V/N 000 syyeuag asuLi4
%6'S- {¥9°906'8S) 00°L£66T9 ¥9'€¥8'8L9 18'605'666 00'989'9€6 00°019'G¢6 salejes
sasuadxg |[puuosidd
SNOILYY3dO
%E V- (97°€1869) 00'790'V¥C'T 9T’ LL8'ETET 95°9€0'PT9T 00°9€T'T0LT 00'9ST'8€9°T SINNIATY TV10L
%ETT- T0v8ETST (00'T09°€2E) (z0's86'vLY) (eTeTL'TTL) {(00"002'c€8) {(00'vv1'e8L) swiswisnipy 234
V/N 000 JB3A SNOIARIJ WIOJ) BWODU|
V/N 000 $198pNQ |_UIBIUI JOYIO WO U] SIBSUBLY
V/N 000 (w1 Jofews
%6'6T- (z0'6L2'T) 00'TLT'E Z0°0SSYy €€ Y9 00°€S0°6 00'885°01 (-ou) 353.493U)) snoduejjRISIN
Vv/N 000 20| JUBLLIISDAU)
%1V $0"796°€T 00°00£°00€ 96'L€£'98¢ ¥9'8L0°TVE 00 vvv'6vi 00°9vY'0TY a|qngd 03 sofes
V/N 000 awoou} welsold BYI0
%6'TT- {85°980°Z6T) 00°019°086 85°969°7LTT 99°0SL'€T9T 00°80LTL9T 00'G592SS°T SADIAISS 10} 334
Vv/N 000 S92IAIDS PRIDRIIUOD
V/N 000 2oUBINSU} 91BALLG
V/N 000 32UBINSU| |2IUSLUUIDAOD
V/N 000 awoou] weiSo.d
Vv/N 000 000 seng diyssaquiaN
v/N 000 000 000 000 00'IVL'S 000 Suipuny |eads 29MN
%S0~ {00'z€2'T) 00°0788TC 00°2s0'02T 00'8SLVET 00°VLEVIT 00°CLETHT uo13e20||y Wessold JOMN
%L°0- (z9'6L1) 00'710'%T 79'€6T'vT €1°L18'SC 00'9S0LT 00'8¥9'8T DDMAN NIYL PaAIeIas suoileusisea/d40
V/N 000 000 000 000 00°2TS’s 00°SZg's suoiietspal/spmn 42410
%0'1T- (00°0002) 00°0009 00°000'8 160228t 00°€9€'sT 00°/t81C SJUBAT [B10RdS SPa3d0Id SSOID
v/N 000 (s3uesd Suipnjaur) suonepuno
V/N 000 Aep pauun
%00 000 000 000 00°000'8 000 00°000°0% (3s1] @sE3]d) 9D JBUIO
%0'0S- (00'058'€€) 00'0S8'€E 00'00L'29 00°00£°£9 00°0S8'EE 000 e3oouepeyd jo A
V/N 000 000 000 000 00°CTV'TL 00°652'SYT Awuno) uoyjiwey
V/N 000 ale1s
v/N 000 [esopad
V/N 000 S9IOUATY [BIUSWILIDAOG WO} SIURID/SD94
V/N {00°006€) 00°009 00°00S'v 00°00S°CT 000 sayany)/suonieziuedip/aies0dio)
%0°L- (ot°z€9) 00'00Z 0T'ze8 96’1006 00°€TEC 000919 a3eALId/S|ENPIAIPU
SUOIINQLIIU0D)
SINNIAIY
png STA4 png STA4 'sA (v10Z 1A |2) (€102 2A [0} {1102 44 |€3) (0102 2A |e0) (600 1A je2) AJoSae) Junoddy

TT0ZAd jendY

w04 [prubul4 buipund Aouaby STOZAS

VOOONVLLVHD 40 ALID

Jewii04 Jobpng ;4 JUsIUIEeRY



7

City of Chattanooga

) FY15 Offers

OFFER SUMMARY

Offer Name:  Chattanooga Zoo Contract Appropriation

Lead Agency: Chattanooga Zoo/Friends of the Zoo, Inc.

Collaborating City Department(s): pepartment of General Services

Contact Name:  pardenelle Long

Primary Results Area:  per City Contract

Offer Cost (Funding Request):  $750,000

RESULTS AREAS

1. Safer Streets — Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways.

2. Growing Economy — Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods — Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid re-housing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families — Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government — Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund — Something different — processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage?
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)

Friends of the Zoo, Inc. (FOZ) requests their annual operating appropriation in the amount of $750,000 for FY 2015. This
amount is 35% of the Zoo’s annual operating budget, the same percentage appropriated in FY 2014.

In the following narrative, each key results area for the 2015 budget is addressed. Phrases in /talics indicate particular
outcomes or strategies that are being addressed.

Smarter Students, Stronger Families
Education, PEDZ, Youth Programs

The Zoo's most profound impact on the Mayor’s Results Areas is seen in the area of Smarter Students and Stronger
Families. By its very nature, the Zoo provides multiple educational offerings that are affordable and effective. From field
trips and onsite programs, to the offsite programs, summer camps, and seniors, the zoo reaches all of Chattanooga and
beyond. Nearly 50% of children that visit the zoo participate in Free and Reduced Lunch programs. All education programs
meet state curriculum guidelines, and provide a fun and innovative approach to learning. The Zoo is also a safe,
entertaining and affordable family outing, and as a part of the Warner Park experience, creates a safe and welcoming
destination.

Chattanooga Zoo 1
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FY15 Offers

In 2002, the Zoo created a program entitled “Promoting Ethnic Diversity in Zoos” (PEDZ) which offered summer
employment to at-risk, underserved youth between the ages of 13 and 18. Over the last decade, the initiative has
continued to grow, attracting local neighborhood youth and offering not only employment for the summer, but important
training in job skills, as well as positive role models. Since its inception, the zoo has served over 130 local youth with this
employment program. This program directly impacts youth from surrounding neighborhoods, providing a structured and
nurturing environment during the summer, a time when many juveniles are unsupervised and bored. In addition to summer
employment, the zoo encourages high school graduation and college attendance by providing college stipends to students
who continue to work at the zoo part-time while in school. Partnerships for this program include the Department of Youth
and Family Development, the Office of Multicultural Affairs, Hope for the Inner City, Upward Bound PRISM program, La

Paz, Urban League of Chattanooga, and the Boys and Girls Club of Chattanooga.

Other youth programs include Zoo Club, which is for 12-14 year olds to experience how the animal kingdom works and
experience these wonders of nature. Participants gain knowledge and experience in conservation work around the world.
Job shadows as well as senior projects are available for high school students to explore the work of the zoo and see what
our employees do on a daily basis, and do projects focused around the animals at the zoo.

High Performing Government

The partnership with Friends of the Zoo has provided the opportunity for exceptional resource management of the Zoo. All
buildings and land at the Chattanooga Zoo are the assets of the City of Chattanooga. FOZ performs all routine
maintenance to these buildings as well as any additional needed repairs/replacements. By eliminating the need for such
services as purchasing and personnel management costs for the Zoo by the City, the contractual agreement for FOZ to
operate the zoo has provided a far more efficient method of providing this important resource to the community. Not only
that, but the dollars appropriated by the City for the management by FOZ have been leveraged to create an operating
budget of over 2 million dollars for the Zoo, with only 35% of the funding provided by the City.

In addition to a good ROI on the operational investment by the City, Friends of the Zoo has raised capital funds to provide
the following improvements for the Zoo using approximately 90% private dollars, thus enhancing and increasing the value

of the City assets:

New roof on Zoo infirmary Addition of new water fountain

New HVAC unit in the Log cabin Addition of new Forests of the World building
Renovation of Prairie Dog exhibit Renovation of Cougar exhibit

Renovation of Warner Park Ranch Barn Permanent event tent space

Replaced HVAC Chimp building Renovated the rehabilitation center

Built fire proof closet in landscaping Refurbished bathrooms in Log Cabin

Added heat to front restrooms Installed radio repeater

Added HVAC on coyote building Added a necropsy room

Added additional walkway lighting Upgraded walkway lighting to LED (still in progress)
Upgraded irrigation throughout the zoo Added HVAC to several areas in education building

Stronger Neighborhoods

The improvements made to the zoo and to Warner Park as a whole in the past years has allowed for a more attractive
neighborhood destination. The zoo has assisted in the growth of the surrounding area by spurring further development of
the area and increasing both the areas value and citizen’s feeling of safety and security while in this area of the City. In
addition, the zoo's diversity employment program (PEDZ) also assists in reducing juvenile crime.

Growing Economy

One of the most important areas of the economy that the zoo has impacted is /in the creation of jobs. After completing a
strategic plan in 2011 with the consulting firm Schultz and Williams (a nationally recognized firm) several goals were
created. One of these was to increase the internal infrastructure of Friends of the Zoo, particularly in upper level
management. Since 2011 several key leadership positions have been added, as well as additional animal staff to care for
the zoo's growing animal collection. Five key leadership positions were added between 2011 and 2013. These included
Director of Animal Programs, Director of Marketing and Communications, Chief Operating Officer, Director of HR, and
Business Manager. When the contract was signed in 2010, there were 9 positions at the Chattanooga Zoo working under

Chattanooga Zoo 2
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the City of Chattanooga. At that time, FOZ had 33 employees. After signing the contract, all employees became FOZ
employees. As of January 1, 2014 FOZ has 35 full time employees, 16 part time and approximately 28 seasonal, totaling 79
employees. It is important to note that many employees that work at the zoo have been hired from other zoos across the
country, attracting new individuals and families to our community. Beyond this, the zoo also contributes to the city’s quality
of life, which augments the efforts to attract new businesses.

General Partnerships

Some zoo partners include Department of Therapeutic Recreation, Department of General Services, Department of Youth
and Family Development, the Office of Multicultural Affairs, UTC, La Paz, AIM Center, Hamilton County Schools, Unum, Girls
Leadership Academy, BlueCross BlueShield, Coca-Cola, Suntrust Bank, First Tennessee Bank, EPB, Ronald McDonald House,
Room at the Inn, etc.

FY 2015 Appropriation Increase

The requested increase for FY 2015 would cover the increases in utility costs and building maintenance associated with
running and maintaining zoo buildings, which are city assets. This includes the additional costs of maintaining two new
building exhibits at the Zoo, which are two new city assets. As the zoo buildings age, maintenance needs and costs
increase leading to greater expenses related to maintaining these city assets (see list under High Performing Government
for more details).

Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts:

1. Smarter Students & Stronger Families: More kids graduating high school college and career ready; Fewer kids dropping
out of school

2. High Performing Government: Providing outstanding customer focused services and exceptional resource management
3. Growing Economy: Increase Employment

BUDGET REQUEST

Summary: (Please complete based on information contained in Attachment F)

Personnel Costs FTEs
Offer Name (including Benefits) Operating Costs Total Request required
Chattanooga Zoo
Contract Appropriation *N/A $2,161,510 $750,000 *N/A
Capital Budget Impact? Yes X No $Amount

*Services covered under contract agreement between the City of Chattanooga and Friends of the Zoo, Inc.

Financial Offsets: (Please list other revenues associated with the specific program for which funding is requested)

Name Amount
Earned Revenue $1,286,910
Other Sources $124,600
City of Chattanooga Appropriation $750,000

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1:

Chattanooga Zoo 3
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Number of school children field trips.

Increase the number of school children visiting the Chattanooga Zoo by, as well as the number of educational outreach
program participants by 20%. Current number of school field trip participants visiting in 2013 was 15,256.

2014 goal- 18,307 School Field Trip Participants
11,484 Off-Site Participants

Historical Comparison Data?

2013*- 15,256 School Field Trip Participants
9,570 Off-Site Participants

2012*- 12,774 School Field Trip Participants
9,234 Off-Site Participants

2011*- 12,859 School Field Trip Participants
5,360 Off-Site Participants

Measurement 2:

Attendance

Increase both the number of residents and tourists visiting the Chattanooga Zoo by 20%. Number of visitors in 2013 total
149,373 of which 60% percent were local residents, while 40% percent were outside of the Zoo’s local area.

2014 goal: 179,247

Historical Comparison Data?
2013 Attendance*- 149,373
2012 Attendance*- 150,095
2011 Attendance*- 175,724

Measurement 3:

Earned Revenue
Increase earned revenue by 7% for 2014. Increasing earned revenue builds the zoo’s future sustainability. Projected

earned revenue goal for 2014 is $1,402,960 (63% of total budget).
Historical Comparison Data?

2013 Earned Revenue* — $1,305,326.64 (64% of total budget)
2012 Earned Revenue* — $1,225,067.71 (67% of total budget)
2011 Earned Revenue* — $1,038,342.63 (62% of total budget)

*Please note that 2011, 2012, 2013, and 2014 are all based on calendar year budgets. As of July 1, 2014 the zoo will be
adjusting to a July 1 fiscal year.

Return on Investment:

Chattanooga Zoo 4
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How do citizens benefit? The citizens of the City of Chattanooga benefit from having the zoo to provide
enhanced education, recreation, and conservation opportunities in their local community. The zoo has long
been a destination for local families to spend quality time together, and to learn about nature and what they
can do to conserve the wild places and creatures all around the world. For many citizens, the Chattanooga
Zoo is the only place they will ever encounter an endangered jaguar, or snow leopard.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? The Chattanooga Zoo leverages donations made
from a plethora of sources, as well as earned revenue from admissions, sales, education programs, etc. The
$750,000 contribution that the City of Chattanooga makes is leveraged to sustain a budget of over $2 million.

How does this activity decrease costs over time for the City? By continuing to support the operations of
the Chattanooga Zoo through an annual appropriation, the city continues to save funds that were once used
to fund the entirety of the zoo’s operation. Though the zoo’s budget has increased over the years, the
percentage funded by the City of Chattanooga has stayed constant.

How can this program become sustainable without City funding? N/A- Contracted Service (See above)

Chattanooga Zoo 5
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OFFERSUMMARY

Offer Name: FAFSA

Department
Offer Number: 4 Offer Rank: 4
Lead
Department:  Youth and Family Development Collaboration: 'y N_ X

Administrator:  Lurone Jennings

Offer Cost:  $35,000 PrimaryResults Area: Smarter Studenttss, Stronger Families

RESULTS AREA

1. Safer Streets —Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate pathways.

2. Growing Economy — Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods — Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid rehousing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families — Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government —Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund —Something different — processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS

Description:(What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage?
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)

This program will increase college participation in two ways. First, there will be an increased number of seniors who fill out
the FAFSA forms. Every YFD center will provide two FAFSA nights. During that night, information about the FAFSA will be
provided, 20 laptops will be used to enable multiple access points for the enrollees, and assistance in filling out the
application will be provided. The Southern Appalachian Education Opportunities Center, a federally funded program that
provides free FAFSA assistance, will provide the materials and conduct the sessions. We will provide food and snacks
during the meeting in order to promote the participation. For some, applying for the FAFSA is a roadblock.Most grants,
scholarships, and tuition waivers require the FAFSA before they will even consider an applicant. Therefore, this is essential
in the first steps of pursuing a college education.

The second part of the program will be college application fee stipends. This will enable students to overcome the
roadblock of monetary issues when applying for college. Many students apply for only 1 college, or may not apply at all,
due to the application fees. By providing assistance, we will encourage students to apply to several colleges which will
increase the likelihood they will be accepted.

This program is about promoting college and ensuring all students have an opportunity to pursue their dreams.

Youth & Family Development 1
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Identify Which Desired Outcomes fromom Request for Offer(s) ththis Offer Impacts:

1. Smarter Students, Stronger Families — Improving the access and reducing the roadblocks in applying to colleges will
generate more college bound students. This will improve the focus on attending college for all students.

2. Growing Economy — Increasing the number of college graduates will improve our workforce, thus drawing in more
businesses.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods — Providing programs at the local YFD centers strengthens the communities.

BUDGET REQUEST

Summary:(Please complete basedd on Dept. Operatinhetail and Dept.PersonneeDetail Forms)

Personnel Cost % of FTEs
Department (including Benefits) Operations Request offer required
Youth and Family
Development $0.00 $35,000.00 | $35,000.00 100% 0
0%
Total S 0.00 S 35,000.00 | $ 35,000.00 100% 0

*Amounts MUST agree with collabora r t ating Department totals for this offer

Capital Budget Impact? Yes X No $Amount
*Please prepare and attach Capital Bu B udget Request
Form

Financial Offsets:(Please list any Revenue e.g. golf course revenue, Grants, Private/Corporate Contributions, Etc.)
Name Amount
Private Donor $10,000

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1:Number of students applying for FAFSA

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target
170

Measurement 2:Number of students applying for college

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target
170

Measurement 3:Participation of the programs

Youth & Family Development 2
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FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target

340 students

Return on Investment:

How do citizens benefit? Students will have less roadblocks in their access to college, thus increasing the
number of students that apply and attend college.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? This program will work with the Southern Appalachian
Education Opportunities Center. The center is federally funded and provides free college counseling to
students. We will collaborate in using our centers as hubs in applying to college.

How does this decrease costs over time? The computers are a one time purchase.

Youth & Family Development 3
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OFFER SUMMARY

Offer Name:  Youth eVentures Development Camp

Department
Offer Number: g Offer Rank: 8
Lead
Department:  Youth & Family Development Collaboration: 'y __ x N
Administrator: Lurone Jennings
Offer Cost:  $50,000 Primary Results Area: Smarter Studenttss, Stronger Families

RESULTS AREA

1. Safer Streets — Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways.

2. Growing Economy — Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods — Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid rehousing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families — Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government — Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund — Something different — processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage?
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)

Entrepreneurs drive America's economy, accounting for the majority of our nation's new job creation
and innovations. According to the U. S. Census Bureau's 2002 Survey of Business Owners, self-
employed individuals who have no paid employees operate three-fourths of U.S. businesses. The U.
S. Small Business Administration reports that America's 25.8 million small businesses employ more
than 50 percent of the private workforce, generate more than half of the nation's gross domestic
product, and are the principal source of new jobs in the U.S. economy.

The eVentures Developmental Camp is a city departmental partnership between Youth & Family
Development and Office of Economic & Community Development. The program begins with a one
week camp for 16-18 year olds in low to-moderate-income communities and was created to develop
a financial mindset to help with basic money management skills, entrepreneurship principles and
strategies to start their own online venture which youth will build as a course project. The Young
Owners will receive coaching, mentorship and small business education for 12 months. As a city, we
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must create the leaders for the next generation to continue the work that has been started.

Project Goals
e Recruit and train 25 students for the camp

Use camp to make an impact in the City and create a sustainable model for future initiatives

Promote an essay contest to identify student candidates

Track and engage with students success and support them for 12 months

Apply effective written and oral communication skills to business and life situations

Analyze the social business environment

Develop youth to become investor/owners versus consumers

Train youth to use critical thinking skills in business and personal situations

Train youth to understand money basics and begin developing a relationship with money

Provide mentoring and identify key mentors

Identify skills, gifts and talents to connect to opportunities for growth

¢ Identify opportunities in their own backyard

¢ Promote outside-of-the-box thinking

e Provide access to technology and share technology-based resources that can assist the
participants achieve their goals, work smarter and have access

e Provide expose to opportunities they normally wouldn’t see

In the midst of a rapidly changing economy it's evident that we can’t keep using methods that worked
in the past. The need for professional, as well as, key life skills that are not taught in the
schools are essential to help young adults succeed. It is important to create opportunities
that increase the odds for young adults to have the life they envision or desire. These
opportunities include, but are not limited to, increased business knowledge, confidence,
leadership skills, and presentation skills. This initiative also promotes an awareness and
understanding of planning and goal setting. Additionally, it provides an opportunity for the
students to earn additional income, as well as, other incentives that will help their ventures
become successful.

Summer eVenture Developmental Camp
26 Students (13 Boys/13 Girls)
Ages 16-18

The model for the eVentures Development Camp launched a pilot in 2012 that received rave reviews
and experienced great success. Sponsored by a local Atlanta Bank the camp was a success and the
students from the pilot are still connected and being mentored. The students that have participated
stay engaged because the program taps into the existing resources they are already using to
communicate such as social media and other web based tools. Due to the fact that the Youth &
Family Development’'s Chattanooga Ambassadors Program (CAP) will provide computers and
internet access to the students, we can provide this opportunity and demonstrate to students how to
turn their computer into a potential revenue source for themselves and their families.

The Chattanooga eVenture Developmental Camp partnership will address and impact Smarter
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Students, Stronger Families, and a Growing Economy in Chattanooga, TN. The program will launch
with a one week camp for both boys and girls. The week-long camp will be held Monday through
Friday 9:00 a.m. — 6:00 p.m. Each camp will be broken down into small groups of five (5) each to
create synergy, support and collaboration opportunities. After the camp, students will receive 12
months of technical, business, and online support.

Each week following the camp, students will be able to participate in:

e Group calls to eVenture
Facebook Private Group discussions
e Webinars

e Each student will be assigned a mentor to help them develop the necessary skills to be a
successful entrepreneur.

e Each student will have an opportunity to pitch their business to help develop communication
skills.

e Each student will have an opportunity to raise money for their business giving community
service hours.

e Each month, a live 2 hour session through the eVentures Incubator Center to answer
questions, teach and motivate participants.

e The partnership will have weekly office hours where the students can connect to receive
personal support and resources.

e The team will share stories of entrepreneurial success from the participants’ peers. We will
introduce guest speakers, as well as, video interviews of people they can relate to that have
succeeded in business and come from similar backgrounds and circumstances.

e Students will learn to use technology to achieve financial goals.
e The program will instill money-management tools that work in all aspects of their lives.

Benefits of Entrepreneurship

Entrepreneurship is an employment strategy that can lead to economic self-sufficiency for people
with disabilities. Self-employment provides people with disabilities and their families with the
potential to create and manage businesses in which they function as the employer or boss, rather
than merely being an employee. Oftentimes, people with disabilities are eligible and receive
supplemental supports (technical and financial) which can serve as a safety net that may decrease
the risk involved with pursuing self-employment opportunities.

Nearly 80 percent of would-be entrepreneurs in the United States are between the ages of 18 and
34! A 2005 poll from Junior Achievement (JA) found that 68.6 percent of the teenagers interviewed
wanted to become entrepreneurs, even though they knew that it would not be an easy path. In spite
of this overwhelming interest, however, youth rarely receive any information about entrepreneurship
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as a career option.

Entrepreneurship education offers a solution. It seeks to prepare people, particularly youth, to be
responsible, enterprising individuals who become entrepreneurs or entrepreneurial thinkers by
immersing them in real life learning experiences where they can take risks, manage the results, and
learn from the outcomes.

Advantages of Entrepreneurship Education

Through entrepreneurship education, young people, including those with disabilities, learn
organizational skills, including time management, leadership development and interpersonal skills,
all of which are highly transferable skills sought by employers. According to Logic Models and
Outcomes for Youth Entrepreneurship Programs (2001), a report by the D.C. Children and Youth
Investment Corporation, other positive outcomes include: improved academic performance, school
attendance; and educational attainment. The eVentures Development Program promotes:

Increased problem-solving and decision-making abilities

Improved interpersonal relationships, teamwork, money management, and public speaking skills
Job readiness

Enhanced social psychological development (self-esteem, ego development, self-efficacy), and
Perceived improved health status

Ongoing research commissioned by the National Foundation for Teaching Entrepreneurship
(NFTE) to evaluate the effectiveness and impact of its programs found that when youth participated
in entrepreneurship programs:

Interest in attending college increased 32 percent

Occupational aspirations increased 44 percent

Independent reading increased 4 percent

Leadership behavior increased 8.5 percent

Belief that attaining one's goals is within one's control (locus of control) increased, and
alumni (99 percent) recommended NFTE programs

Benefits of Entrepreneurship Education
Research regarding the impact of entrepreneurship education on youth with disabilities shows the
following benefits:

Opportunity for Work Based Experiences

o Work experiences for youth with disabilities during high school, both paid and unpaid, help
them acquire jobs at higher wages after they graduate. Also, students who participate in
occupational education and special education in integrated settings are more likely to be
competitively employed than students who have not participated in such activities.

Opportunity to Exercise Leadership and Develop Interpersonal Skills

o By launching a small business or school-based enterprise, youth with disabilities can lead and
experience different roles. In addition, they learn to communicate their ideas and influence
others effectively through the development of self-advocacy and conflict resolution skills.
Moreover, they learn how to become team players, and to engage in problem solving and
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critical thinking -- skills valued highly by employers in the competitive workplace of the
21°%' Century. Mentors, including peer mentors both with and without disabilities, can assist the
youth in developing these competencies.

e Opportunity to Develop Planning, Financial Literacy, and Money Management Skills
o The ability to set goals and to manage time, money and other resources are important
entrepreneurship skills which are useful in any workplace.

Other potential benefits of the Chattanooga eVenture Development Camp program include:

* How to structure a business plan

+ Start a Business for $0

+ Creating Financial Statements

* Mastering Marketing Plans

+ Understanding every component of your business and business plan

Developing a marketing plan is one of the most important things anyone can do to ensure that
business will make a profit. Students will learn the importance of:

» Market research and analysis

* Product development & Pricing

+ Advertising

» Promotions and campaigns

* Publicity, sales and customer service

* Create a mindset for success — eliminate poverty mindsets

* Remove barriers from past and/or present life that interfere with living the best life now
+ Gain clarity on what’s next and balance when things get crazy

* Reverse feelings of discouragement, disillusion or fear of arriving at the wrong location
* Experience peace of mind in your thought life

Identify Which Desired Outcomes fromom Request for Offer(s) thais Offer Impacts:

1. Youth develop financial literacy and presentation skills
2. Youth are exposed to entrepreneurship opportunities and develop small businesses, leading to a growing economy
3. Youth have opportunities to learn, grow smarter and have an environment for innovation
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BUDGET REQUEST

Summary: (Please complete baseded on Dept. OperatinBetail and Dept. PersonnnnBletail Forms)

Personnel Cost % of FTEs
Department (including Benefits) Operations Request offer required
Youth & Family
Development 0 50,000 $50,000.00 100% 0
Economic &
Community
Development 0 0 0 0% 0
Total S 0 S 50,000 $50,000.00 100% 0

*Amounts MUST agree with collabora r t ating Department totals for this offer

Capital Budget Impact? Yes xNo $Amount
*Please prepare and attach Capital Bu B udget Request Form

Financial Offsets: (Please list any Revenue e.g. golf course revenue, Grants, Private/Corporate Contributions, Etc.)
Name Amount

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1: Participants/Attendance

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target
26
Measurement 2: Number of Programs/Events
FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target
50
Measurement 3: Revenues
FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target
12,000

Return on Investment:

How do citizens benefit? The eVentures Development Summer Camp provides a platform to train future small
business owners. Small business is the key to improving and restoring local economies and creating job

growth. An opportunity for Chattanooga’s youth to participate in this initiative encourages bright
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entrepreneurs to stay in the city and contribute to a growing economy. Many of the youth trained in the
initiative may also consider starting businesses and serving communities where they live. eVentures also
creates a platform to create an informed populous to move youth and their families beyond simple
consumerism and toward job development and upward mobility. Anytime businesses are developed, cities
such as Chattanooga benefit from the revenue generated from taxes.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? The City of Chattanooga Office of Economic &
Community Development will recruit mentors and volunteers from the business community to provide
technical support and workshops after the initial training. The Youth & Family Development Department will
provide venues for training and tinkering with ideas and start-up ventures. OECD, YFD staff, and CAP
participants will be involved as participants, mentors, and provide other resources for the success and
sustainability of this initiative. Other financial resources will be leveraged over time through sustainability
efforts. Proposals for grant sources, fundraisers, donations, and scholarships will be part of the sustainability
plan.

How does this decrease costs over time? The design of the initial eVentures program will include a model to
“Train the Trainer”. Training the Trainer will involve a half-day session to train up to ten local leaders on the
process of teaching youth business models and provide the tools necessary to create small businesses and
micro-enterprises. Leaders for this effort will be identified from city departments, local nonprofits, business
and community leaders. Once a template has been established, the cost for the program will decrease and
additional youth can be trained in future years.
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OFFER SUMMARY

Offer Name:  Community Education and Recreation

Department
Offer Number:  One (1) Offer Rank: 1
Lead
Department:  Youth and Family Development Collaboration: 'y N_ X
Administrator: Lurone Jennings
Offer Cost: 5 ,347,667.00 Primary Results Area: Smarter Studenttss, Stronger Families

RESULTS AREA

1. Safer Streets —Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate pathways.

2. Growing Economy — Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods — Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid rehousing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families — Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government —Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund —Something different — processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS

Description :( What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice
does this leverage? What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for
your offer.)

Communities are concerned about gang activity, risk-taking behavior of youth, single parent households, drugs
and alcohol abuse. In the midst of vast changes in our communities and the need for regenerating our society
because of the economic issues and violence that our citizens are facing, it is important that we have
recreational opportunities in place for personal needs, social interaction, creativity and inspiration. Access to
recreation opportunities that are not only fun but also educational has been strongly linked to reductions in
crime and to reduced delinquency.

Participation in recreational activities boosts positive energies, and encourages a positive temperament. YFD
Community Centers provide gathering places for families and social groups, as well as for individuals of all ages
and economic status, regardless of their ability to pay for access.

Devoting some time for recreation on a daily basis helps in the long run in maintaining health and achieving a
piece of mind. Research has shown that recreation on a daily basis reduces risks of diabetes and
hypertension, enhances physical and mental health and improves the quality of life.

Youth & Family Development 1
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In 2013 820,878 citizens of all ages participated in one or more of our 98 Recreation andEducation
Programs and 26 Special Events scheduled at our 17 YFD Community Centers Monday through Saturday.
14 of the YFD Community Centers operating hours were Monday through Friday from 11:30 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.
and 10:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m. on Saturdays. Brainerd, Hixson and South Chattanooga Community Center
Complexes operating hours were Monday through Friday from 9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and Saturday from 10:00
a.m. to 6:30 p.m.

During the summer months June and July centers (4) who didn't participate in Kidz Kamp Program operating
hours were Monday through Friday 10:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m. and Saturday from 10:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m. 11 of
the YFD Community Centers who participated in Kidz Kamp Program operating hours were Monday through
Friday 8:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m. and Saturday from 10:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m. The 3 YFD Community Center
Complexes (Brainerd, Hixson & South Chattanooga) operating hours were Monday through Friday 8:00 a.m. to
8:00 p.m. and Saturday’s from 10:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m.

2013 Summer Programs: 441 Teens boys and girls ages 13 to 18 years old835 Participants 12 and under

Kidz Kamp had 835 participants’ between theages 6 to 12 Kidz Kamp Programwas created 15 years ago to
assist families who couldn't afford child care or the fees to send the children to summer camps. Kidz Kamp
was scheduled at 11 of YFD Community Centers. Operating hours were 8:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. Monday
through Friday. However, most of the parents drop their kids off at 7:30 a.m. and pay a small fee of $5.00.

Kidz Kamp is a fee base program. However, parents who couldn't afford to pay the $280 for their children
could apply for scholarships that reduce the fee from $280 to $40 per-child. 207 families registered their
children for a total of 835 participants. Most of the families had an average of 3 to 4 children or more
between the ages of 6 to 12 years old. 714 of the 835 childrenreceived scholarships that reduced their fee
from $280 per-child to $40 per-child. We had 121 children whose parent or guardian didn't apply or qualify for
scholarships.

Parents who didn't receive a reduce rate never complain. They were truly grateful that they didn't have to
worry about leaving their children at home unsupervised or pay for their children to attend a camp that
charged from $75 to $100 per-week. We awarded 714 scholarships for a total of $171,360. Fees collected
for 121 childremwho pay $280nas $33,800 and fees for the 714 who paid $40was $28,560 . Total fees
collected for 2013 Kidz Kamp was $62,360.

Teen Centers: Theme “"AOK"” Acts of Kindness: 225 Participants ages 13 to 18 years old6 Week
Program.

4 YFD Community Centers and 1 CHA Housing Development were identified as Teen Centers; Cromwell Hills,
Carver, Hixson, Washington Hills and South Chattanooga. Programs were scheduled on Thursday, Friday and
Saturday nights from 6:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. Programs were selected by the teens; Music, Fashion Boot
Camp, Theater/Spoken Word, Arts & Crafts, My NBA 2K League, and Film. Participants performed at the YFD
CARE Awards.

Youth & Family Development 2
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“Late Night Hoops"” Basketball League for Boys and girls ages 14 to 18 years old.
20 Teams and 216 Participants.

Games were scheduled at Howard High School starting at 6:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m. on Thursday, Friday and
Saturday nights. Average 400 to 500 spectators (teens, family members, and friends) each night.
Tournament was schedule the last week of the program.

“Stars of Chattanooga”:12 Participants who wrote their own songs and produce a CD. The program
consisted of a talent showcase that teens and young adults auditions for one of the twelve spots. During the
summer artist were scheduled at Riverbend, Bessie Smith Strut and 11 community events throughout the City.

“Next In Line” Internship Program: 30 Participants ages 13 to 15 years old. Participants participated
were assigned to 15 of our YFD Community Centers. We provided them with an opportunity to shadow center
staff and gain on the job experience. Teens also learned resume building, how to conduct an interview, work
place etiquette and volunteer to work on community service projects. When participants completed the 6
week program they received a $300 stipend

Administration and YFD Community Center Employees;Director is responsible for providing leadership,
policies and procedures, fiscal management of FY budget, communications and helping to generate program
and staff development. Community Education and Recreation is dedicated to enhancing the quality of life of for
all citizens who live, work and play in our communities by providing “Life Long Learning” opportunities.
Families will be given opportunities and experiences that enable them to become self-sufficient and nurturing
parents. To ensure they have these opportunities and experiences YFD Centers will provide community-based
programs designed to provide families with support resources, literacy and career development, exposed to job
training, job referrals, and strengthen relationships with children by participating in activities and community
projects.

Develop youth programs that will; improve academic performance and job readiness skills, gain exposure to
Career Development, have access to technology and tools to become self-sufficient and successful, increase
positive social outlets and activities, decrease the likelihood of dropping out of high school and increase the
likelihood of graduating high school.YFD Centers and specialized program facilities (Eastgate Senior Center,
Heritage House, North River Civic Center, and Skate Park) will create programs and special events that
provide;

Social Benefits; Involvement (responsibility, community pride & participation, and stimulate volunteerism),
Safe Places (positive diversions & gatherings, caring & accessible and security), Strong Communities;
(neighborhood sustainability, celebrate richness of diversity), and increase cultural identity and unity), and
Partnerships (strengthen existing bonds, leverage resources and common purpose).

Personal Benefits, Fun (play & imagination, creativity & innovation and self-expression & spontaneity),
Wellness (balance life style and fitness & ethnic and wellness), Learning (experience something new, develops
life & job skills and enhances cultural understanding & tolerance), Connections; positive role models, foster
relationships & inclusion and create memories).

Youth & Family Development 3
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Smarter Students, Stronger Families and Safer Streets
Stronger families make strong communities, where the hope of our children’s future begins. The benefits that
communities receive when work together to develop Smarter Students, and Stronger Families are:

Safer Streets (Results Area 1)

Reduce in crime and delinquency

Connects families to start the process to rebuild “broken homes”
Enhances ethnic and cultural understanding, harmony and tolerance
Provides outlets for conflict resolution

Creates caring adults (volunteers and mentors)

Builds lifelines for elderly

Community Pride (enhances property values)

Reduce vandalism (business retention)

Self-supporting programs (businesses become “stake holder”)

Publication Information (Promotiioon & Marking of Programs and Services Providided by YFD) YFD
strives to proactively communicate whahat matters most for all ages of Chattanooga in an effffort to support
smarter students, stronger families, comommunity partnerships and positive community heal Itth h. Public inform
through advertisement and marketing g i is a critical asset in reaching such a large and diversse audience that
promotes and justifies opportunities annd vision in YFD’s 5 Areas of Focus; Education, Leaddeership, Career

Development, Recreation, and Social S eServices. YFD’s rebranding and marketing goal is to iinncrease communi

and partner awareness through dissemmination of printed materials from our numerous facciilities, staff and
community partners, provide proactive e radio, print and billboard advertisement and utilizee e email marketing
social media presence, creating a posititive ROI and allowing for a multitude of target audieennces. YFD will
continue to utilize nonprofit rates offerered in an effort to keep cost down. A broad marketiinng plan will provide
the public and supporting agencies a g egeneral overview of our areas of focus, along with ciittywide programs,
events, and YFD's efforts to engage alll | ages. This includes new brochures, signage, and mmarketing through
multiple advertisement sources.

As rebranding takes shape, new platforms will be designed to capture interest, better ways to communicate,
ad value, and media coverage. This includes a new website landing page and restructured placement of
information, which follows in line with our 5 Areas of Focus. This office plans to capture information through
RecTrac registration service at our centers and facilities, and online sign up and registration tools. While a
large survey was conducted recently by the Regional Planning Agency, which provided valuable communication
information, a new analysis may help us identify our strengths, weaknesses and opportunities even further,
again utilizing services such as RecTrac and surveys. Our social media presence is strong, however, the ever-
changing algorithms and requirements will require us to keep up with trends to best utilize this beneficial and
free service. In some cases, due to new rules, a small amount of funding may be used to promote certain post
on our Facebook page.

Eastgate Senior Activity Center is an entity of the City of Chattanooga Department of Youth and Family
Development that provides a holistic service to our elder population. The variety of programs that we offer are
developed and provided by staff, as well as dedicated volunteers that engage our seniors in classes, such as
traditional exercise/health related classes, dance, computer, arts and crafts, as well as educational seminars,
that are specifically geared toward the interests of our senior community in Chattanooga. Our goal is to
recruit, support and educate this often underserved population by offering a place where they can interact with
others with similar/generational interest. By developing quality programs and activities we are ensured a

ation

growing and thriving population that reached over 45,000 in 2013.

Youth & Family Development 4
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Heritage House Arts & Civic Center is a unique multi use facility. It is the only space of its kind east of
downtown. The facility is a moderately sized and priced venue available to residents to use for community
events and celebrations (anniversaries, weddings, showers, birthdays, family reunions, pastor appreciations,
funerals, graduations, services, festivals, holiday markets etc.) as well as business training, conferences and
retreats, public meetings and forums for neighborhood associations and other civic groups. The facility also
hosts training and retreats for other city departments and for inter-city / county seminars. Our focus is unity in
the Community. Heritage House co-hosts two very large community festivals with attendees numbering 6-8
thousand for each and a local diversity event with 5-700 attendees annually. These festivals focus on a strong
unified community and families, and are a celebration of both. The facility also hosts a community Board, free
concerts, free networking and training events, a free film series, an arts collective, exercise classes and arts
classes. Heritage House is working with the General Services department in order to make many more classes
feasible in the next year at little or no additional cost to the city. This coming year, Heritage House is
developing an adult literacy and reading English as a second language center. Because of our unique look,
location and layout, Heritage House will be a less daunting and more “grown up” and comfortable location for
adults and immigrants to attend reading courses. Our staff is also developing a special program with a national
leading authority, to teach young adults life skills that will help them adapt and interact comfortably in
unfamiliar communities whether the difference is cultural or demographic.

The North River Civic Center has been serving the North River area since the grand opening in February
2004. The center features educational, recreational and fitness programs for adults and seniors. The facility
also serves as an art and entertainment venue, and meeting place for business and community organizations.
An average of 2,000 visitors and program participants come through our doors monthly.

How will it be provided?: Programs/Special Events include free concerts, visual arts exhibitions, bingo,
bridge clubs, car shows, card games, cooking classes, knitting, life drawing, line dancing, low impact aerobics,
rug hooking, tap dance, computer literacy for seniors and special events such as health fairs.

What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage? Friends of the NRCC is a not-for-profit
501©(3) organization established to act as an advisory panel to support the center in promotion, programs,
publicity (printing for NRCC Program Booklet for Sunset Concert Series (free to the public) & seasonal
programs/events), volunteer staffing and fundraising. Facility rental fees (community organizations and
citizens) and rental fees. We presently have twenty-one sponsors; Alexian Brothers Senior Ministries, Care
Assist, Life Care, Memorial Hospital, Morning Pointe, Queen Financial, Chamber of Commerce, Hixson Council,
Brightstar, Grace Clinic, Kiwanis, Rehab South, MedTech Enterprises, American Legion 159, Custom Custodial,
Friends of Hixson, Gas Appliance, State Farm, County Commissioners and private citizens.

What difference does this offer make and how will we know?

By popular demand, we strive to provide the community with requested programs for senior including
computer literacy, beginning painting and drawing, free health and wellness seminars and cultural arts
activities. Our programs are affordable and monitored by attendance and customer satisfaction.

Identify Which Desired Outcomes from Request for Offer(s) that this Offer Impmpaacts

Stronger Students and Stronger Families

YFD Centers are seen as a resource for families and youth to connect to services
Provide opportunities to give youth a “voice” on decisions that impact their lives
Provide literacy program that improve students’ academic performance

Provide Culture Arts Programs that youth and adults can express themselves
Provide new platforms to promote and market YFD Programs and Services

Youth & Family Development 5
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1. Healthy and active seniors.

2. A vital senior community that allows seniors to interact with others their own age.
3. A well informed and educated senior community.

1. Increase Reading Proficiency for children and adults

2. More parental involvement

3. Provides all of the last four budget strategies engaging volunteers/ civic participation, multi-generational
programming, access to technology, public safety classes.

1. Expand our cultural arts programs and special events that acknowledge our diverse visual arts
community.2. Provide an intensive art program focusing on the development of the artistic talents of
our seniors.3. Provide opportunities for seniors and adults to volunteer in community service projects
and youth literacy programs at our YFD Centers.

BUDGET REQUEST

Personnel Cost FTEs
(including % of | require
Department Benefits) Operations Request offer d
Youth and Family
Development 4,183,625 1,164,042 5,347,667 100% 69.5
0%
Total 4,183,625 1,164,042 5,347,667 100% 69.5

*Amounts MUST agree with collab lla borating Department totals for this offer

Capital Budget Impact? Xx Yes No $7,200,000 Amount
*Please prepare and attach Capita it al Budget Request Form

Financial Offsets :( Please /ist any Revenue e.g. golf course revenue, Grants, Private/Corporate
Contributions, Etc.)

Name Amount
Southeast Tennessee Area Agency on Aging & $44,016
Disability

Arts Build/Allied Arts $2,500
Aerobic & Tap Dance Classes $1,286.75
Rentals 26,000
Class fees 500.00
Revenues/Rental and Program Fees 10,000 approx.
Corporate Sponsors/Friends of the North River Civic | $25,000
Center

Grant/Arts Build $1425

Youth & Family Development 6
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PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 3:Participant Attendance
FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target
70,000 approx. 75,000 approx. 80,000 approx. 85,000
Measurement 2:Number of Programs
FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target
1000 approx. 1000 approx. 1000 approx. 1500
Measurement 3:Revenues
FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target
100000 approx. 100000 approx. 100000 approx. 150000
Current information for the Lexia Program
Measurement 4: Lexia Beginning Data vs Current Data 9-13 vs 3-14
. % of Students % of Students .
Number of Active On Grade Level Below Grade Average Weekly Month-ly Units
Students Usage Gained
or Above Level
1221 28% 72% 39 min/wk 31,137
Beginning information of the Lexia Program
. % of Students % of Students .
Number of Active On Grade Level Below Grade Average Weekly Month-ly Units
Students Usage Gained
or Above Level
227 14% 86% 33 min/wk 5,767
Return on Investment:
How do citizens benefit?An investment in Chattanooga’s youth and families is an investment in our city’s
growth and prosperity. Developing smarter students is an investment in our future workforce and leadership
for local communities. An educated populous creates better outcomes for our schools and business community.
Statistics show that educating citizens reduces the strain on our courts systems and creates safer streets.
When the community has healthy, positive alternative programs for youth and families, young adults make
economic and social decisions to stay in a vibrant, progressive city with opportunities for everyone.
Participation in educational and recreational programs has an impact on creating safer streets, stronger
neighborhoods, provides revenue to sustain programs, and bonds families in lasting ways. These healthy
options for youth and their families to learn and thrive make for a sound investment through prevention and
action.
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Does this activity leverage other financial resources?

How does this decrease costs over time? Although YFD services focus on developing smarter students and
stronger families, the impact on safer streets and stronger neighborhoods cannot be overlooked. Increasing
the number of users and subsequent fees assessed for access, will decrease costs over time. Improving and
perfecting the delivery of services and meeting the desired outcomes will afford YFD to apply for other funding
sources over time, thereby decrease the cost of programs in the future.

Return on Investment:
How do citizens benefit? Seniors benefit from all programs, activities, and educational programs specifically
designed for them that help to foster a healthier more sustainable life style.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? At Present the STAAD grant helps to offset many
of the expenses that are incurred during the year.

How does this decrease costs over time? The return investment is a healthier more engaged senior
community that does not need to rely on the medical community to help sustain the individual. This means a
healthier, mind, body, and spirit that will not be susceptible to the ravages of aging, depression, and many
unhealthy choices that often plague the elderly community.

Return on Investment:

How do citizens benefit? Multi Use facility accessible for free or at moderate cost which offers
multigenerational use and programming that encourages a healthy active lifestyle and a unified community.
Access to technology which creates adult literacy in native English speakers and increases the naturalization
and success of immigrants. Both of which additionally assist in the success of children /students of participants.
Access to safety, art, music, film, acting, dance, exercise and other classes at a greatly discounted rate or for
free.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? Through rentals, class/ instructor fees,
sponsorships, interdepartmental/ county city events, equipment donations, county commission support.
Festival proceeds are traditionally donated to the city for a specific use, such as park benches, programming
and an off leash dog park.

How does this decrease costs over time?Fees and cash donations offset costs. An educated literate
community benefits the entire economy. A vibrant park, facility with active neighborhood associations and
activities increase the value of homes and businesses in the area which contribute to the tax base and
infrastructure. Once the elemental resources, computers, web access router etc. are purchased or donated,
they may be used for many years.

Return on Investment:

How do citizens benefit? Recreational, educational, community health programs, cultural and community
events are very beneficial to seniors and adults in the North Chattanooga area. The Civic Center strives to
continue providing lifelong learning; a better quality of life and means to an improved healthy lifestyle.
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Does this activity leverage other financial resources?

1. Twenty five percent (25%) of the program fees are retained by the city to offset expenses. Also, we
will include affordable registration entry fees for activities such as car shows & health fair vendors.
2. The Friends of the North River Civic Center board supports the center in promotion, programs,

publicity and volunteer staffing.
Facility Rental fees the center charges $60 per hour for special events plus damage deposit of $75 and

3
an affordable of $35-$50 is charges for meetings to offset the operating cost.

How does this decrease costs over time? Portions of the operating cost are covered by volunteer staffing;

programs sponsorships and grants.

Youth & Family Development
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OFFER SUMMARY

Offer Name:  Fire Explorer Program

Department
Offer Number: 7 Offer Rank: 70f7
Lead
Department:  Fire Department Collaboration: y N X
Administrator:  Fire Chief Lamar Flint
Offer Cost:  $6,810 Primary Results Area: Smarter Students & Stronger Families

RESULTS AREA

1. Safer Streets — Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate pathways.

2. Growing Economy — Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development, business
recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods — Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy residential
markets, and rapid rehousing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families — Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government — Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund — Something different — processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the way
government operates.

DETAILS

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage?
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)

Offer 7 — Fire Explorer Program

The following offer seeks to fund a program to provide youth in the City with an opportunity to join a group
dedicated to learning about the fire service and so much more. This venture partners the Chattanooga Fire
Department (CFD) with the Boy Scouts of America (BSA) in a program called “Chattanooga Fire Explorers.”
However, it is not just for boys, as “Exploring” provides a safe learning environment, where all students
between the ages of 14-20, can become responsible individuals by learning about diversity, positive character
traits, career development, and leadership and life skills. All of these help these youth make ethical choices
and achieve their full potential.

To elaborate, the young people that share in this opportunity, will be provided the following:
e Leadership Training — They will learn to make decisions that positively affect those around them, to
proactively impact their world for the better, and to find out what they are capable of accomplishing;
e Responsibility — They will learn how to answer for their actions, help and hold others accountable for
theirs, and learn what it means to help their team succeed in all activities and areas of life;
o Teamwork — They will learn that there is not one-person team, that each person is valuable and
unique, and that each member is vital to successfully achieving goals.

Fire 1
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Members of the CFD will voluntarily staff this monthly program to provide a stable and safe environment,
ensure activities are scheduled and safely performed, and most of all, to provide positive mentorship to the
program’s participants. There is no greater form of teaching character than mentorship, and that’s ultimately
what this program seeks to achieve for some youth that might not otherwise have access to it.

Fire Explorer Program — Attributes

e Explorers — Practical, real-world career experiences and insight; stimulated interest in continual
education; building of leadership, self-confidence and problem-solving skills; cooperative relationship
between adults and youth; and community service to others

o Employees — Increased realization that we are ALL responsible for molding today’s youth and
tomorrow’s leaders; greater job awareness; opportunity for greater community involvement;
enhanced communication, planning and program development skills; and increased initiative of
employees

e Department — Cultivation of possible future employees; impacting the education process of youth;
preparing young adults for transition from school to work; development of future responsible and
caring adults; improving staff teamwork toward common goals outside normal duties; and visible
commitment to the overall welfare of the community.

As one can see, this program provides external opportunities for youth development, opportunities for
employees to serve in a “big picture” way, as well as, opportunities for the department to have a positive and
proactive impact on the community.

Fire Explorer Program — Results Areas and Desired Outcomes
Primary — Smarter Students and Stronger Families
1) More kids graduating high school and college/career ready — Some young men and women don’t
have access to great role models or activities that can help them develop. This program seeks to
provide positive mentorship and activities toward the development of knowledge, skills and ability.
Budget Strategies Realized: Through a partnership with the BSA, this program seeks to target
youth with high quality activities, programming and interaction designed to help them develop
into becoming responsible adults.

Secondary - Sdfer Streets
1) Reduce juvenile crime — Some arson occurs at the hands of juveniles. This offer seeks to reduce
that amount by helping the community provide worthy involvement in a program that provides
mentorship and activities designed to develop Leadership, Responsibility and Teamwork
Budget Strategies Realized: Maintains safe and secure streets, facilities, and public spaces for
all citizens by providing an exciting venue for participation and mentorship.

Fire Explorer Program — Staffing

Summary — The program will be voluntarily staffed by members of the CFD, and therefore, there is no cost
for staffing toward the implementation of this program. There has already been an exciting, preliminary
response from CFD employees, who have shown interest in assisting with the program. In addition, BSA
representatives will be providing initial expertise and assistance as the program is implemented.
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Fire Explorer Program — Operating Expenses

This offer seeks to fund the Fire Explorer Program at an initial program cost of $6,810. While this is a new
venture to the department, there are several operating expenses associated with the program. These include
BSA program fees, uniforms and safety equipment for the students, learning literature pertinent to the fire
service, insurance to cover activities for the youth and adults, and smoke detectors for a program service
opportunity.

Since the program will target youth that might not be able to pay for the program’s uniform and equipment
needs, this offer seeks the program’s funding through the Budgeting For Outcomes process. These costs are
further broken down in Table 1: Fire Explorer Program Costs below.

Table 5: Fire Explorer Program Costs

Fire Explorer Program

Explorer Youth Costs
BSA Registration/Recharter Fee (annual) 522

Explorer T-Shirts (blue) S15
Explorer "BDU-style" Pants (blue) 825
Black Belt $15
Black Shoes or Boots $40
Work Gloves S12
Safety Glasses $10
Safety Helmet $20

Total Per Student| $159
Total for 30 Students| $4,770
Additional Program Costs
200 Smoke Detectors (@ $10 each) $2,000
Program Insurance (annual) $40

Fire Explorer Program Total $6,810

Fire Prevention Bureau — Overall Performance Metrics
- Number of Students — In establishing the Explorer Program, the number of students and hours of
involvement will be recorded monthly and reported on a quarterly basis
Current: N/A - Establishing New Program
Goal: Increase number of students involved in program as it progresses
Tabulation: Record meetings, activities and service hours monthly through sign-in sheets and
report quarterly
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Fire Administration — Mandates, Standards and Recommendations

- BSA Exploring Literature — brochures and program literature to provide guidance on establishment of
program

- BSA Cherokee Area Council Leadership — Philip Jones (Mountain District Senior District Executive)
and Ryan Ivey (Mission District Senior District Executive) — To provide leadership and guidance to
establish program and provide formal Council recognition of “Chattanooga Explorer Post”

- Walker County Emergency Services Explorer Post 2146 — By-laws and guidelines to assist in
establishment of program

Identify Which Desired Outcomes from Request for Offer(s) that this Offer Impacts:

*See each section above for more thorough information regarding each of the Desired Outcomes this offer
hopes to impact.

1. Smarter Students & Stronger Families — More kids graduating high school and college/career ready by
providing mentorship, and knowledge and skill development.

2. Safer Streets — Reduce juvenile crime by providing a safe venue for exciting activity, learning and service
opportunities.

BUDGET REQUEST

Summary: (Please complete based on Dept. Operating Detail and Dept. Personnel Detail Forms)

Personnel Cost % of FTEs
Department (including Benefits) Operations Request offer required
Fire — Fire Explorer Program N/A $6,810 $6,810 100% 0
Total N/A $6,810 $6,810 100% 0

*Amounts MUST agree with collaborating Department totals for this offer

Capital Budget Impact? Yes XNo $Amount
*Please prepare and attach Capital Budget Request Form

Financial Offsets: (Please list any Revenue e.g. golf course revenue, Grants, Private/Corporate Contributions, Etc.)
Name Amount
N/A N/A

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1: Number of Students — In establishing the Explorer Program, the number of students and
hours of involvement will be recorded monthly and reported on a quarterly basis

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target
N/A — New Program Establishing Baseline — 30 Students
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Return on Investment:

How do citizens benefit? This offer benefits citizens by providing mentorship and skill development to youth
in our City. This program will target male and female youth between the ages of 14-20, who might not
otherwise have access to this type of educational opportunity. In many communities, youth can struggle to
find mentors and activities that build character and opportunity. This program seeks to do that in a special
way. In partnership with the Boy Scouts of America, this program provides a safe, but exciting venue that
provides some knowledge and skill training, but more importantly provides an opportunity for the young man
or woman to develop character traits toward leadership, responsibility and teamwork.

Therefore, as this offer is funded, citizens can expect an exciting, alternative program for young men and
women that seek mentorship and help them prepare for a great future.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? N/A

How does this decrease costs over time? It doesn’t, as the staffing for the program is completely voluntary.
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OFFER SUMMARY

Offer Name:  Senior Recreation and Education Programs

Department
Offer Number:  seven (7) Offer Rank: 7
Lead
Department:  Youth & Family Development Collaboration: 'y N_X__

Administrator:  Lurone Jennings

Smarter Students, Stronger
Offer Cost: $60,016.20 Primary Results Area: Families

RESULTS AREA

1. Safer Streets — Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways.

2. Growing Economy — Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods — Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid rehousing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families — Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government — Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund — Something different — processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice
does this leverage? What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for
your offer.)

Senior Recreation and Education Programs goal is to provide life enrichment for all seniors 50 years of age and
over through opportunities that promote health, happiness and peace of mind in a safe, social and interactive
environment.

Seniors will have the opportunity to participate in wellness programs that offer a variety of health benefits as
well as educational and information resources for seniors in all demographics. Guiding behaviors, habits and
lifestyle enhances quality of life for many seniors, and offers ideas and tips on how to live longer, healthier
lives. The focus of senior health or wellness programs is to educate seniors on how best to manage their
health and activity levels for optimal function and performance.

Home Safety Seminars will include but are not limited to fire safety, creating a safe, fall proof living
environment, and availability to home improvement options like safety grab bars in bathrooms and non-skid
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rugs in the kitchens, hallways and bathrooms leads to reduced falls and injuries in the home.

Educational Programs that encourage the independence of seniors helps them maintain a richer
personal life and ability to remain in their homes longer. Regular exercise and fitness is encouraged to help
seniors maintain and improve mobility, range of motion, balance, stability and strength and endurance, leading
to greater ability to function on a daily basis without help.

Bridging the Gap Between Youth and Seniors; provide opportunities for seniors and youth to work
together for a “Strong Future” for both generations. Youth has energy and that needs to be channelizing into
positive force for welfare and betterment of our seniors. Research suggests that youthful energy may not be
“wasted” after all. Through social interactions alone, the young can pass some of their vigor on to the senior
populations, improving the older generation’s cognitive abilities and vascular health and even increasing their
life span.

Social and cultural changes in society are giving rise to transitions in intergenerational relations. Both the
younger and older generation complain of generation gap and a breakdown in communication between the
two. How the young and old judge one another determines whether they can live harmoniously with each
other. Their attitudes towards each other and the way they perceive each other needs to properly understood
if the gap needs to be bridge. Research suggests that despite tensions and differences between the two
generation there is some amount of love and care shared by the two generations, which needs to be
strengthened. Both need to realize that they cannot try to “make over” the other and change others.

Mentorship Programs can share the benefits of their accumulated knowledge and experience by mentoring
students or younger adults who are interested in spending time with and learning from a more mature person.
Activities can range from conversation to helping a younger person master a new language or a musical
instrument, playing chess, or crocheting. Mentorship partners meet once or on an ongoing basis at mutually
convenient times and locations.

Oral History Projects; A senior’s unique story is one of the most valuable gifts he or she can give to the
younger generation. In this program, students visit seniors to conduct oral histories, and share copies of their
final projects with the seniors whose lives they have documented.

Olympics is an event for seniors 50 and older that combines a wide range of competitive activities. The
objectives of the Senior Olympics are to recognize people who have achieved and maintained good health
throughout their lives; promote physical fithess and the pursuit of the lifetime leisure activities; and provides
opportunities for fun, recreation and fellowship.

Identify Which Desired Outcomes from Request for Offer(s) that this Offer Impacts:

Maintain good health

Bridging the Gap Between Youth and Seniors;
Mentorship Programs

Competition amongst peers

Fellowship

uihwpne
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BUDGET REQUEST

Summary: (Please complete based on Dept. Operating Detail and Dept. Personnel Detail Forms)

Personnel Cost % of FTEs
Department (including Benefits) Operations Request offer required
Youth & Family
Development $60,016.20 $0.00 $60,016.20 100% 1
0%
Total S 60,016.20 S 0.00 S 60,016.20 | 100% 1

Capital Budget Impact?

Yes X No

*Amounts MUST agree with collaborating Department totals for this offer

$Amount

*Please prepare and attach Capital Budget Request Form

Financial Offsets: (Please list any Revenue e.g. golf course revenue, Grants, Private/Corporate Contributions, Etc.)

Name

Amount

Sponsorships

$10,000.00 to $20,000.00

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1: District Participation * DENOTES MOST OF ALL TN DISTRICTS

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target
*471 *455 475 500
Measurement 2: Number of seniors participating in seminars and programs.
FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target
Increase in the first
six months
Measurement 3: Number of youth participating in programs
FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target
Increase in the first
six months

Return on Investment:

How do citizens benefit? Regular exercise lowers the risk for heart disease, high blood pressure, type 2
diabetes, stroke and obesity. Exercise can also add years to your life expectancy and also increase one’s
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strength and energy.
Does this activity leverage other financial resources? Yes, a healthier population DECREASES insurance cost

How does this decrease costs over time? Active lifestyles decrease insurance, doctor’s visits and hospital
stays.
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OFFERSUMMARY

Offer Name:  Special Programs

Department
Offer Number:  Three (3) Offer Rank: 2
Lead
Department:  Youth & Family Development Collaboration: 'y N_ x
Administrator: Lurone Jennings
Offer Cost: 2,609,849 Primary Results Area: Smarter Studenttss, Stronger Families

RESULTS AREA

1. Safer Streets — Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways.

2. Growing Economy — Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods — Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid rehousing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families — Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government — Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund — Something different — processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation &
sustainability practice does this leverage? What difference does this offer make and how will we
know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)

What is the Service/Program?

Nooga.com’s headline published Thursday, May 9", 2013 read, “Faith leaders discuss youth
development with Mayor Andy Berke’. On this day, a dozen clergymen representing different
congregations across Chattanooga met with Mayor Andy Berke and new members of his
administration at City Hall. The article continued on to say that the meeting had no agenda and was
called to discuss challenges facing the city’s youth and how they might be addressed in an
empowering way. Mayor Berke was quoted as saying, “Youth is the greatest investment we can
make. I will do my part, but I need everyone else to do theirs.” The web-based story noted that on
several occasions, the group’s conversation returned to the topic of fostering character development
in youth.
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Engaging and addressing the needs of Chattanooga’s youth ranked as one of the highest priorities of
concerned citizens during subsequent town hall meetings hosted by Mayor Berke in 2013. In fact,
addressing the needs of youth has become one of Chattanooga’s most critical issues impacting safer
streets, a growing economy, and stronger neighborhoods. The Department of Youth & Family
Development (YFD) provides structured, engaging, progressive programs to address the needs of
youth and their families, year-round. YFD services and programs focus on the entire family by
providing positive alternative services to address family development, health & wellness, prevention,
and education. The programs and services to be considered under this offer shall be referred to as
“Special Programs” and address the results areas of Smarter Students & Stronger Families.

Youth and Family programs and services provide necessary resources to engage Chattanooga’s
residents in meaningful and progressive activities leading to Smarter Students and Stronger Families.
By providing quality programs and services aimed at educational enrichment, leadership and
character development, career exploration, health & wellness, sports & fitness, and an improving
quality of life, YFD builds a healthy environment for families to thrive. Well-managed, affordable,
accessible, maintained, and fully utilized venues create a better quality of life for YFD customers.
YFD services are used to prepare youth to learn, grow, and become contributing citizens. YFD also
addresses the needs of the entire family by focusing on reducing health risk, improving awareness,
positively impacting graduation rates, increasing employment options, and bettering the odds for
families to move out of poverty. The Special Programs strategies offered by YFD provide
Chattanooga’s youth and their families with a blueprint for wellness and success.

How It Works

Customers visit YFD centers to participate in organized, recreational, and leisure activities of interest.
YFD staff engages customers at the check-in counter to develop an identification profile and to
determine their interest in other programs or services. Depending on the service or program, a
nominal fee is assessed for access or use. For customers visiting centers for the first time, staff will
assist the customer and determine appropriate programs and services to meet their needs and
interest. Some customers are referred for services by community partners, faith-based institutions,
schools, neighborhood associations, and local non-profit groups.The referral system and partnerships
have proven to be a dynamic approach to a coordinated effort of addressing the needs of youth and
their families.

YFD promotes special programs and services to the community using a host of marketing tools
including digital media (website, Twitter, Facebook, etc), center bulletin boards, live radio show, and
other forms of public advertising. Customers respond or reply to the promotions and inquire about
the specifics of YFD programs and services. Our website, youthandfamily.com is updated regularly
and publishes a weekly “top ten” of outstanding programs and services via email.

In addressing the needs of youth, YFD focuses on education, career, social services, leadership,
recreation, and character development.Youth services at YFD centers closes the gap on the fears
that parents have about whether or not children have a base of support to achieve and develop. YFD
focuses on providing caring, responsible adults to help youth develop life-long skills. YFD helps to
pre-occupy Yyouth time, nudge their educational achievement, build character, and create
opportunities to foster smarter students and stronger families.




City of Chattanooga
FY15 Offers

Additionally, YFD provides opportunities for youth and adults to develop healthy lifestyles and
improve wellness through Recreation Sports, Therapeutic Recreation, Fitness Centers, and Aquatics.
Youth and young adults enjoy the option of participating in AAU Athletics and Little League Baseball
(RBI). Mature and senior adults enjoy any number of other wellness services managed by trained,
qualified professionals. Regardless of ability, YFD provides opportunities for all in the family to take
full advantage of programs and services through affordable and accessible options throughout our
city. YFD measures facility results by monitoring attendance, revenues, and periodic user satisfaction
surveys. YFD continues to monitor public health issues, including rates of obesity, heart disease, and
diabetes by using the research and skills of our local partner, University of Tennessee at
Chattanooga.

The programs offered by YFD to engage youth and strengthenfamilies include the following:

Chattanooga Ambassadors Program (CAP)

The Chattanooga Ambassadors Program (CAP) seeks to reduce the cycle of generational poverty that
perpetuates the rates of high crime, low literacy, and low employment. By encouraging and enabling
parents and youth to develop their work ethic and employability, and by taking the step of investing
in its citizens, the City of Chattanooga gives CAP participants and their families the tools to become
self-sufficient, decreasing their dependence on cash assistance and improving their quality of life.
CAP provides resources to address the needs of 50 teen-age youth participants (25 boys and 25
girls) identified by area schools, faith-based institutions, nonprofits, community leaders, and YFD
centers. Youth participate in the leadership and literacy initiative and provide community service as
part of the return on the investment. CAP participants develop work skills, mentor younger youth,
read to elementary and middle school students, and serve as ambassadors across Chattanooga.
Critical supportive services are provided to the families of CAP participants to ensure participants
have every opportunity to succeed. During 2013 and the start of 2014, CAP members provided more
than 400 hours of service to the Chattanooga community by distributing more than 5,000 books to
children, restoring neighborhood parks, painting schools, and supporting various community
initiatives. CAP provides prevention and intervention strategies and training for youth and their
families struggling with issues in their community and at home. Through the CAP process, youth and
their families learn to navigate personal challenges and negotiate better outcomes for their lives.

Teen Programs

Youth engagement involves giving young people a voice to express themselves. Providing the right
mix of programs and services to teenagers often determines the success. YFD’s Prevention & Youth
Services program served 1,984 participants in 2012. Teen prevention centers will be established at
five YFD Centers — South Chattanooga, Westside, Washington Hills, East Chattanooga, and Eastdale.
This outlet for teens provides their families with safe havens for youth to socialize and enjoy positive
programs on weekends. These centers will offer any number of the following programs:

Stars of Chattanooga

A professional recording studio, housed at the South Chattanooga YFD Center serves as place to
provide Chattanooga’s youth with training on the record industry, studio time, and professional
quality recording. Youth participating in the Stars of Chattanooga have appeared at Riverbend
Festival and several have signed professional recording contracts.
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Students Against Gangs

Leisure opportunities for teens to participate in programs at other centers. The initiative builds
bridges between teens from neighborhoods across the Chattanooga community.

Next in Line

Teens shadow adult leaders and gain on-the-job training. Teens also learn to build resumes, conduct
an interview, and workplace etiquette. When completing the program, youth are provided with a
stipend.

Listen Up Radio Program

Youth participants learn and display their talents after developing fundamental skills of running a
professional recording studio and internet-based radio show.

I'm Unigue
A fun, educational and creative wayay for girls to express their view of beauty. Participants host
informative group discussions on everyday life situations and solutions.

Grilling with "B”
A fun, interactive way to teach teens how to prepare healthier, nutritious, tasty meals that are low in
fat and affordable.

Culture Arts Programs
Culture Arts Programs are used to enhance creativity, problem-solving, and other higher lever
thinking skills. Culture arts programs focus on educational opportunities to assists participants to
create their own unique work through music, dance, theater, film, writing, graphic design, fashion
design, and modeling.

Youth Councils

This program highlights youth as the driving force in planning activities that focus on development,
prevention, and intervention activities. Youth Councils serve as the premier strategy to engage youth
and to have their voices heard.

Community Events — YFD provides s youth and staff to assist with events throughhoout the city.
Events where youth serve as volunteers incnclude parads.

Community Service Projects

Youth of all ages explore and research opportunities to give back to the Chattanooga Community
through community service hours and sustainability approaches.

Park Stewardship

Youth are engaged to help restore community parks throughout the city. This program teaches
youth of all ages about conservation and preservation of community assets.
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Youth Conferences

YFD seeks to co-sponsor a regional youth conference for teens from all 17 centers, local partners,
schools, faith-based institutions, and regional youth groups. This effort will be considered a premier
fundraiser to create sustainability of future youth initiatives offered by Youth & Family Development.

Career Development & Preparation

Preparing young people and their parents for the workforce is an essential component to the growth
of the Chattanooga community. YFD will provide career development and preparation services for
youth and their families during FY15. Five YFD centers have been designated as full services centers
offering workplace training and preparation for youth and adults. Interview skills, workshops, resume
and application assistance, soft-skills training, and job shadowing are a few of the services offered at
full services centers. Youth and their families from smaller centers are transported to these services
as they are referred by staff. During summer months, school breaks, and weekends, youth will
receive work experience training. Adults will receive assistance with job search and preparation
through the use of computer kiosks and assisted services by from YFD staff. Younger youth (13-15
years of age) will learn how to dress, show up for work on time, complete timesheets, and manage
their time and money during the training. Teens, ages 16-19, will develop employable work skills by
working at YFD centers, schools, and community nonprofits. Additionally, an entrepreneur training
program will be developed to teach youth how to start small businesses and micro-enterprises.

Customer prospects for gaining employment are strengthened through the use of career
development and preparation services. Successful completion of YFD career services program
prepares customers to be referred to our local partner (Tennessee Career Centers) for intensive
services and case management.

Educational Enrichment

In 2013, YFD adopted the use of the Lexia Learning System to enrich the education of Chattanooga’s
youth. Lexia has been established as the signature education initiative. YFD enrolled has enrolled
youth from Hamilton County Schools, faith-based institutions, nonprofits, and YFD centers. The web-
based program is an interactive learning tool that tracks user’s progress, use time, and provides a
comprehensive report to administrators and teachers.

YFD uses Educational Enrichment Tutors at local centers to enhance literacy and numeracy skills of
youth. Ten Enrichment Tutors assists students with homework, core subject areas, Lexia, and
enhance reading. The goal of the tutoring sessions is to increase educational functioning levels of
participants by a minimum of two grade levels. High school students are engaged to strengthen test
skills, ACT/SAT preparation, reading, and improve grades. During summer months, educational
enrichment tutors conduct literacy/numeracy camps, coordinate field trips to relevant points of
interest, and help students avoid losing educational gains from the previous school year.

YFD utilizes the services of two high school Graduation Coaches who are engaged in assisting
students to develop achievement plans to include the best program to meet academic and post-
secondary goals. Graduation Coaches work with school faculty and staff, parents, and guardians to
identifying and resolving barriers to graduation, facilitate career choices and planning. Graduation
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coaches develop and implement individual intervention strategies to increase the likelihood that
these students will stay in school and graduate; coordinate a transition program for 9" graders to
successfully adapt to the rigor of high school; and provide training to parents of students identified
as being at risk of not graduating.

YFD will develop an educational enrichment afterschool academy. The academy will be established
as a component of the Urban Technology and Opportunity Center under an innovation proposal to be
offered in the BFO process. The afterschool enrichment academy will focus on developing skills
needed by employers unable to fill existing jobs due to a regional skills deficit. Students will be able
to enhance their ability to think critically, comprehend what they read, and use analytical skills as a
direct result of participation in the YFD afterschool academy.

Chattanooga Leadership Network

“Everything rises and falls with leadership.” With the support of visionary leaders, YFD provides
youth and adult leadership training in an effort to maximize the number of leaders available to help
people navigate through life. Multiplicity of leaders is essential to the process of character building
and development of the whole person. YFD will train new leaders in FY15 through the Chattanooga
Leadership Network (CLN). The CLN utilizes a prepared curriculum manual to train-the-trainer
whowill subsequently train youth and their families. The exponential process creates the desired
multiple leaders needed across Chattanooga communities. The CLN proposes to offer monthly
leadership workshops and training sessions at schools, businesses, faith-based institutions, and YFD
centers.

Partnerships: Maclellan Foundation, Faith-Based Community, Local Businesses and Citizens are
some of the sources wanting to invest in the future of our youth.

Recreation Sports

Youth participating in organized enhances a youth’s physical and social skills, mental and physical
growth, promote hard work, fellowship, self-esteem, and development of life skills. This provides
guidelines that can be generalized to classroom and lifelong achievements. Basis skills and
fundamentals of sports are taught where all youth will have the opportunity to play regardless of skill
level. Educating participants and parents in all aspects of each sport will be accomplished through
these goals, especially learning how to accept both winning and losing. Another aspect of this
program is to train and teach young teens the rules of some sports well enough for them to become
officials or referees thus creating jobs for youth employment.

Therapeutic Recreation Services (Innovation/sustainability practices)

The Therapeutic Recreation Division provides leisure and recreation opportunities for citizens of all
abilities and their families. We serve both youth and adults with physical, cognitive, and/or emotional
disabilities. Through our programs, education and advocacy, individuals can build confidence,
improve physical and cognitive abilities, expand support and social networks; and enhance overall
quality of life. TR provides over fifteen programs both in the spring and the fall. During the summer,
TR offers summer camp opportunities at the Zoo. This is one of the few summer camp opportunities
in the Chattanooga area that focus on kids and adults with disabilities as well was their siblings. TR
also assists with the community-wide disability awareness event (Go!Fest). Previous grants funded
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the initial startup of the TR program and help fund a veterans adaptive kayaking program; UTC
connections help provide a source of student volunteers; etc.

Chattanooga Fitness Center

The Chattanooga Fitness Center (CFC) strives to provide affordable health and fitness opportunities
for users of all abilities. Located in Warner Park (a multi-use community park located in the central
city), the Chattanooga Fitness Center opened to the public on May 2", 1990. It serves as the bricks
and mortar community fitness facility and flagship fitness programming option within Youth and
Family Development. Over the years, a series of renovations and upgrades have transformed the
facility from a space that formerly housed a machine shop into what is how a state-of-the-art fitness
facility. Its popularity and value to the community is reflected most effectively by the attendance -
two million participants served (as of March, 2014). Even with the current influx of for-
profit/commercial facilities and personal trainers in Chattanooga, this facility continues to offer the
best option to address the needs of individuals who are looking for a simple, no
obligation/frills/gimmicks option.

Aquatics

Aquatic Services operate four YFD aquatic complexes and programs out of five facilities (including
the North River Y). The year-round ADA accessible indoor pools (2) are located at the Brainerd and
South Chattanooga Community Centers, and the outdoor pools (2) are located at Warner Park and
the Carver Community Center. Innovation/Sustainability practices? Aquatics - emphasizes water
safety and education, and provides opportunities to all generations at an affordable price. Examples
of innovation practices include: adding yearly updates to the Warner Park pool, including the state’s
largest outdoor splash park, a 20 yard inflatable obstacle course, and a 12 foot FreefallAquaGlide
slide; co-hosting an annual swim race to raise monies to support a scholarship program which funds
lifeguard job opportunities for minorities; providing instructional training to the Fire Dept. Marine
Rescue Division and EMT certification courses.

Reviving Baseball in Inner Cities

Chattanooga RBI “5 Star” program provides inner- city youth with the opportunities to Play, Learn
and Grow. We use the power of teams to Coach, Teach and Inspire youth to recognize their
potential and challenge them mentally and physically. Achieving their goals, players will embody the
attributes of resilient young adults who are confident, competent, caring, physically and mentally
healthy and positive role models. Chattanooga RBI 5 STAR Program uses the power of “play” as a
tool to emphasize academics, life skills and community responsibilities. Off the field players will
participate in programs that teach and address family and community issues.

AAU/Chattanooga Basketball

Chattanooga Basketball is an educational program that uses competitive basketball as a hook for
student participation in literacy initiatives, life skills classes, and parent, education with the ultimate
goal of improving the lives of area student-athletes and their families through the opportunity to
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attend and graduate from college. Beginning with elementary school student athletes and continuing
through high school, the focus of the program is on reading at or above grade level, exemplary
school performance and attendance, and using the sport of basketball for life skills development.
The basic A, B, C's of Chattanooga Basketball are Academics, Basketball, and Character
development. The goal of the program is straightforward: all 300 participants will gain admission to
post-secondary education, graduate, and become strong contributors to our community.

Section— Aquatics

How will it be provided? Aquatics operate four YFD aquatic complexes and programs out of five
facilities (including the North River Y). The year-round ADA accessible indoor pools (2) are
located at the Brainerd and South Chattanooga Community Centers, and the outdoor pools (2)
are located at Warner Park and the Carver Community Center.

Innovation/Sustainability practices: Aquatics - emphasizes water safety and eduucation, and provides
opportunities to all generations at ann affordable price. Examples of innovation practiccees include: addi
yearly updates to the Warner Park pool, including the state’s largest outdoor splash parkk,, a 20 yard inflatabl
obstacle course, and a 12 foot FreefafallAquaGlide slide; co-hosting an annual swim raccee to raise monies
support a scholarship program which h funds lifeguard job opportunities for minorities; pprroviding instructio

training to the Fire Dept. Marine Rescue Division and EMT certification courses.

What difference does this offer make and how will we know? In the last 6 months we lost three young
lives from something that could have bbeen prevented. As frightening as it sounds, drowning is a

serious public health problem and it is the second leading cause of unintentional death for children ages 1-14.
Minority children drown at a rate of 3:1 on the national average. YFD aquatic instructional and educational
programs focus on populations most at risk of drowning. If a parent had a fear of water, it translates to the
child and they may never seek resources to teach them to swim. It is continuous cycle that is hard to fix. We
want to provide programs and services that will help reduce or prevent drowning in the Chattanooga area.

Why is this different and how will it work? To reach our goals, we will work to create whole new groups
of water lovers! It's different because we will continue to offer pool safety campaigns and education not only
for the children but also for the parents, guardians, and caregivers. The instructional programs will teach kids
and adults new skills that lead to future employment. Swim lessons build confidence and encourages students
to join a swim team, and participate in aquatic fitness classes that promote health and wellness. In addition to
this, we want all ages to embrace the_FUN of swimming - cooling off at the pool on a hot summer day, white
water rafting down the Ocoee, or going to a large water park. Our goal with this budget is to increase our
participation so that everyone who wants to has the opportunity to learn to swim or participate in an aquatic
program. Aquatics - aims to build a stronger person and family by promoting lifelong activity.

Section: Fitness

Service/Program - The Chattanooga Fitness Center (CFC) strives to provide affordable health and
fitness opportunities for users of all abilities. Located in Warner Park (a multi-use community park
located in the central city), the Chattanooga Fitness Center opened to the public on May 2", 1990.
It serves as the bricks and mortar community fitness facility and flagship fitness programming option
within Youth and Family Development. Over the years, a series of renovations and upgrades have
transformed the facility from a space that formerly housed a machine shop into what is now a state-
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of-the-art fitness facility. Its popularity and value to the community is reflected most effectively by
the attendance - two million participants served (as of March, 2014). Even with the current influx of
for-profit/commercial facilities and personal trainers in Chattanooga, this facility continues to offer
the best option to address the needs of individuals who are looking for a simple, no
obligation/frills/gimmicks option.

How will it be provided? With a user fee of $1.00, nho memberships or contracts, a full
complement of strength and cardiovascular equipment options, and a diverse selection of fitness
classes offered per week, the CFC provides the community with an affordable and flexible option for
adults and teens. All operational aspects, including facility design, equipment selection, and
programming options, are geared towards accessibility, inclusion, and serving the underserved, i.e.
individuals with mental and/or physical disability, who are obese or with other health concerns, with
financial limitations, etc.

Innovation/Sustainability practices? The CFC seeks to provide fitness equipment that is
accessible, requires no electricity, accommodates larger individuals, and is easy to use and maintain.
We seek building renovations that will increase the health and efficiency of the facility, including
quality of air & efficiency of heating/cooling, utilizing the roof for “green” purposes, i.e. Solar panels
enhanced roofing materials, minimizing rainwater runoff (rooftop gardens), etc. We utilize &
promote outside free fitness opportunities, including a fitness trail that runs thru Warner Park. We
partner with a number of organizations, including Play Core, which periodically donates playground
and outdoor fitness equipment to the City, and the Chattanooga Fire Dept., which relies on CFC for
the physical training component for every new hire academy (these services have been rendered
since 1993).

What difference does this offer make and how will we know? This offer will allow YFD to
continue to provide our community with an affordable & accessible fitness option that is time-tested.
We measure facility results by monitoring attendance, revenues, and periodic user satisfaction
surveys. We can continue to monitor public health issues, including rates of obesity, heart disease,
and diabetes, by using the research capabilities and skills of our partners, including UTC, Partnership
for Health Living/Step One (Health Department), &Play Core.

Section: Sports

Participating in organized sports enhances a youth'’s physical and social skills, mental and physical
growth; promote hard work, fellowship, self-esteem and development of life skills. This provides
guidelines that can be generalized fo classroom and lifelong achievements.

Basic skills and fundamentals of sports are taught where all youth will have the opportunity to play
regardless of skill level. Educating participants and parents in all aspects of each sport will be
accomplished through these goals, especially learning how to accept both winning and losing.

Another aspect of this program is to provide future job opportunities for youth and teens by
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providing the skills and knowledge they received by participating in organized leagues; officials,
referees, time clock and coaching. Several of our YFD part time and full time staff started their
careers by working in our summer sports leagues.

Section: Therapeutic Recreation
Service/Program - Therapeutic Recreation (TR) &Innovation/Sustainability practices -

Therapeutic Recreation (TR) Division of the Chattanooga YFD Department seeks to provide leisure
and recreation opportunities for citizens of all abilities and their families. We serve both youth and
adults with physical, cognitive, and/or emotional disabilities. Through our programs, education and
advocacy, individuals can build confidence, improve physical and cognitive abilities, expand support
and social networks; and enhance overall quality of life. TR provides over fifteen programs both in
the spring and the fall. During the summer, TR offers summer camp opportunities at the Zoo. This is
one of the few summer camp opportunities in the Chattanooga area that focus on kids and adults
with disabilities as well was their siblings. TR also assists with the community-wide disability
awareness event (Go! Fest). Previous grants funded the initial startup of the TR program and help
fund a veterans adaptive kayaking program; UTC connections help provide a source of student
volunteers; etc.

How will it be provided?

TR provides all of these opportunities with two full-time staff (a TR Coordinator and a TR Specialist,
both degreed and certified as a Certified Therapeutic Recreation Specialist), supplemented with part-
time Temp employees, interns, and volunteers (volunteers who gave over 3600 hours in 2013). In
2013, we were able to successfully serve over 16,493 individuals with a variety of disabilities and
their families.

What difference does this offer make and how will we know?

TR will continue to monitor program numbers, families served, partnerships developed, community
involvement and program evaluations to measure the difference TR makes within the Chattanooga
community. The current feedback from a community survey that was done in December of 2013
shows not only the need for current programs but a want to increase overall services (this is
available upon request). Our budget narrative goes into detail about individual cost center increases.

Identify Which Desired Outcomes from Request for Offer(s) that this Of fffer Impacts:

1. Out-of-School Learning
2.Positive Alternatives for Youth
3. Access to Health and Wellness Programs

1. Education and water safety classes and programs that create awareness about the aquatic
environment

2. Healthy and active lifestyles are more attainable by participating in water activities and fitness
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classes
3. Building stronger families by promoting activities for all ages

4. Career/workforce development - teaching and learning new skills that will enable youth to get
jobs in the field of aquatics, such asas lifeguard, swim instructor.

1. Community health - Focusing on leisure, recreation, educational and overall healthy, active
lifestyles for individuals with disabilities and their family.

2. Utilizing volunteers to increase program numbers as well as foster meaningful relationships and
inclusive environments.

3. Educating the community on disability awareness.

4. Developing community partnerships that not only helps to increase services available but creates
overall awareness of individual’s abilities.

1. Respect
2. Teamwork
3. The ability to gain employment

1. Community Health —physical activity and health educational opportunities for all generations

2. Opportunities for people with disabilities — CFC is ADA accessible and houses the Therapeutic
Recreation program

3. City employee health, YFD & Citywide — CFC supports Well Advantage, promotes employee
wellness with YFD employees, and provides the Chattanooga Fire Department with training to help
increase health/fitness/performance levels of their new hire cadets

BUDGET REQUEST

Summary:(Please complete basased on Operating Detail and Dept. PPeersonnel Detail
Dept. Forms)

Personnel Cost FTEs
(including % of | require
Department Benefits) Operations Request offer d
Youth and Family
Development 2,121,600 488,249 2,609,849 100% 15.5
0%
Total 2,121,600 488,249 2,609,849 100% 15.5

*Amounts MUST agree with co | ollaborating Department totals for this offe f er

Capital Budget Impact?xYes No $3,890,000 Amount
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*Please prepare and attach Ca p apital Budget Request Form

Contributions, Etc.)

Financial Offsets: (Please list any Revenue e.g. golf course revenue, Grants, Private/Corporate

Name Amount
Arts Build Grant (Potential) 3000.00
Fitness Center Revenues 55000.00
Sports Registrations 14000.00
Aquatics Revenues 30000.00
Therapeutic Recreation Revenues 3000.00
Therapeutic Recreation Fundraising/Grant TBD
Application

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1:Participants/Attendance

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target

108460 109506 110425 117600
Measurement 2: Number of Program/Events

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target

50 50 50 50

Measurement 3: Revenues

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target

89816 98782 97850 approx 105000

Return on Investment:
Youth Development

How do citizens benefit? An investment in Chattanooga’s youth and families is an investment in
our city’'s growth and prosperity. Developing smarter students is an investment in our future
workforce and leadership for local communities. An educated populous creates better outcomes for
our schools and business community. Statistics show that educating citizens reduces the strain on
our courts systems and creates safer streets. When the community has healthy, positive alternative
programs for youth and families, young adults make economic and social decisions to stay in a
vibrant, progressive city with opportunities for everyone. The young people who decide to stay in the
city as a result of the recreational and lifestyle options later invest in housing, contribute to the local
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economy, and pay taxes. Citizens who take full advantage of the options in health and wellness
programs experience a reduction in the cost of healthcare to families and business. Through YFD
services, both students and families develop a heightened awareness of life-long skills regarding
nutrition, physical fitness, and options for recreational opportunities for those with a disability.
Participation in recreational sports has an impact on creating safer streets, stronger neighborhoods,
provides revenue to sustain programs, and bonds families in lasting ways. These healthy options for
youth and their families to learn and thrive make for a sound investment through prevention and
action.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? Yes. User revenues are generated as
fees are assessed with athletic programs. Matching sources are also realized through partnerships
and across departments in YFD.

How does this decrease costs over time? Although YFD services focus on developing smarter
students and stronger families, the impact on safer streets and stronger neighborhoods cannot be
overlooked. Increasing the number of users and subsequent fees assessed for access, will decrease
costs over time. Improving and perfecting the delivery of services and meeting the desired outcomes
will afford YFD to apply for other funding sources over time, thereby decrease the cost of programs
in the future.

Sports

How do citizens benefit?

The benefits of sports are many: Physical, social and acceptance, fun networking and
strengthening of the parent-child bond or relationship. Youth participating in sports are more
physically fit which addresses the youth obesity problem and parents and other family members are
usually attend games which builds and strengthens the family bond.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? NFL and Tennessee Titans (Punt, Pass &
Kick Program & all staff expenses to organize the National Competition at the NFL All Star Game),
NBL (Pitch, Hit and Run Program), Hershey Corporation (Hershey Track and Field Program), Howard
High School (Late Night Hoops and Reach One Youth Football League), Front Porch Alliance (RBI
Program), Hamilton County Commissioners (RBI and youth football), Engle Foundation and McCallie
High School (Legends Baseball Clinic) Finley Stadium (youth football), Blue Cross Blue Shield,
Y.M.C.A., McCallie (Senior Games) and North River Soccer Association (soccer leagues). Also, fees
from adult sports programs.

How does this decrease costs over time? Over time enhancing partnerships and relationships
will decrease costs and create new partnerships

Aquatics

How do citizens benefit? The citizens benefit by having aquatics options that are accessible and
affordable, and help promote water safety and fitness.
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Does this activity leverage other financial resources? Currently only user revenues help offset
operating expenses. Future goals are to identify and secure grants, donations, and other funding
opportunities to help CA fund new programming, equipment acquisition, and facility renovation.

How does this decrease costs over time? Costs to the City will decrease due to more efficient
equipment and facilities, increased usage rates (= more revenues), and potential to lower health
care costs for the public and reduce water-related tragedies, including drowning.

Fitness

How do citizens benefit? The citizens benefit by having an easy access and affordable option to
help address their physical fithess needs, as well as help combat rising health care costs and
incidence of disease, including diabetes, obesity, and heart disease. The CFC provides the
community with a health/fitness option that strives to remove obstacles for individuals of all abilities.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? Currently only user revenues help offset
operating expenses. Continued and future goals are to identify and secure grants, donations, and
other funding opportunities to help the CFC and other YFD facilities fund programming, fitness
equipment acquisition, and facility renovation.

How does this decrease costs over time? Costs to the City will decrease due to more efficient
equipment and facilities, increased programming and improved equipment options (which should
increase usage rates/ revenues), and offering a viable option to help favorably address community
wellness concerns, including rising health care costs and incidence of chronic disease.

Therapeutic Recreation

How do citizens benefit? The Therapeutic Recreation program offers a diversity of benefits for
the participants, their families and the volunteers involved. TR programs are an effective way for
participants to gain social skills, independence and overall quality of life. TR programs offer
opportunities to establish/reestablish new life skills, increase physical fitness and foster meaningful
relationships.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?Yes, TR is constantly looking for grants,
private donations and small fundraisers. TR also utilizes community partnerships for a variety of
facilities and other assistance.

How does this decrease costs over time? Costs to the City will decrease due to external funding
opportunities mentioned above.
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Prioritizing Offers:

Result teams were formed for each of the five result areas. Result team responsibilities included
reviewing and ranking the offers for funding and providing feedback on how to improve offers. Each
result team included a member of the leadership team, a budget analyst, two City department
administrators or deputy administrators, and a volunteer community member knowledgeable in the
result area.

The result teams reviewed all offers and ranked them twice. After the first ranking, the result teams
provided feedback to departments and agencies on how to improve their offers. The second ranking
was submitted to the leadership team for review, followed by input from the Mayor. The ranking
process is subject to change based on the recommendations of all the reviewers until the final budget has
been compiled.

The rankings are listed in priority order, with offers likely to achieve the most results at the top of the list
and the offers likely to achieve the fewest results at the bottom of the list. The amount of money
available for each result area is allocated to the offers beginning at the top of the ranked list until the
money runs out. A line is drawn and everything above the line is recommended for funding.

Everything below the line is recommended not to be funded. If something below the line needs to be
funded, an offer that is currently above the line needs to be adjusted or moved below the line. This
process allows decision-makers at each level to see the impact of budget decisions.

The following are Offers for the Smarter Students & Stronger Families Result Area that did
not receive funding:



OFFER SUMMARY

Offer Name:  Chattanooga History Center Youth Development Programs

Lead Agency:  Chattanooga History Center

Collaborating City Department(s):  youth & Family Development

Contact Name:  Marlene Payne

Primary Results Area:  Smarter Students, Stronger Families

Offer Cost (Funding Request):  $28,000

RESULTS AREAS
1. Safer Streets — Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways.

2. Growing Economy — Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods — Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid re-housing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families — Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government — Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund — Something different — processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage?
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)

Proposed Pilot Program: My Place
Designed and Presented by the Chattanooga History Center for the City of Chattanooga Department of Youth and
Family Development Smarter Students, Stronger Families Initiative

The Chattanooga History Center (CHC) plans to provide a three-pronged cultural enrichment program designed to assist
the Department of Youth and Family Development in meeting its goal of creating Smarter Students and Stronger
Families. The pilot program would be offered for 10 children in each of the following age groups -- 6-8 year olds, 9-11
year olds, 12-14 year olds and focused in the Alton Park/Piney Woods neighborhood. Department of Youth and Family
Development would assist in recruitment of participants. Each group of 10 would meet once a week.

CHC Administrative and Education staff will design, plan, supervise and direct the implementation of the program. CHC
staff will monitor and evaluate the program on an ongoing basis. (Note: CHC staff will be meeting with Lurone Jennings
of the Department of Youth and Family Development to discuss this plan on May 10, 2014.)

The proposed program consists of the following elements:

1. Generations of Stories (9-11 year olds) -- This element builds on the CHC's ongoing collection of oral histories. The
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focus in this program will be connecting generational cohorts. Recent scholarship ("Did You Know?" study, Emory
University) shows that knowing family stories aids in childhood development. The links in space and in time created
through this knowledge helps ground youngsters and provides a narrative into which youngsters can insert themselves.
The sense of continuity and feeling of belonging created through such knowledge helps young learners make sense out
of their experience and feel connections to broader networks of neighbors and kin. CHC staff and volunteers will
facilitate the interviews, which will include incorporating the participation of immediate and extended family and/or
friends and neighbors.

2. Reading Enrichment (6-8 year olds) -- The CHC has begun conversations with the Alton Park Development
Corporation, Baylor School, the Creative Discovery Museum, and the Public Library aimed at creating a pilot program
that targets young readers. As studies show, learning success is predicated on a strong literacy base that is in place by
third grade. Local leaders know well that an inability to read at or above grade level by 3rd grade correlates to
subsequent incarceration. By working with partners across the community, the CHC will ultimately be able to help create
a network of learning centers in which tutors help through storytelling and intergenerational reading activities, to
establish a strong foundation in reading for pleasure and for information. In the pilot year, participants will begin
learning research skills, and will receive exposure to a variety of literary forms.

3. Learning our Past (12-14 year olds) -- This element of the program aims to provide a strong foundation in
Chattanoogans' shared histories. All of the programs developed by the CHC correspond to grade level curriculum
standards for Tennessee schools. This afterschool program, conducted by CHC educators, supplements the work being
done in the classroom. Using history sources, CHC educators help "build knowledge through content-rich nonfiction." At
the same time, this program will promote "Reading, writing and speaking grounded in evidence from text, both literary
and informational" and has the potential to be instrumental in building these critical reading skills throughout
childhood. The curriculum will be project oriented.

Program Services: As the only institution of its kind in the region focused on interpreting local history, the
new CHC will fill a major gap in historical interpretation and documentation for the region. The CHC will also
fill a significant gap in K-12 public school curricula by providing a deep resource on which teachers can draw
to use the city’s and region’s rich historical record to illuminate American history. The CHC is requesting
$28,000 from the City of Chattanooga to support My Space, a Youth Development Programs, which will join
its schedule of youth education programming in FY 2015. The CHC will also provide other youth development
programs after school, during the summer, and on school breaks—periods when students are out of school
and not focusing time on learning. The CHC will also expand its off-site education programs, bringing history
to life in schools, youth and family development centers, the public library, and other museums and cultural
institutions. With an innovative and new approach to history interpretation, the CHC has tremendous
potential to make the often abstract-seeming history of the nation local, manageable, and immediately
relevant to visitors and students at all levels.

The CHC’s grant request aligns with City of Chattanooga’s goals for Stronger Students & Stronger Families by
providing rich educational experiences for youth that will contribute to academic development and
enrichment, college and career awareness, and increased reading proficiency and critical thinking skills. All of
these academic benefits can also have an impact on students’ motivation to attend and stay in school. As a
center positioned downtown, the CHC is uniquely poised to serve low-income youth and families throughout
Chattanooga’s urban core who often lack opportunities for cultural enrichment due to their economic status.
With field trips included in the My Place pilot curriculum, the CHC will be able to use its location as a hub for
other cultural institution visits and walking tours. The CHC will offer many of its youth development programs
for free (or offer scholarships to fee-based programs) and will have monthly free museum days open to the
community. In addition, the CHC brings history to youth throughout the community via on-site visits to
schools, youth and family development centers, and other partner organizations. The CHC’s new center will
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also have a significant economic impact on the City by drawing more visitors to the downtown district and
increasing the number of days visitors stay downtown. Our Youth Development Programs will serve more
than 4,200 students during FY 2015.

Community Need, Benefits, and Impact: Founded in 1978, the CHC began as a grassroots effort by local
citizens who recognized the need for an institution that preserved and interpreted the city’s past. As the only
institution of its kind in the region focused on interpreting local history, the new CHC will fill a major gap in
historical interpretation and documentation for the region and fill a significant gap in K-12 public school
curricula by providing a deep resource on which teachers can draw to use the city’s and region’s rich historical
record to illuminate American history. Serving as an educational resource for the region is core to the CHC’s
mission and has been a driving force in redefining our mission and designing the new interpretive center.
Operating as a museum without walls since 2008 during the construction of our new center, the CHC has
continued to offer several programs that benefit Chattanooga residents and enable broad participation in
cultural education. When the new center opens, the CHC will expand to serve more than 69,000 people
annually, which includes 15,000 K-12 students. Key beneficiaries and impact include:

e K-12 Students: The CHC currently serves as an education resource for K-12 schools through classroom
presentations, guest lectures, object studies, and walking tours. CHC staff also create K-12 lesson
plans aligned with Tennessee content standards, many of which can be adapted to serve any grade
level or the museum’s programming for the general public. The CHC partners closely with Normal
Park Museum Magnet School to develop many of its lesson plans and will expand this museum
magnet model to other schools. The CHC has had a flurry of requests from other schools for
curriculum support, which indicates a need for expansion of learning experiences in the CHC's new
center. With over 40,000 students in HCDE (and another 90,000 regionally), the CHC has a strong base
of students and teachers to recruit into its K-12 programs. When the new center opens, the CHC’s K-
12 education impact will grow substantially to serve more than 15,000 students annually.

e University Students: Through its cadre of programs (class lectures, history walking tours, special
programs, and internships), the CHC serves dozens of university students annually from UTC,
Chattanooga State and other regional institutions. The CHC has worked with UTC to develop an
internship program in public history, which trains interns in the practice of presenting history to the
public and provides practical experience in museum operations. In the long-term, the CHC and UTC
will partner to create a certificate program in Public History.

o Lifelong and Adult Learners: The CHC offers a variety of programs to the general public and regularly
has full capacity for these offerings, which include tours, lectures, workshops, events, and film
studies. The CHC’s most popular public programs include the lecture series “A Short History of
Chattanooga,” the Nicely Tours (a series of walking tours based on Maury Nicely’s Chattanooga
Walking Tour and Historic Guide), and Cherokee history and Civil War tours. The CHC has also
partnered with the Hunter Museum of American Art for history and art gallery programs.

e My Place Participants: This program provides intensive, personalized education work with children
who are at risk of being deprived of opportunities to expand their learning experiences.

Beyond the core areas of audience and program impact described above, the CHC’s new interpretive center
will provide additional benefits to the community and region:

e Discounted and Free Admission: To ensure all City residents can fully benefit from and have access to
the CHC'’s new interpretive center, the CHC will offer City residents discounted admission to the
museum, as well as free admission on specified days/times each month.

e Civic Engagement: Drawing on Chattanooga’s history of public participation in community planning
projects such as the Moccasin Bend Task Force, Chattanooga Venture, Vision 2000, and Imagine
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Chattanooga 20/20, the final exhibition space is called History Isn’t Over. This space, both a gallery
and a classroom, is inspired by the city’s successful community visioning project (Vision 2000) and will
be the site of frequent meetings in which the community is asked to take part in sessions that will
create an updateable Commitment Portfolio of ideas that will help chart the city’s future.

e Story Center: The exhibition will house a digital recording station that will be a repository for
community memory. At the Story Center booth, CHC staff will help visitors document their oral
histories, and visitors will be able to listen to existing records through headphones. Using the latest
portable digital recording technology, the CHC staff and specially trained volunteers have already
begun collecting stories from Chattanoogans of all backgrounds and socio-economic levels in
churches, homes, and community centers across the city. Through the Story Center, the CHC will
contribute to the city’s official record by capturing the voices of everyday people, who often
disappear from historical documentation.

e Learning Labs and Program Spaces: The center will incorporate a series of learning labs and program
spaces to support a range of education programs for students, teachers, and adult learners.
Programming in these spaces will be ongoing and engage questions of history and contemporary
community issues. The CHC will work with local partners to draw attention to the major issues
confronting the city and promote discussions and initiatives that will lead to actionable solutions.

o Technology Integration: The center will activate the latest museum technologies, which will permit
visitors to engage deeply with areas within the exhibit they find compelling and allow visitors to
download content they can carry with them as they strike out on tours of the city’s historic landscape.

e Environmental Awareness: As Tennessee’s first LEED certified museum and one of only 26 LEED
certified museums nationwide, the CHC will raise environmental awareness.

e Tourism Revenue: By adding a new cultural destination to Chattanooga’s riverfront, the CHC will
impact tourism revenue in the City, as visitors may choose to remain longer in the city to take in all of
the cultural attractions.

e Partnerships: The CHC will continue to partner with other local institutions in educational efforts,
including the Hunter Museum, Creative Discovery Museum, Tennessee Aquarium, UTC, Association of
Chattanooga Museum Educators, Bessie Smith Cultural Center, UTC, National Park Service, the Public
Library, the Convention and Visitors Bureau, and Tennessee Riverwalk.

e Support for Local Artists: The CHC will house a rotating art exhibition featuring local artists, which will
support and promote the visual arts to a broad audience base.

The CHC'’s innovative approach to history interpretation helped us attract Ralph Appelbaum Associates (RAA),
an internationally renowned museum design firm that is directing the design, fabrication, and installation
phases of the project. RAA is expert in drawing out the emotive force of historic objects, images, and voices to
create thrilling environments that can inspire and humble at the same time (such as the Constitution Center,
in Philadelphia, the Country Music Hall of Fame, in Nashville, and the United States Holocaust Memorial
Museum, in Washington, D. C.). Such powerful exhibition techniques make it impossible for visitors not to be
touched, fueled, enraged, and inspired. Out of this emotional power comes a call for action that transforms
individuals, communities, and cities. The CHC experience elevates Chattanooga and its citizens and sets a new
standard for museums of this kind. And in so doing, leads the city into a new century better prepared to meet
the challenges we know will confront us.

Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts:

1. More kids graduating high school college and career ready
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2. Fewer kids dropping out of school
3. Increase reading proficiency for children and adults

BUDGET REQUEST

Summary: (Please complete based on information contained in Attachment F)

Personnel Costs FTEs
Offer Name (including Benefits) Operating Costs Total Request required
My Place (Youth
Development
Program) $15,020 $12,980 $28,000 0

*The CHC's Youth Development Programs will cost $148,000 in FY 2015. The CHC is requesting $28,000 from the City to
support youth programming (19% of total program costs).

Capital Budget Impact? No Amount — N/A

Financial Offsets: (Please list other revenues associated with the specific program for which funding is requested)
Name Amount

General Operating Income (Admissisons, gift shop, etc.) $120,000

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1: Serve at least 4,200 K-12 students and 125 K-12 teachers during FY 2015.

Historical Comparison Data? CHC programs were presented to 1,081 Hamilton County students during the
last complete fiscal year, which includes in-school programs, lectures, and tours. The CHC offers programs
integrated with the Tennessee State Board of Education’s curriculum standards for grades K-12. School
programs are presented to teachers with descriptions and precise statements about which curriculum
standards they match. Staff meets with all the teachers at Normal Park Upper and Lower Schools every nine
weeks to plan exactly how Center programs can fit into the upcoming curriculum map. Staff also happily
accepts requests from teachers at other schools for specific programs that are not on the roster and designs a
class or activity customized especially for them. Many programs originally designed for schools have been
adapted to adult level and incorporated into the general programming. Production of programs on demand is
driving constant and ongoing program expansion, often resulting in programs and activities which would not
have been created otherwise. K-12 education programs will expand significantly when the new center opens,
offering students and teachers an interactive exhibition to study and explore the history of our region.

Measurement 2: Engage at least 500, including 30 My Place pilot participants, K-12 students in
out-of-school time programming, including afterschool, spring break, winter break, and summer
programming and internships.

Historical Comparison Data? Though the CHC has been able to present only very minimal offerings in this
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category of programming during its new facility development stage, serving as an educational hub for the
community is a key component of the CHC's model. Even while operating as a “museum without walls” we
have continued to have a significant impact on K-12 education in our community, impacting at least 1,000 K-
12 students annually over the last five years through on-site programs, walking tours, and special lectures and
programs with partner institutions. As we move into our operational phase in our new interpretive center in
FY 2015, we will be able to dramatically enhance our Youth Development Programs for the community
through afterschool programs, summer programs, programs offered during school breaks, and internships
and job shadowing experiences for high school youth.

Measurement 3: Serve at least 150 university students in FY 2015 through lectures, internships
and special programs in FY 2015.

Historical Comparison Data? During the last fiscal year, CHC teaching and practical instruction has reached
over 100 UT Chattanooga, UT Knoxville and Southern Adventist University students through class lectures,
history walking tours and internships which introduce UTC history students to public history and museum
work. In addition to conducting programs that bolster the local primary and secondary schools, CHC Director,
Dr. Daryl Black, has taught a Seminar in Public History (History 499), Civil War and Reconstruction (History
335) and developed an internship program through the University of Tennessee at Chattanooga History
Department that integrates UTC history curriculum into documenting and interpreting local history. The
Center works in a like manner with interns from Southern Adventist University. Such connections to higher
education in the region have been bolstered by history teachers at UTC and Chattanooga State who have
encouraged participation at CHC events by giving extra credit to students who attend certain History Center
programs. The CHC will work to engage university students further in its new center, which will activate the
latest museum technologies with a special emphasis on creating interfaces between hand-held devices (such
as smart-phones and iPads) and the exhibition.

Measurement 4: Serve at least 14,900 individuals through walking tours, bus tours, lectures,
special events and classes in FY 2015.

Historical Comparison Data? CHC programs for adult audiences continue to be well attended and
enthusiastically received. Over the last fiscal year, 1,224 attendees have participated in walking tours, bus
tours, lectures, special events and classes. Full capacity or near capacity groups have turned out for an
astonishing variety of History Center programs: tours, lectures, workshops, and special events. Programs
such as “A Short History of Chattanooga”, our series of downtown walking tours based on Maury Nicely’s
guidebook, and our Cherokee history bus tours have been repeated due to public demand and placed on the
ongoing calendar of events. The CHC partners with the UTC Department of History on a number of projects,
including hosting the annual East Tennessee History Day competition. In addition, the Center has partnered
with the Hunter Museum of American Art for History and Art gallery programs. The Center has also provided
research, writing and photographic selection expertise for the Convention and Visitors Bureau sponsored Civil
War Trails program. When the new center opens, the CHC will continue these successful programs and
expand its offerings via new learning labs and teaching spaces available to accommodate special programs
and events.

Return on Investment:
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How do citizens benefit? Because of our location, the CHC is able to seamlessly take history into the streets
and teach in engaging, entertaining, and historically significant neighborhoods — through these programs, the
landscape and the cityscape become constant reminders of the ways that people have acted on the region’s
dramatic surroundings. As we move into our operational phase in our new interpretive center in FY 2015, we
will be able to dramatically enhance our Youth Development Programs for the community through
afterschool programs, summer programs, programs offered during school breaks, and internships and job
shadowing experiences for high school and college students. It is our goal to provide engaging educational
curriculum tied to state standards in order to improve students’ academic preparation, including literacy and
critical thinking skills. By exciting students about their education and motivating them to engage in their
community, the CHC can have a direct impact on improving students’ motivation to attend and stay in school.

The CHC has demonstrated its commitment to educational programming by hiring a Senior Educator, Caroline
Sunderland, to develop K-12 programs tied to our new exhibit content. These programs are aligned with state
content standards and provide multiple avenues for students to think critically and practice high-level literacy
and analysis skills. One example is a session focused on the Environmental History of Chattanooga, which
helps students see and experience the connections between environmental science and the social, political,
and economic factors that bring about environmental change and encourage civic engagement. Another
example is a session focused on the Civil Rights Movement, which allows students to explore national trends
in this transformative time in American History by looking at how it unfolded in Chattanooga. In addition, we
will launch a new Junior Curator program for high school students that teaches them the principles of historic
research and collection care. Students will work with CHC staff to learn about the process of historic research,
engage with artifacts and learn about proper care, and engage with evaluation of primary sources to analyze
the significance of the object. By the end of their session, students will have gone through all of the stages
necessary to help the CHC catalog an object. All educational programs are adaptable to multiple grade levels,
which ensures educational content and programming is accessible to the broadest number of youth.

In addition, the Story Center will benefit all citizens in the community by providing a digital recording station
that will be a repository for community memory. At the Story Center booth, CHC staff will help visitors
document their oral histories, and visitors will be able to listen to existing records through headphones. Using
the latest portable digital recording technology, the CHC staff and specially trained volunteers have already
begun collecting stories from Chattanoogans of all backgrounds and socio-economic levels in churches,
homes, and community centers across the city. Through the Story Center, the CHC will contribute to the city’s
official record by capturing the voices of everyday people, who often disappear from historical
documentation.

The CHC also serves as a hub for exploring contemporary issues facing the city and has hosted a variety of
roundtable discussions. As we move into an operational mode, these programs will be expanded with a
special focus on monthly “commitment portfolio” meetings, which will be facilitator-led, roundtable
discussions that will help prioritize community-wide objectives and energize inclusive discussions about
inspiring community participation, change, and renewal. The CHC will benefit the entire community by
providing a forum and voice for citizens throughout the community to help shape their future.

The interpretive goals of the new center emphasize Chattanooga’s place in national history, paying particular
attention to its pivotal role in Cherokee relocation, its part in expansion of the West, in the Civil War, its
industrial development and urban growth, and how the city confronted one of the most dire environmental
problems of the 20" century. Three poetic pieces—called “memory lanterns” —punctuate the story in
dramatic story-telling spaces in which contemporary Americans speak about how their memory of three
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pivotal moments in Chattanooga’s past has shaped their lives, including how modern Cherokee continue to
remember the Trail of Tears, the Civil War has been remembered and disremembered, and experiences of
segregated Chattanooga from the perspective of the city’s African American citizens. By giving voice to those
who have traditionally been left out of history or marginalized, the CHC will help create a more cohesive and
understanding community that benefits all citizens of Chattanooga.

The My Place pilot, by providing supplemental education opportunities to children who need them, benefits
the larger community by keeping children in school and encouraging development of an educated work force,
reducing crime, and building a sense of community and shared experience.

The CHC is committed to ongoing audience evaluation to ensure the CHC's programs, educational materials,
and exhibition galleries reflect the needs and preferences of participants. Below are the key methods for
collecting impact data, which will ensure the CHC is offering the greatest benefits to the community:

e  Activity Logs and Surveys: The CHC documents program participation through activity logs and
conduct surveys of teachers, students, and adult learners to measure the effectiveness of the
curriculum and technology used in the labs.

o Demographic Data: As much as possible, CHC staff gathers specific demographic information from
audiences (including age, gender, race, and residence).

e Qualitative Data: Because we currently operate as a “museum without walls” and focus on delivering
high quality programs, we currently seek out detailed feedback from teachers and program
participants. Part of this effort is anecdotal in that we solicit informal comments from program and
class participants. By positioning information gathering as a casual conversation, participants feel free
to comment in detail on their interests, concerns, and desires.

e Planning Meetings: Quarterly planning meetings with teachers at the museum magnet schools we
currently partner with provide important feedback on programs presented during the previous 9
weeks as well as needs for the upcoming 9 weeks.

o Development of an Evaluation Tool for the My Place Pilot Program: The CHC will work with the
Department of Youth and Family Development to create an evaluation tool which will meet all data
collection criteria defined by both the CHC and the City of Chattanooga.

Results of program assessments and participant input are reviewed by CHC staff at least quarterly to guide
refinement of curricula and programs, to determine future curriculum or technology needs, and (in the
future) will be used to determine if there are exhibit, technical, programmatic changes needed in our new
center to meet the needs and better benefit the community.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? The CHC is a fiscally responsible and sustainable
organization that receives operational funds from ArtsBuild, City allocations, corporate partners, foundations,
and individual donations and memberships. We will leverage funds from corporate partners, grants,
donations, and memberships to cover the other operational costs for our Youth Development Programs.

How does this activity decrease costs over time for the City? The CHC, though it has a bright future
ultimately, has a very difficult present and immediate future. Since the sale of its old home at 4™ and
Chestnut Streets was necessary to help finance the new project, the institution had to let go of its admissions
and gift shop income with the building. Operating without revenue from museum admissions is an ongoing
challenge. The CHC is currently dependent to a large extent on grants received from the City, ArtsBuild, and
other sources to continue offering outreach and education programs over the next year. At that point, with
the new facility up and running, the pro forma should apply. Sponsorship in some form may be necessary to
continue free programs targeting at-risk populations, but the ultimate savings to the City in meeting its
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Smarter Students, Stronger Families Initiative goals should be far greater than its annual expenditure on the
proposed program.

How can this program become sustainable without City funding? To support long-term sustainability of the
new center, the CHC developed a solid proforma that includes a diverse mix of income streams: visitors, gift
shop, facility rental, programs, events, membership, sponsorship, annual giving, and grants. A combination of
admissions and museum store sales will be the bedrock of the CHC’s long-term financial success. Visitor
estimates are 69,000 per year, which is based on a market analysis of other cultural institutions in the city and
region. Income from ticket sales (512.95 per adult and $6.50 per child) and associated spending in the
museum store (averaged at $3.00 per patron) will account for nearly 80% of operating expenses.

The CHC’s pro forma is based on the CHC's current business plan (developed by museum consulting firm,
LaPaglia & Associates) and a study completed by the Chattanooga Area Convention & Visitors Bureau for the
Tennessee Aquarium to gage expected visitation. The proforma has been vetted with the Aquarium’s chief
financial officer and with two banks and has been judged sound and very conservative by all who have seen it.
It is supported further by an innovative exhibit plan designed for active engagement of visitors. By employing
the services of the nation’s premier museum design firm, Ralph Appelbaum Associates (RAA), the CHC has
brought to this project a skilled specialist who embodies the ideals that drive the CHC. RAA is creating a core
interpretive exhibit, temporary gallery space, and teaching labs that will provide the physical plant necessary
to engage CHC patrons and support the long-term sustainability of the CHC.

The My Place pilot program can become sustainable through corporate sponsorship, or through grants from
organizations with an education focus for their awards.
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Mr. Randy Burns

City Council Office
1000 Lindsey Street
Chattanooga, TN 37402

Dear Mr. Burns,

The Chattanooga Symphony & Opera is pleased to present an application to be considered for
inclusion in the City of Chattanooga’s FY2015 community agency support budget. For 81 years, the
Chattanooga Symphony & Opera (CSO) has been an instrumental part of our community by providing a
superlative orchestra that enhances the region’s quality of life and economic vitality. The CSQO’s
community education programs, the largest arts education initiative by an organization in the
community, annually serve over 30,000 school children through in school performances, Young People’s
Concerts at the Tivoli Theatre, and community performances at the Creative Discovery Museum, area
libraries, community centers, and other public venues.

For 65 years, the Chattanooga Symphony & Opera Youth Orchestras (CSOYO) has been affiliated with
the Chattanooga Symphony & Opera (CSO). The Youth Orchestras, with 190 students participating this
year, provide unparalleled instrumental education and performance experiences for young musicians.
The Chattanooga Symphony & Opera sponsors the CSOYO in recognition that opportunities for
developing the talent of young musicians must be promoted in the Chattanooga area.

Mission: The mission of the Chattanooga Symphony & Opera is to inspire, engage, and enrich the
greater Chattanooga community through music and music education. The mission of the Chattanooga
Symphony & Opera Youth Orchestras is to provide the finest quality orchestral training and performance
opportunities for aspiring young musicians in the greater Chattanooga area.

Result Area: This is an offer to produce outcomes in the city’s “Smarter Students & Stronger Families”
result area.

Request: The CSO requests $25,000.00 for FY15 to further expand educational opportunities and the
CSO Youth Orchestras, involving students and families in a multi-generational musical education.

For more information about the CSO or its programs, please contact us at:

Organization: Contact:

Chattanooga Symphony & Opera Molly Sasse

701 Broad Street Executive Director

Chattanooga, TN 37402 msasse @chattanoogasymphony.org
www.chattanoogasymphony.org 423.267.8583 x 2103

423.267.8583
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Executive Summary

The CSO requests $25,000.00 for FY15 to further expand educational opportunities and the CSO
Youth Orchestras, involving students and families in a multi-generational musical education and
positively impacting the city’s quality of life. Funds from the City of Chattanooga will be used to support
ongoing and expanded education programs such as Ensembles in the School, which send professional
musicians into City schools to interact with students; the Young People’s Concerts which bring over
4,000 students to the Tivoli Theatre; the CSO Youth Orchestras which involve 190 students in high-
quality instrumental education and performance that is not found anywhere in the city; and
masterclasses with guest artists who offer valuable insight to developing musicians in local schools.

As a performing arts organization, the CSO is primarily involved in presenting high quality
orchestral concerts to Chattanoogans; at the close of FY 14, the CSO will have presented 32 concerts, 19
at the city owned Tivoli Theatre and Memorial Auditorium. The CSO is the Tivoli theatre’s most frequent
tenant, using the building for 49 days in FY14. The rental fees from these concerts and rehearsals bring
over $60,000 annually in revenue to the Tivoli theatre; in FY13, the CSO paid $64,923.53 in rental fees
(Tivoli revenues for FY13 were $188,024; CSO rental fees account for 34% of the revenue).

In addition to concerts, the CSO has a strong and robust education program and annually
performs for thousands of Chattanooga’s school children through several programs.

Through the Ensembles in the Schools program, professional musicians perform in 49 schools
throughout the city, exposing children to classical music, professional artists, and aiding in cross-
curricular connections. 32% of those children are minorities and 6% are students with disabilities.
Through this program, principal players of the CSO String Quintet and Wind Quintet introduce the
instruments of the orchestra and basic musical concepts with age-appropriate programs for students in
area elementary and secondary schools. Ensembles in the Schools reinforce what students are {earning
in their music classrooms about musical instruments, genres, terms, and techniques and in recent
seasons, have also expanded to reinforce ideas in other subjects include Math and Science. The
programs address Hamilton County (as well as state and national) standards for music education.

Additionally, 2,046 students from schools located in the city attended FY14's Young People’s
Concerts at the Tivoli Theatre — the first exposure to live music for many students and their first
experience in the publicly owned Tivoli theatre. Designed especially for students in grades 3-8, Young
People’s Concerts feature the CSO and the winner of the CSO Youth Orchestras’ Concerto Competition
in a program of symphonic classics, illustrating the instruments and sections of the symphony orchestra.
These programs also address Hamilton County, Tennessee, and national standards for music education.

Currently, no elementary school in Chattanooga city limits provides string instruction as part of
its music curriculum; however, for 3 years, the CSO has provided a professional string teacher at Big
Ridge Elementary School (District 3) and taught weekly classes; we have recently partnered with Glass
House Collective and ArtsBuild to offer a pilot program of strings instruction in the Fall of 2014 at Hardy
Elementary School (District 8).
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The CSO staff serves as resources for Chattanooga music teachers and regularly partners with
public schools, including Center for Creative Arts (District 2) on educational activities with musicians and
masterclasses with professional soloists.

The Chattanooga Symphony & Opera Youth Orchestras were founded in 1949 to give students
the opportunity to perform in a full orchestra. The CSO Youth Orchestras have more than doubled in size
and in FY14 included 190 students under the age of 19 in 4 ensembles. The CSO Youth Orchestras offer
instruction and experiences that are not found in any city schools.

The Chattanooga Symphony & Opera is the city’s only professional performing arts organization
and it is the city’s largest employer of musicians, employing 193 in the previous year. Musicians
employed by the CSO are teachers and performers in local universities, including the University of
Tennessee at Chattanooga and Chattanooga State Technical Community College, in elementary and
secondary schools in the city, and in churches and community spaces in the city limits. Without these
musicians, music in the schools and in the community would detrimentally be affected.

Under my direction, the CSO will provide a detailed accounting of any expenses using city funds
prior to the close of the fiscal year, as well as a report of the activities and results produced by city
funding. Additionally, the CSO will provide the City of Chattanooga with copies of its annual audit and
annual financial reports.

g K Sine

Molly Sasse
Executive Director
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CSO

0 tina Stat it FY2014 Actual to date FY2014
perating a.emen Budget 1-31-2014 Projection
Cash Basis
REVENUE
TICKET SALES $727,000 $573,272 $707,000
FEE ENGAGEMENTS $109,000 997,572 $110,000
PROGRAM ADVERTISING $55,000 $44,547 $55,000
Performance and Production Income Total $891,000 $715,391 $872,000
INDIVIDUAL CONTRIBUTIONS $430,000 $369,653 $430,000
CORPORATE SPONSORSHIPS AND GRANTS $137,000 $69,28 $113,300
SPECIAL PROJECTS GROSS $175,000 $49,084 $175,000
COLBY FOUNDATION $0 $0 $0
FOUNDATIONS $143,000 $56,000 $65,000

Fundraising and Seecial Income Total $885|000 $563l975 $783i300

TENNESSEE ARTS COMMISSION $40,200 $40,500 $40,500
ALLIED ARTS ALLOCATION $245,000 $166,496 $244,000
_ Allied Arts and Grant Income Total $285,200 $206,996 $284.500

INTEREST AND OTHER $2,500 $1,783 $2,500

CSO AND ALLIED ARTS ENDOWMENTS TRANSFER

$210,000

$178,982

$210,000

Interest and Endowment Transfer Total

$212,500

$180,765

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES $2,273,700 $1,667,127 $2,152,300

$212,500

EXPENSES
PERF/PROD - Artistic Staff and Musicians $1,152,488 $650,122 $1,058,724
PERF/PROD - Other $377,000 $191,478 $386,685
Performance and Production Total $1,529,488 $841,600 $1,445,409
e ADVERTISING AND WEBSITE $169,850 $109,212 $169,450
SEASON BROCHURES, TICKETS AND PROGRAMS $47,000 $26,145 $61,250
Marketing and Box Office Expenses Total $216,850 $137,357 $230,700

enses Total $110,000 $29,254 $113,000

SALARIES AND BENEFITS $390,751 $280,155 $381,310

ADMINISTRATIVE - Other $165,260 $112,451 $159,210

Administrative Exeenses Total $556,011 $392,606 $540i520

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $2,412,348 $1,400,817 $2,329,629

OPERATING REVENUES LESS OPERATING EXPENSES -$138,648 $266,310 -$177,329
CSOYO REVENUES $55,396
CSOYO EXPENSES $38,665

CSOYO REVENUES LESS OPERATING EXPENSES

$16,731
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+7providing for corporate deohks. A violation of any of the provisions of the

¢ "charter shall subject the.corporation to dissolution at the instance of the
"state. s ',‘-"' S et "'i‘"' 2 o A b :I':'_f-
r ‘. _The charter is subjact to modification.and amendment, and in .case sald

s omodification or amendment is nob acespted, corporate tnsiness:ls to ceasa,
T'and the assets and propsrty, after payment of debts, are o be conveyed as -
_p,-:iaror'asaid, to scme other corporation holding a charter for purposes.not
" connscted with individual profit. Acquiescence in any modification,-thus
declared, ‘shall be dsiermined in a meeting of the menbers especially-called.
for that purpose, ‘and only those voting in favor of the modification shall ..
thersafter compase .the corporation 2R s, T kg oY ..;~:-. RS

- n-E,:'hI“‘ Ul ot . o .'-_"‘." R IO o SRR i : e Pl ;
.*%.The'means, assets, incoms, or other property of the _dfpdrationf‘shhl.‘l.
not be employed,” dirsctly or indirvectly, for any ot.'nerl'.'m':i'pqa_e‘.what.ever Sthan™
to.-accomplish the - legitimate-objects of its creation,: and by no dmplication C g
shall it.engage in any kind of trading oparation, nor hold any oke 'real. .k}
=iiestate’than is.necessary’for.itas legitimate purposes,. ' "y iy s S
1 voe RS " B O

- e
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Wie, bhe undersigned,.
o'tke State of Tannssses: for a charter of ‘incorporation for .the:purposes
declared in the foregoing ‘instrument, . . . n'- 40 LAty Ll
e SRR SR e e R B e G R L B
wme mme msbme e sifitness our hands- this the |
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Personally appuared before me, a Notary Public, the within named in- =
.corporators, 3helby E. Brammer, Clarence Shaw, 2ess Patton; . R. Plckett
,+* .and Ben Golden, with whom I am personally. acquainted, und who acknowledged
;. ,-that they executed the within application for a Chartar of Incorporation
*‘for the purpeses therein contained and exprassed. o ;
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ey Witness ny hand and official seal at office in Chattancoia, Teaneurue,
% this [V day of “y 1G81. W, e I el T
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.". ~. The general powers of said corporation shall be,, to sue and be sued by the corporate name; o have -

" and use n common seal, which it may alter at pleasure; if no common seal, then the signature of the name =~

.- of the corporation by any duly authorized oficer shall ba legal and binding; to purchase and hold or recelve !

* - by gift, bequest or devise, in addition to the personal property owned by said corporation, real estate '
, necessary for the transaction of the corporate business, and also to purchasa or accept any r
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- the management of corporate affairs, and to appoint such subordinate oflicers and agents in a
- President and Secretary or Treasurer, ns the business of the corporation may require,
*» name of the office and fix the compensation of the officer, . i
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% The said five or more incorporators shall, within a convenlent timo aftor the registration of ‘this
" charter in the office of the Secretary, of Slate, elect from their number a President, Secretary and
" Treasurer or:.the last two oMcers may be combined into one; sald officers and the other Incorporators :
.to constitute the first Board of Directors, In all elections ench member to be entitled to one vote, elther
in person or by proxy, and the result to be determined by a majority of the votes cnat, Dug notice of W
" any election must be given by advertisement jn o' newspaper, personal notice to the members, or o day - 4
atated on the minutes of the Bonrd six months preceding the election. . The Board of Directors-ahaﬂ ‘
keep a record of all their proceedings, which shall be at all Limes subject to the inspection of any mems ¢
ber. The Corporation may establish branclies in any o tho State. - " . . i

ther county in
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The Board of Directors may have the power to increase the number of Directora TIORKESUEH 16 Eun,
if they deem the interest of the cnrporatron requires such increase. And the first or any subsequent
¢ Board of Directors may have the power to elect other members, who, on acceptance of membership, shall

hecome corporators equally with the original corporators. The Bnard of Directors shall have the right
v to determine what amount of money paid into the Lreasury shnll be a prerequisite for membaershlp, or, if

necessary, what amount shnll be thus annually paid, and failure thus to pay shall, in the discretion of the
Directors, justify the expulsion of said defaulting member, The terim of all officers may ba fixed by the
by-laws, the said term not, however, to exceed three years, All officers held over until their successors -
are duly elected and qualified. . . 5% y RN b
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; “iThe general welfare of éd;:‘!é.tir,':i;nb' lmliviihlml 'prom;. is the 1t-:bje'.t:L for whic 'thi';'chai-t‘er' I; é:ranted. ‘
.+~ and hence the members are not stockholders in the legal sense of the term, and no dividends or profita
""" shall be divided among the members. The members may at any time voluntarily dissolve the cornora-

" tion by a conveyance of its assets and roperty to any other corporation holding a charter from the State
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-7 This charter is subject to modification or amendment; and In case sald modification or amendment In
- not accepted, corporate-business is to cease, and the assets and property, after payment'of debts, are to o
»e conveyed, as.aforesaid, to some other corporation holding a charter for purposes not connected with
tindividual profit.. Acquiescence in any modification thus declared shall be determined in 8 meeting speci--~ °

for the purposes not of individual profit, first providing for corporate debts, - L
£, Aiviolation of any of the provisions of this charter-sliall subject the corporation to dlssolut o~
» the instance of the State. , . . i ’ L (At 1K !
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2% ally ealled for that purpose, and only those voting in favor of the modification shall thereafter compose
: the. corporation;... 75 e o e R Ty i R ! - S
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" The meang, agsets, income or othe property of the corporation shall not be employed directly or in-"
Cdirectly.for any other purpose whatever than to accomplish the legitimate objects of its creation, and by .
. no implication shall. it possess the power to issue notes or currency, deal in currency, notes or coin, buy - .

i 1 or sell products, orengage in any kind of trading operation, nor hold any more real estate than is neces.. «
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“{We, the undersigned, apply ‘to the State of Tenn

Charter of Incorporation for the purposes and with the powers, etc., declared In the foregoing instrument.
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. IN WITNESS WHEREOI‘, I huve he:eto afﬂxed my
: signature and the Great Seal of the State, at Nash-

. tend une
vﬂle, this n dny of qune, . “in the
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£ -'-Br:. T KNOHN ‘thnb Shelby F. Dramner, Glarenca Shavr, Bsas Paf.t.on,
i Ea. "RiPickett and Ben (olden are horeby constituted ‘a body politic and

; .:.,.corporat.s, by the naws..of Chattanooga Philharmonic Agsociation for the. B
V44 purpose: of . supporting ‘and maintaining the.Chattanocoga Sywphony- -Orchestra,

"tne rCIa tt:muoga Civic chorus and such:-‘other- mlated groups,as.,may be:from ..

3 43 s s
4 ‘:E}“I' 1 {
AL 3

'-gsneral D '. aid corporation shall e : :

susd bytits corporate ‘hamei ;(2) /o .have and use- a common saal, ‘whichit "
'. \ay alter. at pleasure. {}If noicomuon; -geal, then tha:signature-of the name .7
['of ;the.corporation,: by: an:n;'cluly aut.horized o[‘ricer,‘ shall be, legal and bi nd~" i
‘L-ﬁ,}z-,.in'g'.-. /(3) ,To:racaive property,-real,”personal; or mixed, by purchase, gii‘t.,"’
i‘!q.%,;’daviaa “or bequest,iselltheisame and apply: the proceeds toward the . pro-— 7
:fﬁf" motion.of  the objects .[‘or w'-xich it'is) .created,”or hold an auch ‘property
juééand apply,tha income andprofits: toward-such.objects. (L) To .establish bv— s

,e..flaws,‘,and make. all. rules and. reznlations’ not:lnconsistent with the “laws - and
'}Jﬁ"’ ‘constitution, deemed expedient for.the. ‘management of corpomt.e arruirs.
i 5:4"“'(5) To:appoint such subordinate.officers .and agents, in addition: to a }
president:and. secretary,”or treasurer; .as-the business of: ‘the' corpora‘l.iqn
:may. require. - (6).To designatn the:name of ‘the'office, and; iLix . the com~+. .-
vensation of the: ofrw.cer (7)o borrow money to be used in’ ‘payment ‘of " '.'
. property bought by 14, and for- eréch ing bulldings, making 1mpmvemnnbs, and !
& qfor other purposes pgoarmana "to the obj2zts of its cre1tion, end . -segure :tln :r:ﬁ
Jurepaymént of the meney thus borrowed by mortgage, pledge, "or deed ‘ol trust,
{- upon such: ‘proparty, ‘rezl,: .personal, or 'mixed, as may be omned by it; and A
1'it may, in lilke mannar, seocure bf nortga*a ’pled re, .or dzed of trust any

:f'and treasurer, or the last tw‘o ofiicers may be combined into- one, said
,4;35""'.‘ officers and the other corporators to constitbute the first board of ¥ ‘¥
5. .The ‘corporation may incredse its dirachors to a number nof. _
;,more than’ one ‘hundred, "by due and _proper amendment. to 1ts by-laws, unless
ant ;otnerwise specifically providad. "In all’elections each member to be ~.' "
529 antitled t0 one vote, either An parson or by proxy,. and the:xesult to be
datemmed by a majority of the .votes cast." Due notice of“any election
. must be.given.by adverilsement in a nenspaper, parsonal notice to the- -
“members, or-a day stated on the minutes of the boavrd one month precading
-the slection. . The torm of officars may be fixed by the,by-laws, 'the said-
teirn not, however, to excesd three yeara.. .All officers hold of‘fice until
hbeir sudcassors are duly elected rmd qualified. T
T l'l‘he pnneral ’mal'ure of society, not individual proi‘it, 18 the ob;ject.
«-""" tov-which this charter is -granted, ‘and-the members are not 5t0ﬂkholdera
in the-legal sense of the temn, and no dividends or proflts}ahall be

divided amony tha memburs-._‘ LI Cl ' ST

. The board of dn-ect.ora a‘mll keo,: a record ol all thrzir procee’dinrrs." .
which shall ba at all times subject to the inspsction of any member. ‘fhe
cm‘poration n.-;y estab’ nsh br:—mchea in: uny other Lou Lty in the: Btate. K




" wntetnal Hevenue Service Department ot the Treasury
P.0. Box 1055 '

District Atlanta, GA 30370

Director

Person to Contact:

_‘T?x'ga er Assistance
elephofie Number:
(404) 221-4516

Chattancoga Symphony and Opera Refer Reply to:
Association %f:t 7'201 )

8 Patten Parkway i e

Chattonooga, Tenn 3740 September 6, 1985

Dear Sir or Madam:

This is in respouse to your request for confirmation of your
exemption from Federal income tax.

You were recognized as an organization exempt from Federal
{ancome tax under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code by our letcer dated December, 1951 TYou veIe
further determined not to be a private foundation vithin the
meaning of section 509(a) of che Code because you ace an
organization described in section 509 (a) (3)

Contributions to you are deductible as provided iz section 170
of the Code.

The tax exempt sStatus recognized by our lecter referred to
above is currently in effect and will remain in effect until
terminated, modified or revoked by the Intermal Revenue Service.
Any change iz your pPuUTrposes, character, or method of operation
must be reported to us s$O ve may consider the effect of the
change oo your exempt STatus.- You must alsoc Teport any change
in your name and address. :

Thank you for your cooperation.

Sincerely yourTs,

R A e

Exempt Organizatiouns Specialist



Tre Hargett, Secretary of State
State of Tennessee

il
Division of Charitable Solicitations and Gaming
312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 8" Floor

Nashville, Tennessee 37243-0305
615-741-2555

Brent Culberson
Brent.Culberson@tn.gov

Director

October 16, 2013

Molly K. Sasse, Executive Director
Chattanooga Symphony & Opera Association
701 Broad Street

Chattanooga, TN 37402

RE: APPROVAL - Registration to Solicit Funds for Charitable Purposes
Chattanooga Symphony & Opera Association - CO475
Registration Expiration Date: November 30, 2014

Dear Molly K. Sasse:

Pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 48-101-501, ef seq., the Division of Charitable Solicitations and Gaming has
reviewed your submitted application and is pleased to announce your organization’s registration to solicit
contributions has been approved.

With this approval, your organization has new responsibilities for maintaining statutory compliance, including
submission of the proper documents and required fees on an annual basis. The required filings include:

Completed Application to Renew Registration form

Completed Summary of Financial Activities form

IRS determination letter granting tax-exempt status, if not previously filed

IRS Form 990, Form 990EZ, or 990N for the most recently completed accounting year, if the
organization qualifies as tax-exempt

e An audited financial statement if the organization grossed more than $500,000 in revenue

e Any amendments to the organization’s governing documents

The Application to Renew Registration and Summary of Financial Activities forms are available on our website
at www.tn,gov/sos/charity. Additionally, the “CO” number listed above will serve as your organization’s
identification number specific to this division and should be included on all correspondence.

Please also be advised that if the organization’s application or other provided information includes false,
misleading or deceptive statements, appropriate action will be taken. Pursuant to the Tennessee Charitable
Solicitations Act, a civil penalty of up to five thousand dollars ($5,000) may be assessed for any violation.

Thank you for registering your organization and please do not hesitate to contact us with any questions.

Sincerely,

FA G

Brent Culberson, Director
Division of Charitable Solicitations and Gaming

BG:BP:C0O475

WWW.tn,gov/sos



Tennessee Corporation Annual Report Form
. File online at: http://TNBear.TN.gov/AR

Due on/Before: 09/01/2013 Reporting Year: 2013

Annual Report Filing Fee Due:
$20 if no changes are made in block 3 to the registered agent/office, or
$40 if any changes are made in block 3 to the registered agent/office

AR Filing #: 03635217
FILED: May 9, 2013 3:45PM
DLN #: A0176-2612.001

This Annual Report has been successfully
paid for and filed. Please keep this report for
your records.

CC Payment Ref #: 150285977

SOS Control Number:

69944

Corporation Non-Profit - Domestic

Date Formed: 10/18/1937

Formation Locale: TENNESSEE

(1) Name and Mailing Address:
THE CHATTANOOGA SYMPHONY AND OPERA ASSOCIATI" STE 100

MOLLY SASSE
STE 100
701 BROAD ST

CHATTANOOGA, TN 37402-1811

(2) Principal Office Address:

701 BROAD ST

CHATTANOOGA, TN 37402-1811

(3) Registered Agent (RA) and Registered Office (RO) Address:
MOLLY K SASSE
630 CHESTNUT ST

CHATTANOOGA, TN 37402-1707

Agent Changed: No
Agent County:

HAMILTON COUNTY

(4) Name and business address (with zip code) of the President, Secretary and other principal officers.

Title Name Business Address City, State, Zip

President Spencer McCallie 701 BROAD STREET CHATTANOOGA, TN 37402
Treasurer Mark Smith 701 Broad Street Chattanooga, TN 37402
Past President Susan E Rich 701 BROAD STREET CHATTANOOGA, TN 37402
Secretary Kim Gavin 701 BROAD STREET CHATTANOOGA, TN 37402
(5) Board of Directors names and business address (with zip code). ___ None, or listed below.

Name Business Address City, State, Zip

lan Leavy 701 BROAD STREET CHATTANOOGA, TN 37402

Jean Rader 701 BROAD ST CHATTANOOGA, TN 37402-1811
Katie Wilson 701 Broad Street Chattanooga, TN 37402

Susan E Rich 701 Broad Street Chattanooga, TN 37402

Warren Barnett 701 Broad Street Chattanooga, TN 37402

Gordon Bietz 701 Broad Street Chattanooga, TN 37402

Gail Chapman 701 Broad Street Chattanooga, TN 37402

George S Clinton

701 Broad Street

Chattanooga, TN 37402

Jo Coke

701 Broad Street

Chattanooga, TN 37402

Nick Coussoule

701 Broad Street

Chattanooga, TN 37402

Linda Friberg

701 Broad Street

Chattanooga, TN 37402

Kim Gavin 701 Broad Street Chattanooga, TN 37042
Lee Harris 701 Broad Street Chattanooga, TN 37402
Mai Bell Hurley 701 Broad Street Chattanooga, TN 37402

Spencer J Mccallie

701 Broad Street

Chattanooga, TN 37402

Kevin McMahon

701 Broad Street

Chattanooga, TN 37402

Claudia Moore

701 Broad Street

Chattanooga, TN 37402

Mark Smith 701 BROAD ST CHATTANOOGA, TN 37402-1811

Lillie Wills 701 Broad Street Chattanooga, TN 37402

Jeffrey Wilson 701 Broad Street Chattanooga, TN 37402

SS-4444 Page 1 of 2 RDA 1678




Tennessee Corporation Annual Report Form
. File online at: http://TNBear.TN.gov/AR
Due on/Before: 09/01/2013 Reporting Year: 2013

Annual Report Filing Fee Due:
$20 if no changes are made in block 3 to the registered agent/office, or
$40 if any changes are made in block 3 to the registered agent/office

AR Filing #: 03635217
FILED: May 9, 2013 3:45PM
DLN #: A0176-2612.002

This Annual Report has been successfully
paid for and filed. Please keep this report for
your records.

CC Payment Ref #: 150285977

Pat Starke 701 Broad Street Chattanooga, TN 37402
Linda Thompson 701 Broad Street Chattanooga, TN 37402
Colleen Russell 701 Broad Street Chattanooga, TN 37402

(6) This section applies to non-profit corporations ONLY.

A. Our records reflect that your non-profit corporation is a public benefit or a mutual benefit corporation as indicated.

If blank or incorrect, please check appropriately: _X Public ___Mutual

B. If a Tennessee religious corporation, please check here if blank: ___ Religious
(7) Signature:  Electronic (8) Date: 05/09/2013 3:45 PM
(9) Type/Print Name: Molly K Sasse (10) Title: Executive Director

$S5-4444 Page 2 of 2
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Chattano

FROM THE BOARD CHAIR

Dear Friends,

Just before | began this letter, | chanced upon an article in the Sunday New York Times by Anthony
Tommasini about the complexities, challenges, and recent reviving of a Mozart series, “this once-hopeless
festival," at Lincoln Center. He began by referring to the larger context of challenges facing classical music:
the bankruptcy of opera companies and symphonies and the “internal habits that keep institutions clinging to
outmoded ways of presenting the art form.”

None of this was news to us, nor were the actions he advocated. The CSO hosted the first Southeast Film
Music Symposium this past March. Attendance and response were good for a first effort, but expenses

were higher than we had hoped. The cuit movie The Matrix brought in a new audience and new costs for the
required equipment. The composer/conductor praised our orchestra for a fine performance of his difficult
music. Last summer’s concert with the Indigo Girls in the Tivoli sold out. None of these new activities were
profitable and may never be, but we are learning how to manage a new set of expenses and how to appeal to
new audiences and how to play new music written for a symphony orchestra.

After replacing unexpected and unwanted staff losses in marketing and development in 2012, we are now
staffed for success, but profit is uncertain. American symphonies make about 40% of their income from ticket
sales. We are usually a few percent ahead of that. We believe that the greater community profits from the
CSO, which enriches the lives of the audiences in the Tivoli and other performance venues, in our schools,
churches, and hospitals and through the lessons our players teach to young musicians and which adds luster
to the reputation of the city.

The hard fact remains that, like orchestras all over the country, the CSO will not be sustainable unless we
can garner more support from individuals and civic-minded businesses. This past year we were not able to
make up fully for the large cuts in funding from ArtsBuild, which still remains our most important funder. This
coming season our operating expenses should be very close to our six year average so the main element in
our future sustainability will be an increase in donations. Without that increase the CSO will be added to the
growing list of lost small city orchestras.

We believe that Chattanooga needs and can support a symphony orchestra. We
believe we are on the right track to finding the balance between better programs
of classical favorites with modest introductions of living composers and new music.
We ask for your continued and increased support so that we may continue to
provide our community with this rich heritage of symphonic music.

Sincerely,

%mcﬂmﬂ

Spencer McCallie
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FROM THE MUSIC DIRECTOR

Dear Friends,

What a memorable season we had in 2012/13. As my second season as Music Director came to an end, |
reflected on the accomplishments that this wonderful group of musicians achieved.

The first hurdle was to work with a new concertmaster on each Masterworks concert. After the
retirement of our longtime concertmaster, Don Zimmer, | was excited to present nine very talented
violinists who each vied for the position of CSO concertmaster. After interviews and evaluations, | am
quite happy with our selection of Holly Mulcahy, who performed on the Dvorak No. 6 concert. Holly will be
a great asset to the CSO and to this community.

Secondly, musicians were presented with a full weekend of music during our first ever Southeast Film
Music Symposium. Performing along with a live movie is tough enough, but Don Davis' score to The
Matrix was especially challenging for even seasoned veterans. The musicians completed a weekend of
two concerts with aplomb and grace.

As guest artists go, we had a phenomenal amount of talent on stage with us last season. Alexander
Schimpf sparkled on Beethoven's Piano Concerto, Qing Jiang amazed the audience with her skill on
Rachmaninoff's Rhapsody on a Theme of Paganini, and Benjamin Kamins entertained the crowd with his
performance of guest composer Michael Daugherty's Dead Elvis. Perhaps one of our most popular guest
artists was Pablo Sainz Villegas, who played an emotionally charged Concierto de Aranjuez by Rodrigo.

| continue to learn more about this community and this orchestra every day. | am honored to be leading
such a wonderful group of dedicated and talented musicians, and enjoy meeting and speaking with so
many of you at concerts and out in the community. | hope you'l continue to support the CSO with your
time, attendance and financial contributions so that we can keep this stellar organization strong and vital
for years to come.

Sincerely,

S’

4941/) Cg(bﬁ i {3 |

Kayoko Dan
Music Director
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During the 2012/13 season, Chattanoogans of all ages were inspired, engaged, and educated through
€SO0 education and community engagement programs. The many diverse programs brought the CSO
and classical music to elementary school students, healthcare patients and workers, and new audiences
around the area.

YOUNG PEOPLE'S CONCERTS

The Young People's Concerts, presented on February 5 and 6, 2013 at the Tivoli Theatre and on
February 7 at the North Cleveland Church of God, were well received by teachers and students. The
program, Musical Mystery: A Symphony of Unfortunate Events, featured The Composer Is Dead (music
by Nathaniel Stookey and narration by Lemony Snicket), as well as music by Edvard Grieg, Charles
Gounod, and Henry Mancini.

The Young People’s Concerts were attended by over 6,400 students and teachers from over 37

different schools from 5 different counties in Tennessee and Georgia, as well as various home school

groups. Many 3rd grade students from Hamilton County Schools were able to attend for free thanks to

“The program was very well the Imagine! program by ArtsBuild. The 2012/13 concerts had the highest recorded attendance and for
g many young audience members, it was their first experience of live classical music.

Hardy Elementary School

ENSEMBLES IN SCHOOLS

The CSO core musicians (CSO Wind Quintet and CSO String Quintet) performed this season for
approximately 22,000 students in 61 schools. Approximately 32% were minority students and 6%
were students with disabilities. These performances reinforce in-school instruction about orchestral
instruments, musical concepts, and familiar musical selections. The Ensembles in the Schools program
was generously supported by Hamico Foundation, Unum, and the Tucker Foundation.

oerformance cluring the
2008031

al Mountairs Christian

MUSIC ARTS & HEALING/OUT AND ABOUT

In addition to performing in schools, the CSO Quintets also performed frequently in community locations
around the greater Chattanooga area. Recognizing music's connection to health and well-being, CSO
ensembles performed to over 500 patients, family members, and health care workers in several
locations. Ensembles were also found around the community performing to over 700 people in the
2012/13 season. These Out and About performances exposed the CSO to young people, senior citizens,
and other audiences, further enriching the greater Chattanooga community and providing access to
classical music and musicians.

This season, the CSO partnered with the Creative Discovery Museum to present PopTots, a series that
uses musical performance and instruction to help young children develop cognitive and fine motor skills
by providing them the opportunity to play more than 20 rhythm instruments. Principal musicians from
the CSO Wind and String Quintets performed and then invited museum guests to make an instrument
and perform with them.

Students owall the Start o the Youns Heopl

Qe



YOUTH ORCHESTRAS

The CSO Youth Orchestras program served 170+ talented instrumental musicians in the Chattanooga
area, ages 8-18, during the 2012/13 season. There are two full orchestras and two string (training)
orchestras that serve students from several counties in southeast Tennessee, northwest Georgia,
southwest North Carolina, and northeast Alabama. The conductors, including Gary Wilkes (Symphony),
Sandy Morris (Philharmonic) and Nichole Pitts (Prelude and Etude), are all veteran string educators in
Hamilton County public schools.

The Youth Orchestras presented three formal concerts and accompanied the Chattanooga Boys Chair in
their SOth “Singing Christmas Tree". The Spring Concert featured Jay Craven as clarinet soloist with the
CSOYO Symphony, and Gary Wilkes was honored for his 20th season as CSOYO Music Director.

All students in the Youth Orchestra are periodically coached on their music by principal CSO musicians
and advanced Youth Orchestras’ musicians are also members of smaller ensembles such as the String
Quartets, Woodwind Trio, and Brass Trio, which perform in the Tivoli Theatre lobby before CSO concerts.
The CSOYO also participated at the Ronald McDonald Autumn Festival and the CSO PlayAlong event at
the Chattanooga Market.

In August, the Youth Orchestras presented a Concerto Competition, with first place being awarded to
cellist Hannah Kuhn who played the 4th movement of Elgar's Cello Concerto with the CSO in February's
Young Peaple’s Concerts. The second place winner, trumpeter John Burton, performed a solo with the
CSOYO Symphony Orchestra.

STRINGS IN THE SCHOOLS
The Strings in the Schools program, in its 8th year, provided a string teacher for Alpine Crest Elementary
School. David Creel, CSO Violinist, taught three 45-minute violin classes each week to 40 students,
assisted by Judy Brittingham, Music Teacher at Alpine Crest. This season, the CSO created a second
Strings in the School class at Big Ridge Elementary School. Priscilla Estrada taught a weekly class

there to 17 students. There is much enthusiasm for strings at Alpine Crest and Big Ridge and the CSO is
investigating opportunities to expand this program in the 2013/14 season.
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SCHOOLS AND FACILITIES SERVED BY CSO EDUCATION

AND COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT PROGRAMS

AREA SCHOOLS SERVED BY ENSEMBLES OR YPC CONCERTS
Allen Elementary School (Hamilton County, TN}

Alpine Crest Elementary School (Hamilton County, TN)
Apison Elementary School (Hamilton County, TN)

Arnold Elementary School (Cleveland, TN)

Barger Academy (Hamilton County, TN)

Battle Academy (Hamilton County, TN)

Battlefield Elementary Schoo! (Catoosa County, GA)
Belvoir Christian Academy (Chattanooga, TN)

Big Ridge Elementary School (Hamilton County, TN)

Black Fox Elementary School (Bradley County, TN)

Blue Ridge Elementary School (Dalton, GA)

Blue Springs Elementary School (Bradley County, TN)
Blythe-Bower Elementary School (Cleveland, TN)

Bradley Central High School {Bradley County, TN}

Brown Academy (Hamilton County, TN)

Calvin Donaldsen Elementary School (Hamilton County, TN}
Center for Creative Arts (Hamilton County, TN}

Central High Schaol (Hamilton County, TN)

Charleston Elementary School (Bradley County, TN)
Chattanooga Christian Schoal (Chattanooga, TN)
Chattanooga Classical Conversations (Chattanooga, TN)
Chattanooga School for the Arts and Sciences (Hamilton County, TN}
Chattanooga School for the Liberal Arts (Hamilton County, TN)
Cherokee Ridge Elementary Schoot (Walker County, GA)
Christian Heritage School (Dalton, GA)

Cleveland Classical Conversations (Charleston, TN)
Clifton Hills Elementary School (Hamilton County, TN)
Coker Elementary School (Murray County, GA)

Dunlap SDA School (Dunlap, TN}

East Brainerd Intermediate School (Hamilton County, TN)
East Ridge Elementary School (Hamilton County, TN)
East Side Elementary School {(Hamilton County, TN)
Falling Water Elementary School (Hamilton County, TN)
Girls Leadership Academy (Chattanooga, TN)

Girls Preparatory School (Chattanooga, TN}

Grace Baptist Academy (Chattanooga, TN)

Graysville Elementary School (Catoosa County, GA)
Hardy Elementary School (Hamilton County, TN}

Harrison Elementary School (Hamilton County, TN)
Hixson Elementary School (Hamilton County, TN)
Hopewell Elementary School (Bradley County, TN)

Kid's Kastle (Catoosa County, GA)

Lakeside Academy (Hamilton County, TN}

Lookout Mountain Elementary School {(Hamilton County, TN)
Lookout Valley Elementary School (Hamilton County, TN)
Mayfield Elementary School (Cleveland, TN}

McCallie School (Chattanooga, TN)

McConnell Elementary School (Hamilton County, TN)
Michigan Avenue Elementary School (Bradley County, TN)
Monteagle Elementary School (Marion County, TN)
Montessori School {Chattanooga, TN)

Nolan Elementary School (Hamilton County, TN}

Normal Park Lower School (Hamilton County, TN}

North Lee Elementary School (Bradley County, TN)
North Whitfield Middle School (Whitfield County, GA)
Northwest Elementary School (Murray County, GA)
Oak Grove Elementary School (Bradley County, TN)
Qoltewah Elementary School (Hamilton County, TN)
Ooltewah High School (Hamilton County, TN)

Our Lady of Perpetual Help School (Chattanooga, TN)
Pleasant Grove Elementary School (Whitfield County, GA)
Prospsct Elementary School (Bradley County, TN)

Red Bank Elementary School {Hamilton County, TN)
Rhea Central Elementary School (Rhea County, TN)
Ringgold Elementary School (Catoosa County, GA)
Ringgold Primary School {Catoosa County, GA)
Rivermont Elementary School (Hamilton County, TN)
Ross Elementary School (Cleveland, TN)

Signal Mountain Christian School (Signal Mountain, TN)
Silverdale Baptist Academy (Chattanooga, TN)

South Pittsburg Elementary School (Marion County, TN)
Spring Creek Elementary School (Hamilton County, TN)
Spring Place Elementary School (Murray County, GA)
St Nicholas School (Chattanooga, TN)

St Peter’s Episcopal School (Chattanooga, TN)

Stuart Elementary School (Cleveland, TN)

Thrasher Elementary School (Hamilton County, TN)
Valley View Elementary School (Bradley County, TN)
Varnell Elementary School (Whitfield County, GA)
Wallace Smith Elementary School (Hamilton County, TN)
Waterville Elementary School (Bradley County, TN)
Westside Elementary School (Whitfield County, GA}
Westwood Elementary School (Dalton, GA)

Whitwell Elementary School {(Marion County, TN)
Whitwell Middle Schaol (Marion County, TN}

Wolftever Creek Elementary School (Hamilton County, TN)
Yates Primary School (Bradiey County, TN}

AREA ORGANIZATIONS/BUSINESSES SERVED BY ENSEMBLES
Alexian Brothers Valley Residence (Alzheimer Unit)
Boynton Overlook Apartments

Catoosa County Public Library

Cleveland Bradley County Public Library

Coliegedale Public Library

Creative Discovery Museum

Eastgate Branch Library

Little Miss Mag Child Care Center

Memorial Hospital

Northgate Branch Library

Northwest Georgia Regional Library

RossWoods Adult Day Services

Signal Centers

Siskin Early Learning Center

Siskin Hospital for Physical Rehabilitation

St. Barnabas Senior Living Services

St. Elmo Courts

Standifer Place Assisted Living

Summit View Senior Community



2012/13 SEASON HIGHLIGHTS

The 2012/13 season included several new events and collaborations, as well as free community concerts
enjoyed by thousands.

Volkswagen of Chattanooga offered up their conference center for a brand new concert series. The CSO
repeated four of its seven Masterworks concerts on the Volkswagen Series, and added a special Opera’s
Greatest Love Songs concert. Audiences ranged from 200 to 600 and included many new concert
attendees as well as college students.

The CSO presented a special free community concert for military veterans and their families at the
Veterans Day Celebration at Memorial Auditorm. The CSO is also proud to be a part of the Unity
Celebration on MLK day at the Tivoli. Celebrating the sacrifice our veterans have given us and honoring
the legacy of Martin Luther King, Jr. are events we look forward to each season.

The annual Pops in the Park 4th of July celebration is one of our most popular concerts in 2012. This
evening in Coolidge Park has been a staple of Chattanooga’s Independence Day celebration for years.

For the first time ever, the CSO created an event where community musicians could play alongside

our professional musicians at the Play Along with the CSO event at the Chattanooga Market. On the
Market's opening day, we had over 40 local players take part and the free concert was enjoyed by a large
crowd at the Market.

The Chattanooga Symphony & Opera, with support from the Osborne Foundation, presented the first
Southeast Film Music Symposium on March 1-3, 2013. Composer and CSO Board member, George

S. Clinton, served as its artistic advisor. The weekend included a documentary screening, discussions
and seminars with film directors and film music composers, plus orchestra rehearsals and concerts.
Attendees came from across the United States, including Tennessee, Georgia, Florida, Idaho, New York,
California and Arkansas, as well as an attendee from Australia, and were composers, musicians, music
students, and film music lovers.

As part of our initiative to attract younger and more diverse audiences, the CSO performed to a sold-out
house with folk duo, the Indigo Girls, and attracted over 300 new ticketbuyers to our live movie screening
of The Matrix, where the CSO performed the movie's soundtrack live with the film.

. BMI's Doreen Ringer Ross leads a panel discussion with film composers George S. Clinton,
Peter Golub and Don Davis during the Southeast Film Music Symposium
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| CSO is looking ahead to a great 2013/14 season.

FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dear Friends,

The 2012/13 season was exciting but a challenge. On the heels of a surplus the previous season, we
ended this year with a significant deficit, a reality for far too many arts organizations these days.

The CSO knows that we must attract new audiences and find new ways to present our traditional
concerts to keep audiences engaged. This year we tried new schedules, new programs, new spaces, new
music, and new partnerships. We had lots of first-time attendees at the Indigo Girls, The Matrix with
orchestra, and at our concerts at the Volkswagen Conference Center. We had the highest revenues ever
for our popular Home for the Holidays and Bijg Band Fever! concerts. But many of our artistic or audience
development successes were not financial successes. Concerts scheduled specifically to attract new
audiences had significantly higher costs than our traditional classical concerts. So while we were thrilled
to see so many new faces, we ended the year in the hole.

These are the real challenges before us—how does the CSO experiment with new ideas, new music, new
ways of bringing in audiences when we have virtually no room for guessing wrong on revenues? How
do we cover the increased cost of programs which appeal to younger audiences? How do we adjust

to changes from ArtsBuild, whose own fundraising challenges have resulted in a cut of more than
$300.000 annually to the CSO, and find new revenue sources to make up these cuts?

The thing that keeps us all going is the knowledge that the music we perform and the people who love it
deserve our very best efforts to preserve and showcase the art form that is classical music. The younger
audiences coming in after our current audiences need the same opportunities to hear great music
performed by first-rate musicians. Chattanooga would be poorer without the CSO and its wonderful
musicians. We hear that every day from music lovers, ticket buyers, and donors. Thanks to them,
Chattanooga still has a future for the best in symphonic music and the

Sincerely,

Molly Sasse

Executive Director




FINANCIALS

| $305895

$877.471

$868,202

OPERATING EXPENSES
@ Performance and Education Programs - 67%
@ Marketing and Box Office - 10%
Development and Fundraising - 2%
@ Administration - 21%

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES:
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES:

OPERATING REVENUE
@ Earned Income* - 38%

@ Fundraising, Grants, and Special Projects - 37%
ArtsBuild Allocation - 12%
@ Interest and Endowment Transfer - 13%

$544,574

B85979
$244,680

$1,696,171

$2,340,132
$2,541,404

OPERATING REVENUES LESS EXPENSES

-$201272
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CSO SUPPORTERS

Diamond Baton, $25,000+
Fletcher Bright

Mr. and Mrs. George S. Clinton
Ruth S. Holmberg

Mr. and Mrs. Olan Mills, Il

Paul Neely

Susan and Steve Rich

Platinum Baton, $10,000+
Russell & Linda Friberg

Mr. & Mrs. Charles Gavin

Alice P. Lupton

Ms. Sue Anne Wells

Gold Baton, $5,000+
Jack and Mary Barker
Mrs. Jacqueline Marschak
Don & Mary McDowell

Pat & John Starke

Silver Baton, $3,500+

Mr. & Mrs. F. Mitchell Bell

Susan & John Collins

Alice E. Davenport

Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Davenport, Il

Bronze Baton, $2,000+
Anonymous (2)

Dr. and Mrs. Andres Alisago Jr
Norma Anderson

Nora S. and Bob Bernhardt
Claire Binder

Mr. & Mrs. Hardwick Caldwell, Jr
Dr. and Mrs, John Chung

Clif and Ruzha Cleaveland
Carole J. Daniel

Betty Fillauer

Nancy R. Jolley

Drs, Ruth & C Y. Liu

Spencer & Sara McCallie
William & Sara McDonald

Mr. and Mrs. Kevin McMahon
Sharon Mills

Robert and Barbara Oldham
Neil A. Panzier

Dr. & Mrs. Walter Parkhurst

Jim and Jo Pennington

Irvin and Judi Pressman

Keith S. Reas and Tomas C. Hernandez
BW & Rhoda Ruffner

Mr. and Mrs. Robert H. Siskin

Benefactor, $1,000+
Anonymous (3)

Ace Hardware

Nancy K. Anderson

Mr. and Mrs, Robert K. Anderson
Mr. & Mrs, Max Bahner

Dr. Gordon Bietz

Clinton M, Blumer

Jerry & Betty Bohannon

David and Judy Britain

Pat & Nina Brock

Ellyn and John Brooks

Dr. & Mrs. Morrow Chamberlain, Il
Mr. & Mrs. William E.Chapman Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Gary Chazen

Jo Coke

Malcolm Cross

Andrew and Kayoko Dan Temple
Peggy Davis

Ms. Deborah Starr Everhart

Mr, & Mrs. Thomas Faulkner
Drs. Cristina and Radian Florea
Mr. and Mrs. Bob Franklin

Doug and Linda Graydon

Mr. and Mrs. Carl Henderson
Terri and Craig Holley

Mai Bell Hurley

Nelson and Deanne irvine

Mrs. Miriam Jones

James D. Kennedy, Jr

Mr. and Mrs. Patrick Knoll

Dr. and Mrs. Charles Landis, Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Franklin McCallie
Virgil & LaFonde McGee

Darrell and Claudia Moore

Ted and Mary Navarre Moore
King and Margy Oehmig

David & Ann Pope

Alavie R Qrntt Drnhacen I

Mr. & Mrs. Scott L, Probasco, Jr.
Mr. Richard Ralston

Michelle Ruest and Dick Gossett
Dr. David and Leah Salerno
Molly K. Sasse

Alice and Alfred Smith

Frances and Gordon L. Smith, Jr.
Mark and Jenni Smith

Lena Dot and Bob Templeton

Liz and Vic Thomas

Mr, & Mrs. Richard Volkwein

Ms. Lindsey Waldrep

Mr, and Mrs. Phil Whitaker
Deborah and Wayne Wilhelm

Investor, $500+

Anonymous (2)

Peggy and Peter Arrowsmith
Mr. and Mrs. James Bailiff

Dr. and Mrs. H. Staniey Benson, Jr.
Dr. & Mrs. Wlliam M . Blackman
Ms. Brenda Brickhouse

Mrs. Nancy Bryan

Mr. and Mrs. Frank Caperton
Mountain Audiology Inc

Mr. & Mrs. Nick Coussoule

Mr. Daniel Dejan

Mr. & Mrs, Whitney Durand
VADM and Mrs. Ronald M. Eytchison
John and Pamela Henry

Mr. and Mrs. Harvey Howalt, Jr.
Prestine and Hunter Huckabay
Dr. and Mrs. William S. Johnson
Dr. & Mrs. Gerald |. Jones

Mrs. Robert C. Jones, (Il

Andra Jurist & Bruce Stewart
David Keller

Mr. and Mrs. lan Leavy

Ms, Patricia Ledford

Dr. Jeannette Martin

Ms. Cherie Martinez

Mr. and Mrs. Bob McKenzie

Dr. and Mrs. Robert Mingus

Mr. and Mrs. Rick Montague
Hal and | inda Marric



Donna & Bob Moss

Reverend Joel W. Murchison

Ruth and Fred Obear

Mr. and Mrs. Keith Sanford

Martha & Ernest Seagle

Daidee Springer & Steve Hollingsworth
Judge and Mrs. Neil Thomas, Ill

Bob and Linda Thompson

Mr.& Mrs Dan Williams, Jr.

Sustainer, $250+

Anonymous (2)

Kathy Allison

Madge Askonas

Mr. & Mrs. B. W. Baucom

Mr. & Mrs, Bob Berz

Mr. and Mrs. Thilo H. Best

Barbara R. Blake

Walter & Marie-Helen Boehm

Travis and Pat Boles

Mr. Steven Bryant

Mr. and Mrs, Barry Cammon

Casandra Cansler

Mr. and Mrs. Dalton Carter

Jane & Zack Catterton

Ms. Jessie Clinton

Dr.& Mrs. Robert C. Coddington

Mr. Richard Cutsinger

John and Kristen Davis

Marianne W. Douglas

Martha and Todd Duff

Mr. and Mrs. Ronald Earl

John Feddersen

Rear Admiral & Mrs. Vance (Charlynne)
Fry, Sr.

Dr. and Mrs. William Green

Dr. and Mrs, Michael S. Greer

Ms. Lyn Harris

Steve and Dolores Harvey

Ms. Rita Heckrotte & Mr. Jim Roxlo

Anne G. Henniss

Robert and Margaret Hill

Dr. & Mrs. Herbert L. Hooper, Jr.

Ronald and Susan ingham

\A/alt £ Marria Jlaniean

Mr. & Mrs. William F. Johnson
Lattimore Black Morgan & Cain
Mr. Harold S. Lomenick
Walter & Ruth Ludwig

Peter & Dainy Masic

Dr. David McCallie

Mimi McDonald

Mr. & Mrs. Sam E. Miles
Shirley Miller

Mrs. William L. Montague
Elizabeth Moare & A.C. Moore
Gladys & Ned Mynatt

Yuiji & Alison Noma

Mr, David Patterson

Ms. Marclyn Porter

Helen Pregulman

John F. Proctor

Tom and Kim Quillen

Paula Rainbow

Diane and David Reed

Ms. Mary Lee Rice

Dr. Marilyn Rogers

Anne and Bob Roza

Dr., Janice Ryberg

Frank and Gracie Schriner
Mary Lucile Sharp

Margaret Patten Smith

Dr. Harvey Solomon and Diana Long
Dr. and Mrs. James (Jennifer) Stanfield
Mr. Del Sudkamp

Mr. and Mrs. John Toliver
LeRoy Tschetter

Dr. Mel and Mary Ann Twiest
Gordon & Judy VanLoon
Barbara Walton

Mr. and Mrs, William A, White
Ms. Lillie M. Wills

Mr. & Mrs. Jeffrey Wilson
Mary and James Woods
Susan & Dick Yankee

Friend, up to $249
Anonymous (14)
Dr. Mario Abril

\Alaltar and Inv Adame

Mr. and Mrs. Thomas H. Adams
Mr. Robert Anderson

Mr. Ted Anthonisen

Mr. & Mrs. Jim Aplin

Ms. Jennifer Askew

Marie Awad

Mr. & Mrs. Eugene Bartoo
Mr. Russell Bean

Mr. John D. Beck

Ms. Marilyn Benson

Sally & Cliff Betts

Mr. and Mrs. Edward Boehm
Rick & Jean Botto

Mr. Mike Bradshaw

Dr; and Mrs. Walker Breland
Greg and Helen Breter

Mr. and Mrs. Dennis W. Brice
Mr. & Mrs. Bill Brock

Ms. Carol J, Bowder

Ms. Heather Brown

Ms. Katharine Bruner
Robert Burris

Robert Caldwell

Mary Caliandro

Alice Cannella

Mary R. Carlson

Mr. and Mrs. Jared Chastain
Allen & Betsy Chesney

Mr. and Mrs. E. Boyd Cobb
Nancy Collum

Mr. Robert Connelly
Charles D. Cook

Mrs. Dolores Cooley

Mel and Eleanor Cooper
Paul & Ana Cornea
Elizabeth Crumbliss

Mr. & Mrs. Lloyd Davis
Ralph P. Decicco

Sally & Art Dickerson

Hilary L. Doncaster

Ms. Georgia Eastman

Mr, and Mrs, Bill Ekiss

Dr. and Mrs. John T. Evans
William and Amanda Farris

for Bie Band Foverlin

Trumneter [ nsen foinea e C50 Bie Band
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Voiunteering with rhe 50 provides

CSO SUPPORTERS cont.

Mrs. Paul J. Viall, Jr.

) Make new

riends, make patron:

col welcome by

Friend, up to $249 cont. Carrington Montague

answering oncerns, and

Dana and Ron Feldman Sandy & Ron Morris Mr. & Mrs. Louis Voskuil
aftords Mr. and Mrs. Scott Ferguson Dr. & Mrs. Fred A. Muths Personal Fitness Specialists
what Dennis & Jill Flaugher Dorothy Nation Revs. Ann and Bradiey Weeks
coule Ms. Ann Foltz Mr. & Mrs, John Niemeyer Morris Weinberg
. Janice and Archie Fortune Mr. Thomas Niessen Robert West

220 voluntee!

oncert Giree

voll Theatre |

bme concert :
L voluntee!

Jacquelyn W. Garrison

Mr. & Mrs. Edward Gleason
Dennis L. Graham

Astrid & Mike Griffin

Dr. and Mrs. James L. Gumnick
John D. Gunn

Mr. and Mrs. William Hailey
Tom & Jinksie Harris

Dr. & Mrs. Lee Harris

Ms. Dorothy Hays

Mr. and Mrs, Robert L. Honeycutt, Jr.
Ms. Molly Hopkins

Paige & David Houseman
Ms. Margaret Hubbuch
Dean Jackson

Valerie and Larry Jackson
Mr. & Mrs. Donald W. Kaller
Ismahen Kangles

Dan & Linda Keeney
Mabry J. King

Ms. Carol Klein

Mr. Charles Koory

Mrs. Pauline Kosanovich
Michael Kull

Sullins & Susan Lamb

Mr. and Mrs. William Latimore, Il
Mrs Stewart Lawwill Jr

Dr. and Mrs. Harold Levine
Ms. Georgia Lowrance

Ms. Nancy Mapel

Sarah Marczynski

C.S. Maxie Marler, Jr

Mr. Robert L. McElroy
Stephen & Linda McGann
Ralph and Isabel McGraw
Lewis & Mary Meloan
Jennifer & Jay Mills

Ida R. Minor

Mr. and Mrs, John C. Parham
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Park
James E. Patching

Jean D. Patton

Kenneth Phillips

Mr. George Piper

Mr. William H. Price

Ms. Katherine Prior

Rex Rader

Julie Ratliff

Ms. Laura Reid

Mr. HA. Rippert

Rosemary M. Robertson

Mr. John Romano

William A. Royer

Ms, Colleen Russell

Louise A. Russell

Mr. & Mrs, Andrew J. Sanislo
Carlton A. and Mary Sanders Scott
Charles & Sonja Shamblin
Mr. and Mrs, C. Wayne Shearer
Mr. and Mrs, Gene Shiles

Mr, Fred Shumaker

Ms. Ellen Simak

Mr. and Mrs, G.B, Sisson

Mr. & Mrs. Moore J. Smith, Ill
M. Skip Stevens

Dr. John Stewart

Mr. & Mrs. C, Kenneth Still
Richard & Eileen Sullivan

Dr. and Mrs. Will Sutton

Mr. Hunter E, Swink

Nancy & Mitchell Thiel

Larry & Gini Thompson

Mr. Stratton Tingle

Megan Toms

Ms. Diana Tritapoe

Ms. Kathy Tugman

Ms, Jenny Westbrook

Dr. and Mrs. Colbert Whitaker
Frederick & Carmen Williams
Mr, & Mrs. Matt Wilson

Ms. Merry Lee Wilson

Ms. Carol L. Woods

Mr. and Mrs, Larry A. Zehnder

Companies with Matching Gifts
Unum Foundation

Norfolk Southern Foundation
Technology Projects

The Coca-Cola Foundation



CSO VOLUNTEERS

The CSO is fortunate to have a strong group of volunteers who help with everything from back office
support during regular business hours to front of house support during performances. With so many
moving parts required to create such a smooth running operation, these dedicated individuals are

integral to the CSO's success!

Andres Alisago
Ted Anthonisen
Eloise Bartlett
Emily Bartlett
Jason Bartlett
Catherine Bartrug
Gary Bartrug
Shannon Baucom
Candace Boggild
Susan Brandenburg
Jody Burch

Paul Burch
Susan Byrd
Sandra Carter
Judy Constance
Dave Constance
Donald R. Crane
Azusa Dance
Hilary Doncaster
Suzi Doss
Georgia Eastman
Elsie Evans

Wayne Evans
Mary-Alice Ferris
Rita Foster

Mary Edna Frost
Patricia Graham
Jordan Hicks
Darryl Hubbard
Judie Job

Anna Keating
Susan LaGraff
Berti LeWinter
Emily Lilley
Candace Long
Philip Luckey
Susan Mangum
Drew Martin
Brooke McFadden
Ruth McMiilan
Daniel Morales
Sandy Nelson
Javiere Norris
Pat O'Brien

Brittany O'Quinn
Neil Panzier

Dan Peterson
Louise Pons
Pedro Pons

Mary Quinlan
Beth Reardon
Juanita Rochester
Bill Royer

Rhonda Slayton
Ginny Smith

Gail Spitler
Cynthia Swope
Lee Thomas
Rosalyn Vogel
Stan Vogel
Dorothy Volz
Joachim Volz
Mary Lynn Wilson
Mairi Wright

THANKS

We wish te thank averyone

helped to make the 201

great year, We ask that you conunue

to support the C50 thig conimng

season with ar annual contnbution
purchasing season or singl

nckets, purchasing tickets 16 our new
Uncorked! fundranser in May 2014, and
Dy remembering fhe D your astate
pranning, Your financial consideration
will ensure that Chattanooga's premier
performing artg organization contnues to
nspire, 2ngage and enrich both rnow and

mto the future

Contact the CSO at
423.267.8583 or visit
www.chattanoogasymphony.org
to learn about the many ways you
can give your support.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Chattanooga Symphony and Opera Association

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Chattanooga Symphony
and Opera Association, which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as of May
31, 2013, and the related Statements of Activities and Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or crror.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedurcs selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair prescntation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control, Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.



Board of Directors
Chattanooga Symphony and Opera Association
Page Two

Opinion

[n our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Chattanooga Symphony and Opera Association as of May 31, 2013, and the changes
in its net assets and its cash flows for the year ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matter

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The Supplemental Information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part
of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly slated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

9,,,4,“,.. M Wa?,o, m',d z
Chattanooga, Tenncssce / 1/‘/ / zcC.,

August 29,2013



CHATTANOOGA SYMPHONY AND OPERA ASSOCIATION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
May 31, 2013

ASSETS
Cash
Investments
Receivables - net
Prepaid expenses
FFurniture, equipment, and music -
net of accumulated depreciation

Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Line-of-credit
Deferred revenue - advance ticket sales
Deferred revenue - other

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Unrestricted
Operations
Board designated endowment
Youth Orchestra
Temporarily restricted net assets
Gherkin Fund
Opera Fund
Bernhardt Fund
Endowment earnings
Permanently restricted net assets

Total Net Assels

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

$ 30,590
1,993,659
371,413

325

27,441
8,000

$ 2,431,428

$ 45917
200,000
245,645
42,620

534,182

(88,314)
707,031
115,351

67,785
23,009
160,127
62,257
850,000

1,897,246

$ 2,431,428



CHATTANOOGA SYMPHONY AND OPERA ASSOCIATION
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

May 31, 2013
Unrestricted
Fund
Functioning Youth
Operations as Endowment Orchestra Total
REVENUE AND OTHER SUPPORT

Admissions $ 674,362 $ - ¥ 9,113 $ 683,475
Concert fees 97,122 - 1,300 98,422
Allicd Arts contributions 278,464 - 10,100 288,564
Individual and corporate contributions 741,853 - - 741,853
Fund-raising and special projecls 37,963 - 10,986 48,949
Youth orchestra tuition - - 46,955 46,955
Grants 59,700 - - 59,700
Foundation contribulions 18,000 - - 18,000
Program advertising 48,319 - - 48,319
Other income 5,536 - - 5,536
Investment return designated tor operations:

CSO Allied Arts investment return 105,049 - - 105,049
Investment return 101,856 85,454 - 187,310
Net assets released from restrictions . 8,000 i - - o - 8,000

Total revenue and other support 2,176,224 85454 78,454 2,340,132
EXPENSES
Produclion 1,615,756 - 80,513 1,696,269
Marketing 220,542 - - 220,542
Box office 24,138 - - 24,138
Fund-raising 55,979 - - 55,979
Administrative 544,476 ) - o - 544476

Total expenses 2,460,891 - 80,513 2,541,404

Change in net assets (284,667) 85,454 (2,059) (201,272)
Net assets - beginning ) 196,353 621,577 117410 935,340
Net assets - cnd $ (88,314) § 707,031 $ 115,351 $ 734,068

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CHATTANOOGA SYMPHONY AND OPERA ASSOCIATION
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (Continucd)
May 31, 2013

Tempaorarily Restricted

Endowment Permanently
Gherkin Opera Bernhardt Earnings Total Restricted Total

$ -8 -8 - % .8 - - § 683475

" . 5 - S @ 98,422

- 5 - . . ’ 288,564

- . 18,000 - 18,000 . 759,853
: = x ‘ : 48,949
- . - . - . 46,955
. - - . . 5 59,700
: . . : : : 18,000
- . . - . - 48,319
- . : ; : : 5,536

- . . . ’ . 105,049
. . 62,257 62,257 < 249,567
- . (8,000) . (8.000) - :
. - 10,000 62257 12257 4 2,412,389

. . . . ; - 1,696,269
: : 3 ; . - 220,542
< = . . - . 24,138
- . . . . . 55,979
. _ R . ; . - 544476
. . N = _ s - - 2,541,404

. . 10,000 62,257 72,257 - (129,015)

67,785 23,009 150,127 ) - 240,921 . 850,000 2,026,201

$ 67,785 b 23,009 b 160,127 $ 62,257 $ 313,178 $ 850,000 $ 1,897,246

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



CHATTANOOGA SYMPHONY AND OPERA ASSOCIATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended May 31, 2013

Cash Flows from Opcrating Activities
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ (129,015)
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 17,244
Change in operating assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in receivables (163,867)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 4,675
(Increase) decrease in other assets 2,000
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,741
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue - advance ticket sales 15,173
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue - other 21,020
Total adjustments - (102,014)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (231,029)

Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activities
Net proceeds (repayment) from line-of-credit 150,000
Net cash provided (used) by non-capital financing activities 150,000

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Disposal (purchase) of fixed assets (1,226)
Net proceeds (purchase) from investments (50,094)
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (51,320)
Net increase (decrease) in cash (132,349)
Cash - beginning - 162,939
Cash - end $ 30,590

Supplemental Disclosure
Interest paid $ 2,243

Non-cash Activities
Non-cash activities for the year ended May 31, 2013 consist of $2,000 to adjust the value of a painting
that was overstated on the financial statements.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CHATTANOOGA SYMPHONY AND OPERA ASSOCIATION
Notes to Financial Statements
May 31, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of Chattanooga Symphony and Opera Association have been prepared on the
accrual basis. The significant accounting policies followed are described below to enhance the usefulness
of the financial statements to the reader.

A. Nature of Activities
The Chattanooga Symphony and Opera Association is a non-profit entity. The lintity’s mission is
to provide a broad range of high-quality musical presentations and educational programs for the
Chattanooga arca. The Entity’s main sources of revenue are from admissions fees and
contributions.

B. Basis of Presentation - Net Asset Accounting
The Chattanooga Symphony and Opera Association follows the recommendations of the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) ASC 958-205-05-6. Under IFASB ASC 958-205-
05-6, the Chaltanooga Symphony and Opera Association is required to report information
regarding its financial position and activitics according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted
net assels, temporarily restricled netl assets, and permancntly restricled net assets. In addition,
Chattanooga Symphony and Opera Association is required to present a Statement of Cash Flows,

C. Basis of Accounting
The financial stalements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting and in accordance with
the AICPA Audit and Accounting Guide, Not-for-Profit Orgunizations, and Financial Accounting
Standards Board (IFASB) ASC 958-205-05-6. Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized
when earned and cxpenses are recognized at the time liabilities are incurred. The financial
statements reflect all significant receivables, payables and other liabilities. The reserve method is
used to compute the allowance for doubtful accounts.

D. Restricted and Unrestricted Support and Revenue
The Chattanooga Symphony and Opera Association follows the recommendations of the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) ASC 958-605-25, Coniributions received are
recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted support, depending on
the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions. Revenue is considered to be available for
unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donor or grantor.

The Entity reports gifls of cash and other assets as restricted support if they are received with
donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that
is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily
restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the Statement of
Activities as net assets released from restrictions.



NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continucd)

E. Valuation of Donated Property and Equipment

The Entity reports gifts of land, buildings and equipment as unrestricted support unless explicit
donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with
explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that
must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor
stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must be maintained, the Entity reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in
service. Donated furniture and equipment are recorded at fair value.

The Entity elected not to follow a portion of FASB ASC 958-605-25-16. In accordance with ASC
958-605-25-16, the Entily should recognize a contribution and expense for the same amount for
the value of the use of the building it occupies. Since the contribution and expense would be the
same, total support and expenses would both increase by the same amount with no effect on net
assets,

F. Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Entity considers all unrestricted highly liquid
investments purchased with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash cquivalents.

G. Investments
Investments are stated at fair value, determined based on quoted market prices or estimated
values provided by external investment managers or other sources. Any gains or losses, realized
or unrealized, are included in the change of net asscts in the Statement of Activities. Donated
investments are reflected as contributions at their market value at date of receipt. The Entity
chooses to show restricted gains and investment income whose restrictions arc met in the same
reporting period as unrestricted support.

H. Fair Value Measurement
The Entity adopted the provisions of ASC 820-10-50 applicable to financial asscts and liabilities,
as well as for other non-financial assets and liabilities that are carried at fair value on a recurring
basis. Adoption of the provisions of ASC 820-10-50 did not have an impact on thc measurement
of the Entity’s (inancial asscts and liabilities but did result in additional disclosure contained in
the footnotes herein.

I. Furniture, Equipment and Music
Furniture and equipment are recognized as assets of the Lntity and are stated at cost. Minor
repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. At the time that assets are retired or disposed
of, costs and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the related accounts and gain or loss,
if any, is credited or charged to income. Depreciation is provided on the straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the assets as tollows:

Office furniture and cquipment 5 - 10 years
Music and related items 4 - 10 years

J. Contributions Receivable
Donors’ promises to give are evaluated on the basis of criteria in FASB ASC 958-310-25. Those
that meet the criteria are recorded as pledges receivable at the time the promiscs are received.
They remain pledges receivable until collected or determined to be uncollectible.



NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

K. Compensated Absences
Policies regarding employee vacation and sick leave benefits do not meet the criteria which
would require accrual of a liability for future benefits.

L. Revenue Recognition
Revenue is considered to be available for unrestricted use unless its use is temporarily or
permanently restricted by donor or grantor in accordance with FASB ASC 958-605-25.

M. Functional Expense
The cost of providing various programs and other activities has been summarized on a functional
basis in the Statement of Activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting scrvices benefited.

N. Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make cstimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from these estimates.

O. Prepayment of Expenses
Expenses extending over more than one accounting period are allocated between accounting
periods.

P. Income Tax Status

The Entity is a not-for-profit corporation as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and is exempt from Federal income taxes on related income pursuant to Section
501(1) of the Code. The Lnlity accounts [or the effect of any uncertain tax positions based on a
more likely than not threshold to the recognition of the tax positions being sustained based on the
technical merits of the position under examination by the applicable taxing authority. If a tax
position or positions are deemed to result in uncertainties of those positions, the unrecognized tax
benefits are estimated based on the cumulative probability assessment that aggregates the
estimated tax liability for all uncertain tax positions. Tax positions for the Entity include, but are
not limited to, the tax-exempt status and determination of whether income is subject to unrelated
business income tax; however, the Entity has determined that such tax positions do not result in
an uncertlainty requiting recognition.

Q. Events Occurring after Reporting Date
The Entity has evaluated events and transactions that occurred between May 31, 2013, and
August 29, 2013, which is the date that the financial statements were available to be issued, for
possible recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.



NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH CREDIT RISK

At May 31, 2013, the carrying amount of cash was $30,590, and the bank balance was $57,349. The
entire bank balance is covered by federal depository insurance.

Petty cash 200
Checking accounts 30,390
Total $ 30,590

NOTE 3 - INVESTMENTS
Investments at May 31, 2013, are subject to market risks and are stated at fair value as follows:

Net Unrealized

Fair Appreciation

Cost _ Value _ (Loss)
Equity energy * $ 233,789 $ -
Large blend * 507,356 $ -
Small value # 270,902 $ -
High-yield bond * 224,866 $ -
Long-term bond L 225,848 $ -
Mid-cap value * 258,550 $ -
Realty trust * 219,863 $ =
Cash alternatives * 2,377 $
Intermediate-term bond * 9,324 $ -
World stock * 9,100 $
Large growth * 10,219 $ -
Large value * 21,465 $ -

Total investments § 1,993.659

*(Cost information not available.

The following schedule summarizes the investment return and its classification in the Statement of
Activities:

Interest $ 53,064
Realized gain (loss), net 196.503
Investment return $ 249,567
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NOTE 4 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

ASC 820-10-50 defines fair value, establishes a {framework for measuring fair value, and establishes a fair
value hierarchy which prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. A fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability occurs in the principal market for the assets or liability or, in the absence of a
principal market the most advantageous market. Valuation techniques that are consistent with the market,
income or cost approach are used to measure fair value. The fair value hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three broad levels:
1) Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities the Fund has the ability to access.
2) Level 2 inputs are inputs (other than quoted prices included within level 1) that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
3) Level 3 are unobservable inputs for the assets or liability and rely on management’s own
assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the assets
or liability. (The unobservable inputs should be developed based on the best information
available in the circumstances and may include the Entity’s own data.)

The following table presents the fair value hierarchy for those assets and liabilities measured at fair value
on a recurring basis as of May 31, 2013.

Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investments $ - $1993.659 $ -

NOTE § - RECEIVABLES - NET
Other receivables as of May 31, 2013, consist of the following:

Due in less than one year

Pledges $ 235,130
Spector 5,000
240,130
Due in one to five years
Pledges 170,633
Spector 5,000
175,633
Total receivables 415,763
Less
Allowance for doubtful accounts ( 31,949)
Discount of pledges (12.401)
Total receivables - net $ 371,413

Pledges receivable due in less than one year are $235,130 and $170,633 is due in one to {ive years.
Receivables from Spector due in less than one year are $5,000 and $5,000 is due in one to two years. The
Entity has recorded a 5% discount each year on long-term receivables which is amortized over the
remaining pledge life and is reported as a contribution in the Statement of Aclivities.
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NOTE 6 - FURNITURE, EQUIPMENT AND MUSIC - NET

A summary of furniture, equipment and music at May 31, 2013, is as follows:

Office furniture and equipment $ 79,177
Music and related items 71,251
150,428
Less: accumulated depreciation (122,987
Total 3 _27.441

Depreciation expense as of May 31, 2013, amounted to $17,244.

The Entity leases office space under a lease agreement, which is rencwable annually. Current year lease
expense totaled $19,760.

NOTE 7 - LINE-OF-CREDIT

The Entity has a line-of-credit agrcement with SunTrust Bank totaling $200,000. As of May 31, 2013,
there were borrowings under the line-of-credit totaling $200,000. Amounts outstanding under the line-ot-
credit bear interest at the prime rate and such interest is required to be paid monthly. The line-of-credit is
due upon demand. Current year interest expenses totaled $2,243,

NOTE 8 - RESTRICTIONS/LIMITATION ON NET ASSETS

Permanently restricted net assets as of May 31, 2013, consist of the following:

Endowment funds $ 800,000
Alisago donation 50,000
Total $ 850,000

Temporarily restricted nel assets as of May 31, 2013, consist of the following:

Gherkin Fund $ 67,785
Opera Fund 23,009
Bernhardt Fund 160,127
Endowment earnings 62,257

Total $ 313,178

The board has chosen to place a limitation on the following unrestricted net assets:

Fund functioning as endowment $ 707,031

|

Youth orchestra net assets are considered to be unrestricted but shown separately for financial reporting
purposes.
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NOTE 9 - INSURANCE

It is the policy of the Entity to purchase commercial insurance for the risks ot losses to which it is
exposed. These risks include general liability, property and casualty, workers’ compensation, and
directors and officers. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three
fiscal years.

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLANS

The Entity has an employer defined contribution plan and an employee directed contribution plan, both
administered by TIAA CREF. Full-time employees are eligible for the employer defined contribution plan
and the Entity contributes 4% of eligible employee’s salarics. The Entity docs not match employee’s
contributions in either plan.

Pension plan expenses totaled $54,050 for the current year.

NOTE 11 - ENDOWMENT

The Entity’s endowment consists of {unds established for a variety of purposes. Its endowment includes
both donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated by the Board of Directors to function as
endowments. As required by GAAP, net assets associated with endowment (unds, including funds
designated by the Board of Directors to function as endowments, are classilied and reported based on the
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

The Entity’s disclosure of its interpretation of the law or laws that underlie the Entity’s net assct
classification of donor-restricted endowment funds follows.

[nterpretation of Relevant Law

The Board of Directors of the Entity has interpreted the State Prudent Management of Institutional Funds
Act (SPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the original gift amount of the donor-restricted endowment
funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the Cntity
classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent
endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and (c)
accumulations to the permancnt endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable
donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the
donor-restricted endowment fund that is nol classified in permanently restricted net assets is classified as
temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the organization
in a manner consistent with the standard ol prudence prescribed by SPMIFA. In accordance with
SPMIFA, the Entity considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or
accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

(1) the duration and preservation of the fund,

(2) the purposes of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund,
(3) general economic conditions,

(4) the possible effect of inflation and detlation,

(5) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of investinents,
(6) other resources of the organization and

(7) the investment policies of the Entity.
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NOTE 11 - ENDOWMENT (Continued)
Return Objectives and Risk Parameters

The Entity has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide a
predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to maintain the
purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted
funds that the organization must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period(s) as well as board-
designated funds. Under this policy, as approved by the Board ol Directors, the endowment assets are
invested in a manner that is intended to produce results while assuming a moderate level of invesiment
risk.

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives

To satisfy its long-term ratc-of-return objectives, the Entity relies on a total return strategy in which
investment returns arc achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current
yield (interest and dividends). The Entity targets a diversified asset allocation to achieve its long-term
return objectives within prudent risk constraints,

Spending Policy and How the Investment Objectives Relate to Spending Policy

Funds held for endowment purposes are monitored and directed by the Investment Committee of the
Board. The Board has adopted a policy of contributing a percentage of the endowment funds to the
operating budget. This percentage is currently 5% of the total average calendar year-end portfolio value of
the endowment funds for the prior three calendar years. Any amount over 5% during any calendar year
must be approved by two-thirds of the Board prior to any funds being committed or disbursed.
Reasonable efforts to control risk shall be made and should be evaluated regularly to ensure that the risk
assumed is commensurate with the given instrument style and objectives. The investment goal is to meet
or exceed one of the following;:

1) the rate of inflation by 5% or
2) the return of a balanced market index comprised of 60% Russell 3,000, 30% Lchman Brothers
Government/Corporate bond index and 10% Treasury Bills by 1 to 2%.

The Entity’s disclosure of its endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of May 31, 2013,
follows:

2013

Endowment Net Asset Composition by Type of l‘und as of May 31, 2013

Temporarily = Permanently

Unrestricled  Restricted Restricted __Total

Donor-restricted endowment funds $ - 3 - $ 850,000 $ 850,000
Temporarily restricted endowment

earnings - 62,257 - 62,257

Board-designated endowment funds 707,031 - - 707,031

Total funds $ 707,031 $ 62,257 § 850,000 $ 1,619,288




NOTE 11 - ENDOWMENT (Continued)

The Entity’s disclosure of changes in endowment net assets for the year ended May 31, 2013, follows:

Changes in Endowment Net Assets for the Year Ended May 31, 2013

Endowment net assets, beginning

of year

Investment return:
Investment income
Net appreciation of investments
Total investment return

Contributions

Appropriated for expenditure
Reclassifications

Other changes

Endowment net assets, end of year

Temporarily  Permanently
Unrestricted _Restricted Restricted Total
$ 621,577 § - § 850,000 § 1,471,577
85,454 104,757 - 190,211
707,031 104,757 850,000 1,661,788
- 42,500) - ( 42,500)
$ 707,031 § 62,257 § 850,000 §$ 1,619,288
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CHATTANOOGA SYMPHONY AND OPERA ASSOCIATION
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES OF FINANCIAL POSITION

May 31, 2013 and 2012

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Receivables - net

Prepaid expenses

Fumiture, equipment, and music -
net of accumulated depreciation

Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Line-of-credit
Deferred revenue - advance ticket sales
Deferred revenue - other

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Unrestricted
Operations
Board designated endowment
Youth Orchestra
Temporarily restricted net assets
Gherkin Fund
Opera Fund
Bernhardt Fund
Endowment earnings
Permanently restricted net assets

Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2013 2012
$ 30,590 $ 162,939
1,993,659 1,943,565
371,413 207,546
325 5,000
27,441 43,459
8,000 10,000
$ 2,431,428 $ 2,372,509
$ 45917 $ 44,176
200,000 50,000
245,645 230,472
42,620 21,600
534,182 346,248
(88,314) 196,353
707,031 621,577
115,351 117,410
67,785 67,785
23,009 23,009
160,127 150,127
62,257 :
850,000 850,000
1,897,246 2,026,261
$ 2,431,428 $ 2,372,509
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CHATTANOOGA SYMPHONY AND OPERA ASSOCIATION

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended May 31, 2013 and 2012

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Increase (decrease) in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in receivables
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
(Increase) decrease in other asscts
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Increase (decrcase) in deferred revenue - advance ticket sales
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue - other
Total adjustments
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activities
Nel proceeds (repayment) from line-of-credit
Net cash provided (used) by non-capital financing activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Disposal (purchase) of fixed assets
Net proceeds (purchase) from investments
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning
Cash and cash equivalents - end

Supplemental Disclosure
Interest paid

Non-cash Activities

17,244

(163,867)
4,675

2,000

1,741
15,173
21,020
- (102,014)
_(231,029)

150,000
150,000

(1,226)
(50,094)
(51,320)
(132,349)
162,939

$ 30,590

$ 2243

2012

5 53,816

18,071

1,869
15,000

(1,591)
(10,279)

_ (90,974)
(67,904)
(14,088)

(69,860)
(69,860)

(66,890)
- (66,890)

(150,838)
313,777

$ 162,939

$ 792

Non-cash activities for the year ended May 31, 2013 consist of $2,000 1o adjust the value of a painting

that was overstated on the f[inancial statements.
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CSO BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2013-2014

BOARD MEMBER

OFFICE/
COMMITTEE
CHAIR

OCCUPATION

EXP

Jeannine Alday

1047 River Hills Circle
Chattanooga, TN 37415
Phone: 267-3560

Email: Jalday@epbfi.com

Retired

2015

Warren Barnett
President

Barnett and Company
PO Box 11585
Chattanooga, TN 37401
Phone: 752-0125

Fax: 756-0127

Financial Planner

Email: warren@barnettandcompany.com

Home:
1016 Ariel Lane
Chattanooga, TN 37405

Governance
Committee Chair

2016

Dr. Gordon Bietz

President

Southern Adventist University
PO Box 370

Collegedale TN 37315
Phone: 236-2800 ext. 2801
Fax:  236-1801

Email: bietz@southern.edu

Home:

Dr. and Mrs. Gordon (Cynthia) Bietz
5519 Barrington Country Circle
Ooltewah, TN 37363

College President

2nd

2016

Gail Chapman
Executive Secretary, Chattanooga Area
Dental Society.

Home:

Mr. and Mrs. Bill Chapman
39 Oliver Court

Signal Mountain, TN 37377
Phone: 886-4848

Email: gailchapman@yahoo.com

Association manager

Education and
Outreach Chair

3rd

2016




Michelle Chastain
Vice President

Regions Bank

601 Market Street
Chattanooga, TN 37402
Phone: 752-1544

Fax: 752-1541

Email: Michelle.Chastain@regions.com

Private Banking
Manager

15[

2014

George S. Clinton

39 Beacon Street # 2

Boston, MA 02108

Phone: 818-881-5215
Email: geomusic@mac.com

Film score composer
Head, Berklee School
of Music Film Scoring
Department

2nd

2016

Jo Coke

1208 Lower Brow Road
Signal Mountain, TN 37377
Phone: 886-1607

Email: jocoke(@comcast.net

Volunteer

Investment
Committee Chair

2nd

2016

Mike Cooper

Sr. VP

SunTrust Bank

736 Market Street

Chattanooga, TN 37402

Phone: 757-3001

Fax:  757-3437

Email: mike.cooper@suntrust.com

Home:

Mr. and Mrs. Mike (Diane) Cooper
1413 Sunset Drive

Signal Mountain

Phone: 886-1189

Banker

ISI

2016

Nick Coussoule

Sr. VP and CIO

BlueCross BlueShield of Tennessee
One Cameron Hill Circle
Chattanooga, TN 37402

Phone: 535-7972

Fax:  591-9270

Email: nick coussoule@bcbst.com
Home:

Mr. and Mrs. Nick (Jane) Coussoule
1638 Edgewood Circle
Chattanooga, TN 37405

Phone: 468-3487

Email: nick_Coussoule@gmail.com

IT Officer

2nd

2014




Linda Friberg

Home:

Mr. and Mrs. Russell Friberg
79 South Crest Road
Chattanooga, TN 37404
Phone: 698-2765

Email: thefribergs@aol.com

Volunteer

Program Committee
Chair

2016

Kim Gavin
Exec. Editor, Floor Covering Weekly

Home:

Mr. and Mrs. Chuck Gavin
800 Market Street #508
Chattanooga, TN 37402
Phone: 243-7198

Email: kimgavin@aol.com

Trade publication
editor

Marketing
Committee Chair

2nd

2015

Bill Green

Dean

Lee University School of Music
1130 Parker Street

Cleveland, TN 37320

Phone: 423-614-8074

Email: wgreen@leeuniversity.edu

Home:

Dr. and Mrs. Bill Green (Twyla)
1660 Benjamin Circle NW
Cleveland, TN 37312

Educator

ISI

2016

Mai Bell Hurley

1068 Constitution Drive
Chattanooga, TN 37405
Phone: 266-0224

Email: maibellh@comcast.net

Retired/Volunteer

2nd

2016

Eva J. Johnson

312 McBrien Road Apt. 106
Chattanooga, TN 37411
Phone: 988-1697

Email: evajo7@yahoo.com

Retired/Volunteer

2016




Ian K. Leavy

Corporate Counsel

Human Resources
Volkswagen Group of America
Chattanooga Operations

8001 Volkswagen Drive
Chattanooga, TN 37416
Phone: 423-582-5141

Fax:  423-582-5945

Email: ian.leavy@vw.com

Corporate attorney

lsl

2015

Pat Ledford

Senior Advisor

Interlock Industries

5959 Shallowford Road Suite 405
Chattanooga, TN 37421

Phone: 423-305-6151 x 151
Email: pledford@spraylock.com

Home:

Ms. Pat Ledford

800 Market Street
Chattanooga, TN 37402
Phone: 615-478-4042

Email: ledfordpatricia@gmail.com

Manufacturing

Ist

2016

Spencer McCallie

Home:

Mr. and Mrs. Spencer (Sara) McCallie
246 Cherry Street

Chattanooga, TN 37402

Phone: 521-7181

Email: spencermccallie@epbfi.com

Retired
educator/volunteer

President

3rd

2016

Eddie McCrary

104 Euclid Avenue
Chattanooga, TN 37415
Phone: 400-3796

Email: gemjr1976@gmail.com

Musician

Orchestra
Representative

2015

Don McDowell

Home:

Mr. and Mrs. Don (Mary) McDowell
7777 Thunder Farms Trail
Ooltewah, TN 37343

Home: 423-618-8114

Email: manddmcd@yahoo.com

Retired corporate
leader

lst

2016




Claudia Moore

Home:

Mr. and Mrs. Darrell Moore
3201 Enclave Bay Drive
Chattanooga, TN 37415

Phone: 870-9715

Email:  dckmoore@yahoo.com

Marketing Director

2nd

2015

Susan Elliott Rich

Baker, Donelson, Bearman, Caldwell &
Berkowitz

633 Chestnut Street Suite 1800
Chattanooga, TN 37450

Phone: 756-4402

Fax: 752-9565

Email: srich@bakerdonelson.com
Home:

Dr. and Mrs, Steve Rich

1036 Cumberland Road
Chattanooga, TN 34719

Attorney

2nd

2013

W. Keith Sanford

President

First Tennessee Bank

701 Market Street

Chattanooga, TN 37402

Phone: 757-4465

Fax:

Email: wksanford@firsthorizon.com
Home:

Mr. and Mrs. W. Keith (Julia) Sanford
105 Hardy Road

Lookout Mountain, TN 37350
Home: 706-820-2920

Banker

1st

2015

Tyler Siira

AVP, Corporate Treasury
Unum

One Fountain Square
Chattanooga, TN 37402
Phone: 294-5568

Email: tsiira@unum.com

Home:

Mr. and Mrs. Tyler (Stacie) Siira
642 E. 17" Street
Chattanooga, TN 37408

Financial Analyst

1st

2016




Mark A. Smith

Attorney

Husch Blackwell, LLP

736 Georgia Avenue, Suite 300
Chattanooga, TN 37402
Phone: 755-2667

Fax:  266-5499

Email: mark.smith@huschblackwell.com

Home:

Mr. and Mrs. Mark (Jenni) Smith
2919 Reynard Trail

Signal Mountain, TN 37377
Home: 886-3477

Attorney

Treasurer

2nd

2015

Pat Starke

Home:

Mr. and Mrs, John Starke

800 Market Street #410
Chattanooga, TN 37402
Phone: 756-2256

Email: bluhwy@comcast.net

Volunteer

2014

Jeffrey Wilson

Pastor

New United Church
2629 Tunnel Boulevard
Chattanooga, TN 37416

Hamilton County Board of Education
3074 Hickory Valley Road
Chattanooga, TN 37421

4714 Fairwood Lane

Chattanooga, TN 37416

Phone: 314-5281

Email: Jtw8903@aol.com

Pastor

2nd

2015

Katie Wilson

1700 Lula Lake Road

Lookout Mountain, GA 30750
Phone: 423-718-4101

Email: mhyl13@mocs.utc.edu

Volunteer

1st

2015




CONSTITUENT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

CSO YOUTH ORCHESTRA:

Linda Thompson

Home

Mr. and Mrs. Bob Thompson

8912 Villa Rica Circle

Chattanooga, TN 37421

Phone: 899-9818

Email: finalrequests@bellsouth.net

Volunteer/
musician

YO President

Jean Rader

704 Ashley Forest Drive
Hixson, TN 37343

Phone: 870-8557

Email: drrader@juno.com

Volunteer

YO Representative

Colleen Russell

8702 Hurricane Manor Trail
Chattanooga, TN 37421
Phone: 267-7613

Email: crussell@ctiengr.com

Volunteer

YO Representative

CSO ORCHESTRA:

Teresa Spilko

160 Signal Hills Drive
Chattanooga, TN 37405

Phone: 385-9833

Email: teresaspilka@yahoo.com

Musician

Orchestra
Representative

Taylor Brown

Musician

Orchestra
Representative

Suzanne Sims

Musician

Orchestra
Representative




¢"® City of Chattanooga
.7 FY15 Offers

OFFER SUMMARY

Offer Name:  Creating Smarter Students Through Music Education
Lead Agency:  Chattanooga Symphony & Opera
Collaborating City Department(s):

Contact Name:  Molly Sasse, Executive Director
Smarter Students, Stronger
Primary Results Area:  Families

Offer Cost (Funding Request):  $25,000.00

RESULTS AREAS

1. Safer Streets — Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways.

2. Growing Economy — Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods — Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid re-housing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families — Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government — Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund — Something different — processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage?
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)

. The CSO has four educational programs for children: Ensembles in the Schools, Young People's Concerts at the Tivoli
Theatre, the String Instruction Program at Alpine Crest and Big Ridge Elementary Schools, and the CSO Youth Orchestras.
These programs together serve more than 25,000 children each year.

Through the Ensembles in the Schools program, professional musicians perform in 49 schools throughout the city, exposing
children to classical music, professional artists, and aiding in cross-curricular connections. 32% of those children are
minorities and 6% are students with disabilities. Through this program, principal players of the CSO String Quintet and
Wind Quintet introduce the instruments of the orchestra and basic musical concepts with age-appropriate programs for

| students in area elementary and secondary schools. Ensembles in the Schools reinforce what students are learning in their
music classrooms about musical instruments, genres, terms, and techniques and in recent seasons, have also expanded to
reinforce ideas in other subjects include Math and Science. The programs address Hamilton County (as well as state and
national) standards for music education.

In FY14, 2,046 students from schools within city limits (out of over 4,000 in total attendance) attended one of our Young
People’s Concerts held at the Tivoli theatre. This year’s concert had the largest recorded attendance and we expect it to
continue to grow as it has in previous years. These concerts meet Hamilton County, state, and national music education
| standards in introducing students to orchestral music, musical concepts, and live performances in culturally significant
| venues.
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' Currently, no elementary school within the city limits offers string instruction. However, for 3 years, the CSO has provided

a teacher, instruments, and weekly instruction at Big Ridge Elementary School (District 3); we are in our 8 year with this
program at Alpine Crest Elementary School and have partnered with Glass House Collective and ArtsBuild to pilot a
program at Hardy Elementary School (District 8) in the Fall of 2014. Evaluations of these programs by the school teachers

| consistently include descriptions of high student morale, high achievement in other academic areas, high levels of parental

BUDGET REQUEST

involvement, and decreased abseentism from participants.

190 students ages 11-19 participate annually in one of four graded Youth Orchestras sponsored by the CSO. A student
orchestra as a subsidiary of an adult orchestra is relatively rare. Only six American orchestras have their own youth
orchestras. No other organization within approximately 100 miles offers an orchestra geared strictly to youth, so the CSO
Youth Orchestras provide valuable training and experience for students wishing to develop musical skills.

Numerous studies have shown that music and the arts in schools is critical to reducing drop-out rates by creating student
interest and buy-in, raising parental involvement, and increasing test scores and cross-curricular connections. A 2006
Harris Poll revealed that among high school principals 96% agree that participating in music education encourages and
motivates students to stay in school, 89% of the principals feel that a high-quality music education program contributes to

their school achieving higher graduation rates, and that there are higher attendance and graduation rates among those
who participate in music programs. Music study and experiences encourage students to think and respond creatively. As
Chattanooga prepares to recruit businesses to the city and compete in a national and global marketplace, the ability to
think creatively will become an important skill for workers. CSO Education programs, specifically our Ensembles in the
Schooals, Strings in the Schools, and Youth Orchestras teach and reinforce that skill.

Education programs will be administered through the Education department of the Chattanooga Symphony & Opera, in
collaboration with local city schools and for the Young People’s Concerts, with the Tivoli Theatre.

Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts:

1.College and Career Ready Students: CSO Education programs, specifically the Youth Orchestra, help young students
graduate high school ready to enter college and study in artistic fields. Artists are important contributors to local and state
economies and as such, developing and training young artists and musicians is important. This is something not currently
being done by any other organization in the city. Over 70% of Youth Orchestra students attending college receive music
scholarships to their universities, scholarships gained through auditions requiring them to play and demonstrate musical
understanding at a collegiate and semi-professional level.

2. Multi-generational programs for families: CSO Education programs, specifically the Young People’s Concerts,
performances at the Creative Discovery Museum, libraries, and other local venues allows families to have a shared cultural
experience with high quality music and artists. In addition to our education programs, the artistic productions presented by
the CSO frequently include multi-generational audiences in family-friendly and supportive, culturally rich environment.

Summary: (Please complete based on information contained in Attachment F)

Personnel Costs FTEs
Offer Name (including Benefits) Operating Costs Total Request required
Creating Smarter
Students Through
Music Education $250,871 $310,221 | $25,000.00 4
Capital Budget Impact? Yes X No $Amount
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‘ Financial Offsets: (Please list other revenues associated with the specific program for which funding is requested)

| | Name Amount
| | Youth Orchestra Tuition $65,000
| Ticket Sales $12,000

PERFORMANCE DATA

|
' Measurement 1:
Output: Number of in school performances and qualitative analysis of teacher evaluations of performances. The CSO will
perform in 52 schools in the city in FY15, representing a 5% increase from FY14 and a 10% increase in positive descriptors
| used in teacher evaluations
| Historfcal Comparison Data? The table below shows the number of performances in schools for the past 4
| years.

FY11l | FY12 | FY13 | FY14 expected
Performances in city schools 36 32 40 49
Total Ensembles in schools performances | 40 51 61 62

Internal data will be compiled and compared against previous years data.

Measurement 2:

| Output: Students involved in a CSO sponsored instrumental instruction program. Currently over 200 students
are involved in an instrumental instruction program through the CSO Youth Orchestras or through the Strings
in the School program; in FY15, this will increase by 5%.

Historical Comparison Data? The table below shows the number of students involved in an instrumental
| program sponsored by the CSO for the past 4 years.

| FYili FYi2 FY13 FY14 expected
‘ Youth Orchestra members 186 160 175 190

Strings in Schools 0 0 17 17

- Internal data will be compiled and compared against previous years data.

| Measurement 3:
Output: Number of students attending a Young People’s Concert. In FY14, 2,046 students from city schools
‘ attended a Young People’s Concert; in FY15, this will increase by 5%.

‘ Historical Comparison Data? Internal data will be compiled and compared against previous years data.

' Return on Investment:

How do citizens benefit? Specifically, students and music teachers in over 50 public, private, and home-school
co-operations in Chattanooga will benefit directly from these education programs. Long-term benefits to the
community include children and students who are able to make connections across subject areas and are
more culturally aware and sensitive to the role classical music and music in their lives, which studies have
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linked to higher test scores, higher levels of education attained, and higher levels of civic engagement.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? This program draws a significant amount of revenue from tuition,
ticket sales, performance fees, 